
Tudalen 1

Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

DYDD IAU, 14 CHWEFROR 2019

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R CYNGOR SIR

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R CYNGOR 
SIR A GYNHELIR YN SIAMBR,  - NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN. SA31 
1JP. AM 10.00 AM, DYDD MERCHER, 20FED CHWEFROR, 2019 ER MWYN 
CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM

Mark James DYB

PRIF WEITHREDWR

 AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA
Swyddog Democrataidd: Kevin Thomas
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224027
E-bost: kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

Pecyn Dogfennau



Tudalen 2

A G E N D A  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL. 

3. CYHOEDDIADAU'R CADEIRYDD. 

4. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 
CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR YR 9FED IONAWR 2019 

7 - 12

5. CWESTIYNAU GAN AELODAU:- 

5 .1 CWESTIWN GAN CYNGHORYDD EDWARD THOMAS I'R 
CYNGHORYDD EMLYN DOLE, ARWEINYDD Y CYNGOR

 

“Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cael ei beirniadu yn ddiweddar gan y 
Gymdeithas Cludo Nwyddau am oedi o ran gweithredu ei 
Strategaeth Drafnidiaeth, yn benodol ffordd liniaru’r M4 yng 
Nghasnewydd. 

A ydych chi’n credu bod y methiant hwn i wella’r cysylltiadau o’r 
dwyrain i’r gorllewin yn cael effaith andwyol ar economi Sir 
Gaerfyrddin.  Beth fyddech chi’n ei ddweud wrth Mark Drakeford, y 
Prif Weinidog, am hyn?”

5 .2 CWESTIWN GAN CYNGHORYDD GARETH JOHN I'R 
CYNGHORYDD JANE TREMLETT, AELOD Y BWRDD 
GWEITHREDOL DROS GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL AC 
IECHYD

 

“A ellid rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Cyngor ynghylch y cynnydd 
a wnaed, y camau a gymerwyd a’r cytundebau a luniwyd â Bwrdd 
Iechyd Hywel Dda i sefydlu gwasanaeth gofal cymunedol 
gwirioneddol integredig ar draws yr ardal? Hefyd, a ellid rhoi gwybod 
i’r Cyngor beth yw’r amserlen ddisgwyliedig o ran ei sefydlu?”

6. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD. 

6 .1 CWESTIWN GAN MISS C. SYLVAN I'R CYNGHORYDD 
EMLYN DOLE, ARWEINYDD Y CYNGOR

 

“Mae effeithiau newid yn yr hinsawdd yn cael eu teimlo yn Sir 
Gaerfyrddin a chawsom lifogydd y llynedd a achosodd ddigartrefedd, 
difrod a marwolaeth. Beth mae’s Cyngor yn ei roi ar waith a sicrhau 
ei bod yn ddiogel imi fyw, gweithio a magu teulu yng Nghaerfyrddin 
yn y dyfodol”.

7. YSTYRIED Y RHYBUDD O GYNNIG CANLYNOL:- 



Tudalen 3

7 .1 RHYBUDD O GYNNIG A GYFLWYNWYD GAN Y 
CYNGHORYDD ALED VAUGHAN OWEN

 

“Mae cydsyniad byd-eang bod newid yn yr hinsawdd yn peri risg 
sylweddol i'n hiechyd, ein heconomi, ein hamgylchedd ac yn 
peryglu llesiant cenedlaethau'r dyfodol. Dengys tystiolaeth 
wyddonol yn glir nad oes gennym fwy na 12 mlynedd i atal 
trychineb hinsawdd, a hyd yn oed yn lleol yma yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, 
rydym yn wynebu heriau sylweddol sy'n ymwneud â newid yn yr 
hinsawdd.  Mae dinasoedd, Awdurdodau Lleol a chymunedau 
ledled Cymru a'r DU yn teimlo'n rhwystredig gyda llywodraethau 
sy'n amharod i gymryd y camau brys sydd eu hangen er mwyn 
ymdrin â'r materion hyn. 

Mae dyfodol dynoliaeth yn dibynnu ar arweinwyr mentrus a dewr 
heddiw i wneud y penderfyniadau angenrheidiol er mwyn diogelu'r 
amgylchedd, ein dyfodol a'r cenedlaethau sydd i ddod. 

Cynigwn felly fod Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn 
1. Datgan Argyfwng Hinsawdd

2. Ymrwymo i wneud Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn awdurdod lleol 
di-garbon net erbyn 2030

3. Datblygu cynllun clir ar gyfer bod yn awdurdod di-garbon net 
o fewn 12 mis

4. Galw ar Lywodraeth Cymru a Llywodraeth y DU i ddarparu 
cymorth ac adnoddau angenrheidiol er mwyn ein galluogi i 
leihau carbon yn effeithiol

5. Gweithio gyda'r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus a 
phartneriaid Bargen Ddinesig Bae Abertawe i ddatblygu 
cyfleoedd cyffrous i gyflawni arbedion carbon

6. Cydweithio ag arbenigwyr o'r sector preifat a'r 3ydd sector i 
ddatblygu atebion arloesol er mwyn bod yn awdurdod di-
garbon net”. 

8. ADEILADU RHAGOR O DAI - CYNYDDU EIN HUCHELGAIS 13 - 18

9. YSTRIED ARGYMHELLION Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL O RAN Y 
MATERION CANLYNOL:- 

9 .1 STRATEGAETH Y GYLLIDEB REFENIW 2019/20 - 2021/22 19 - 262
9 .2 RHAGLEN GYFALAF PUM MLYNEDD (CRONFA'R 

CYNGOR) - 2019/20 - 2023/24
263 - 292

9 .3 CYFRIF CYLLIDEB REFENIW TAI 2019/20 - 2020/21 A 
LEFELAU RHENTI TAI 2021/22 - REFENIW A CHYFALAF

293 - 312

9 .4 SAFON TAI SIR GAERFYRDDIN A MWY (STSG+) 
CYNLLUN BUSNES 2019–22

313 - 382

9 .5 POLISI RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS A STRATEGAETH  2019-
2020

383 - 432



Tudalen 4

10. DERBYN ADRODDIAD CYFARFODAU Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL 
A GYNHALIWYD AR 22AIN AR Y DYDDIADAU CANLYNOL:- 

10 .1 21AIN IONAWR 2019 433 - 436
10 .2 4YDD CHWEFROR 2019 437 - 446

11. PENODI SWYDD Y PRIF WEITHREDWR A PHENNAETH Y 
GWASANAETH TALEDIG. 

447 - 466

12. AELODAETH PWYLLGORAU CRAFFU, PWYLLGORAU 
RHEOLEIDDIO A PHWYLLGORAU ERAILL Y CYNGOR A 
PHENODI AELODAU I WASANAETHU ARNYNT 

467 - 476

13. PENODI AELODAU I WASANAETHU AR AWDURDOD TÂN AC 
ACHUB Y CANOLBARTH A GORLLEWIN CYMRU 

477 - 480

14. AELODAETH PWYLLGORAU 

14 .1 NODI BOD Y GRWP PLAID CYMRU WEDI ENWEBU'R 
CYNGHORYDD MANSEL CHARLES I GYMERYD LLE'R 
CYNGHORYDD AR Y PWYLLGOR PENODI B

14 .2 NODI BOD Y GRWP LLAFUR WEDI ENWEBU'R 
CYNGHORYDD ROB EVANS I GYMERYD LLE'R 
CYNGHORYDD JOHN PROSSER AR Y PWYLLGOR  
CRONFA BENSIWN DYFED

15. COFNODION ER GWYBODAETH (AR GAEL AR Y WEFAN) 

15 .1 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD AR 
AMGYLCHEDD - 10 RHAGFYR 2018

15 .2 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU - 13 RHAGFYR 2018
15 .3 PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO - 13 RHAGFYR 2018
15 .4 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL AC 

IECHYD 17 - RHAGFYR 2018
15 .5 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A PHLANT - 20 RHAGFYR 

2018
15 .6 PWYLLGOR TRWYDDEDU - 8 IONAWR 2019
15 .7 PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO - 20 IONAWR 2019
15 .8 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU - 11 

IONAWR 2019
15 .9 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DIOGELU'R CYHOEDD AR 

AMGYLCHEDD - 14 IONAWR 2019
15 .10 PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO - 22 IONAWR 2019
15 .11 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU - 23 IONAWR 2019
15 .12 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL AC 

IECHYD - 23 IONAWR 2019
15 .13 PWYLLGOR PENODI B - 1 CHWEFROR 2019



Tudalen 5

DS: Mae adroddiadau yn cael eu hargraffu mewn du a gwyn yn unig er mwyn arbed 
costau. Fodd bynnag mae pob adroddiad ar gael ar-lein fel y gall aelodau o'r 
Pwyllgor / Cyngor Sir a'r cyhoedd weld lluniau/graffiau mewn lliw.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CYNGOR SIR

DYDD MERCHER, 9 IONAWR 2019 

YN BRESENNOL: Cynghorydd  J.M. Charles (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr:-
H.I. Jones K.V. Broom C.A. Campbell J.M. Charles
D.M. Cundy S.A. Curry C.A. Davies T.A.J. Davies
G. Davies I.W. Davies J.A. Davies S.L. Davies
W.R.A. Davies E. Dole J.S. Edmunds P.M. Edwards
D.C. Evans H.A.L. Evans L.D. Evans R.E. Evans
W.T. Evans A.L. Fox S.J.G. Gilasbey P. Hughes-Griffiths
A.D. Harries T.M. Higgins J.K. Howell P.M. Hughes
A. James J.D. James R. James D.M. Jenkins
J.P. Jenkins G.H. John C. Jones B.W. Jones
D. Jones G.R. Jones M.J.A. Lewis K. Lloyd
K. Madge S. Matthews A.S.J. McPherson E. Morgan
A.G. Morgan D. Nicholas B.D.J. Phillips J.S. Phillips
D. Price J.G. Prosser B.A.L. Roberts E.M.J.G. Schiavone
H.B. Shepardson A.D.T. Speake L.M. Stephens D. Thomas
E.G. Thomas G.B. Thomas G. Thomas J. Tremlett
A.Vaughan Owen D.T. Williams D.E. Williams J.E. Williams

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:-
M. James, Prif Weithredwr
C. Moore, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
J. Morgan, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedau
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Phlant
W. Walters, Cyarfwyddwr Adfywio a Pholisi
P.R. Thomas, Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad)
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
L. Jenkins, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Siambr, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. 10.00 - 11.05 am

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr F. Akhtar, S. 
Allen, L. Bowen, H. Davies, K. Davies, J. Jones, A. Lenny, S. Najmi a B. Thomas. 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.

Y 
Cynghorydd 

Rhif y Cofnod Math o Fuddiant

A. Speake 8.–Cynllun 
Gostyngiadau'r Dreth 
Gyngor 2019/20

Mae'n derbyn pensiwn anabledd 
rhyfel.

Tudalen 7

Eitem Rhif  4



3. CYHOEDDIADAU'R CADEIRYDD.

 Estynnodd y Cadeirydd gyfarchion i'r Cynghorwyr J. James a J. Prosser wrth 
iddynt ddychwelyd ar ôl eu llawdriniaeth yn ddiweddar a dymunodd wellhad 
buan iddynt; 

 Dywedodd y Cadeirydd ei fod ef a'r Is-gadeirydd wedi cael y fraint o 
gynrychioli'r Cyngor mewn nifer o ddigwyddiadau a'u bod yn gobeithio y 
byddant yn cael eu gwahodd i'r wardiau hynny nad ydynt wedi ymweld â nhw 
hyd yn hyn yn ystod y misoedd nesaf; 

 Nododd y Cadeirydd ei fod wedi cymryd rhan yn Nhrochfa'r Tymor ar Ŵyl San 
Steffan i godi arian ar gyfer elusen. Diolchodd i'w holl noddwyr yn ogystal ag 
Eira Evans am ddarparu'r ffurflenni nawdd; 

 Wedi dadorchuddio'r plac glas cyntaf yn nhref Llanymddyfri, diolchodd y 
Cadeirydd i'r Cynghorydd Handel Davies a Chyngor Tref Llanymddyfri am eu 
gweledigaeth. Mae'r plac yn coffáu y Ficer Rhys Prichard. Bu i'r Cadeirydd 
annog Cynghorwyr sy'n cynrychioli ardaloedd gwledig i ganfod a oes pobl neu 
adeiladau yn eu wardiau sydd â gwerth hanesyddol iddynt ond sy'n cael eu 
hanghofio; 

 Cydymdeimlodd y Cadeirydd â'r Cynghorydd Jim Jones yn dilyn marwolaeth ei 
frawd Graham, ac â'r Cynghorydd Bill Thomas a'i bartner Catherine yn dilyn 
marwolaeth mam Catherine;

 Aeth y Cadeirydd ati i longyfarch:
 Dylan Morgan, disgybl blwyddyn 10 yn Ysgol Bro Dinefwr a oedd wedi 

ennill pedair medal aur ym Mhencampwriaeth Cwrs Byr Nofio Cymru 2018. 
Dylan bellach yw Pencampwr Cymru yn y cystadlaethau nofio 50m Dull 
Rhydd, 100m Dull Rhydd, 50m ar y Cefn a 100m ar y Cefn; 

 Mark Drakeford, a gafodd ei fagu yng Nghaerfyrddin, ar gael ei ethol yn Brif 
Weinidog Cymru;

 Estynnodd y Cadeirydd ei longyfarchiadau i'r trigolion canlynol o Sir 
Gaerfyrddin a wobrwywyd yn Anrhydeddau'r Flwyddyn Newydd:

Swyddog Urdd yr Ymerodraeth Brydeinig
 Barry Liles am ei wasanaethau i sgiliau a phobl ifanc Cymru. Roedd Mr 

Liles, a fu'n Is-ganghellor Prifysgol Cymru y Drindod Dewi Sant a chyn 
Brifathro a Phrif Swyddog Coleg Sir Gâr, yn Hyrwyddwr Sgiliau Cymru;

 Dr Nicola Phillips am ei gwasanaethau i ffisiotherapi. Er bod Dr Phillips yn 
byw yng Nghoety, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, hi yw merch Gordan Phillips, sef 
cwrwglwr ymddeoledig o Gaerfyrddin; 

Aelod o Urdd yr Ymerodraeth Brydeinig
 Michael Thomas John Ponton o Lan-gain, cyn Aelod Annibynnol 

(Cymuned) o Fwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda, am ei wasanaethau i ofal 
iechyd; 

 Nikki Symmons, pennaeth Ysgol Heol Goffa, Llanelli, am ei gwasanaethau i 
addysg; 

Medal yr Ymerodraeth Brydeinig
 Cairn Newton-Evans o Lanelli, Prif Swyddog Arbennig Heddlu Dyfed-

Powys, am ei wasanaethau i'r heddlu a'r gymuned LGBT yng Nghymru. 

4. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CYNGOR A 
GYNHALIWYD AR YR 12FED RHAGFYR 2018.

Tudalen 8



PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi bod cofnodion cyfarfod y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd ar 
12 Rhagfyr 2018 yn gofnod cywir.

5. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW).

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd.

6. CWESTIYNAU GAN AELODAU:-

6.1. CWESTIWN GAN Y CYNGHORYDD BILL THOMAS I'R CYNGHORYDD 
GLYNOG DAVIES, AELOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL DROS ADDYSG 
& PHLANT

Nodwyd bod y Cynghorydd Bill Thomas yn absennol o'r cyfarfod felly byddai'n 
derbyn ymateb ysgrifenedig i'w gwestiwn gan y Cynghorydd Glynog Davies.

7. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

Estynnodd y Cadeirydd groeso i'r cyfarfod i Mr Andre Morgan, Cadeirydd y 
Pwyllgor Safonau, a wahoddwyd i gyflwyno Adroddiad Blynyddol y Pwyllgor 
Safonau ar gyfer 2017/18 i'r Cyngor.

Diolchodd Mr Morgan i'r Cyngor am y cyfle i gyflwyno'r Adroddiad Blynyddol ar ran 
y Pwyllgor Safonau ac aeth yn ei flaen i roi trosolwg o'r materion y bu'r Pwyllgor yn 
mynd i'r afael â hwy yn ystod 2017/18. Roedd y rhain yn cynnwys Cwynion Côd 
Ymddygiad, Ceisiadau am Ollyngiad, Hyfforddiant Côd Ymddygiad ar gyfer 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned ac adolygu Polisi Datgelu Camarfer yr Awdurdod. 
Roedd y Pwyllgor hefyd wedi derbyn Adroddiad Blynyddol Ombwdsmon 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru a'i goflyfr Côd Ymddygiad ynghyd â 
phenderfyniadau achos gan Banel Dyfarnu Cymru a phenderfyniadau achos 
Pwyllgorau Safonau eraill. 

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i Mr Morgan am ei gyflwyniad ac am y gwaith a wnaed gan 
y Pwyllgor Safonau.

PENDERFYNWYD derbyn Adroddiad Blynyddol y Pwyllgor Safonau am y 
cyfnod rhwng 1 Ebrill, 2017 a 31 Mawrth 2018.

8. CYNLLUN GOSTYNGIADAU'R DRETH GYNGOR, 2019/20

[SYLWER: Roedd y Cynghorydd A. Speake wedi datgan buddiant yn yr eitem hon 
yn gynharach a gadawodd y Siambr cyn i'r eitem hon gael ei thrafod.]

Bu'r Cyngor yn ystyried adroddiad ar Gynllun Gostyngiadau’r Dreth Gyngor ar 
gyfer 2019/20 a chafodd wybod bod Llywodraeth San Steffan, yn 2013, wedi creu 
cynllun lleol yn lle Cynllun Budd-dal y Dreth Gyngor cenedlaethol. Adroddwyd bod 
y cynghorau, yn Lloegr, yn gweithredu eu cynlluniau eu hunain; fodd bynnag, 
roedd y sefyllfa yn wahanol yng Nghymru gyda'r cyfrifoldeb wedi'i ddatganoli i 
Lywodraeth Cymru a datblygodd cynllun Cymru gyfan, a oedd wedi bod ar waith 
ers yr adeg honno. Er bod y cynllun wedi'i sefydlu ar sail Cymru gyfan, roedd yn 
ofynnol yn ôl y Rheoliadau Gofynion Rhagnodedig fod pob awdurdod lleol yng 

Tudalen 9



Nghymru yn mabwysiadu Cynllun Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor yn ffurfiol erbyn 31 
Ionawr bob blwyddyn.

Atgoffodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau yr aelodau fod yn rhaid i 
awdurdodau lleol ail-fabwysiadu'r cynllun yn flynyddol, er gwaethaf y ffaith mai un 
cynllun Cymru gyfan ydoedd, os oeddent am fanteisio ar y pwerau disgresiwn 
cyfyngedig oedd ganddynt i amrywio'r cynllun safonol mewn perthynas â'r tri maes 
a amlinellir yn yr adroddiad. Atgoffwyd yr aelodau ganddo fod Cyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin, ers i'r cynllun gael ei gyflwyno, wedi defnyddio ei bwerau disgresiwn 
(yn yr un modd â'r rhan fwyaf o awdurdodau Cymru) ac wedi diystyru'n llawn 
unrhyw Bensiynau Anabledd, Pensiynau Gweddwon Rhyfel a thaliadau tebyg wrth 
gyfrifo hawliad. Atgoffwyd yr aelodau ganddo y byddai Sir Gaerfyrddin, trwy 
dderbyn argymhellion yr adroddiad, yn parhau i ddiystyru'r taliadau hynny.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod y Cyngor ar gyfer 2019/20:

8.1 Yn mabwysiadu'n ffurfiol Gynllun safonol Cymru Gyfan ar 
gyfer Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor a ddarperir yn:
a) Rheoliadau Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor a 

Gofynion Rhagnodedig (Cymru) 2013, a 
b) Rheoliadau Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau'r Dreth Gyngor 

(Gofynion Rhagnodedig a'r Cynllun Diofyn) (Cymru) 
(Diwygio) 2014

8.2 Yn gweithredu'r ffigurau uwchraddio blynyddol (a ddefnyddir 
wrth gyfrifo hawliad) a'r diwygiadau technegol eraill sydd 
wedi'u cynnwys yn Rheoliadau Cynlluniau Gostyngiadau'r 
Dreth Gyngor (Gofynion Rhagnodedig a'r Cynllun Diofyn) 
(Cymru) (Diwygio) 2019, a fydd yn dod i rym ym mis Ionawr 
2019

8.3 Yn parhau i arfer ei ddisgresiwn o ran elfennau disgresiynol 
cyfyngedig y cynllun rhagnodedig, fel y'u hamlinellir yng 
Nghrynodeb Gweithredol yr adroddiad.

9. YSTRIED ARGYMHELLION Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL O RAN Y MATERION 
CANLYNOL:-

9.1. STRATEGAETH DDIGARTREFEDD RANBARTHOL

Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Cyngor fod y Bwrdd Gweithredol, yn ei gyfarfod ar 17 
Rhagfyr 2018, wedi ystyried adroddiad ar Strategaeth Digartrefedd Ranbarthol 
arfaethedig a oedd yn nodi'r themâu a'r blaenoriaethau allweddol ynghylch sut y 
byddai Cynghorau Sir Caerfyrddin, Ceredigion a Phowys yn atal digartrefedd dros 
y blynyddoedd nesaf. Nodwyd mai nod y strategaeth oedd sicrhau bod digon o 
ddewisiadau a chyfleoedd ar gael i bobl leol gael mynediad at dai fforddiadwy neu 
dai cymdeithasol i'w galluogi i aros yn y gymuned o'u dewis.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fabwysiadu'r argymhelliad canlynol gan y 
Bwrdd Gweithredol:

“Bod y Strategaeth Digartrefedd Ranbarthol yn cael ei chymeradwyo”

Tudalen 10



9.2. ADRODDIAD RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS A DANGOSYDD DARBODAETH 
CANOL BLWYDDYN EBRILL 1AF 2018 I MEDI 30AIN 2018

Dywedwyd wrth y Cyngor fod y Bwrdd Gweithredol, yn ystod ei gyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar 17 Rhagfyr 2018, wedi cymeradwyo'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am 
weithgareddau rheoli'r trysorlys o 1 Ebrill 2018 hyd at 30 Medi 2018, yn unol â 
Pholisi a Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys 2018/19 (a fabwysiadwyd gan y Cyngor ar 
21 Chwefror 2018 - cofnod 10).

PENDERFYNWYD mabwysiadu'r argymhelliad canlynol gan y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol

‘derbyn yr adroddiad’.

10. DERBYN ADRODDIAD CYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL A 
GYNHALIWYD AR Y DYDDIADAU CANLYNOL:-.

10.1. 3YDD RHAGFYR, 2018

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn adroddiad cyfarfod y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol a gynhaliwyd ar 3 Rhagfyr, 2018.

10.2. 17EG RHAGFYR, 2018

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn adroddiad cyfarfod y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol a gynhaliwyd ar 17 Rhagfyr, 2018.

________________________ __________________
CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

Tudalen 11



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y CYNGOR SIR
DYDDIAD: 20 CHWEFROR 2019

PWNC:
ADEILADU RHAGOR O DAI - CYNYDDU EIN HUCHELGAIS

Y Pwrpas: 
Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw cyflwyno ein huchelgais i ddarparu mwy 
o dai Cyngor fforddiadwy dros y 10 mlynedd nesaf. Bydd hyn yn 
sicrhau bod y cynllun trawsnewidiol yn diwallu anghenion tai 
cyffredinol a phenodol ond hefyd yn cefnogi blaenoriaethau datblygu 
ac adfywio strategol ehangach ledled y Sir.

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
 Cadarnhau ein dull ehangach o ddarparu rhaglen 10 mlynedd ar gyfer datblygu tai 

cyngor newydd;
 Cytuno i ddatblygu cynllun busnes cynhwysfawr

Y Rhesymau: 

 Sicrhau ein bod gallu cyrraedd yr uchelgais o adeiladu 900 o dai cyngor newydd 
ychwanegol dros y 10 mlynedd nesaf.

Angen ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol: Nac Oes

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad: Nac Oes

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad: Oes

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- 

Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans (Deiliad y Portffolio Tai)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth
Cymunedau

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth/Awdur yr 
Adroddiad: 
Jonathan Morgan

Swydd:

Pennaeth Cartrefi a 
Chymunedau Mwy 
Diogel

Rhifau Ffôn/ Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
(01267) 228960

Tudalen 13

Eitem Rhif  8



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: 20TH FEBRUARY, 2019

SUBJECT:
BUILDING MORE HOMES- THE NEXT STEPS

What is the purpose of this report?
The purpose of this report is to set out our increased ambition to deliver more Council 
affordable homes over the next 10 years. This will make sure that the transformational plan 
not only meets general and specific housing needs, but also supports wider strategic 
regeneration and development priorities across the County.
If agreed, the plans will deliver the biggest increase in Council housing since the 1970s.

What is the context?

Following the implementation of the Right to Buy in the 1980s, there has been a steady 
decline in our housing stock over a 30 year period. The planned investment, if successful, 
would return our stock to levels last seen in the 1990s.

In 2016 the Council set out an ambitious programme to deliver over 1000 additional 
affordable homes across the County. Nearly three years in, we have already delivered well 
over half of these homes (650 to date) and are well on course to reach our target.

This delivery has been achieved using a variety of solutions including “buying back” in the 
private sector, supporting landlords in the private rented sector with our innovative Social 
Lettings Agency and bringing empty homes back into use.

It was noted at the time, however, that even more homes were needed to meet the actual 
housing need and we have been continually looking at new opportunities to further increase 
delivery, particularly new build homes

As a result of the work that has been undertaken, we are now in a position to be even more 
ambitious in terms of a new build programme. This is because:

 We have set up Cartrefi Croeso, our Local Housing Company. Cartrefi Croeso will be 
able to access funding through prudential borrowing from Council Fund and deliver a 
range of housing options, as an alternative to council housing. The company has a five 
year plan to deliver 500 additional affordable homes; and

 We have, as a result of careful financial management, more borrowing capacity 
through the Housing Revenue Account that will allow us to develop a potential 
programme of 900 additional council homes over the next 10 years.

By taking these opportunities we can deliver transformational change and investment, and set 
even more ambitious affordable homes targets for the future.

Tudalen 14



DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? No - Presentation to full Council on the day.

Making as big an impact as possible

Both the above programmes will work closely together, aligning with key strategic 
regeneration and development priorities to ensure that we have as big an impact as possible. 
Consequently our co-ordinated approach will mean:

 Delivering in areas of highest housing need, with housing options based on the need of 
the particular area e.g. more low cost home ownership in rural areas;

 Delivering more general and specific needs housing e.g. learning disability supported 
schemes;

 Linking directly to Cartrefi Croeso initiatives and wider strategic regeneration priorities 
across the County;

 Maximising external funding opportunities for each development and taking 
opportunities; and

 Defining timescales for developments identified for delivery.

How will we develop the approach?
We will set out a delivery overview and targets for the number of additional council homes 
that can be potentially delivered over the next 10 years. We believe over 900 homes 
additional council homes can be delivered, with an investment of nearly £150m.

This will be in addition to Cartrefi Croeso’s planned programme. Cartrefi Croeso will be able 
to offer a wider range of housing options both in terms of low cost home ownership offers and 
market for sale or rent. This will particularly be the case in the more rural areas. 

We want to create mixed communities with the council home delivery programme being used 
to support Cartrefi Croeso’s overall offer on individual developments. This will also be the 
case on wider strategic regeneration developments.

The level of council housing on each development will vary according to the needs of the area 
and funding sources.

To support our delivery plan we will develop a banding structure, based on our strategic 
priorities:

BAND A- “Ready for Delivery Schemes”- schemes where details have been confirmed, 
funding in place, planning agreed or imminent.

BAND B- “Reserve Schemes” – schemes will be brought forward when funding becomes 
available.

BAND C- “Aspirational schemes”- schemes require more detailed considerations in terms 
of scheme numbers, strategic priority, deliverability etc.

Recommendations

1. To confirm our broad approach to deliver a 10 year programme of new Council 
homes.

2. To agree to the development of a comprehensive business plan.

Tudalen 15



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:      Jonathan Morgan  Head of Homes and Safer Communities                               

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES NONE YES YES YES

1. Policy, Crime and Disorder and Equalities
The approach being proposed is an evolvement of our Affordable Homes Delivery Plan, 
agreed by Full Council in 2016.

2. Legal
None at this stage, however, any services that need to be bought in to assist with the 
delivery plan will be subject to the Council’s procurement procedures.

3. Finance
The proposed developments will be based on our affordability to deliver in relation to our 
HRA borrowing. No developments will be brought forward into Band A unless all funding 
sources are confirmed.

4. Risk Management
None at this stage

5. Staffing
There will be staffing implications associated with the setting up of the Strategic Housing 
Delivery team.

6. Physical Assets
The delivery programme will result in an increase in Council Housing stock on the County.

Tudalen 16



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:     Jonathan Morgan Head of Homes and Safer Communities

1. Scrutiny Committee
Will be engaged as part of the consultation process.
2.Local Member(s)  
Will be engaged as part of the consultation and delivery process.
3.Community / Town Council 
Will be engaged as part of the consultation process.
4.Relevant Partners  
Will be engaged as part of the consultation and delivery process.
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  
Will be engaged as part of the consultation and delivery process.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

There were no background papers used in the preparation of this report:

Tudalen 17



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y CYNGOR SIR
20 Chwefror 2019

Strategaeth y Gyllideb Refeniw
2019/20 - 2021/22

ARGYMHELLION Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL:
BOD Y CYNGOR SIR YN CYMERADWYO:

1.1. Strategaeth y Gyllideb ar gyfer 2019/20 yn amodol ar y diwygiadau canlynol:
2019/20
1.1.1 Cael gwared ar y gostyngiad yn y gyllideb o £32,000 mewn 

perthynas â Graeanu yn y Gaeaf
1.1.2 Lleihau'r cynnig yn ymwneud ag Ysgubo Ffyrdd Gwledig £168,000, 

gan liniaru'r effeithiau mwyaf difrifol 
1.1.3 Gohirio'r toriadau arfaethedig i'r Gwasanaethau Cymorth Ieuenctid 

a Seicoleg Addysg i gydnabod yr ymateb negyddol a gafwyd gan y 
cyhoedd a hefyd y pryderon a godwyd gan gynghorwyr yn ystod 
seminarau'r aelodau

1.1.4 Rhoi swm ychwanegol o £160k i'r Gwasanaeth Meysydd Parcio i 
ganiatáu mwy o hyblygrwydd yn y gwasanaeth ac i gyfyngu ar 
unrhyw gynnydd mewn taliadau parcio ledled Sir Gaerfyrddin

1.1.5 Rhewi prisiau prydau ysgol ar gyfer 2019/20
2020/21 a 2021/22
1.1.6 Bod yr Adran Cymunedau, dros y flwyddyn nesaf, yn ailedrych ar y 

cynnig i gau Canolfan Addysg Awyr Agored Pentywyn ac yn ceisio 
dod o hyd i newid yn y modd y caiff y gwasanaeth ei ddarparu, a 
fyddai'n caniatáu i'r cyfleuster barhau i weithredu a hynny gan 
gyflawni'r lleihad mewn cost a gynigir

1.1.7 Bod yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd arfaethedig i newid amlder 
cyfarfodydd y Cyngor o fod yn rhai misol i fod yn rhai chwarterol 
[blwyddyn 2] a Chludiant Ysgol Ôl-16 [blynyddoedd 2 a 3] yn cael eu 
tynnu'n ôl;

1.2     Bod Treth Gyngor Band D yn 2019/20 yn cael ei gosod ar £1,255.17 [cynnydd o 
4.89% ar gyfer 2019/20];

1.3 Bod y cyllid rheolaidd o £528,000 sydd ar gael yn cael ei ddefnyddio'n llawn i 
gefnogi'r diwygiadau a gynigir yn 1.1.1 i 1.1.5 uchod;

1.4     Bod y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig yn cael ei gymeradwyo yn sylfaen i gynllunio 
ar gyfer y blynyddoedd sydd i ddod. 

Tudalen 19

Eitem Rhif  9.1



Y Rhesymau: 
Galluogi’r Awdurdod i osod ei Chyllideb Refeniw ar gyfer Cronfa’r Cyngor a’r Dreth Gyngor 
ganlyniadol ar gyfer 2019/20.

Angen ymgynghori â’r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol: OES

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad         OES

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                           OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y 
Cynghorydd David Jenkins

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol

Chris Moore

Swyddi:

Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol

Rhif Ffôn:   01267 224120

Cyfeiriad e-bost:

CMoore@sirgar.
gov.uk

Tudalen 20



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
COUNCIL

20th February 2018

Revenue Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22

This report brings together the latest proposals for the Revenue Budget 2019/2020 with 
indicative figures for the 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years.
It summarises the latest Budgetary position giving an update on the budget validation, 
spending pressures, the Welsh Government final settlement and the responses from the 
budget consultation.

In addition to the proposed changes at paragraph 1.1 above, Executive Board recognised the 
negative sentiment to the proposed reductions on highways resurfacing, but that the 
additional capital grant of £1.5m per annum for three years would more than compensate for 
the revenue budget reduction. 

Members are required to consider the proposals within this report and make 
recommendations on the budget to County Council, in accordance with Council Policy.

Documents Attached:

o Report of the Director of Corporate Services 
o Table 1  – Council Fund Summary
o Appendix A – Consultation Report
o Appendix B – Budget reduction proposals
o Appendix C – Equality Impact Assessments.
o Appendix C – Pressures submissions & allocation.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

Tudalen 21



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:       Chris Moore                                                Director of Corporate Services                           

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE 

1. Policy and Crime & Disorder  
The budget has been prepared having regard for the Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-2023, 
and the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.   Equalities Impact Assessments 
have been undertaken on the budget proposals in order to consider and assess the potential 
impact with respect to protected characteristic groups. All budget proposals considered to have 
an impact on front line services have undergone a period of public consultation. The Equalities 
Impact Assessments will be further developed following consideration of possible mitigation 
measures.

2. Finance  
 Council  Fund
Final financial implications will be dependent upon the budget recommended by Executive Board 
to County Council, however the implications on the latest proposals are as follows: 

 Proposed Net County Council Budget of £351.313m
 Proposed Council Tax increase of 4.89% for 2019/20 - Band D tax of £1,255.17

Tudalen 22



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:      Chris Moore                                                                               Director of Corporate Services                                                

1. Scrutiny Committee – Not applicable

2.Local Member(s)  – Not applicable

3.Community / Town Council – Not applicable

4.Relevant Partners – Consultation with relevant partners undertaken and results contained 
within the report.

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – Consultation undertaken and 
results contained within the report.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW     

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

2019/20      3 year 
Revenue Budget

Corporate Services Department, County Hall, 
Carmarthen.

WG Provisional & Final  
Settlement

Corporate Services Department, County Hall, 
Carmarthen.

Tudalen 23



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



DETAILED REPORT 

1

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES

Executive Board
  

4th February 2019

REVENUE BUDGET STRATEGY 2019/20 to 2021/22

DESIGNATION:

C Moore,  Director of Corporate Services

DIRECTORATE

Resources

TELEPHONE NO.

01267 224120
AUTHOR &  DESIGNATION 

R Hemingway, Head of Financial Services

DIRECTORATE

Resources

TELEPHONE NO

01267 224886

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Executive Board in November 2018 considered and endorsed the 
Revenue budget strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 for consultation. The 
report indicated, after taking account of the provisional settlement, a 
council tax increase of 4.89% in 2019-20. The Executive Board in 
endorsing the report for consultation resolved

 ‘that the contents of the budget report be noted and the three 
year budget strategy be approved as a basis for consultation, 
and to specifically seek comments from consultees on the 
efficiency proposals detailed in appendix A to the report’.

1.2. This report updates members on the latest position for the Revenue 
budget including:

o Final Settlement Details, including pertinent grants information 
and updates on key risk items

o Budget Consultation Results

o The Medium Term Spending Plans

o Implication on Council tax for 2019-2020.

The final proposals have endeavoured to meet the aspirations of the 
Authority, whilst recognising the continued squeeze on public finances. 
They address specific pressures in certain service areas whilst seeking 
to balance the impact on service delivery and local taxpayers. 

1.3. There are inherent risks attached to this Budget Strategy and they are 
detailed within the body of this report, however the Director of 

Tudalen 25



DETAILED REPORT 

2

Corporate Services confirms that the proposed budget has been 
prepared in a robust manner. 

1.4. The Executive Board needs to consider these detailed proposals and 
make recommendations to County Council in accordance with Council 
policy.

1.5. Whilst the final Settlement is more favourable than expected, Local 
Government has again been faced with real term reductions  which, in 
conjunction with significant validation requirements for such items as 
the implementation of the new pay spine, continues to make the 
budget process extremely difficult. It is also worth noting that the trend 
has continued in recent years of Local Authorities receiving a 
decreasing proportion of Welsh Government funding year-on-year. 
Decisions have had to be made in respect of prioritisation of services 
and the inclusion of substantial budget reductions in order to achieve 
what hopefully is an acceptable Council Tax increase.  

2. CONSULTATION

2.1. The original proposals have been subjected to an extensive 
consultation exercise since the Budget Strategy reports were 
presented to the Executive Board on the 19th November 2018, with the 
groups and committees being invited to comment in the following 
manner:-

o Public Consultation 
o Town and Community Councils
o School Budget Forum
o Schools Insight Date
o Member Seminars 
o Scrutiny Committees
o Trade Union Meetings 

2.2. A detailed report on the consultation results for each of the above is 
attached at Appendix A. 

3. BUDGET REQUIREMENT 2019/20

3.1. Current Year Performance (2018/2019)

3.1.1. As the Authority’s core spending requirements remains constant 
year on year, a review of current year’s performance is 
important in identifying whether there are any underlying 
problems within the base budget.

Tudalen 26



DETAILED REPORT 

3

3.1.2. The current projection for the Revenue Outturn for 2018/19 
(based on the October 2018 monitoring) is as follows:

Service
Approved

Budget
Total

Expenditure
Forecast

Variance
Forecast 
For Year

£'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 13,563 13,430 -133
Communities 97,701 98,590 889
Corporate Services 24,799 24,354 -445
Education and Children 162,786 164,458 1,672
Environment 52,629 53,407 778
Departmental Expenditure 351,479 354,239 2,760

Capital Charges -15,425 -16,375 -9500
Levies and Contributions 9,724 9,724 0

Transfer to/ from Reserves 0 -555 -555
Net Expenditure 345,778 347,033 1,255

The main reasons for the departmental overspends are as 
follows: 

o Communities Department:  whilst continuing to deliver 
savings related to packages of social care the  pressures of 
approximately £1,200k remain primarily due to demographic 
pressures being higher than initial projections and slippage 
in receiving a full year effect of actions e.g. commissioning 
alternatives to Residential Care, impact of releasing Time to 
Care project on domiciliary care packages.  This is offset by 
vacant posts savings of £311k.

o Education and Children’s Services:  the department 
continues to face pressure due in the main to school based 
EVR and redundancy costs, SEN provision and a shortfall in 
the Music service SLA income from schools.

o Environment Department: the overspends are primarily due 
to non-achievement of car park income targets and a 
decrease in planning application income.

The Authority is currently forecasting a variance of £1.255m 
at the year-end that will have to be met from General 
Balances.

Tudalen 27



DETAILED REPORT 

4

3.1.3. In considering next year’s budget, consideration needs to be 
given to the ability of departments to address any ongoing 
pressures from the current year, with the pressures within 
Education and Social Services being considered currently as 
being the most significant issues. 

3.2. Validation 

3.2.1. Validation reflects the changes in expenditure requirements to 
deliver the current level of services in future years. Primarily 
this is inflation, but also includes some service specific changes. 
The key changes from the original strategy are as follows:

3.2.2. Recorded CPI inflation dropped 0.2% from 2.3% to 2.1% 
between November and December 2018, whilst the Office of 
Budget Responsibility is forecasting the next quarter at 2.4%. 
Given the scale of current uncertainty, the inflation factors for 
2019/20 have been retained at the same level as reported in the 
original budget strategy.

2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Original Proposed

General inflation 2.3% 2.3% 2.0% 2.0%
Electricity 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Gas 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Fuel 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Pay Inflation - non teaching 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pay Inflation - Teaching 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Levies 2.9% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Pension Contributions £209k £209k £213k £218k
New Pay Spine £2000k £1788k n/a n/a
Capital Charges £250k nil £250k £250k
Allied Healthcare nil £500k nil nil

3.2.3. When considering changes to the final budget, members should 
note that the validation is applied not only to expenditure but 
income. Consequently, members may wish to consider using 
some of the budget headroom available to them to mitigate 
price rises, as has been the case in previous years in respect of 
parking fees and school meals prices. 

3.2.4. The Capital charges estimate reflects the current policy and the 
5 year Capital Programme elsewhere on the agenda. Based on 
the current plans, there is no requirement to increase the 

Tudalen 28



DETAILED REPORT 

5

budget for 2019/20. This releases £250k against the draft 
budget, though members should note that future years’ 
requirements may be higher, particularly as Carmarthenshire’s 
spending plans as part of the Swansea Bay City Region are 
firmed up.   

3.2.5. The Swansea Bay City Region is responsible for 11 projects 
and is reliant upon £241m of UK and Welsh Government 
Funding. During 2018/19 a joint agreement was approved by all 
four Local Authorities and a Joint Committee was created. The 
principle behind the funding structure of the City Deal is that 
each Local Authority will be required to borrow the value of the 
funding allocated to their project and the UK and Welsh 
Government will repay this debt over a 15 year period. The 
County Council is the accountable body for the City Deal as 
whole but also has ownership of three projects: Yr Egin; the 
Wellness and Life Science Village and Skills and Talent 
programme, this being a regional project. 

The Wellness and Life Science Village and Yr Egin project 
business plans were presented to Executive Board on the 3rd 
December 2018 and the value of the City Deal funding has 
been included within the Capital Programme, as the County 
Council will be required to borrow against these schemes. 
Whilst the Government funding is not providing any resources 
for the interest of the borrowings, the Budget Strategy assumes 
that there will not be any call on the County Council budgets as 
the Business Case will provide for such costs in full. It should 
however be recognised that an agreement has been reached 
with WG that the Local Authorities will be able to retain 50% of 
the additional NNDR yield that accrues from the City Deal 
Projects, the distribution basis is yet to be agreed by the Joint 
Committee.  

3.2.6. The most significant specific validation over the three year 
period again relates to the cost of implementing the nationally 
agreed pay award, including the implementation of a new pay 
spine. The effect is that all National Joint Council (NJC) staff will 
receive at least a 2% increase from April 2019, with increases 
for the lower half of the scale being considerably above this. 
Most notably for Carmarthenshire, staff employed at Grade A 
and B, currently both receiving the Foundation Living Wage of 
£8.75/hour, will move to £9.18/hour and £9.36/hour 
respectively, increases of 4.9% and 6.9%. Full departmental 
calculations have now been completed, confirming the overall 
cost increase to the council is some £4.7m for NJC officers, 
which is £0.2m lower than allowed for in the draft budget. 
Departments have been allocated specific validation according 
to the different staffing mix. For schools, this means an 

Tudalen 29



DETAILED REPORT 

6

additional validation of £251k to delegated budgets, which has 
been added to cash budgets. 

The pay offer does not apply to Chief Officers, who will receive 
a 2% increase under the agreed two year deal. Teachers pay is 
now devolved to the Welsh Government for the first time and 
has been provided at 2% for future awards.

3.2.7. Based upon early discussions by Mid and West Wales Fire 
Authority, the draft budget assumed the Levy would increase by 
2.9%.  The 2019-20 budget currently proposed has been 
curtailed to an increase of 2.48% on the budget requirement 
falling on the Constituent Authorities. The effect of this has 
been a reduced requirement of £45k versus our draft budget. 
However, as with Teacher’s Pensions, the Fire Authority has a 
significant risk in respect of Firefighters’ Pension cost increases, 
for which funding from Welsh Government is expected but has 
not yet been confirmed. 

3.2.8. A specific validation of £500k has been added to Adult Social 
Care budgets to meet the increased costs the council will face 
as a consequence of the financial collapse of a national 
provider, Allied Healthcare, which the council had contracted 
with. The service has now been brought in-house with minimal 
disruption to service users, consequently the 2019/20 budget 
will provide for the harmonisation of employee terms and 
conditions, including internal payscales. 

3.2.9. There is a clear risk to the Budget Strategy as departments may 
find it difficult to manage their expenditure within these 
parameters, especially where service specific inflationary 
increases may differ to the global validation rates. This risk is 
something that will require close monitoring during the year.

3.2.10.In total validation adds £11.3m to the current year’s budget.

3.3. Cost Reduction Programme 

3.3.1. As detailed in  the report to Executive Board on 19th November 
2018, in anticipation of the reductions in this settlement round, 
significant work in identifying further service 
efficiencies/rationalisation proposals had been undertaken and 
a range of proposals were presented.

3.3.2. The current proposals are attached in Appendix B and are 
categorised as follows:

Managerial – cost reductions that result in no 
perceivable change to the overall level of service 
delivery or council policy

Tudalen 30



DETAILED REPORT 

7

Policy – Efficiency or service rationalisation 
proposals that will directly affect service delivery 
(generally frontline). 

3.3.3. Equality Impact Assessments have been conducted on those 
proposals which could have an impact on service delivery. 
These are intended to identify whether these savings could 
have a disproportionate impact on one or more groups. Where 
this is the case appropriate consultation with representatives of 
such groups will be conducted and measures to mitigate the 
impact will be considered where possible.

3.3.4. All new ‘policy’ proposals have undergone public consultation 
and Equality Impact Assessments (see attached report at 
Appendix C). In deciding which savings proposals to adopt, 
members are reminded of their duty to give ‘due regard’ 
(consideration) to equality, as defined in the Equality Act 2010. 
In practice, this means taking decisions in the light of possible 
equality impacts and understanding how impacts on affected 
groups could be lessened (mitigated).

3.3.5. The cost reductions included in the budget strategy are:

(Detailed in Appendix B)

The shortfall on the targets set in years 2 and 3 of the budget 
strategy bring further financial risk, and further work will need to 
be undertaken in 2019-20 to identify additional cost reduction 
proposals for the following years.

 

3.4. New Expenditure  Pressures 

3.4.1. New expenditure pressures are the combination of additional 
cost to meet existing service needs e.g. increased client 
base/greater service take up and the costs of meeting change in 
service provision e.g. policy changes.  

2019/20
£m

2020/21
£m

2021/22
£m

Managerial 5.527 3.878 3.893
Existing Policy 2.581 3.126 3.021
New Policy 1.220 0.660 0.696
Total 9.328 7.664 7.610
Shortfall against 
target set

1.875 0.871

Tudalen 31



DETAILED REPORT 

8

3.4.2. Bearing in mind the budget pressures in the current year, and 
following a detailed review of the growth bids submitted, the 
budget strategy reflects the original provision, with two 
additions:

o a further £200k allocated to social services in light of the 
additional demand the service is already experiencing in the 
current year

o a further £100k allocated to the Education department, 
recognising the pressure on future EVR budgets, largely as 
a result of historic decisions. 

£’000
Communities
(plus £1.8m extra to be met from the new Social 
Services Grant) 

600

Education 600
Environment 1,300

Departments will need to prioritise their departmental allocation 
against their original submissions

3.4.3. It must be noted that the allocated sum does not meet the 
pressures identified by departments, and accordingly 
departments will be required to strictly manage their budgets to 
remain within their allocated sums. The detail is provided at 
Appendix D.

3.5. Schools Delegated Budgets

3.5.1. The draft budget was constructed on the basis of a cash neutral 
funding settlement to schools. This recognised forecast 
inflationary pressures of £2.6m, and therefore a need to schools 
to deliver efficiency savings to this value. Departmental 
allocation of pay spine costs has resulted in increased pressure 
of £251k to schools, which has therefore been added as a cash 
sum to delegated budgets. In addition, the budget honours the 
additional funding transferred into the Revenue Support Grant 
for Teachers pay. Taken together, increases to core budgets 
and grants will be a cash increase of £2.6m to schools funding, 
as shown below:

Tudalen 32



DETAILED REPORT 

9

Additional RSG £497k

Pay spine validation £251k

Teachers Pay £922k

Professional development          £900k (est)

TOTAL £2,570k

However, members should note that Welsh Government have 
chosen to retain a significant element of funding in the form of 
specific grants. There is consequently inherent risk to the 
stability of school funding for future years, due to the fact that 
the 2019/20 is reliant upon Teachers Pay grants of worth £922k 
to Carmarthenshire. 

3.5.2. The draft budget report received by Executive Board in 
November 2018 highlighted a key risk around the increase in 
the cost of Teachers Pensions. Whilst Welsh Government have 
been unable to provide a definitive response to this issue, there 
is currently a live consultation by the Westminster Department 
for Education proposing to meet the additional costs in full for 
English state funded schools. Consequently the final budget 
maintains the assumption that this will be fully funded. The 
value of the additional cost in 2019/20 for Carmarthenshire is c. 
£2.75m. Until this matter is resolved and the Government 
departments confirm the transfer, this will remain a significant 
risk to the Authority.

4. FUNDING 

4.1. Revenue Settlement 2019-2020

4.1.1. On the 19th December 2018, the WG published the final local 
government settlement for 2019-20. 

4.1.2. The final settlement includes an additional £23.6m (excluding 
the cost of the funding floor arrangements) when compared to 
the provisional settlement. This comprises an additional £13m 

Tudalen 33



DETAILED REPORT 

10

as included in the funding package announced by the Cabinet 
Secretary for Finance on 20th November 2018. It also includes:

4.1.2.1. £7m (£467k for CCC) to support a further 
increase to the capital limit for charging for 
residential care to £50,000 commencing from 
April 2019;

4.1.2.2. £1m (£60k for CCC) towards the increased 
costs associated with Free School Meals 
provision as a result of Universal Credit 
rollout;  

4.1.2.3. Also included is an additional £2.4m (£144k 
for CCC) funding to local authorities for 
discretionary rates relief. 

4.1.3. The movement for Carmarthenshire was an additional £1.557m.

4.1.4.  The final settlement enhanced the funding floor announced in 
October 2018, providing an additional £1m of funding to ensure 
that no authority sees a reduction of greater than 0.3% 
compared to its 2018-19 allocation and top-up funding.

4.1.5. The published change in Aggregate External Finance (AEF) on 
an all Wales basis equated to an average increase of 0.2% 
(£10m) which represents a material real terms reduction. For 
Carmarthenshire County Council (CCC) the published increase 
was 0.008% (£22k). This was after taking account of transfers in 
and out of the settlement, and the transfer of new 
responsibilities.

4.1.6. The salient points of next year’s settlement are noted below: 

4.1.7. The final settlement for 2019/20 gave an increase in Standard 
Spending Assessment (SSA) for Carmarthenshire of £6.975m 
(2.0%), SSA on an all Wales basis also increased by 2.2%, un-
adjusted for transfers and new responsibilities. 

4.1.8. Figures for individual Local Authorities were provided for the 
one financial year only, 2019/20, with no indicative reductions 
for any future years. 

4.1.9. Transfers in and out of the settlement include:

Transfers In:
Teachers pay 
Free school meals eligibility

£497k
£297k

Tudalen 34



DETAILED REPORT 

11

   
         

New Responsibilities:
Increasing capital limits for residential care
Business rates relief

£467k
£144k

The above has a neutral effect on the Authority’s budget. 

4.1.10.Business Rate Poundage is to increase to 52.6p from 51.4p for 
2019/20. 

4.1.11.The table below provides a summary of the overall position for 
this authority after the final settlement:

4.2. Internal Funding

4.2.1. Generally speaking, whilst the use of reserves to support annual 
budgets should not be summarily discounted, it must be treated 
with caution. Funding on-going expenditure from such funds 
merely defers and compounds difficult financial problems to the 
following year. One-off items of expenditure within any budget 
proposal lend themselves better for such funding support.

4.2.2. In deliberating this point however, members must bear in mind 
any inherent risks that may be built into the budget strategy. 
These include:

- Challenging Efficiency targets 
- Future inflation/interest rates

2018-2019 
Settlement

£m

2019-2020
Original 

Notification
£m

2019-2020 
Settlement

£m
Standard Spending Assessment 346.059 350.947 353.034
Aggregate External Finance 259.440 258.831 260.388

Tudalen 35



DETAILED REPORT 

12

- Current economic uncertainty continuing (including 
the starkly differing possible Brexit outcomes) 

- Additional pressure on demand lead Services 
- Overestimation of the future settlements.
- Lack of Welsh Government forward indicators for 

2020-21 onwards.

4.2.3. Sensitivity impact analysis:

Budget 
element

Movement
Annual 
Impact

£m
Pay inflation 1% 2.1
General inflation 1% 

(expenditure 
only)

2.2

General inflation 1% (income 
only)

-1.3

WG Settlement 1% 2.5
Specific Grants 1% 1.0
Council Tax 1% 0.8

4.2.4. The following table summarises the main categories of reserves 
held by the Authority.

1st  Apr 
2018
£’000

31st Mar 
2019
£’000

31st Mar 
2020
£’000

31st Mar 
2021
£’000

Schools Reserves 1,515 -474 n/a n/a
General Reserves 9,783  8,528     8,528     8,528
Earmarked Reserves 81,139 52,844 39,077 20,167

4.3. School Reserves

Tudalen 36



DETAILED REPORT 

13

4.3.1. Schools have delegated responsibility for the management of 
their own finances.   The level of reserves held by an individual 
school at any point in time will depend on a number of factors 
including the level of contingency fund that the school governing 
body considers appropriate and the particular plans each school 
has for expenditure. Officers have yet to be informed of any 
transfers to/from these reserves by individual schools for future 
years, so the forecast is for the reserves to be reduced to a nil 
balance overall given the trend in reducing school balances 
over recent years.

4.3.2. Legislation allows schools to carry forward reserves from one 
financial period to another.  Current guidance requires schools 
to limit their carry forward to £50,000 for Primary Schools and 
£100,000 for Secondary Schools or 5% of their budget 
dependant on what is greater. School Improvement officers 
continually work with schools to ensure they comply with the 
guidance. As at 31st March 2018, 28 primary, 5 secondary and 
no special schools were in deficit and 18 primary and 6 
secondary schools held surpluses in excess of the £50k/£100k 
threshold.

5. GENERAL RESERVES

5.1.1. In the changeable and challenging environment currently facing 
Local Government the Authority is committed to maintaining a 
reasonable level of General reserves or Balances.   Whilst there 
is no prescribed minimum level for Balances, Council has 
previously deemed 3% of net expenditure as being a prudent 
level, which has been accepted by our Auditors as being 
reasonable.

5.1.2. The overall level of Balances are taken into consideration each 
year when the annual budget is set and has on occasion been 
utilised to augment expenditure/reduce council tax. Whilst the 
2018-2019 budget was set on the basis of a nil transfer from 
General Reserves, with the October Budget monitoring (outlined 
in paragraph 3.1.2 above) there could be a draw of £1,255k 
against General Reserves at the end of the current financial 
year.

5.1.3. Given the likely draw on this reserve in the current year, it is 
deemed imprudent at this stage to assume any further support 
for future years budgets from the current General Reserves.

5.1.4. Taking account of these changes the average level of the 
general reserves is forecasted to be around 2.4% of net 
expenditure during 2019/20.

Tudalen 37



DETAILED REPORT 

14

5.2. Earmarked Reserves

5.2.1. The Authority holds earmarked reserves which have been set 
up to finance the delivery of specific projects, or in protecting 
the authority against future liabilities or issues.   The reserves 
can be summarised as follows:

Reserve 31 March 
2018

31 March 
2019

31 March 
2020

31 March 
2021

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Insurance 10,741 11,041 11,216 11,391
Capital Funds 43,212 26,189 16,187 -653
Development Fund 1,627 923 1,091 1,257
Corporate Retirement Fund 2,959 2,202 1,445 688
Joint Ventures 1,248 1,284 1,386 1,488
Other 21,352 11,205 7,752 5,996
TOTAL 81,139 52,844 39,077 20,167

5.2.2. As can be seen from the table above the level of earmarked 
reserves fluctuates greatly year on year, and whilst the level in 
each fund is not an exact science it is based on an informed 
estimate and past experience of the likely call on the authority in 
future years in line with the intended purpose of each reserve. 
Great care must therefore be taken when considering utilising 
such funds for purposes other than those which they were 
created as this could lead to the authority being faced with 
substantial unfunded liabilities in the future.

5.2.3. Taking account of the proposals within this report, including the 
use of reserves, the Director of Corporate Services confirms 
that overall the estimated level of financial reserves (as 
indicated above) is adequate for the financial year 2019/20, with 
the General Reserves being at the minimum that could be 
supported.

6. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

6.1. In considering the budget proposals, members need to take into 
consideration the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. The Act requires that we must carry out sustainable 
development, improving the economic, social environmental and 
cultural well-being of Wales. 

‘… the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that 
the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of 
future generations to meet their own needs’

Tudalen 38



DETAILED REPORT 

15

6.2. In doing so, we must demonstrate the following 5 ways of working:

 Looking at the long-term so that we do not compromise the 
ability of future generations to meet their own needs

 Understanding the root causes of the issues to prevent them 
recurring

 Taking an integrated approach so that we look at all well-being 
goals and objectives of other services and partners

 Collaboration – Working with others in a collaborative way to 
find shared sustainable solutions

 Involving a diversity of population in decisions that affect them

6.3. Carmarthenshire’s Well Being objectives:

Start Well

1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life 
experiences

2. Help children live healthy lifestyles

3. Continue to improve learner attainment for all

4. Reduce the number of young adults that are Not in Education, 
Employment or Training 

Live Well

5. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work 
and improve the lives of those living in poverty

6. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county

7. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes

8. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity)

9. Support good connections with friends, family and safer communities 

Age Well

10. Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and 
independence in their later years

Tudalen 39



DETAILED REPORT 

16

11. A Council wide approach to support Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire 

In a Healthy and Safe Environment

12. Look after the environment now and for  the future

13. Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity

      14. Promote Welsh Language and Culture

15. Building a better council and making better use of Resources

7. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN  AND COUNCIL TAX PROPOSAL 
2019/20

7.1. The table below provides members with a summary of the latest 
position which reflects the contents of this report.

Assuming that the Council Tax increase remains at the level set in the 
original budget strategy which is 4.89%, this will give an estimated income 
from Council Tax of £90.925m which when addded to the Welsh Government  
settlement will provide a net available expenditure budget for the Authority of 
£351.313m. Once allowances have been made for new responsibilties, and 
the additional social services funding requirement, the balance available for 
Executive Board to respond to the budget consultation is £528k:   

Tudalen 40



DETAILED REPORT 

17

£'000 £'000 £'000
Previous Years Budget 345,778 351,313 353,792
Validations/Adjustments 14,335 12,018 11,270
Validated Budget 360,113 363,331 365,062
less

Efficiency/Service Rationalisation -9,825 -9,539 -8,481

Projected Budget 350,288 353,792 356,581

RSG passported to schools 497
Potential sum available 528

351,313 353,792 356,581
WG Settlement
    RSG & NNDR -260,388 -257,785 -255,207

Call on Council Tax 90,925 96,007 101,374

Tax Base 72,440 72,923 73,410
Council Tax Rate (Band D) 1,255.17£   1,316.54£  1,380.94£   
Council Tax Increase 4.89% 4.89% 4.89%

2019 -20 2020 -21 2021 -2022

A full summary of the Budget Build up can be seen in Table 1. 

7.1.1. Years 2 and 3 of the Medium Term Financial Plan assume the 
identification and delivery of the current shortfall in savings 
proposals of £1.875m in 2020-21 and £0.871m in 2021-22

7.1.2. It must be emphasised that the figures for the outer two years of 
the plan are indicative only and must therefore be treated with 
caution as the settlement figures, growth pressures and the 
inflation assumptions contained therein will all be subject to 
revision as the year progresses and firmer data becomes 
available.

7.1.3. As outlined in paragraph 4.1.8, Welsh Government has not 
provided figures for 2020-21 and beyond. Current indications 
are that future year’s settlements will continue to see further 
reductions in the funding made available to Local Authorities. 
This report before you today therefore assumes a 1.0% 
reduction in the settlement for both 2020/21 and 2021/22. This 
will continually be reviewed as and when further information 
becomes available. Members will note within paragraph 4.2.2, 
the overestimation of future settlements is identified as an 
inherent risk. 

Tudalen 41



DETAILED REPORT 

18

Recommendations

7.2. That Executive Board consider and recommend to County Council: 

7.2.1. The Budget Strategy for 2019/20;

7.2.2. The Band D Council Tax for 2019/20;

7.2.3. The allocation of the £528k recurrent funding available 
balance taking into account the range of responses 
received during the consultation process and any 
further pressures identified; and

7.2.4. The Medium Term Financial Plan which will form the 
basis for future years financial planning.

Tudalen 42



TABLE 1

2018-19 2018-19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Approved Provisional Proposed Indicative Indicative

Budget Outturn Budget Budget Budget

£ £ £ £ £

13,547,315 13,430,000 Chief Executive 13,679,552 14,020,391 14,148,214

162,722,390 164,458,000 Education & Childrens Services 163,875,735 163,550,284 163,735,996

24,799,442 24,354,000 Corporate Services 26,336,078 30,591,476 32,177,938

97,764,532 98,590,000 Communities 98,430,251 98,012,627 97,271,544

52,645,352 53,407,000 Environment Services 53,923,801 54,415,856 54,204,426

Savings to be identified 528,000 -1,875,000 -871,000

351,479,031 354,239,000 Departmental Expenditure 356,773,417 358,715,633 360,667,119

(15,425,321)     (16,375,000)      Capital Charges/Asset Management Acc (15,425,321)     (15,175,321)      (14,925,321)       

Levies and Contributions

9,582,382 9,582,382 Mid & West Wales Fire Authority 9,820,025 10,103,333 10,685,285

141,956 141,956 Brecon Beacons National Park 145,477 149,674 158,295

345,778,048 347,588,338 Net Expenditure 351,313,597 353,793,319 356,585,377

0 -1,255,290 Contribution from Balances 0 0 0

0 -555,000
Transfer to/from Departmental 

Balances/Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0

345,778,048 345,778,048 NET BUDGET 351,313,597 353,793,319 356,585,377

TO BE FINANCED FROM:

-259,439,648 -259,439,648 Aggregate External Finance -260,388,476 -257,784,591 -255,206,745

86,338,400 86,338,400 CALL ON TAXPAYERS 90,925,121 96,008,727 101,378,632

1196.60 Band D Tax 1,255.17 1,316.56 1,381.00

Council Tax Increase 4.89% 4.89% 4.89%

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 

Tudalen 43



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 
1 

 

REVENUE BUDGET 
2019 to 2022 
CONSULTATION REPORT 

 Carmarthenshire County Council  

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 45



 
2 

 

Index 
 

 

1) OUTLINE OF APPROACH AND CONSULTATION METHODS ............................ 3 

2) RESPONDENT PROFILE ...................................................................................... 7 

3) SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS............................................................................. 9 

4) CONSULTATION FINDINGS – ALL PROPOSALS.............................................. 11 

5) COUNCIL TAX ..................................................................................................... 90 

6) NOTES FROM SCHOOLS STRATEGY BUDGET FORUM AND TU  
CONSULTATION MEETINGS …………………………………………………………...91 
7) MINUTES OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETINGS……………….....................94 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Tudalen 46



 

3 

CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  -BUDGET 2019-22 CONSULTATION 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
A mixed-methods approach to ascertaining views on the 2019-22 budget took place 
during the period from 20th November 2018 to 6th January 2019. 
 
In making savings, the Council is concerned to minimise the impact upon service 
delivery.  In meeting the challenge of saving a total of £28 million, many savings are 
being made through internal efficiencies.  It is however recognised that some savings 
proposals will potentially have an impact on service delivery.  These are known as 
‘policy’ proposals and 27 new proposals (with a total value of £2.6 million) are being 
considered by the Council in balancing its budget for 2019-22. 
 
There are a variety of legal and policy reasons why the Council must undertake full 
and meaningful consultation, where service changes are under consideration.1  
Ultimately, a flawed approach can be a means whereby decisions can be challenged 
through the courts, through a process of Judicial Review.  A decision against the 
Council would prevent the saving being delivered, as well as damage the reputation 
of Council, at a time when it needs to focus on responding to its challenging financial 
position. 
 
This report: 
 

1. Outlines the consultation approach and the different consultation methods 
deployed; 

2. Describes the demographic characteristics of those who took part 
3. Summarises the key findings; 
4. Details the specific consultation findings in relation to each of the 27 

proposals; 
5. Considers tolerances to council tax increases  

 
 
1) OUTLINE OF APPROACH AND CONSULTATION METHODS 
Whilst the ‘cash neutral’ settlement provided by Welsh Government was more 
favourable than expected, inflation, rising costs, demographic pressures and 
increased statutory obligations have challenged the Council to make significant cost 
reductions.  In response, Council departments identified proposals for making savings 
and a consultation exercise was undertaken to elicit views on levels of agreement, 
possible impacts and ways the impacts could be minimised (mitigation). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
1 The 2010 Equality Act and the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan require that ‘due regard’ be given to the views of designated 
groups in making decisions.  In terms of consultation, a body of case law points to the need for public authorities to properly 
gather and consider the views of the public in reaching decisions. 

Tudalen 47



 

4 

 
Councillor involvement 
A series of departmental seminars for all county councillors took place during the 
period November to December.2 All efficiencies across each department were 
considered in detail and feedback sought. Bullet points below provide an outlook of 
their views and further suggestions on efficiencies.  Councillor feedback regarding the 
public consultation can be found against the relevant proposals. 
 

Alongside councillor engagement, public consultation took place in the following ways: 
 

Survey 
The survey provided financial and service information on each of the 27 policy 
proposals and asked respondents to express a view on the degree to which they 
supported the proposal.3  Views were also sought regarding the potential impact of 
implementing the proposal on people and communities.4   
 

The survey was administered in two principal ways: 
 

1) Electronically via the Council’s online consultation page on the website 
2) Hard copies were available on request in order to maximise the response rate.   

 
A total of 304 responses were received from various sections of the community, 
including indviduals, businesses, town and community councils and groups and 
organisations. A demographic breakdown is provided in section 2.  
 
Insight 
The Insight session took place on 4th December at Parc Y Scarlets, Llanelli which 
involved year 11, 12 and 13 students from Ysgol Bryngwyn, Ysgol Bro Dinefwr, Ysgol 
Bro Myrddin, Ysgol Dyffryn Aman,  Ysgol Gyfun Emlyn, Maes Y Gwendraeth and QE 
High attended. 
 

Each school had around 10 attendees, and Executive Board roles were allocated. In 
all, around 80 young people participated in the budget consultation exercise.  
Following briefings on portfolios and proposals for making savings, students undertook 
a discussion and decision making exercise to decide which proposals they would 
support.  Members of the Council’s Executive Board were in the audience as each 
group presented its views on the proposals.  
 

Five groups from the seven schools attended the full council session on 12th December 
2018 to deliver their insight regarding the efficiency proposals. The comments and 
suggestions noted by pupils are noted against the relevant proposals. Furthermore, 
suggestions were presented regarding efficiency savings that they proposed to full 
council which can be seen below: 
 

 Federating schools with low pupil numbers. 

 Locate volunteers to undertake grass cutting in their local areas. 

 Invest in software that informs you which roads are safe during wintry 
conditions, using GPS and install technology to inform you when grit bins are 
empty, also grid reference the grit bins in order to make refills easier. 

                                                           
2 As democratically elected representatives, councillor views are of central importance.  This is of course in addition to their 
decision making role, as Council, in deciding the budget. 
3 The format of the survey was identical to the previous budget survey, to ensure comparability of results for all  27 proposals. 
4 The responses are important in establishing the impact of Council proposals on people – a key consideration in undertaking 
good decision making based on evidence, and a requirement of the 2010 Equality Act. 

Tudalen 48



 
5 

 A weekly council tax increase of £1.13 per household is reasonable in order to 
save important services 

 Save money in the long term through creating a small tourism tax 

 Local authorities to work more closely as a part of administrative services 

 Redevelopment of Council land therefore attracting more private sector 
businesses  

 Invest in Pelican Crossings in order to save money in the long term by not 
requiring lollipop persons  

 More use of iPads/laptops in order to reduce the amount of paper being used. 

 Reduce the number of collection centres – from 150 to 90, this will save money. 

 Invest in the empty Blas Myrddin Room – rent out as a café or allow 
students/members of the council to use it for meetings. A venue that is 
sustainable. 

 Increase the price of using public conveniences to 50p.  This will improve 
hygiene, encourage more people to use the facilities and increase the income. 

 Previously tourists have complained about the state of the public conveniences, 
if we improve the ones we have it could entice more people to visit our 
communities and increase revenue. 

 

Other [Email responses received] 

 St Clears Town Council recognises that savings have to be made during the 
current financial climate. Having considered the efficiency savings proposals, 
members would like to comment on some, but not all of the proposals. Members 
also felt that the document was unclear and it would be difficult to fully 
understand the outcome of some of the proposals, thus making it difficult to 
send an informed response. The Town Council also felt that some vulnerable 
groups were potentially being put at risk with some of the proposals, which is a 
real cause for concern. 

 Most people who work in Carmarthenshire that drive to work have to pay for 
parking.  Some residents pay for parking permits to park outside their own 
homes which seems unfair. All car parks for council staff eg st David’s park, 
county hall, Spilman Street should charge staff to park or purchase permits, this 
would reduce car usage and encourage car sharing, it may also increase 
revenue for the council. 

 Concerns for the long term prosperity of rural areas, encourage the Council to 
consider involving the community in programs to improve services.   This might 
mean lobbying the Welsh Assembly and Westminster (check out the local reps) 
to get low interest government backed loans for local power generation. If as 
many are saying councillors are earning a lot then let’s get them to do 
something that might provide local jobs, cheaper renewable energy and may 
even provide a profit to reinvest in community services.  This is a much better 
forward-looking plan than, for instance, buying real estate as some English 
councils have done to try to invest for future income generation when funding 
from higher levels of government is less reliable. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 49



 
6 

Social Media Responses: 
The social media managed to reach 54,900 people on Twitter and 20,800 via 
Facebook.   

 Cut wages for hierarchy instead of increasing council tax and reduce their large 
pensions.  Almost £1.9 million for the top 16 salaries. 

 Stop paying county councillors and reduce the number of councillors required.  
All councillors over 60 should use bus passes instead of claiming travelling 
expenses. 

 Stop paying for sculptures and imitation bikes. 

 Stop council employees taking vans home, they should be travelling to their 
workplace in their own transport. 

 Get rid of the drainage department and ask Welsh Water to take responsibility. 

 Too many empty council houses and improvements being done that don’t need 
doing. 

 Stop supporting Parc Y Scarlets financially. 

 The ire should be directed at central government as it’s their austerity cuts that 
are responsible for the dire cut backs that all local authority departments have 
to make. 

 Asking the public what they want to keep is like asking turkeys to vote for 
Christmas. 

 We pay taxes to be provided with services, this is like some crazy satire where 
we pay more and more tax for less services. 

 Invest more in renewable energy – small wind turbines on roads that generate 
electricity by passing traffic etc. 

 Look at council internal systems for wastage and streamlining opportunities. 
 

The consultation also included a Schools Strategy and Budget Forum meeting on the 
23rd November 2018 and Trade Union Consultation Sessions on 26th November 2018 
and 3rd January 2019.  
 
Publicity 
Local, regional and national press were used to inform the public how to become 
involved and obtain further information on the budget consultation.  Information was 
also highlighted on the council website newsroom on 14th November, 20th November 
and 7th December.  On 5th December the Leaders’ Blog included information about the 
Budget consultation, relevant information was provided for dissemination via social 
media on 3rd and 12th December. 
In addition, the consultation was publicised through relevant equality groups, including 
Equality Carmarthenshire and the Carmarthenshire Disability Coalition for Action. The 
Carmarthenshire Community and Town Council Liaison Forum held two specific 
meetings to discuss the budget on the 8th November and 11th December 2018 with the 
consultation information also circulated to all clerks in the Community and Town 
Council newsletter. A meeting was also held with Llanfihangel-Ar-Arth Community 
Council on 8th January 2019. 
 

Tudalen 50



 

7 

The public consultation phase ran from 20th November 2018 to 6th January 2019. 

 
 
 
 
2) Respondent profile 
Of the 304 respondents who gave completed answers to demographic questions: 96% 
were from individuals and 4% from Town and Community Councils, organisations or 
businesses. 5   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
5 Llanedi Community Council, Llanllwni Community Council, Ammanford Town Council, Ammanford 
Town Council, Llanddowror & Llanmiloe Community Council, Ysgol Bro Myrddin, Carmarthenshire 
Disability Partnership, Hafod Farm Stables, Ammanford Air Cadets, Lakefield Tenants & Residents 
Association.  Comments were also received from St. Clears Town Council and Kidwelly Town Council. 

About Average Index Score (AIS).  Sometimes known as a ‘weighted average’, the AIS is a 
way of distilling the ‘balance and strength of opinion’ down into one number.  Useful for 
questions with options to ‘strongly agree’, ‘disagree’, etc., the technique is used throughout the 
report.  Values range from 2 (everyone strongly agrees) to minus 2 (everyone strongly 
disagrees). 
 
Example  
10 people are asked whether they ‘strongly agree’, ‘agree’, ‘have no opinion’, ‘disagree’ or 
‘strongly disagree’ that Wales will win the six nations. 
 
Results... 
3 strongly agree (each response worth 2, so=6) 
3 agree (each response worth 1, so=3) 
1 no opinion (each response worth 0, so=0) 
1 disagree (each response worth -1, so= -1) 
2 strongly disagree (each response worth -2, so=-4) 
 
The AIS is calculated by adding all the numbers in bold: so, 6+3+0-1-4=4; 
 
Then dividing by the number of responses (10 in this case).  The average index score is: 
4÷10=0.4 (shown graphically below) 

 

Tudalen 51



 
8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Demographic 
Characteristic 

Overall % 
 Demographic 

Characteristic 
Overall % 

Transgender 0.0%  Ethnicity  

PNTS 5.9%  White 93% 

Relationship status   BME 1% 

Single 11%  Other 0% 

Married 64%  PNTS 6% 

Separated 1%  Disability  

Divorced 3%  Yes 8% 

Widowed 3%  No 86% 

Civil partnership 0%  PNTS 6% 

Co-habiting 11%  Preferred language  

Other 0%  Welsh 19% 

PNTS 7%  English 81% 

Sexual orientation   Other 0% 

Straight 84%  Income  

LGB 4%  <£10,000 5% 

PNTS 12%  £10,000 – £19,999 11% 

Religion   £20,000 – £29,999 19% 

Yes 36%  £30,000 – £39,999 8% 

PNTS 14%  £40,000 – £49,999 15% 

Caring responsibilities   £50,0000 – £59,999 10% 

Yes 15%  > £60,000  14% 

PNTS 7%  PNTS 18% 

 
0% 10% 20% 30%

Under 16

25-34

45-54

65-74

85+

0%

1%

13%
24%

26%

21%

9%

2%

0%

Age groups

 

54%

40%

6%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Female Male PNTS

Gender

Tudalen 52



 
9 

3) SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS 

Headline results – all 27 proposals 

The table below shows the results from the budget consultation survey.  It shows 
details of the proposal, then gives results for the question: ‘how strongly do you agree, 
or disagree, with this proposal’.6  The table is ranked in order by AIS score.  Those 
proposals with higher levels of support, reflected in higher AIS scores, appear first.7 
 

 
(table continued overleaf) 

                                                           
6 The survey itself gave summary information about each proposal to inform the decisions of respondents. 
7 Values near to zero may indicate no clear consensus, or may reflect apathy in relation to the proposal. 

 
 
 
Proposal Ranking 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

3
 Y

e
a
r 

 

S
a
v
in

g
 (

£
'0

0
0
) 

S
tr

o
n

g
ly

 

 A
g

re
e

 (
%

) 

A
g

re
e
 (

%
) 

N
e
it

h
e
r 

(%
) 

D
is

a
g

re
e
 (

%
) 

S
tr

o
n

g
ly

 

 D
is

a
g

re
e
 (

%
) 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

 

 I
n

d
e
x
 S

c
o

re
 

1. Eastgate Roundabout Planting 
19 19,000 46% 36% 9% 4% 5% 1.13 

2. Flower Bed Planting 
18 38,000 47% 33% 8% 7% 4% 1.11 

3. Democratic Services 
27 7,000 52% 30% 6% 8% 6% 1.10 

4. Parc Howard 
13 8,000 33% 39% 17% 6% 5% 0.87 

5. Third Sector Contracts 
16 50,000 29% 43% 14% 9% 6% 0.79 

6. Grass Cutting 
20 49,000 32% 38% 10% 13% 7% 0.75 

7. Learning Disabilities Day Services 
15 120,000 33% 35% 13% 11% 9% 0.72 

8. Schools Improvement 
2 70,000 28% 38% 15% 9% 10% 0.65 

9. Curriculum & Well-being – Welsh 
& Bilingualism Improvement 
Teachers 

5 
50,000 36% 29% 12% 8% 15% 0.63 

10. Children’s Services – Welfare 
Services 

8 
180,000 30% 35% 13% 8% 14% 0.58 

11. Day Services 
17 100,000 22% 40% 13% 15% 10% 0.50 

12. Household Waste & Recycling – 
North of County 

25 
140,000 23% 35% 20% 11% 11% 0.49 

13.  Libraries 
12 8,000 23% 37% 13% 15% 12% 0.45 

14. Kidwelly Industrial Museum 
14 5,000 26% 26% 20% 17% 12% 0.36 

15. Household Waste Recycling 
Centres – Ammanford & Whitland 

24 
25,000 21% 37% 13% 16% 13% 0.36 

16. Curriculum and Well-being – 
Learning Transformation 

3 
20,000 23% 34% 14% 15% 15% 0.34 

Tudalen 53



 
10 

4) CONSULTATION FINDINGS – ALL PROPOSALS 
Below, all 27 proposals are considered individually, in turn, in order to lay out a 
comprehensive summary of relevant consultation information. 
 

Each summary begins by detailing relevant facts and figures, including the value of 
the proposal, its average index score (AIS), and its AIS rank against other proposals.  
It also gives an AIS for selected categories of respondent, for comparative purposes, 
and also to help meet our Equality Duty of demonstrating ‘due regard’ to equality. It is 
important to recognise that some proposals will be of specific relevance to people in 
certain categories.  This must be taken in account in reaching decisions. 
 

Views expressed through the public consultation - whether through surveys, - have 
been considered together and themes identified. 
 

The ‘insight session’ section includes the views of the Sixth form pupils in the county’s 
secondary schools. 
 

The ‘other relevant information’ section includes information from specific sources, 
such as representations and organisational responses. 
 

The views of councillors, (as expressed through budget seminars or scrutiny 
committees) are included under the ‘councillor engagement’ heading. 
 

In the AIS charts that follow for each proposal, negative values are highlighted to show 
where results are, on balance, in opposition. 
 
In order to strengthen the decision making process, where a proposal has formed part 
of a previous budget consultation, these results are also included, for comparative 
purposes. 

 
 
 
Proposal Ranking 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

3
 Y

e
a
r 

 

S
a
v
in

g
 (

£
'0

0
0
) 

S
tr

o
n

g
ly

 

 A
g

re
e

 (
%

) 

A
g

re
e
 (

%
) 

N
e
it

h
e
r 

(%
) 

D
is

a
g

re
e
 (

%
) 

S
tr

o
n

g
ly

 

 D
is

a
g

re
e
 (

%
) 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

 

 I
n

d
e
x
 S

c
o

re
 

17. Bring Sites 
26 66,000 18% 35% 20% 17% 10% 0.34 

18. Pendine Outdoor Centre 
11 100,000 29% 25% 14% 14% 19% 0.30 

19. Rural Road Sweeping 
22 282,000 21% 34% 14% 15% 16% 0.28 

20. Funding recouped from Delegated 
Schools Budget 

6 
600,000 24% 27% 13% 16% 20% 0.19 

21. Educational Support Services to 
Schools 

1 
55,000 21% 23% 23% 14% 20% 0.11 

22. Education otherwise than at 
School 

7 
110,000 17% 27% 18% 21% 18% 0.02 

23. Children’s Services – Education & 
Child Psychology 

9 
100,000 16% 19% 15% 21% 20% -0.31 

24. Children’s Services – School 
Counselling Services 

10 
30,000 13% 20% 12% 23% 31% -0.38 

25. Curriculum & Well-being –Youth 
Support Services 

4 
150,000 14% 15% 13% 26% 32% -0.46 

26. Winter Gritting 
21 32,000 14% 16% 9% 30% 31% -0.49 

27. Highways Re-surfacing 
23 150,000 9% 16% 14% 32% 29% -0.58 

Tudalen 54



 
11 

1. Educational Support Services to Schools 

 

Total Budget: £1,141,000 
3 Year Savings: £55,000 
 

2019 – 20 2020- 21 2021- 22 

55 0 0 

 
Description:  
Currently Carmarthenshire contributes the sum of £55k following delegation of the 
grant from WG to the regional consortium and then on to the Council.  Implementation 
of this proposal would reduce the funding retained by the regional consortium, 
increasing the funding available to the council.  The reduction represents 5% of the 
budget available to the service. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if not adopted : 0.06% (£0.76 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.11 
Overall Rank (of 27): 21 
Sample Size:  278 
 
Previous AIS:  0.43 (2017)  
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.02 0.67 -2.00 0.10 0.23 -0.09 0.38 

Sample  46 3 1 219 26 137 103 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS -0.32 0.28 0.45 -0.03 -0.20 -0.06 0.18 

Sample 22 93 11 40 41 67 101 

 
Response to accepting a 0.06% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

21% 23% 23%

14%
20%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

38%

40%

22%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 55



 
12 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 52 responses received). 
 

 
 
Key themes from the public consultation: 

Impact – 57 comments 

 Many noted a necessity to keep funding for schools and make efficiency 

savings elsewhere. 

 Some respondents felt that ERW (Education through Regional Working) was 

not delivering the required stands and were ineffective. 

 A few respondents expressed that this proposal would not have a significant 

impact on schools. 

Mitigation – 40 comments 

 Several respondents commented that the Council need to Re-invest the 

savings into schools to ensure spending is ring-fenced for essential services.  

 Many respondents felt that it would be advantageous to improve leadership 

amongst managers within schools. 

 Some comments emphasised the importance of collaboration between 

schools and the local authority whilst maintaining close connections with 

neighbouring authorities. 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 No strong consensus amongst Members 

 
Social Media Comments: 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4%
4%

7%
9%

11%
13%

15%
24%

33%
40%

47%
62%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Primary Education

Children Social Services

Secondary Education

Education Support Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Adult Social Services

Highways, Parking and Transport

Economic Development and Regeneration

Leisure and Culture

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre…

Planning

Tudalen 56



 
13 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Andi Morgan 15/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 57



 
14 

2. Schools Improvement 

 

Total Budget: £1,141,000 
3 Year Savings: £70,000 
 

2019- 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

20 50 0 

 
Description:  
Not replacing an Advisory Team member following recent retirement. Senior Council 
officers are currently reviewing a range options in an attempt to mitigate any reduction 
in service provision and therefore ensure ongoing high quality support to our schools. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.08% (£0.97 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.65 
Overall Rank (of 27): 2 
Sample Size:  276 
   
Previous AIS:  0.43 (2017)  
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.56 0.11 -1.00 0.65 0.63 0.46 0.90 

Sample  45 3 2 217 27 137 103 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.50 0.57 1.18 0.59 0.56 0.62 0.63 

Sample 20 93 11 39 41 66 102 

 
Response to accepting a 0.08% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 
 

 

28%
38%

15% 9% 10%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

23%

62%

15%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 58



 
15 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 36 responses received). 

 
Key themes from the public consultation:  

Impact – 36 comments 

 Many respondents accepted this proposal but noted that the remaining staff 

in the section must be sufficiently supported.  

 Several comments were made regarding duplication of roles. Many 

suggested that the re-distribution of responsibilities would not have a 

significant impact on the service.  

Mitigation – 22 comments 

 Many comments received emphasised the importance of sharing models of 

best practice through forums, collaborative working with other counties and 

schools. 

 Respondents felt strongly that the remaining staff in the Schools 

Improvement Team must be sufficiently supported in order to deliver the 

service efficiently.  

 
Insight Session: 

 Solar panels used in summer can provide energy for other community services 
like leisure centres, use renewable resources to provide school electricity. 

 Eco-clubs can be used to recruit volunteers for litter picking etc. 

 Schools should have plastic free canteens – wooden cutlery and juice  
dispensers with plastic packaging 

 Over 16s should pay for their bus fares to schools/colleges 
 
Councillor Engagement: 

 The schools would need to see a benefit. How do schools feel that ERW are 
performing? 

 
Social Media Comments: 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 

 
 
 

3%
6%
6%

8%
11%

14%
17%

22%
44%
44%

47%
47%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Children Social Services

Secondary Education

Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Planning

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Tudalen 59



 
16 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Andi Morgan 15/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 60



 
17 

3. Curriculum and Well-being – Learning Transformation 

 

Total Budget: £1,141,000 
3 Year Savings: £20,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

20 0 0 

 
Description:  
Not replacing 1 Full-time member of staff following an employee leaving the service. 
Temporary arrangements are in place where duties have been distributed to a range 
of other team members. These arrangements will be monitored and evaluated. 
The permanent solution to this area of service delivery is anticipated to deliver a 
modest saving, whilst also maintaining an acceptable level of service delivery.     
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.02% (£0.28 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.34 
Overall Rank (of 27): 16 
Sample Size:  276 
 
 
 

 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.34 1.00 -0.50 0.34 0.21 0.18 0.52 

Sample  47 3 2 216 28 137 103 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.25 0.32 0.45 -0.23 0.12 0.09 0.47 

Sample 20 93 11 40 41 69 101 

 
Response to accepting a 0.02% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

23%

34%

14% 15% 15%

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

30%

56%

14%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 61



 
18 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 37 responses received). 
 

 
 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 37 comments 

 Several respondents felt that if this proposal was implemented it could have 

an impact on vulnerable learners. 

 Many commented that if the temporary arrangements implemented made are 

working and there is no significant impact on the service this could be seen 

as a positive efficiency saving. 

 Some respondents felt that this could impact vulnerable learners' future by 

restricting the number of opportunities available to them to develop their skills. 

Mitigation – 23 comments 

 Some respondents suggested that replacing the member of staff with an 

individual on a part-time contract, this would produce a saving whilst also 

maintaining service delivery. 

 A number of respondents felt that this service could be conducted within 

schools by teaching staff. 

 Some felt that collaboration with neighbouring counties was required in 

order to deliver this service. 

 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 How are the schools benefitting from the service?  If the schools are expected 
to make savings, then these small savings should be implemented. 
 

Social Media Comments: 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0%
5%

8%
8%

11%
11%

14%
16%

38%
43%

46%
56%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Education Support Services

Secondary Education

Primary Education

Adult Social Services

Waste and Recycling

Housing and Homelessness

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Tudalen 62



 
19 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Aeron Rees 16/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 63



 
20 

4. Curriculum and Well-being – Youth Support Services 

 

Total Budget: £772,000 
3 Year Savings: £150,000 

2019- 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

100 50 0 

Description: This is a 13% reduction in 2019-20 and 20% in total of the budget 
available to the service. Actual reduction in the staffing capacity given to offer support 
young people/schools, for example in the provision of the Duke of Edinburgh Award; 
Costs for the school trip risk assessment software would need to be re-distributed to 
county schools; 
withdrawal of funding currently given over to support vulnerable young people 
(attending a town centre youth project); 
withdrawal of funding to 3 Welsh Language medium Youth Clubs; 
withdrawal of funding for specialist provision for Harmful Sexual Behaviour; 
not recruiting to a vacant post that are core funded. Reducing county youth club 
provision. 
 

Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.17% (£2.07 a year) 
 

Average Index Score: -0.46 
Overall Rank (of 27): 25  
Sample Size:  274 
 
Previous AIS:  -0.16 (2014) 
  0.58 (2017) 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS -0.35 -0.33 -1.00 -0.44 -0.46 -0.65 -0.16 

Sample  46 3 2 216 28 136 104 
 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.09 -0.33 0.27 -0.40 -0.64 -0.56 -0.41 

Sample 22 91 11 40 39 68 102 
 

Response to accepting a 0.17% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

14% 15% 13%

26%
32%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

43%

32%

25%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 64



 
21 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 62 responses received). 
 

 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 52 comments 

 Most respondents felt that if this proposal was implemented it would have a 

negative impact on the vulnerable young people in the county. More 

importantly many were concerned that this would have an impact on young 

people’s, development and could impact on the community as it may lead to 

anti-social behaviour. 

 Concerns were noted that parents and carers would be affected due to the 

costs they would have to burden if this funding is reduced.  

 Respondents commented that schools' budgets are already tight and if they 

would be required to fund these services it would result in more pressures for 

schools. 

Mitigation – 33 comments 

 The majority suggested that the impact could be lessened by using voluntary 

organisations and volunteers.   

 Many comments disagreed with the proposal noting that efficiencies should 

be made elsewhere.  

 Other suggestions included; giving responsibility to teachers, signpost young 

people to other organisations, review how schools currently support these 

services and collaborative working. 

 
Insight Session: 

 Need to keep services, essential support for vulnerable, it brings people 
together, excludes social isolation.  Recruit more volunteers (young and old) 
give them Time credits.  Important service for young people aged 18-25. 

 Provide more cost efficient activities that help community e.g. gardening 

 Don’t cut funding for Welsh youth clubs, merge Welsh and English. 

 Cheaper to keep support for these services rather than dealing with NHS costs 
of repercussions. 

0%

3%

5%

7%

11%

16%

19%

26%

36%

39%

45%

65%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Education Support Services

Children Social Services

Secondary Education

Primary Education

Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Economic Development and Regeneration

Planning

Tudalen 65



 
22 

 Reduce funding for Duke Of Edinburgh instead by removing the award 
ceremony 

 Move the responsibility of risk assessment software to schools – negligible 
overall price of school trips 

 Make the current youth clubs bilingual – Encourage Welsh speaking in other 
ways 

 Keep funding for specialist provision for Harmful Sexual Behaviour – important 
service 

 Withdraw funding for recruiting to a vacant post – most are able to structure 
around issues and cut funding for Welsh youth clubs. 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 Councillors would not support this proposal as the service provided is 
valuable.  What would the impact be of reducing services?  Well-being of 
young people needs to be considered. 

 

 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Young people aged 11-25 accessing youth services may be affected.  

 This proposal makes the service more prone to the vagaries of grant funding 
and potentially poses a challenge to job security for staff of working age.  

 Any cuts to grant funding in the future will generate some risk across the 4 
pillars of YSS service delivery. 

 The ending of funding for Welsh Language Youth Clubs could have an effect 
on Welsh language speakers. 
 

Affected groups: 

Young people aged 11-25, Welsh Language 

Mitigation: 

 It is anticipated that the recent announcement relating to the strengthening of 
the Youth Support Grant by Welsh Government in 2019/20 will provide 
funding to mitigate any reduction against core funding and would be used to 
continue to provide the necessary staffing for Welsh Language youth clubs 
in the county. 

Assessment undertaken: Aeron Rees 16/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 66



 
23 

5. Curriculum and Well-being – Welsh and Bilingualism Improvement Teachers 

 

Total Budget: £286,000 
3 Year Savings: £50,000 
 

2019-20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

25 25 0 

 
Description: Reduction of 1 advisory teacher available to support schools by not 
replacing a member of staff who will be retiring. 
The staffing will be restructured to accommodate this saving. Service provision will 
need to adjust accordingly. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.06% (£0.69 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.63 
Overall Rank (of 27): 9 
Sample Size:  278 
 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.54 1.00 -1.00 0.70 0.61 0.59 0.83 

Sample  48 3 2 220 28 140 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.82 0.72 1.27 0.38 0.47 0.61 0.78 

Sample 22 94 11 40 40 70 103 

 
 
Response to accepting a 0.06% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

36%

29%

12% 8%
15%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

18%

67%

15%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 67



 
24 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 37 responses received). 
 

 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 36 comments 

 Many respondents felt that this proposal would have an impact on reaching 

targets set by Welsh Government. 

 Many respondents felt that the importance of the Welsh language, culture 

and identity would be affected if this proposal was implemented. 

 Some respondents felt that newcomers and latecomers to the county may fell 

stigmatised due to their inability to converse in Welsh. 

Mitigation – 24 comments 

 Some respondents noted that it would be beneficial if current and retired 

Welsh language teachers supported students on a voluntarily basis. 

 Respondent felt that services such as this needed to be better managed in 

order to be more efficient.  

 Many respondents suggested that collaborative working with other local 

authorities would enable the delivery of this service. 

 
Insight Session: 

 Delegate Welsh speaking schools geographically. 

 

Councillor Engagement: 

 Councillors wanted information on the value of the saving versus the value of 
the support. 

 This contradicts the authority’s efforts to increase the number of Welsh 
speakers. 

 
 
Social Media Comments: 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 

 

3%

5%

5%

8%

11%

14%

22%

32%

32%

38%

46%

49%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Secondary Education

Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and…

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre…

Planning

Tudalen 68



 
25 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Reduction of Welsh advisory teachers could affect the teaching of Welsh as 
a subject and teaching through the medium of Welsh. It could affect provision 
for latecomers to the county 

Affected groups: 

Welsh Language 

Mitigation: 

 Restructure the service accordingly 

Assessment undertaken: Aeron Rees 16/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 69



 
26 

6. Funding recouped from Delegated Schools’ Budget following school closure 

 

Total Budget: £55,897,000 
3 Year Savings: £600,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

100 250 250 

 
Description: The premises costs will be recouped from school closures. This would 
mean that in future, any school buildings/premises cost saving is contributed to 
efficiency savings rather than being redistributed to other schools. 
  
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.69% (£8.28 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.19 
Rank (of 27):  20 
Sample Size:  277 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.17 1.33 -2.00 0.22 0.35 0.16 0.37 

Sample  47 3 1 222 26 138 105 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.52 0.46 0.64 0.17 0.15 0.04 0.40 

Sample 21 92 11 40 41 67 104 

 
Response to accepting a 0.69% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

24%
27%

13%
16%

20%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

19%

58%

23%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 70



 
27 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made. (Total of 56 responses received). 

 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 33 comments 

 Many respondents noted that the implementation of this proposal would have 

a significant impact on pupils and schools.  

 Some respondents stated that due to school closures, other schools are 

becoming over populated which means larger class sizes and increased 

pressures on teaching staff. 

Mitigation – 23 comments 

 The majority of respondents disagreed to the implementation of this proposal 

stating that funding should be redistributed in to other schools.  

 Some respondents stated that transport to alternative schools should be 

improved  when schools are closed.  

 Some respondents felt that the distribution of funding to schools was unfair 

and that evaluations should be made on a case by case basis. 

 

Insight Session: 

 Federation between schools would be more effective, less money would be 

spent overall.  This would also increase social skills for pupils when exposed to 

more students. 

Councillor Engagement: 

 Preferred federation over closure however accepted that closure may need to 
be considered sometimes.  

 Preferred over blanket cuts to Schools Delegated Budget.   

 Location of some proposals will influence some members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2%
4%

5%
5%
5%

11%
20%

27%
38%

47%
48%

52%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Education Support Services

Adult Social Services

Waste and Recycling

Leisure and Culture

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Tudalen 71



 
28 

 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Andi Morgan 17/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 72



 
29 

7. Education Otherwise than at School 

Total Budget: £1,488,000  
3 Year Savings: £110,000 
 

2019- 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

60 50 0 

 
Description: Under this proposal, the council will reconsider recoupment of the true 
value of provision from schools (ensuring consideration of all elements of cost related 
activities e.g. officer time within administration / monitoring and progress reviews etc). 
Currently, the Council only recoups the allocated basic entitlement funding for pupils 
in mainstream education and not the true cost of provision.  
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.13% (£1.52 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.02 
Overall Rank (of 27): 22 
Sample Size:  267 
 
 
Previous AIS:  -0.42 (2017)  
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS -0.04 0.67 -2.00 0.03 0.30 -0.05 0.18 

Sample  46 3 1 213 27 131 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.29 0.20 1.09 0.40 0.00 0.00 0.01 

Sample 21 91 11 40 40 65 100 

 
Response to accepting a 0.13% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

17%

27%

18%
21%

18%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

31%

48%

21%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 73



 
30 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made. (Total of 50 responses received). 

 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 36 comments 

 The majority of respondents expressed concerns about the impact this 

proposal would have on vulnerable pupils and that the lack of funding may 

lead to negative consequences.  

 Some respondents felt that if this proposal was implemented it may have a 

negative impact on families due to the added pressures. 

 A few respondents were concerned that this would increase pressure on 

schools due to the increase in pupils that would be required to attend 

mainstream schools instead of being offered the services that are currently 

received. 

 A few respondents were Some respondents noted that they disagreed with 

this proposal and did not want funding reduced for this service. 

Mitigation – 22 comments 

 Some respondents suggested using third sector organisations and voluntary 

organisations to assist in providing this provision. 

 
Insight Session:  

 Train teachers to specialise so that their aware of the pressures on pupils that 
are dealing with mental health issues.  (This would cost approximately £200-
£250 a day).  This may be expensive during the first year but it will help pupils 
receive good education in the long term. 

 Employ experts to speak to pupils that are mis-behaving instead of sending 
them out of classes – ensure that pupils are receiving a high level of education.  
(The cost for high level of education would be approximately £5,500, at the most 
£15,000). 

 There are 100-115 pupils attending the centre instead of being at school and 
the number is increasing.  If pupils stay in the schools it can have a negative 
effect on fellow pupils education - we do not agree to increasing the cost to 
schools. 

2%

2%

4%

10%

10%

14%

22%

34%

36%

36%

48%

50%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Secondary Education

Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Leisure and Culture

Highways, Parking and Transport

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre…

Planning

Tudalen 74



 
31 

 
 

Councillor Engagement: 

 Councillors wondered whether the true cost could be recouped over all 
schools in general rather than the individual schools.  

 Worried that pupils may not be referred at all due to the cost which will have a 
detrimental effect on the pupils, or on schools with more challenging cohorts. 

 
 
 

Social Media Comments: 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Andi Morgan 15/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 75



 
32 

8. Children’s Services – Welfare Service 

 

Total Budget: £393,000 
3 Year Savings: £180,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021- 22 

180 0 0 

 
Description: Cease provision of service to schools who already manage most aspects 
of attendance. Staff will be redeployed. 
Balance of budget maintained to ensure Local Authority's statutory responsibilities can 
be met.  
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.21% (£2.48 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.58 
Overall Rank (of 27): 10  
Sample Size:  268 
 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.35 0.67 -1.00 0.57 0.70 0.48 0.73 

Sample  43 3 2 214 27 135 102 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.64 0.62 1.00 0.82 0.72 0.62 0.49 

Sample 22 91 11 40 40 65 103 

 
Response to accepting a 0.21% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 

30%
35%

13% 8%
14%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

14%

70%

16%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 76



 
33 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made. (Total of 38 responses received). 

 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 35 comments 

 Some respondents indicated that this proposal would have a significant 

negative impact on pupils who are in vital need of the support of this service.  

 Some respondents stated that implementing this proposal would have a 

negative impact on schools as it would increase the pressure on them to self-

manage. 

Mitigation – 24 comments 

 Respondents suggested that sanctions should be enforced in order to 

improve the service. 

 Many respondents noted that schools need to be empowered in order to 

ensure that students' attendance is monitored. Strong support is required in 

order to ensure the Welfare service is continued.   

 Some respondents suggested that this service could be provided in 

partnership with other organisations such as Police, voluntary organisations, 

youth workers. 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 Councillors wanted information on how valuable the service is to the schools. 

 This is a preventative service, what would be the long term cost if this service 
was reduce. 

 
Social Media Comments: 

 Cutting the Education Welfare service will cause future problems for people in 
society and result in costing more in the long run.  Who will work with the 
hundreds of vulnerable children known to the service who require increased 
support from an already swamped child and family service. 

 Don’t punish children for being born poor or to parents who don’t care about 
their future or education.  You may as well bring back the poor laws and the 
work house. 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 

0%
3%
3%

5%
13%

18%
18%

21%
40%
40%

42%

61%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Education Support Services
Children Social Services

Primary Education
Secondary Education
Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness
Highways, Parking and Transport

Waste and Recycling
Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)
Leisure and Culture

Planning

Tudalen 77



 
34 

 
 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 There is a risk that the level of school attendance could decline, although this 
wouldn’t affect any one protected characteristic. 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Stefan Smith 16/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 78



 
35 

9. Children’s Services – Education and Child Psychology 

 

Total Budget: £540,000 
3 Year Savings: £100,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

50 50 0 

 
Description: 
Reduce number of Education and Child Psychologists. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.12% (£1.38 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: -0.31 
Overall Rank (of 27): 23 
Sample Size:  270 
 
Previous AIS:  -0.33 (2016)  

0.32 (2017) 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS -0.16 1.00 -2.00 -0.42 0.41 -0.63 0.10 

Sample  45 3 1 218 27 136 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS -0.05 -0.32 -0.09 -0.15 -0.36 -0.28 -0.47 

Sample 22 93 11 39 39 67 103 

 
Response to accepting a 0.12% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 

16%
19%

15%

21% 20%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

41%

38%

21%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 79



 
36 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 50 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 40 comments 

 The majority of respondents felt that a reduction in educational psychologist 

would have a significant impact on those pupils that use the service. Children 

currently have to wait an unreasonable amount of time to access this 

particular service and a reduction in psychologists would put a further strain 

on an already pressurised service.  

 Many respondents felt that implementing this proposal would have an impact 

on the families of the pupils that use this service.  

 Some respondents felt this would lead to increased pressure on teaching staff 

to provide this support. 

 Many respondents noted that the impact of this proposal could not be reduced 

as it is a vital service. 

Mitigation – 20 comments 

 The majority of  respondents suggested upskilling current teaching staff so 

that they are able to detect issues in pupils. Some also suggested using 

voluntary organisations to assist with counselling sessions for pupils. 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 There aren’t enough educational psychologists as it is let alone reducing the 
service.  

 Early intervention is required as this can provide substantial savings later on. 
 
 
Social Media Comments: 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 
 
 
 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

16%

20%

26%

28%

36%

42%

60%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Children Social Services

Primary Education

Education Support Services

Secondary Education

Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Tudalen 80



 
37 

 
 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Stefan Smith 16/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 81



 
38 

10. Children’s Services – School Counselling Service 

 

Total Budget: £303,000 
3 Year Savings: £130,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 0 30 

 
Description: A reduction in this budget will result in a reduced direct service to 
schools/young people. However, with an increasing focus in our new curriculum on 
wellbeing we hope to further develop the universal offer provided by our schools and 
the Council. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.03% (£0.41 a year) 

 

Average Index Score: -0.38 
Overall Rank (of 27): 24 
Sample Size:  267 
 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS -0.29 1.33 -1.00 -0.44 0.15 -0.61 -0.06 

Sample  45 3 1 213 27 132 103 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS -0.38 -0.19 -0.20 -0.20 -0.45 -0.48 -0.44 

Sample 21 93 10 40 40 66 99 

 
Response to accepting a 0.03% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 
 

 
 

13%

20%

12%

23%

31%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

45%

36%

19%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 82



 
39 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made. (Total of 45 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 39 comments 

 A large portion of the respondents suggested that this proposal would have 

a significant impact on pupils that use this service. Many felt that the service 

is already at capacity and a reduction in direct services to schools would 

increase the pressure on a service that is already at full capacity level.  

 Some respondents felt that implementing this proposal would have an impact 

on families that require the support of this service. 

 Some concerns were noted that this would increase the pressure placed on 

teachers as they would be required to provide the necessary support to 

pupils. 

Mitigation – 19 comments 

 A number of respondents felt that the impact of this proposal could not be 

lessened. 

 Some respondents suggested working with the voluntary sector in order to 

provide support to children. 

 Some suggested working collaboratively with other schools and/or other 

counties to help provide this support.  

 
Insight Session: 

 Mental Health is important and shouldn’t be compromised, awareness of mental 
health issues is already low and cutting the service will only make it worse.  
Better training and understanding of mental health and personal issues in 
schools is needed for everyone – teachers and pupils and more advertisement 
regarding counselling services.  Much of this could be undertaken in PSE 
classes within schools. 

 Keep the current funding - Important for the community, cannot reduce the 
access for people in need and school performances would be affected if this 
proposal was accepted and keeping this service would reduce stress on other 
services such as the NHS. 

 It may be better for students if they had to go to the NHS rather than seeing a 
school counsellor but the process is very long.  GP often cannot diagnose and 
they need to wait to be referred to a specialist which can take several months. 

2%

4%

7%

7%

9%

11%

18%

27%

27%

31%

36%

49%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Secondary Education

Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Tudalen 83



 
40 

 There is a stigma around school’s regarding counselling, a better approach to 
more welcoming sessions is needed.  There is a need to neutralise the name 
of counselling.  Against the idea of less direct services to schools as there is 
already a lack of counselling sessions in schools.  We would accept this 
proposal as it would lead to a justified increase in council tax 
 

 

Councillor Engagement: 

 This provides a valuable service and there aren’t enough councillors as it is. 

 This is a preventative service and reducing it could have further cost 
implications. 

 
 
Social Media Comments: 

 No cuts to education, they are already struggling, they are our future. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 
 

Description of impact:   

 There may be a reduction in level of service to schools/young people which 
could affect some groups/characteristic disproportionally due to the 
proportion of these groups that may require additional support. 

Affected groups: 

Disabled, Gender reassignment, Race, Pregnancy and Maternity, Sexual 
Orientation, Sex 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Stefan Smith 16/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 84



 
41 

11. Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 

 

Total Budget: £160,000 
3 Year Savings: £100,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 50 50 

 
Description:  
The proposal is to close the Outdoor Education Centre. The service is not statutory 
and can be provided by alternative private providers, albeit at greater cost. The 
centre’s infrastructure requires investment to meet modern standards. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.12% (£1.38 a year) 

 
Average Index Score: 0.30 
Overall Rank (of 27): 18  
Sample Size:  277 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.39 0.67 -1.00 0.30 -0.59 0.17 0.60 

Sample  44 3 2 218 27 137 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.69 0.38 -0.09 0.46 -0.07 0.26 0.52 

Sample 21 92 11 39 40 68 101 

 
Response to accepting a 0.12% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

29%
25%

14% 14%

19%

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

25%

57%

18%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 85



 
42 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 39 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 33 comments 

 Many respondents noted that the implementation of this proposal would affect 

the lower income families.  Many stated that Pendine Outdoor Education 

Centre gave many children the opportunity to experience their first holiday.  

 Many respondents commented that this Centre was a vital educational 

resource and an important step in a child's life and that it affect the children 

more than anyone else.  Respondents also stated that the implementation of 

this proposal would have a direct effect on the employees that are employed 

at the establishment. 

Mitigation – 36 comments 

 Some noted the need to keep this facility open and the Council should look 

at sharing the costs or out-sourcing to an external company.  

 Some respondents suggested that the costs to run Pendine Outdoor 

Education Centre could be shared between neighbouring local authorities as 

a regional based facility.  

 

Insight Session: 
• We do not agree to the closure of Pendine Outdoor Centre as for most pupils it 

is the first away from home adventure that they experience and it gives children 
from low income families opportunities they otherwise would not experience.  

• All buildings are old and need renovation, the use of Solar and wind power 
would be more efficient and help to reduce maintenance costs as well as 
providing education opportunities involving eco-energy. 

• Train volunteers to be qualified and work their way up to assist, and only open 
at peak times as well as opening for communities to use. 

• Explore the possibility of trusts and cut back on more expensive activities. 
 
Councillor Engagement: 

 There was no support for this proposal.  Some Members felt there should be 
an Executive Board or wider Member site visit and further information before a 
decision can be made.  Support for the existing accommodation provision to be 
upgraded was expressed. 

0%

3%

3%
5%

10%

18%

18%

26%

39%

44%

44%

51%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Primary Education

Education Support Services

Secondary Education

Children Social Services

Adult Social Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Tudalen 86



 
43 

Social Media Comments: 

 Pendine Outdoor Centre is better value for money than some alternatives and 
offers such a good experience to children who may not have access to such 
activities. 

 Didn’t realise Pendine Outdoor Centre was funded by the council, support the 
proposal. 
 

 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description of impact:   

 Existing Centre users (predominately School groups) will have to access 
private sector outdoor education residential provision outside of 
Carmarthenshire which is likely to cost more financially and in time for travel. 
Alternatively, Schools may decide not to access residential outdoor education 
at all.  Alternative provision may also not align or have content relevant to the 
National Curriculum guidance. 

 Pendine Outdoor Education Centre aims to provide a bilingual service to the 
Schools in Carmarthenshire. There is no guarantee that alternative provision 
can be provided bilingually. 

 

Affected groups: 

Age, Disability, Welsh Language 

Mitigation: 

 The consultation will identify whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are disproportionately affected. This EIA will be updated 
accordingly, and any necessary mitigating actions will be identified. 

 Current users will have to assess if alternative service provision outside of 
Pendine Outdoor Education Centre caters for Welsh language provision. 

 

Assessment undertaken:  Ian Jones 29/11/2018 

Tudalen 87



 
44 

12. Libraries 

Total budget: £2,421,000 
3 Year Savings: £20,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

10 5 5 

 
Description:  This proposal considers the potential to co-locate branch libraries with 
other businesses or premises to help reduce running costs and potentially increase 
visitor numbers 
 
Increase in Council tax if not adopted: 0.02% (£0.28 a year) 

 
Average index score: 0.45 
Overall Rank (of 27): 13 
Sample Size:  274 
 
Previous AIS: 0.50 (2013) 
 0.42 (2014) 
 0.13 (2016) 
 0.41 (2017) 
  

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.36 0.33 -2.00 0.51 0.61 0.34 0.72 

Sample  42 3 1 216 28 133 106 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.80 0.47 0.64 0.40 0.51 0.43 0.57 

Sample 20 90 11 40 39 69 101 

 
Response to accepting a 0.02% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 
 

23%

37%

13% 15% 12%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

28%

60%

12%

Accept increase Accept  proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 88



 
45 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 27 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 43 comments 

 The majority of respondents agree with the proposal to co-locate branch 

libraries as they felt it would increase visitor numbers. However, many 

highlighted that when co-locating, accessibility and parking needs to be an 

essential priority. 

  A number of respondents felt that this proposal would impact on students. 

 Some respondents felt that the implementation of this proposal would have a 

significant impact on those living in rural communities.  

 Some respondents felt that libraries are used for a variety of different reasons 

and that closing libraries may impact on communities.  

Mitigation – 19 comments 

 The majority of respondents agreed to the proposal. However many noted 

that there is a need to co-locate in areas where the service is more likely to 

be used and that the facility is accessible to all. 

 Some respondents suggested that for the implementation of this proposal to 

succeed, lessons in how to access information on how to use online libraries 

needs to be distributed widely.  

 Some respondents suggested sharing costs with voluntary and charitable 

organisations. 

 

Other relevant information: 

 The library in St Clears is already located within another building – does this 
mean that St Clears library will be unaffected by the proposal? 

 
Insight Session: 

 Not many people use the library in our town due to lack of interest generally 
and it being remote. The lack of interest is due to an increase in the use of other 
services available in shops and technology in general.  We suggest that the 
library should be a hub that young people, elderly and everyone in general can 
build closer and friendlier communities. 

  The library can help to improve education levels. 

0%
4%

7%
7%
7%

15%
30%

30%
33%

37%
41%

48%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services
Education Support Services

Primary Education
Secondary Education
Adult Social Services
Waste and Recycling

Housing and Homelessness
Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture
Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Economic Development and Regeneration
Planning

Tudalen 89



 
46 

 Agree with the proposal – integrate the libraries to shops/café’s,this may result 
in more people using the service. 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 In principle, Members were in agreement with this proposal and felt that this 
had potential for benefits to both the Library Service and the wider community. 

 
Social Media Comments: 

 Didn’t realise we still had libraries! 
 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Public libraries are a powerful resource and important in addressing a number 
of the priorities set out in the Welsh Government’s “Programme for 
Government”, including promoting growth and tackling poverty. 

 Welsh public libraries address poverty by tackling the digital divide, providing 
access to the internet with trained staff delivering advice and guidance, and 
helping people develop vital information literacy skills. They are also an 
important community resource in helping people claim Universal Benefit and 
enabling them to take advantage of a broad range of statutory and voluntary 
support available in their local community.  These and other aspects of the 
service are planned, shaped and delivered by skilled and knowledgeable 
professional library staff. 

 Additionally libraries play an important role in advancing knowledge by 
providing access to information, supporting entrepreneurial activity, and 
inspiring life-long learning and reading for enjoyment. They foster social 
mobility and strengthen our communities, catering, as they do, for the needs 
of all parts of society from toddlers and their parents, to students (of all ages) 
and researchers, from local activists to small businesses, and from the frail 
and elderly and their carers to hobbyists and creators.   

 

Affected groups: 

All characteristic groups 

Mitigation: 

Views and opinions sought from Elected Members, local community organisations 
and groups and all other interested parties, via the Council’s established 
consultation process.  Alternative Methods/Forms of Service Delivery suggested 
 

Volunteer run libraries  
The use of volunteers in libraries has become prominent in the last couple of years. 
Currently one Community library is operated by volunteers within the county. This 
could be further explored/extended within Carmarthenshire and where implemented 
would be supported and managed by professional Library Service, providing 
professional support, stocks of books and non book materials along with IT support 
to small community based libraries run by volunteers from within the community. 
 
Community councils 
In a number of authorities, community councils have contributed towards library 
provision. Working in partnership, community councils often provide 
accommodation and staffing, while the county council provide book stock and 
professional support for these small community based libraries. Pontyberem library 

Tudalen 90



 
47 

goes a long way towards this route with the Community Council funding the building 
and staffing costs.  
 
Relocation of existing libraries (Proposed) 
Across the Principality libraries are being relocated within other local authority 
buildings such as Leisure Centres, Community Centres and Civic Centres all having 
been used with varying degrees of success. Where practical, shared premises and 
staffing with other departments / organisations within Carmarthenshire may be able 
to offer extended library provision. Such a move would bring savings from having 
shared premises but investment would be needed to fund any such relocations. A 
good example of shared services can be seen at “Y Gat” St Clears.  
 
Enhanced housebound  services 
The current housebound delivery service provides a tailored service specific to the 
requirements of the individual members with stock carefully selected by professional 
staff and delivered to borrowers’ homes by library staff. Many current users in more 
remote locations could be transferred to the home delivery service, which would 
work in partnership with the Mobile library service. Adopting this approach may lead 
to an increase in transport costs and, in line with many other local authorities, 
consideration should be given to the use of volunteers and the establishment of 
partnerships with existing providers e.g. social services to deliver the extended 
service.  
 
Deposit collections  
The library service already supplies a number of large deposit collections of books 
to day centres, nursing homes and hospitals, Stock is changed on a regular basis 
and selected by professional library staff. Providing there are suitable community 
venues this is a model that can be replicated. Costs for this would be met within 
existing budget providing there was no staffing or building cost to the Service.  This 
option is currently being explored at Kidwelly.  (Gwenllian Centre). 
  
Mobile library service 
By streamlining our static branch library service with an adapted mobile library 
service,  this has facilitated ‘community’ stops of between 1 to 3 hours per visit  
replacing  the present traditional ‘silver service’ door to door type mobile stop 
approach of  between  5 and 30 minutes.     
   
Other Provision 
Libraries are recognised as important community venues which often provide a safe 
learning environment for children out of school hours and adults wishing to learn 
new skills. In many communities, the library may provide the only IT facilities in the 
area, enabling access to the internet. Where possible, consideration should be given 
to providing access to these services from other alternative premises in the area. 
Where possible, grant funding bodies should be explored in order to facilitate these 
changes. (e.g. Trimsaran). 
 

Assessment undertaken: Ian Jones  

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 91



 
48 

13. Parc Howard 

 

Total Budget: £52,000 
3 Year Savings: £8,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

8 0 0 

 
Description: This proposal considers revised opening hours for the Museums, 
reducing overall opening periods, especially during the Winter months when visitor 
numbers drop off significantly. Feedback is welcomed on revised opening hours (times 
/ days and seasonally) to improve the efficiency of the service. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if not adopted: 0.01% (£0.11 a year) 

 
Average index score: 0.87 
Overall Rank (of 27): 4  
Sample Size:  277 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.89 0.33 -2.00 0.92 0.86 0.85 0.96 

Sample  45 3 1 220 28 138 105 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.86 0.92 1.00 1.05 0.90 0.79 0.90 

Sample 21 93 11 39 40 70 103 

 
Response to accepting a 0.01% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 
 

 

33%
39%

17%
6% 5%

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly Disagree

13%

79%

8%

Accept increase Accept the proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 92



 
49 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 16 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 23 comments 

 Whilst the majority of the respondents agreed with the implementation of this 

proposal. Some however noted that it would impact the local community and 

tourism in the area.  

Mitigation – 21 comments 

 The majority of respondents commented that sign posting for Parc Howard 

was poor and that new opening times needed to be well publicised. Moreover, 

some suggested that opening times need to reflect when it is most likely to 

be used.  

 Many respondents suggested that the buildings at Parc Howard could be 

used for alternative purposes such as; council meetings, weddings, ghost 

tours or a community centre in order to generate income.  

 Many comments suggested that a cafe at the Park may increase footfall and 

interest and that this could generate an income which could assist with the 

running costs.  

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 In principle, Members were in agreement with this proposal and added that the 
relevant Town Council should be consulted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0%

0%

0%

6%

6%

25%

25%

31%

38%

38%

50%

56%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Primary Education

Adult Social Services

Education Support Services

Secondary Education

Waste and Recycling

Leisure and Culture

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Housing and Homelessness

Highways, Parking and Transport

Economic Development and Regeneration

Planning

Tudalen 93



 
50 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Existing users range from young children through to older adults. The facility 
houses the local collections and plans to re-open the café in the near future 
when opening hours may be reviewed positively again. Reduced opening 
hours may offer less opportunity for people to access the Museum collection.  

 The building is accessible for existing users and visitors. Flexibility of visiting 
times may be affected with slightly less opening times.   

 The Museum aims to provide a bilingual service to all of its visitors. There is 
no guarantee that alternative provision can be provided bilingually. 

 Some of the holiday activities provides for pre-school education. This would 
have to be picked up by external / private / third sector provision. 

 

Affected Groups: 

All characteristic groups 

Mitigation: 

 The consultation will identify whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are disproportionately affected. This EIA will be updated 
accordingly, and any necessary mitigating actions will be identified. 

 Current users will have to assess if alternative service provision outside of 
the facility caters for Welsh language provision. 

 The consultation will identify whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are disproportionately affected. This EIA will be updated 
accordingly, and any necessary mitigating actions will be identified. 
 

Assessment undertaken:  Ian Jones 29/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 94



 
51 

14. Kidwelly Industrial Museum 

 

Total Budget: £16,000 
3 Year Savings: £5,000 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 5 0 

 
Description: The proposal is to cease the local authority’s support funding for the 
facility, which is likely to result in the facility closing to the public or only being open on 
certain days of the year for special events. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.01% (£0.07 a year). 
 

Average index score: 0.36 
Overall Rank (of 27): 14 
Sample Size:  274 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.11 0.67 -2.00 0.39 0.37 0.21 0.60 

Sample  44 3 1 218 27 136 104 
 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.00 0.34 0.27 0.54 0.15 0.09 0.60 

Sample 21 92 11 39 40 69 101 
 

Response to accepting a 0.01% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 
 
 
 
 

26% 26%
20% 17%

12%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

28%

62%

10%

Accept increase Accept the proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 95



 
52 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 24 responses received). 
 

 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact –  26 comments 

 The majority of respondents stated that the loss of culture and heritage 

associated with the museum would impact on the local community. Some 

suggested that this would also impact pupils’ learning and knowledge of local 

history.  

Mitigation – 18 comments 

 Some respondents suggested that the Council should look for private 

investors to help finance the museum.  

 A few respondents stated that they were not aware of that the museum 

existed and suggested better advertisement of the establishment. Some 

respondents commented that the opening times need to be clearly displayed 

in order to increase the number of visitors.  

 Some suggested that the Council should seek specialist funding opportunities 

to assist in maintaining the facility.  

 
Other relevant information: 

 Kidwelly Town Council are completely opposed to any withdrawal of funding 
from Kidwelly Industrial Museum and feel that the Council should be exploring 
ways of supporting the development of the museum and secure funding for its 
future. 

 
Insight Session: 

 Charge an entrance fee in order to have less reliance on the council 

 Heritage charities may be able to assist with upkeep 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 There was some support for this proposal if the Trust is able to source grants 
for further development.  Other Members were not supportive of this proposal 
and expressed concern over the existing opening hours and would like to see 
grants sourced to upgrade the facility. 

 

0%

0%

0%

4%

8%

17%

17%

29%

29%

38%

42%
58%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Children Social Services

Adult Social Services

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Secondary Education

Waste and Recycling

Housing and Homelessness

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Highways, Parking and Transport

Planning

Tudalen 96



 
53 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Existing visitors range from young children through to older adults, but are 
mainly older in profile. Reducing funding may result in less access or closure 
of the facility and an understanding of an important part of the County’s 
industrial heritage. 

 The site aims to be fully accessible for users, and reduced support funding 
may have an impact on the trust’s ability to meet this aim. 

 The Museum aims to provide a bilingual service to all of its visitors. There is 
no guarantee that alternative provision can be provided bilingually. 

 

Affected groups: 

All characteristic groups 

Mitigation: 

 The consultation will identify whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are disproportionately affected. This EIA will be updated 
accordingly, and any necessary mitigating actions will be identified. 

 Current users will have to assess if alternative service provision outside of 
the centre caters for Welsh language provision. 

Assessment undertaken: Ian Jones 29/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 97



 
54 

15. Learning Disabilities Day Services  

 

Total Budget: £4,249,000 
3 Year Savings: £120,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

120 0 0 

 
Description: Cease provision of one facility which used to provide catering training - no 

service users affected. 

 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.14% (£1.66 a year) 

 
Average index score: 0.72 
Overall Rank (of 27): 7 
Sample Size:  272 
 
Previous AIS:  0.38 (2014) 
 0.12 (2018)  
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.53 1.33 -1.00 0.71 1.19 0.67 0.89 

Sample  43 3 1 218 27 135 105 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.95 0.91 1.00 0.69 0.78 0.75 0.67 

Sample 21 92 10 39 40 68 102 

 
Response to accepting a 0.14% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 
 

 
 

33% 35%

13% 11% 9%
Strongly

Agree
Agree Neither Disagree Strongly

Disagree

16%

75%

9%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 98



 
55 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.    (Total of 20 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 10 comments 

 Respondents stated that whilst there is no affect to service users it would 

have an impact on those individuals that would benefit from the use of this 

service in future. 

 Respondents commented that the implementation of this proposal may 

impact on staff that currently use the facility as a canteen. 

Mitigation – 11 comments 

 Respondents noted that a requirement to provide alternative provisions would 

be needed if this facility is closed.  

 
Insight Session: 

 Expand the opportunities for people with disabilities and encourage people to 
see employment in areas of interest to them. 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 In principle, Members were in agreement with this proposal as the demand for 
placements can be met from other catering settings but noted that the 
proposal did not identify which building.  Members were supportive of 
alternative provision options being explored. 

 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Loss of a facility for staff. 

Affected groups: 

Disability 

Mitigation: 

 Community work experience opportunities can be provided if an alternative 
is needed. 

Assessment undertaken: Sharon Ferwin 29/12/2017 

 

0%

0%

0%

5%

5%

20%

30%

35%

35%

40%

50%

60%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Children Social Services

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Adult Social Services

Secondary Education

Waste and Recycling

Housing and Homelessness

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Planning

Economic Development and Regeneration

Tudalen 99



 
56 

16. Third Sector Contracts  

 

Total Budget: £447,000 
3 Year Savings: £50,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

50 0 0 

 
Description: Work with third sector providers to develop services and projects 
together. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.06% (£0.69 a year) 

 
Average index score: 0.79 
Overall Rank (of 27): 5 
Sample Size:  268 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.43 0.67 -2.00 0.78 1.15 0.77 0.85 

Sample  44 3 1 214 26 131 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 1.10 0.92 0.91 0.97 0.55 0.81 0.83 

Sample 21 89 11 38 38 67 100 

 
Response to accepting a 0.06% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 
 

 
 
 

29%

43%

14% 9% 6%
Strongly

Agree
Agree Neither Disagree Strongly

Disagree

18%

74%

8%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 100



 
57 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 17 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 14 comments 

 No comments  

Mitigation – 12 comments 

 The majority of comments related to ensuring that there was no duplication 

of work within the Local authority and to streamline the services provided.  

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 In principle, Members were in agreement with this proposal and keen to ensure 
that there is no duplication whilst maintaining the levels of good service 
provided in this sector. 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Avril Bracey 20/1/2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0%
0%
0%

6%
6%

12%

18%
29%

41%

47%
47%

59%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Children Social Services
Primary Education

Secondary Education
Education Support Services

Adult Social Services
Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Housing and Homelessness
Waste and Recycling

Leisure and Culture
Highways, Parking and Transport

Planning
Economic Development and Regeneration

Tudalen 101



 
58 

17. Day Services  

 

Total Budget: £4,249,000 
3 Year Savings: £100,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 50 50 

 
Description: Improve building usage in day centre provision to reduce by one building, 
saving building operating costs. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.12% (£1.38 a year) 

 
Average index score: 0.5 
Overall Rank (of 27): 11 
Sample Size:  265 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.26 0.33 0.00 0.53 0.69 0.39 0.73 

Sample  42 3 2 210 26 131 101 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.48 0.61 1.27 0.71 0.43 0.50 0.59 

Sample 21 89 11 38 37 66 99 

 
Response to accepting a 0.12% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 

22%

40%

13% 15% 10%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

22%

67%

12%

Accept increase Accept the proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 102



 
59 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 26 responses received). 

 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 18 comments 

 The majority of respondents stated that the main impact would be on service 

users.  They would agree to the proposal as long as service users were not 

significantly impacted.  

Mitigation – 17 comments 

  Respondents noted that if service users are affected, transport links will need 

to improve in order to make other provisions accessible.  

 Some suggested that other council buildings can be used to provide services 

in order to save operating costs.  

 
Insight Session: 

 Need to assess the needs of the users of the service and support the model of 
integrating into the core services. 

 An additional income could be made by selling the building. 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Loss of a building based facility. 

Affected groups: 

Disabled 

Mitigation: 

 Individuals will access existing community groups, services or develop 
activities within community venues. 

Assessment undertaken: Sharon Ferwin 20/1/2019 

 
 
 
 
 

0%

0%

4%

4%

8%

19%

19%

27%

31%

42%

46%

58%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Children Social Services

Adult Social Services

Primary Education

Secondary Education

Education Support Services

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Planning

Tudalen 103



 
60 

18. Flower Bed Planting  

 

Total Budget: £8,871,000 
3 Year Savings: £38,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

38 0 0 

 
Description: Review maintenance of Flower Beds and Shrubbery in town centres. 
The proposal is to cease town centre planting or transfer responsibility to town councils 
as we are aware that some town councils have expressed an interest in undertaking 
this work. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.04% (£0.54 a year). 

 
Average index score: 1.11 
Overall Rank (of 27): 2 
Sample Size:  274 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.82 1.33 -2.00 1.14 1.04 1.12 1.14 

Sample  44 3 1 220 27 138 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 1.4 1.26 0.9 1.13 0.87 1.14 1.26 

Sample 20 94 10 39 39 70 102 

 
Response to accepting a 0.04% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 
 

47%

33%

8% 7% 4%
Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly

Disagree

13%

82%

5%

Accept increase Accept the proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 104



 
61 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 12 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 33 comments 

 The majority of respondents felt that implementing this proposal would impact 

on the local community.  It was felt that the withdrawal of maintenance from 

the Council would result in the town centre looking unkempt which may also 

impact on tourism in Carmarthen Town Centre.  

Mitigation – 26 comments 

 The majority of respondents suggested planting wild flowers in town centres 

as they are easier to maintain and would therefore reduce maintenance costs.  

 Some suggested that responsibility could be transferred to voluntary 

organisations, school pupils as work experience or sponsorship by local 

businesses.  

 
Other relevant information: 

 Agree with this proposal as many Town and Community Councils are already 
undertaking this role. 

 
Insight Session: 

• Move responsibility to town councils and share the budget with them. 
• Encourage volunteering to increase community spirit and potential to use the 

Welsh Baccalaureate as a community challenge for pupils.  
• Advertising/investment from private companies could cover funding to ensure 

the quality of the flowers are maintained. 
• Improve biodiversity of ecosystem 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 In principle members were in agreement with this proposal. 
 
Social Media Comments: 

 Look at services as a whole and not individually and you may find ways to 
save money i.e. promote well being and cut flowers being planted in town 
centre – could these not work together? 

0%

8%

8%

8%

8%

17%

33%

33%
42%

42%

50%

50%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Primary Education

Children Social Services

Adult Social Services

Education Support Services

Leisure and Culture

Secondary Education

Waste and Recycling

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Housing and Homelessness

Planning

Highways, Parking and Transport

Economic Development and Regeneration

Tudalen 105



 
62 

 Use wild flowers so that flowers don’t have to be re-planted seasonally. 
 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Stephen G Pilliner 14/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 106



 
63 

19. Eastgate Roundabout Planting  

 

Total Budget: £8,871,000 
3 Year Savings: £19,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 19 0 

 
Description: To cease planting on Eastgate roundabout but will engage with Town 
Councils and Business Improvement District to explore option of transfer. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.02% (£0.26 a year). 

 
Average index score: 1.13 
Overall Rank (of 27): 1 
Sample Size:  268 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.86 1.00 -2.00 1.12 1.38 1.15 1.12 

Sample  44 3 1 217 26 137 101 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 1.24 1.26 0.73 1.16 1.13 1.03 1.27 

Sample 21 90 11 38 39 69 100 

 
Response to accepting a 0.02% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 

46%
36%

9% 4% 5%
Strongly

Agree
Agree Neither Disagree Strongly

Disagree

9%

85%

6%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 107



 
64 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 12 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 23 comments 

 Respondents raised concerns regarding the impact this proposal would have 

on the community.  Respondents were concerned that the lack of flowers may 

destroy Llanelli’s picturesque image, affect the community’s well-being as 

well as having a negative influence on tourism. 

Mitigation – 20 comments 

 The majority of respondents suggested planting wild flowers, meadow flowers 

or perennial plants on roundabouts as it would require less maintenance.  

 Some stated that using gravel or a feature instead of plants would require 

less maintenance.  

 Some respondents suggested asking schools, volunteers or community 

groups to assist with  maintenance of roundabouts.  

 Many respondents suggested asking businesses for sponsorship as this 

would remove the cost from the Council and provide an incentive to advertise 

on roundabouts .  

 
Other relevant information: 

 Agree with this proposal as many Town and Community Councils are already 
undertaking this role. 

 
Insight Session: 

• Encourage volunteers from the communities, opportunity for the council to work 
with colleges and people with disabilities. 

• Transfer this over to the Town and Community Councils. 
• Choose flowers that are low maintenance. 

 
 

Social Media Comments: 

 Plant wildflowers on roundabouts so that they do not require re-planting 
seasonally. 

 Stop building walls and purchasing sculpture to be displayed on the 
roundabouts. 

0%

8%

8%
8%

17%

17%

25%

25%

33%

33%
50%

58%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Children Social Services

Primary Education

Adult Social Services

Leisure and Culture

Education Support Services

Secondary Education

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Housing and Homelessness

Waste and Recycling

Highways, Parking and Transport

Planning

Economic Development and Regeneration

Tudalen 108



 
65 

 
 
 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Stephen G Pilliner 14/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 109



 
66 

20. Grass Cutting  

 

Total Budget: £8,871,000 
3 Year Savings: £49,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 49 0 

 
Description: To cease Amenity Grass Cutting around town centres or transfer to town 
councils as we are aware that some town councils have expressed an interest in 
undertaking this work.      
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.06% (£0.68 a year). 

 
Average index score: 0.75 
Overall Rank (of 27): 6 
Sample Size:  270 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.48 0.00 -2.00 0.77 0.81 0.69 0.85 

Sample  44 3 1 216 27 135 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.95 0.73 1.36 0.76 0.64 0.73 0.91 

Sample 21 91 11 38 39 70 100 

 
Response to accepting a 0.06% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 
 
 

32%
38%

10% 13%
7%

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

18%

74%

8%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 110



 
67 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 18 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 20 comments 

 Respondents stated that the implementation of this proposal would have an 

impact on communities due to the area looking unkempt as well as impacting 

on tourism in the county. 

 Some respondents raised concerns about the impact  this proposal would 

have on road users’ safety as some town centres may have overgrown that 

restrict/reduce visibility.  

Mitigation – 22 comments 

 Many respondents suggested replacing verges with wild flowers, meadow 

flowers or perennial flowers in order to reduce the maintenance required. 

 Some respondents stated that the maintenance should be reduced from four 

times a year to two times a year in order to reduce costs. 

 A number of respondents suggested the use of voluntary organisations, 

schools and/or local community projects in order to assist with the grass 

cutting. 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 Members agreed to this proposal, requesting more collaboration with Town 
and Community Councils on the matter. 

 
Social Media Comments: 

 Plant wildflowers on grass verges to save on grass cutting. 

 Grass patches on estates could be converted for much needed parking 
spaces. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0%

6%

6%

6%

11%

11%

22%

28%

39%

39%

50%

50%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Primary Education

Children Social Services

Adult Social Services

Education Support Services

Secondary Education

Waste and Recycling

Leisure and Culture

Housing and Homelessness

Highways, Parking and Transport

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Economic Development and Regeneration

Tudalen 111



 
68 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Stephen G Pilliner 14/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 112



 
69 

21. Winter Gritting  

 

Total Budget: £8,871,000 
3 Year Savings: £32,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

32 0 0 

 
Description: Review all winter maintenance routes to rationalise the number of routes 
that are gritted. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.04% (£0.44 a year). 

 
Average index score: -0.49 
Overall Rank (of 20): 26 
Sample Size:  271 
 
Previous AIS:  -0.24 (2014)  
 -0.63 (2017) 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS -0.52 -0.33 -2.00 -0.5 -0.5 -0.63 -0.38 

Sample  44 3 1 216 28 134 105 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS -0.75 -0.53 0.45 -0.55 -0.69 -0.44 -0.42 

Sample 20 92 11 40 39 668 102 

 
Response to accepting a 0.04% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 
 
 

14% 16%
9%

30% 31%

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

52%

31%

17%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 113



 
70 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 41 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 56 comments 

 The majority of respondents raised concerns for all road users and 

pedestrians. Many noted that reduced gritting would lead to a greater risk in 

accidents. 

 Some respondents noted that elderly residents would be significantly 

impacted by a reduction in gritting.  

 A number of respondents noted that this proposal would have an impact on 

people attempting to travel to their place of work and pupils attending schools.  

 Many residents were concerned that this proposal may have a significant 
impact on rural residents as roads in these areas’ are already hazardous. 
 

Mitigation – 19 comments 

 A number of respondents suggested that residents need to be educated in 

how to drive and walk safely in icy conditions. Furthermore, respondents 

noted that residents need to be informed as to which roads are being gritted 

so as to ensure safety.   

 Some respondents suggested that a thorough review should be undertaken 

to evaluate which roads require gritting.  

 A few respondents noted that Grit boxes should be placed on most estates 

and cul-de-sacs so that residents can grit their own roads.  

 
Other relevant information: 

 Do not agree with this proposal as it could endanger lives. (St Clears Town 
Council) 
 

Insight Session: 
• There are currently 5 weather stations, invest in software that tells you which 

roads are safe, using GPS 
• Place grit in areas that pose a risk (corners, hills) and grid reference 

grit bins to make refills easier. Install technology to inform you when grit bins 
are empty. 

0%

2%

5%

7%

10%

10%

12%

15%

37%

42%

56%

59%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Children Social Services

Adult Social Services

Waste and Recycling

Primary Education

Secondary Education

Highways, Parking and Transport

Education Support Services

Housing and Homelessness

Leisure and Culture

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Economic Development and Regeneration

Planning

Tudalen 114



 
71 

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 This proposal was not accepted – concerns over coverage for rural areas. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken:   Stephen G Pilliner 14/11/2018 – Updated 16/1/2019 

Tudalen 115



 
72 

22. Rural Roads Sweeping  

 

Total Budget: £8,871,000 
3 Year Savings: £282,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

282 0 0 

 
Description: Cease scheduled mechanical sweeping on rural roads. Town centre 
areas are swept by the cleansing team, however Highways undertake scheduled and 
ad hoc sweeping of rural roads and retain or hire sweepers to do this work. The 
proposal is that Highways will not undertake ad hoc sweeping and will respond on a 
reactive basis to emergencies by hiring if there is a safety issue. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.33% (£3.89 a year). 

 
Average index score: 0.28 
Overall Rank (of 27): 19 
Sample Size:  268 
 
Previous AIS: 0.0 (2014)  
(Street Cleaning)  0.12 (2017) 
    -0.49 (2018) 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.71 0.67 -2.00 0.24 0.71 0.17 0.46 

Sample  43 3 1 214 28 133 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.49 0.31 0.82 0.38 0.33 0.25 0.41 

Sample 20 89 11 40 39 67 101 

 
Response to accepting a 0.33% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

21%

34%

14% 15% 16%

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly Disagree

22%

62%

15%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 116



 
73 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 36 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 40 comments 

 The majority of respondents raised concerns that road users would be 

significantly impacted by the implementation of this proposal. Many noted that 

rural roads were currently extremely dangerous and that this proposal would 

degrade rural roads further. 

 Many respondents noted that rural communities would be at an increased risk 

of flooding if this proposal was implemented. Many stated that currently drains 

are often blocked due to the lack of sweeping which has a significant impact 

on rural residents.  

Mitigation – 18 comments 

 Some respondents suggested that farmers who discard waste onto rural 

roads should be responsible for clearing up after them, it was stated that this 

should be enforced by the local authority.  

 Some indicated that a review of rural road sweeping needs to be conducted 

in order to ascertain which roads require this service and review how often 

they require to be undertaken.  

 
Insight Session: 

 Agree with this proposal, no need to clean the roads. 
 
Councillor Engagement: 

 Concerns were raised that rural areas would be losing out on services again.  
Urban members were in favour of the proposal with the rural members 
disagreeing to the implementation of this proposal.  Concerns were also noted 
that leaves blocking drains could lead to more flooding. 

 
Social Media Comments: 

 Did not realise we had road sweepers? Have not seen one in 11 years I have 
lived here.  Rural roads are not swept. 

 

 

3%

6%

6%

8%

8%

8%

19%

28%

31%

36%

50%

67%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Children Social Services

Adult Social Services

Education Support Services

Waste and Recycling

Primary Education

Secondary Education

Housing and Homelessness

Leisure and Culture

Highways, Parking and Transport

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Tudalen 117



 
74 

 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Stephen G Pilliner 14/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 118



 
75 

23. Highways – Re-surfacing  

 

Total Budget: £8,871,000 
3 Year Savings: £150,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 0 150 

 
Description: The proposal is to reduce the number of schemes delivered by the 
surface dressing programme. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.17% (£2.07 a year). 

 
Average index score: -0.58 
Overall Rank (of 27): 27 
Sample Size:  272 
 
Previous AIS:  -0.63 (2017)  
(Highway Maintenance) 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS -0.48 0.33 -2.00 -0.57 -0.63 -0.81 -0.29 

Sample 44 3 1 217 27 134 105 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS -0.33 -0.64 0.64 -0.64 -0.44 -0.53 -0.54 

Sample 21 90 11 39 39 70 103 

 
Response to accepting a 0.17% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 

9% 16% 14%

32% 29%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

45%

31%

24%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 119



 
76 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 58 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 50 comments 

 The majority of respondents raised concerns regarding the implementation of 

this proposal as it could lead to an increase in the number of accidents for 

road users. Many noted that this proposal would affect cyclists as well as 

vehicle drivers. Many noted that the roads currently contain many pot holes 

and that a reduction in this service will exacerbate the problem.  

Mitigation – 15 comments 

 Many respondents stated that this service requires reviewing in order to 

ensure that the work is undertaken efficiently and effectively. Respondents 

indicated that roads need to be repaired properly rather than being patched 

up.  

 Some respondents felt that an improvement in public transport needs to done 

in order to reduce the number of vehicles on the road.  This may reduce the 

stress placed on road surfaces.  

 
Councillor Engagement: 

 Whilst members agreed that this programme could be reduced they also 
expressed concerns over the long-term impact of this proposal. 

 
Social Media Comments: 

 More money needs to be spent on repairing the large amount of potholes in 
the county. 

 Not prepared to pay more council tax for roads which are not being repaired. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

0%

5%

7%

9%

9%

10%

14%

19%

33%

45%

48%

57%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Adult Social Services

Secondary Education

Highways, Parking and Transport

Waste and Recycling

Housing and Homelessness

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Tudalen 120



 
77 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

 Older people can be less steady on their feet and more prone to trip hazards. 
Deteriorating footway and carriageway conditions may lead to increased 
accidents and a reduced confidence in going out in public especially 
important for people with certain impairments such as poor vision or limited 
mobility.  

 Disabled people will lose the confidence to go out if they think the pavement 
will be dangerous, particularly visually impaired people or wheelchair users. 

 Women who are heavily pregnant may be at increased risk of falls if they are 
unsteady on their feet. 

Affected groups: 

Elderly, Disabled, Pregnancy and Maternity 

Mitigation: 

 Surface dressing is predominantly used on rural roads, where pedestrian 
traffic is very light and the risk is perceived to be very low. If the road is pot 
holed, the pot hole will be repaired prior to surface dressing. 

Assessment undertaken: Stephen G Pilliner 14/11/2018 – Updated 16/1/2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 121



 
78 

24. Household Waste Recycling Centres – Ammanford & Whitland  

 

Total Budget: £13,665,000 
3 Year Savings: £25,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 0 25 

 
Description: Review the operating parameters for all sites to provide a less costly 
service.      
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.03% (£0.35 a year). 

 
Average index score: 0.36 
Overall Rank (of 27): 15 
Sample Size:  270 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.38 -0.33 -2.00 0.39 0.43 0.32 0.5 

Sample  45 3 1 216 28 136 103 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.38 0.51 0.36 0.45 0.21 0.26 0.55 

Sample 21 92 11 40 39 68 102 

 
Response to accepting a 0.03% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 

21%

37%

13% 16% 13%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

27%

60%

13%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 122



 
79 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 30 responses received). 

 
Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 34 comments 

 The majority of respondents raised concerns that the community would be 

greatly affected by an increase in fly tipping.  

 A number of respondents stated that a reduction of recycling centres may 

result in a reduction in the number of people that recycle which will impact 

future generations.  

Mitigation – 16 comments 

 Some respondents suggested conducting a review on what times are most 

popular for people visiting the recycling centres. An informed decision can be 

made regarding the opening times when this information has been collated. 

 Respondents suggested undertaking a campaign to encourage recycling at 

homes (e.g. home composting). Furthermore many respondents suggested 

educating residents and school pupils on the benefits of recycling.  

 
Insight Session: 

 Educate schools on how to recycle properly and reduce the number of workers 
at the centres as people have a better understanding of recycling. 

 Collect recycling bags more often than black bags and introduce more 
separation for recycling (i.e. bag for newspapers/paper, bag for tins etc). 

 More dispersed centres are required. 
 

Councillor Engagement: 

 Whilst some members were in agreement with this proposal others had 
concerns that rural areas in particular are at a disadvantage to the use of some 
services.  It was also raised that if this proposal was implemented it could see 
an increase in fly tipping.  If this proposal was to be implemented more amnesty 
events would need to be arranged in order to counteract the proposal.  
Members requested a site visit of all Household Waste Recycling Centres. 
 

 
 

0%

0%

3%

3%

10%

17%

23%

27%

30%

40%
57%

57%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Education Support Services

Primary Education

Children Social Services

Secondary Education

Adult Social Services

Highways, Parking and Transport

Waste and Recycling

Leisure and Culture

Housing and Homelessness

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Economic Development and Regeneration

Planning

Tudalen 123



 
80 

Social Media Comments: 

 This will result in an increase in fly-tipping if this proposal is accepted incurring 
more costs. 

 More litter bins required throughout the county. 
 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

None 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Ainsley Williams 14/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 124



 
81 

25. Household Waste Recycling Centres – North of County  

 

Total Budget: £13,665,000 
3 Year Savings: £140,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

70 0 70 

 
Description: Household Waste Recycling Centre - Review new provision in the North 
of the County.   
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.16% (£1.93 a year). 

 
Average index score: 0.49 
Overall Rank (of 27): 12 
Sample Size:  261 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.52 0.11 -2.00 0.54 0.65 0.47 0.63 

Sample  42 3 1 211 26 133 100 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.62 0.51 1.00 0.57 0.15 0.58 0.68 

Sample 21 90 11 40 39 65 100 

 
Response to accepting a 0.16% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 

 

23%

35%

20%
11% 11%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

20%

69%

11%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 125



 
82 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 24 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 20 comments 

 This proposal would largely affect residents in the North of the county and 

many stated that there is a shortage of recycling centres in this area of the 

county as it is.  Residents living in this area often have to travel long distances 

to dispose of their waste.  

 Some respondents noted that the community would be affected by this 

proposal due to the increase of fly tipping.  

Mitigation – 10 comments 

 A suggestion was received which stated that the Council could reduce the 

number of days the recycling centres are open to make savings.   

 
Insight Session: 

 Educate schools on how to recycle properly and reduce the number of workers 
at the centres as people have a better understanding of recycling. 

 Collect recycling bags more often than black bags and introduce more 
separation for recycling (i.e. bag for newspapers/paper, bag for tins etc). 

 More dispersed centres are required. 
 

Councillor Engagement: 

 Whilst some members were in agreement with this proposal others had 
concerns that rural areas in particular are at a disadvantage to the use of some 
services.  It was also raised that if this proposal was implemented it could see 
an increase in fly tipping.  If this proposal was to be implemented more amnesty 
events would need to be arranged in order to counteract the proposal.  
Members requested a site visit of all Household Waste Recycling Centres. 

 

Social Media Comments: 

 This will result in an increase in fly-tipping if this proposal is accepted incurring 
more costs. 

 More litter bins required throughout the county. 
 
 
 

0%
4%

4%

4%

8%

17%

21%
25%

33%
42%

46%

58%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Primary Education

Education Support Services

Children Social Services

Secondary Education

Adult Social Services

Highways, Parking and Transport

Waste and Recycling

Housing and Homelessness

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Planning

Tudalen 126



 
83 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

None 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Ainsley Williams 14/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 127



 
84 

26. Bring Sites  

 

Total Budget: £301,000 
3 Year Savings: £66,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 0 66 

 
Description: A review of all bring site provision is proposed with the aim of 
rationalising and standardising collections, thereby making the collection rounds more 
efficient. Glass currently accounts for about 6% points in overall recycling 
performance. The review would take into account levels of usage and any other 
difficulties with the sites. A reduction of between 30 and 40% is predicted reducing 
performance by up to 2% points.   
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.08% (£0.91 a year). 

 
Average index score: 0.34 
Overall Rank (of 27): 17 
Sample Size:  261 
 
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 0.42 -0.33 -2.00 0.39 0.29 0.27 0.51 

Sample  43 3 1 209 28 133 99 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 0.81 0.58 0.55 0.10 0.33 0.52 0.44 

Sample 21 92 11 39 39 65 99 

 
Response to accepting a 0.08% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 
 

18%

35%

20% 17%
10%

Strongly
Agree

Agree Neither Disagree Strongly
Disagree

21%

66%

13%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 128



 
85 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 29 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 25 comments 

 Many respondents stated that implementing this proposal would have an 

effect on the image of Carmarthenshire. Respondents noted that the County 

has an excellent recycling record and that this proposal may put this in 

jeopardy. 

 Many respondents noted that individuals find it difficult enough to take their 

recycling to local bring sites as it is and this proposal could result in a 

reduction in the amount of recycling.   

 Some individuals noted that implementing this proposal may result in an 

increase in fly tipping.  

Mitigation – 18 comments 

 The majority of respondents suggested that glass should be collected 

alongside blue bag collections fortnightly.  

 
Other relevant information: 

 The St Clears bring site currently has one glass bin and one cardboard/paper 
bin. As cardboard and paper can be collected kerbside, a way of still 
achieving the efficiency noted in the proposal would be to have two glass bins 
and no paper / cardboard bins. This would allow for fewer collections and 
would ensure that the glass bin doesn’t get overfull. (St Clears Town Council) 

 
Insight Session: 

 Educate schools on how to recycle properly and reduce the number of workers 
at the centres as people have a better understanding of recycling. 

 Collect recycling bags more often than black bags and introduce more 
separation for recycling (i.e. bag for newspapers/paper, bag for tins etc). 

 More dispersed centres are required. 
 
Councillor Engagement: 

 Proposal agreed 

0%

3%

3%

7%

7%

14%

21%

24%

35%

38%

52%

55%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services

Primary Education

Adult Social Services

Education Support Services

Secondary Education

Waste and Recycling

Housing and Homelessness

Highways, Parking and Transport

Leisure and Culture

Economic Development and Regeneration

Planning

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)

Tudalen 129



 
86 

 
Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not Applicable 

Mitigation: 

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Ainsley Williams 14/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 130



 
87 

27. Democratic Services  

 

Total Budget: £1,796,000 
3 Year Savings: £7,000 
 

2019 - 20 2020 - 21 2021 - 22 

0 7 0 

 
Description: Proposal to change full County Council meetings from Monthly to 
Quarterly - the saving will be achieved through the reduction in County Councillor 
travelling expenses incurred. 
 
Increase in Council Tax if proposal not adopted: 0.06% (£0.68 a year). 

 
Average index score: 1.10 
Overall Rank (of 27): 3 
Sample Size:  271 
 
Previous AIS:  1.25 (2015)  
 
 
 

 Single BME 16-24 25-64 65+ F M 
AIS 1.2 0.67 -2.00 1.19 1.1 1.18 1.14 

Sample  44 3 1 215 29 136 104 

 

 Disabled Religion LGB Carer Income 
<£20k 

Income 
£20–£39k 

Income 
>£40k 

AIS 1.48 1.29 1.55 1.02 1.15 1.23 1.10 

Sample 21 93 11 40 39 69 102 

 
Response to accepting a 0.06% increase in the Council Tax in order to avoid 
efficiency saving. 
 
 

52%

30%

6% 8% 6%
Strongly Agree Agree Neither Disagree Strongly Disagree

9%

83%

8%

Accept increase Accept proposal Implement another saving

Tudalen 131



 
88 

Responses for top THREE services that the public would prefer to see efficiency 
savings being made.  (Total of 15 responses received). 

Key themes from the public consultation: 
 

Impact – 36 comments 

 The majority of respondents noted that implementing this proposal would 

have a bit impact on democracy. Many noted that it would take much longer 

to make decisions and there would also be less opportunity for scrutiny. 

Mitigation – 20 comments 

 A number of respondents suggested that the use of technology for meetings 

could ensure that the democratic process is not disrupted.   

 A number of respondents also questioned whether councillor expenses 

needs to be reviewed with many noting that expenses should not be paid. 

 
Other relevant information: 

 The use of technology would allow meetings to continue and savings to be 
made. (St Clears Town Council) 

 
Insight Session: 

 The small saving of £7000 per year is not worth the effect if will have on 
democracy being prevailed in the council.  It is important that we are able to 
scrutinise our councillors. 

 

Councillor Engagement: 

 The proposal could have a detrimental impact on the timeliness of decision 
making and therefore impact on delivery. Members thought that the Council 
meetings were an important forum for the public to ask questions. Some 
Members agreed that the number of Full Council meetings could be reduced 
to 10 per year, otherwise not supported. Disagreement to the £7k savings of 
cutting committees to quarterly – this will skew the democratic process. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0%
0%

7%
7%

13%
13%

20%
27%

28%
47%
47%

53%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Children Social Services
Primary Education

Education Support Services
Secondary Education
Adult Social Services

Highways, Parking and Transport
Housing and Homelessness

Leisure and Culture
Waste and Recycling

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure)
Economic Development and Regeneration

Planning

Tudalen 132



 
89 

Equality Impact Assessment summary: 
 

Description of impact:   

No Impact 

Affected groups: 

Not applicable 

Mitigation:  

Not Applicable 

Assessment undertaken: Linda Rees Jones 9/11/2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 133



 
90 

Residents were asked which services they would like to PROTECT from efficiency 
savings.  Below is a table of their top 3 choices. 
 

Services Number of top 
3 selections 

Choice 
1 

Choice 
2 

Choice 
3 

Primary Education  139 72 48 19 

Secondary Education 139 38 67 34 

Children Social Services 131 48 35 48 

Adult Social Services 82 25 34 23 

Housing and Homelessness 69 19 11 39 

Education Support Services 60 18 17 25 

Highways, Parking and Transport 54 18 18 18 

Waste and Recycling 37 8 10 19 

Leisure and Culture 28 8 6 14 

Economic Development and Regeneration 26 6 7 13 

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure) 12 1 7 4 

Planning 2 0 0 2 

 
Residents were asked which services they would CUT in order to make efficiency 
savings.  Below is a table of their top 3 choices. 
 

Services Number of top 
3 selections 

Choice 
1 

Choice 
2 

Choice 
3 

Planning 157 51 66 40 

Public Realm (e.g. Town Centre infrastructure) 139 50 49 40 

Leisure and Culture 115 39 46 30 

Economic Development and Regeneration 101 27 24 50 

Highways, Parking and Transport 63 20 17 26 

Waste and Recycling 54 13 18 23 

Education Support Services 45 19 10 16 

Housing and Homelessness 33 15 7 11 

Adult Social Services 22 8 7 7 

Secondary Education 17 5 8 4 

Primary Education  16 11 3 2 

Children Social Services 6 0 3 3 

 

5) COUNCIL TAX 

The survey explored public perception and tolerances in relation to Council Tax increases, 
explaining that the Council is considering an increase of 4.89% for 2019–20. Respondents 
were asked whether they would accept this increase or had the option to select other 
percentage increases to the Council Tax, recognising the impact on services.  The graph below 
gives a picture of the total weekly increase (per average household) respondents would be 
prepared to accept ranging from 23p to £2.07. A total of 263 respondents selected their 
preferred increase and the results indicate that: 
 

Tudalen 134



 
91 

 60% of respondents indicated that they would accept the proposed increase or a 
higher rate in order to protect services.  

 In total of 40% of respondents chose a lower Council Tax increase to the proposed 
4.89%.  

 
All results are displayed above each bar in the graph below.  
 

 
 
 
A total of 259 respondents included their post codes.  Please see below table. 
 

Area SA4 SA14 SA15 SA16 SA17 SA18 SA19 SA20 SA31 SA32 SA33 SA34 SA39 SA40 SA44 Other 

Number of 
Responses 4 41 48 12 14 21 24 11 25 7 31 6 3 1 6 5 

% Responses 1.5% 15.8% 18.5% 4.6% 5.5% 8.1% 9.3% 4.2% 9.7% 2.7% 12.0% 2.3% 1.2% 0.4% 2.3% 1.9% 

 

6) NOTES FROM SCHOOLS STRATEGY BUDGET FORUM AND TU 
CONSULTATION MEETINGS 

Schools Strategy Budget Forum – 23rd November 2018 
Following a presentation to the meeting by the Head of Financial Services (HoFS) the 
following comments were made by Forum members: 
 

 Teacher redundancies can result in high levels of severance costs for the 
Department. 

 Standards will decline if a workforce is not provided appropriately – this 
includes the service provided by Teaching Assistants (some teaching jobs 
carried out by Teaching Assistants). 

 The current, challenging position demands acceptance / recognition by all that 
standards will be affected. 

 Schools are experiencing ever increasing pressures and a range of challenges 
surrounding ALN/Behaviour Support services and provision in particular 

Tudalen 135



 
92 

 Members noted an increasing level of additional needs across Early Years 
children on entry. 

 Sickness levels indicate the many pressures currently on teachers – we need 
to work together to alleviate and resolve this. 

 Members noted their thanks for the transparent and collaborative nature of the 
discussion and presentation. 

 
 
Corporate Employee Relations Forum (CERF) Meeting 26/11/2018  
 
The Head of Financial Services attended the meeting to present information on the 
efficiency proposals for each department.   
There was a mixed response with Unite suggesting the council tax be increased and 
a referral to the significant increases in Pembrokeshire compared to Carmarthenshire.  
Whilst Unison stated that their response would be a ‘no cuts budget’. 
 
All unions were requested to provide feedback at the next CERF meeting on 3rd 
January 2019.  
 
Follow-up Budget Consultation Meeting with Trade Union representatives held 
on 3rd January 2019 
 
RH updated the TUs on developments since his attendance at the previous CERF on 
26th November. The final settlement from WG had been confirmed just before the 
Christmas holiday with CCC being allocated an additional £1.5 million. After taking into 
account capital thresholds and discretionary rate relief RH estimates that CCC is 
benefitting by around £600k. 
 
RH believes that the £7.5 million (across Wales) has been provided to the WG to meet 
the additional costs of the 19/20 Teachers’ pay award is genuine new money, which 
is welcomed, however RH concerned that this payment is through a specific grant and 
therefore not guaranteed for future years beyond 19/20. 
 
In respect of capital funding for the 21st century schools funding programme the 
intervention rate has been increased by WG from 50% to 65% which reduces CCC’s 
financial commitment from 50% match funding to 35%. In addition, RH confirmed that 
WG had announced an extra £100m over 3 years, of which CCC will benefit by an 
additional £6 million over the full term of the capital programme. RH referred to a report 
containing the detail of the five year capital programme which had been submitted to 
the Executive Board on 17th December  
 
The TUs were invited to provide their feedback to the budget proposals:  
 
PH asked RH to confirm that the cuts set out within the proposal amount to £9.8 million. 
 
RH confirmed this figure was proposed for 19/20 in the draft budget, subject to the 
Council setting the council tax at 4.89% to reach a balanced budget 
 
ME expressed concern at the impact of a higher council tax on employees. ME 
considered that the level of cuts being proposed will devastate services and schools 
and have a massive impact on employees. ME put forward his view, which is also that 
of UNISON nationally,  that councils implement a “no-cuts” budget, with the ultimate 

Tudalen 136



 
93 

goal of a change of Westminster government and reversal of austerity.  
 
PH suggested that it would be helpful to have from each department where they 
anticipated the cuts in budget impacting on staffing  
 
ME queried if this detail is set out within the Managerial Savings section of the budget 
papers. ME aware of proposal to lose Family Support Workers and believed this to be 
a short sighted decision which would have an adverse effect on schools. 
 
RH confirmed that the Managerial Savings are contained within Appendix B and 
include all managerial proposals by department, existing policy proposals from 
previous budgets and all new policy proposals 
 
PH considered it important for the TUs to receive early indication of changes to staffing 
arrangements. 
 
PT confirmed that the Severance Scheme continues to be available as an option for 
changes to staffing structures although the cost associated with such releases may 
mean that the business case cannot be supported. In these circumstances efficiency 
of the service releases may be viable although a financially sound business case 
would have to be made. 
 
RH confirmed that it is intended to present the final budget proposals at the Executive 
Board meeting on 4th February with a view to this being presented to the County 
Council meeting on 20th February.  
 
ME contended that Council reserves should be utilised to avoid cutting services and 
that CCC should be campaigning with other LAs to oppose cuts to budgets. 
 
RH confirmed that the bulk of reserves are earmarked for approved capital projects 
and not to do so would require significant changes to the capital programme, most 
obviously a reduction in new schools.  RH clarified the responsibilities bestowed upon 
the Council’s Section 151 Officer in ensuring that Members do not set an unbalanced 
budget and confirmed that borrowing is not permissible to support the revenue budget.  
 
MP expressed his view that departments are not making sufficient effort to identify 
efficiencies and questioned the effectiveness of the TIC Team.  
 
PT responded by stating that TIC has generated £16 million of savings since its 
formation  
 
MP considers that income generation is not given enough regard and believes the 
approach taken should be “what we can do” as opposed to “what we can’t do”. MP 
expressed disappointment at there being no apparent interest from service managers 
for discussing potential income generation opportunities with the TUs  
 
PT acknowledged the importance of maximising income generation opportunities and 
referred to People Management being prepared for its Health & Safety Trainer to 
deliver training to other public service providers. 
 
RY asked MP if the service managers are those within Grounds Maintenance 
 

Tudalen 137



 
94 

MP stated that his concerns are not specific to grounds maintenance but that there 
should be a framework in place for all departments. 
 
PT would seek the opportunity to raise MP’s concerns at CMT and also at the Heads 
of Service Forum which is also attended by RH 
 
RH acknowledged that there may not be a consistent approach taken across 
departments but thought it unlikely that the provision of internal services to third party 
organisations would derive sufficient profit to meet the huge scale of the budget 
challenge ahead.  RH believes car parking, social services self-funding clients and 
school meals to be the biggest income areas currently. 
 
RY thanked TUs for their feedback and requested that any written feedback be 
provided to RH at the earliest opportunity  
 
 

7) MINUTES OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 10TH 
DECEMBER 2018 
 
The Committee considered the Revenue Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 
(Appendix A) which had been endorsed by the Executive Board for consultation 
purposes at its meeting on 19th November 2018.  The report provided Members with 
the current view of the Revenue Budget for 2019/2020 together with indicative figures 
for the 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 financial years. The report was based on officers’ 
projections of spending need and took into account the provisional settlement issued 
by Welsh Government on 9th October 2018. 
 
The Head of Financial Services advised whilst the announced provisional settlement 
represented a 0.3% reduction as an average across Wales on the 18/19 settlement, 
the impact on Carmarthenshire, after taking into account factors such as meeting the 
cost of the teachers’ pay award and free school meals eligibility was a 0.5% reduction 
equating to £1.873m. 
 
In summary, the budget proposals would assume full delivery of the £28 identified 
savings over the plan period. Furthermore, the budget proposals assumed a Council 
tax increase of 4.89% for 2019/20. 
 
The Head of Financial Services also advised that subsequent to the publication of the 
council’s budget proposals for consultation the Welsh Governments Cabinet Secretary 
for Finance had announced an additional £13m to be added to the Welsh Revenue 
Support Grant for 2019/20. Whilst specific details of the announcement had yet to be 
received, it had been estimated that the impact for Carmarthenshire would be the 
reduction in funding to 0.2% over the 18/19 settlement. Additionally, the Welsh 
Government had announced an extra £7.5m grant across Wales to part fund the 
teachers’ pay award. 
 
The Committee noted that the current projection for the Revenue Outturn for 2018/19 
and that the main reasons for the Environmental Department overspends were 

Tudalen 138



 
95 

primarily due to non-achievement of car park income targets and a decrease in 
planning application income. 
 
The Committee thereupon considered the following detailed budget information 
appended to the Strategy relevant to its remit: 
 

 Appendix A(i) – Efficiency summary for the Environment and Public 
Protections Services; 

 Appendix A(ii) – Growth Pressures summary for Environment Service; 

 Appendix B – Budget extracts for the Environment, Public Protection and 
Community Safety Services; 

 Appendix C – Charging Digest for the Environment and Public Protection 
Services. 
 
The following questions/issues were raised on the report:- 

 Reference was made to the Council’s efficiency savings in relation to the 
Highways – Rural Road Sweeping within Appendix A(i).  In response to a query 
regarding the safety impact of ceasing the scheduled mechanical sweeping on 
rural roads, the Head of Transportation and Highways stated that whilst the 
proposal was to discontinue to undertake scheduled and ad hoc sweeping, the 
department would be responding to emergencies on a reactive basis, which 
could involve the use of contractors.  It was intended that savings would be 
realised on a part efficiency and part reduction of service basis, for example 
mechanical sweeper attachments can be fitted to JCB’s at relatively low cost 
when patching works are undertaken.  
  
Whilst the reductions in budgets was acknowledged, strong concern was 
expressed regarding the impact of safety should budgets continue to be 
reduced in future years. 
 

 With regard to the proposal in relation the charging or potential removal of the 
transport provision for post 16 education.  It was commented that whilst this 
had been postponed by one year in order to allow the authority to meet the 
statutory obligations in terms of changes, a number of Members not in favour 
of this proposal. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
4.1 The 2019/20 – 2021/22 Revenue Budget Strategy Consultation be received; 

 
4.2 The Charging Digest for the Environment and Public Protection Services be 

endorsed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 139



 
96 

 
COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 13TH DECEMBER 2018  
 
The Committee considered the Revenue Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 
(Appendix A) which had been endorsed by the Executive Board for consultation 
purposes at its meeting on the 19th November 2018.  The report provided Members 
with the current view of the Revenue Budget for 2019/2020 together with indicative 
figures for the 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 financial years. The report was based on 
officers’ projections of spending need and took into account the provisional settlement 
issued by Welsh Government on 9th October 2018. 
 
The Head of Financial Services advised whilst the announced provisional settlement 
represented a 0.3% reduction as an average across Wales on the 18/19 settlement, 
the impact on Carmarthenshire, after taking into account factors such as meeting the 
cost of the teachers’ pay award and free school meals eligibility, was a 0.5% reduction 
equating to £1.873m. 
 
In summary, the budget proposals would assume full delivery of the £28m identified 
savings over the plan period. Furthermore, the budget proposals assumed a Council 
tax increase of 4.89% for 2019/20. 
 
The Head of Financial Services also advised that subsequent to the publication of the 
council’s budget proposals for consultation, the Welsh Government’s Cabinet 
Secretary for Finance had announced an additional £13m to be added to the Welsh 
Revenue Support Grant for 2019/20. Whilst specific details of the announcement had 
yet to be received, it had been estimated the impact for Carmarthenshire would be a 
reduction in the anticipated funding deficit from 0.5% to 0.3% over the 18/19 
settlement. Additionally, the Welsh Government had announced an extra £7.5m grant 
across Wales to part fund the teachers’ pay award. However, that was for one year 
only. 
 
The Committee thereupon considered the following detailed budget information 
appended to the Strategy relevant to its remit: 
 

 Appendix A(i) – Efficiency summary for the Regeneration, Leisure, Planning 
and Non HRA Housing Services; 

 Appendix A(ii) – Growth Pressures summary for the Planning Service (none 
for the Regeneration, Leisure and Non HRA Services; 

 Appendix B – Budget extracts for the Regeneration, Leisure, Planning and Non 
HRA Housing Services; 

 Appendix C – Charging Digest for the Regeneration, Leisure, Planning and 
Non HRA Housing Services; 

 
The following questions/issues were raised on the report:- 
 

 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Councils’ efficiency savings and 
to the current position whereby primary schools were responsible for funding 
the cost of swimming lessons, which had previously been borne by Leisure 
Services. As schools were facing reductions to their budgets, and the cost of 
providing the lessons was becoming a cause of concern for some, a suggestion 
was made that the Executive Board give consideration to the Council funding 

Tudalen 140



 
97 

the estimated £150k cost direct. Should that be possible, it would help improve 
children’s fitness levels, improve their safety near water by teaching them to 
swim and have regard to the aims of the Well–being of Future Generations Act. 
 
The Head of Leisure advised that as a result of the above, some schools had 
reduced the numbers of pupils receiving swimming lessons, in the main to key 
stage 2 pupils. He also reminded the Committee that the Welsh Government 
had previously provided free swimming during school holidays for children 
under 16 years of age and it was currently reviewing that provision. 
 
The Head of Financial Services reminded the Committee that the current 
proposals represented a balanced budget, and if the proposal was to be 
endorsed, the additional estimated £150k cost would either have to be met from 
reductions in other service areas or by increasing the council tax. 

 

 The Head of Leisure in response to a request for an explanation on the 
projected 190K operating deficit for the St Clears Leisure Centre in 2019/20, 
advised that a significant element thereof related to non-controllable costs such 
as corporate costs, central recharges, repayment of capital loans to fund 
improvements to the centre together with rates of £36k.  The department, being 
acutely aware of the need to generate income/reduce operating costs, was 
developing an options appraisals for the centre with a view to increasing 
revenue/participation rates that included discussions with the Town and 
Community Council and various sports organisations/clubs. However, it should 
also be recognised that the provision of leisure facilities in rural areas would 
always be more challenging than for urban areas.  

 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 
5.1 The 2019/20 – 2021/22 Revenue Budget Strategy Consultation 

be received. 
5.2 The Charging Digest for the Regeneration, Leisure, Planning 

and Non HRA Services be endorsed. 
5.3 That the Executive Board be requested to give consideration 

to funding the estimated £150k cost to primary schools of 
providing school swimming lessons.  

 
SOCIAL CARE & HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 17TH DECEMBER 2018 
 
The Committee considered the Revenue Budget Strategy 2018/20 to 2021/22 which 
had been considered by the Executive Board as its meeting on the 19th November, 
2018.  It was also noted that members of the Committee had recently attended 
consultation events on the budget which had provided them with an opportunity to ask 
questions and seek clarification on various aspects of the budget. 
 
The report provided Members with the current view of the Revenue Budget for 2019/20 
together with indicative figures for the 2021/22 financial years. The impact on 
departmental spending will be dependent upon the final settlement from Welsh 
Government and the resultant final Budget adopted by County Council.  
 
The Committee considered the following detailed budget information appended to the 
Strategy relevant to its remit.  
 

Tudalen 141



 
98 

 Appendix A – Corporate Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 

 Appendix A(i) – Efficiency summary for the Social Care & Health Service 

 Appendix A(ii) – Growth Pressures summary for the Social Care & Health 
Service 

 Appendix B – Budget extracts for the Social Care & Health Service  

 Appendix C – Charging Digest for the Social Care & Health Service 
 
The Head of Financial Services provided an overview of the report.   Key points 
covered included: 
 

 The provisional settlement was announced on Tuesday 9th October 2018. 
Indicative figures for individual Local Authorities were provided for one financial 
year only, 2019/20, with no further information about future years’ settlements. 

 The main points of the Provisional Settlement 2019/2020 on an all Wales basis 
are as follows: 

o Local government revenue funding for 2019-20 set at £4.214 billion, a 
reduction of 0.3% (£12.3 million) compared to 2018-19 

o Welsh Government stated £13.7 million has been included towards the 
cost of the September 2018 Teachers pay award, yet only £8.1 million 
has been provided. 

o There was reference to £7m of additional funding to meet Local 
Authorities costs arising from WG’s approach to free school meals. On 
this, it is clear that only £4m has been provided 

 After adjustments for Welsh Government identified transfers, the reduction in 
the provisional settlement is 0.5% (£1.343m). The Aggregate External Finance 
(AEF) therefore reduces to £258,831k in 2019/20. 

 Taking into account new responsibilities and transfers in, the reduction for 
Carmarthenshire is 0.7% (£1.873m). 

 There is a new social services grant of £30m across Wales but the details of 
this grant is not yet known.  

 There is significant pressure on the Council’s pay bill due to the teachers’ pay 
award 2018 and the implementation of the nationally agreed pay spine. The 
draft budget also considers the effect of the increase in Teachers Pensions 
Employer contributions c£4.5m full year effect.  

 The “Earmarked Reserves” held by the Authority is declining due to the 
reduction of capital programme support as agreed by Council.  

 The Authority is proposing a council tax increase of 4.89% for the next 3 years.  
 

The Head of Financial Services provided an update and advised the Committee 
that since the despatch of the agenda the Cabinet Secretary for Finance had 
announced an additional funding package of £13m for the Revenue Support Grant 
across Wales and an additional £7.5m for Teachers’ Pay.  It was estimated that 
this would provide the Authority with an additional £1.3m. The final settlement 
figure was expected on Wednesday of this week. 

 
The following questions/issues were raised on the report: 
 

 Reference was made to the efficiency proposals and concern was expressed 
that managerial efficiencies may affect the quality of service provided.  Officers 
were asked what services will be impacted?  

 

Tudalen 142



 
99 

The Head of Financial Services advised that customer services should not be 
impacted as it was mainly administrative functions that efficiencies would 
impact upon.  He added that he did not have all the information with him and 
would provide a full response via e-mail following the meeting. 
 

 Concerns were raised regarding the monies that Welsh Government 
announced the Authority would be receiving, but then the funding did not 
materialise. An example of this was the £20m that was allegedly earmarked 
specifically for social care.  
 
The Head of Financial Services explained that there was a formal consultation 
process via WLGA and a collective response had been submitted to Welsh 
Government.  . The figure is to do with the standard spending assessment and 
the 0.5% reduction in spending.  If there is any reduction then it is contained in 
that 0.5% and is not over and above.  He added that there is a new social 
services specific grant. 
 

 Asked if there was any way the Committee could relay its concerns to the WG 
regarding the money which was promised but not delivered,  
 
The Committee was advised that in terms of the consultation process, 
comments have been fed into that by the Authority, the Leader has written to 
them and the Director of Social Services has also responded to the consultation 
in this regard; 
 

 A question was asked regarding how the Authority is doing with regards to re-
enablement. 

 
It was stated that good progress is being made.  A review of intermediate care 
is currently being undertaken which includes re-enablement, following the 
conclusion of which a report could be presented to Committee for consideration. 
 

 An update was requested on the progress on Continuing Health Care. 
 
The Head of Mental Health and Learning Disabilities stated that this area 
continues to be challenging but progress is being made.  A Summit with the 
NHS is being scheduled in the New Year.  The outcome of this Summit will be 
fed back to the Committee.  
 

 Clarification was asked regarding Appendix C of the report.  It states that 
Respite Care Charge to Clients for 2019/20 is for the full cost of placement.   

 
It was confirmed that the client contribution will not change as this is capped by 
Welsh Government currently at £80 per week with an expected increase to £90 
per week next year.  
 

 Clarification was asked about the spend on IT and what it included. 
 

The Committee was advised that this relates to department use and includes 
the purchase of new kit including phones for care workers.  There is also cost 
attributed to the introduction of CM2000 software which will provide savings 
efficiencies through improved rostering planning.  

Tudalen 143



 
100 

 

 Clarification was sought on what “Other” referred to in the earmarked reserves 
table.  
 
The Head of Financial Services advised that he did not have the information to 
hand but would be able to provide the details following the meeting.  
 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 
 
4.1 The 2019/20 – 2021/22 Revenue Budget Strategy Consultation 

be received; 
4.2 The Charging Digest for the Social Care & Health Service be 

endorsed. 
 
EDUCATION & CHILDREN SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 20TH DECEMBER 2018 
 
The Executive Board at its meeting on 19th November 2018 considered the Revenue 
Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 and endorsed the report for consultation 
purposes. 
 
The Director of Corporate Services provided members with an overview of the 
Revenue Budget for 2019/20 and indicative figures for the following two years. 
Members were advised that there was a possibility of a negative settlement, with a 
0.5% negative settlement relating to £1.1 million in real terms. In anticipation of the 
settlement reductions, significant work has been undertaken to identify further service 
efficiencies/rationalisation.  
 
The Draft Budget takes in to account the effect of the increase in Teachers Pensions 
Employers Contributions from 16.48% to 23.6%, a cost of £2.75m in 2019/20 and 
£1.75 in 2020/21. It is likely that this will be funded by a grant from the Welsh 
Government via Central Government. 
 
A grant of £15m has been made available by the Welsh Government to Local 
Authorities and it is projected that the share for Carmarthenshire is in the region of 
£900k, however it has been stipulated that at present the grant must be used for 
professional training. It is not known whether this may change. 
 
Budget pressures around the Education and Children’s Services are due in the main 
to school based Early Voluntary Redundancies, Special Educational Needs provision, 
a shortfall in the Music Service SLA income and Out of County Placements. Overall, 
the Authority is forecasting a variance of £2.237m at the year-end that will have to be 
met from General Balances.  
 
The Director of Corporate Services summed up by advising that in previous years 
school budgets had been semi-protected and receive 1% above the national payment 
from the Welsh Government. However recent changes have moved the responsibility 
to the Authority and schools are being asked to manage their own costs within a cash 
neutral budget (inc pay rises and general costs such as utilities and services). This is 
not an ideal situation and the £900k offered for professional training would go a 
considerable way to covering any budget shortfall in this area. 
 

Tudalen 144



 
101 

The Director of Education and Children acknowledged that the department is under 
increasing pressure financially with a standstill budget and identifying areas for 
reduction was difficult. 
 
The following questions/observations were raised on the report:- 
 

 The Committee expressed concern at the proposed cuts to the Education 
Welfare Service (EWS) and asked for these to be reconsidered. It was felt that 
a reduction in this service would result in additional pressure on schools to 
manage non-attendance and to deal with issues surrounding non-attendance. 
The Director of Education and Children advised that the EWS provided a 
statutory service in dealing with non-attendance therefore the provision would 
have to continue albeit in a different form. The current non-attendance levels 
set by Welsh Government are 80% but there is consideration being given to 
increasing this to 85%, which would increase the workload of the EWS. It was 
also noted that some schools manage their own non-attendance and are keen 
to continue to do so. The department is looking at different models for the 
service, in particular the models used in Denbigh and Conwy and a report is 
being prepared on options for the future of the service which will be presented 
to Committee in due course.  

 Concern was expressed with regard to the position in relation to teachers’ 
pensions and officers were asked if the situation is unique to Carmarthenshire. 
The Committee was advised that it is not only an all-Wales issue it is in fact a 
national issue as the money is being held by central government and if the 
money is not received then a corporate decision would have to be made on 
how to proceed. 

 The Committee also shared concerns about proposed reductions in Education 
and Child Psychology Services and School Counselling Services and an 
assurance was sought that these reductions would not have an impact on the 
amount of time children are allocated. The Director of Education and Children 
advised the Committee that it was not possible to say with any certainty that 
there would be no impact, however, the proposals include some efficiencies in 
costs which were not related to a reduction in staff.  He acknowledged that with 
increasing emphasis on wellbeing and mental health, these proposals may 
have to be revisited.  The contract for the School Counselling Service will be 
re-tendered in the future and it was hoped that the Authority could procure a 
better service at a cheaper cost. 

 The Committee noted that some schools were holding reserves above the 
threshold, and members asked for an explanation on what, if any, plans were 
in place to work with these schools. The School Funding (Wales) Regulations 
2010 requires schools to limit their accumulated reserves at year end to 
£50,000 for Primary Schools and £100,000 for Secondary and Special Schools 
or 5% of their budget dependant on what is greater. As at 31st March 2018, 18 
primary and 6 secondary schools held surpluses in excess of the thresholds 
above. The Group Accountant advised that the majority of the Primary Schools 
were over by a few thousand pounds and that small changes, such as 
recruitment of a higher band teacher would negate this. Two of the Secondary 
Schools identified have committed the expenditure to capital projects. Members 
asked that the most recent figures be circulated. 

 Clarification was sought on the locally determined funding formula as members 
highlighted that it appeared to vary across the Authority. The Director of 
Education and Children advised that the same formula is used for every school, 

Tudalen 145



 
102 

however some factors such as Free Schools Meals, Looked After Children, 
Special Units (similar to the unit at Ysgol Bro Banw) etc. can have an effect on 
the formula allocation.  The Committee was reminded that a finance workshop 
has been arranged for members of the Committee on the afternoon of the 24th 
January 2019 which would include further information on the locally determined 
formula; 

 
 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that  
 
4.1 The 2019/20 - 2021/22 Revenue Budget Strategy Consultation be   
      received; 
4.2 The Charging Digest for the Education and Children Department 
 be endorsed; 
4.3 The Committee’s serious concerns regarding any reduction in the  
       Education Welfare Service, Education and Child Psychology Service  
      and the School Counselling Service and the serious implications of  
      any reduction be relayed to the Executive Board; 
4.4 That the Committee’s request that any additional money identified  
       Identified across the Authority’s budget should be vired to the  
       Education Department be relayed to the Executive Board. 

 
 
POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 11TH JANUARY 2019 
 

1.1. The Committee considered the Revenue Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 
2021/22 which had been endorsed by the Executive Board for 
consultation purposes at its meeting on 19th November 2018. The report 
provided Members with the current view of the Revenue Budget for 
2019/2020 together with indicative figures for the 2020/2021 and 
2021/2022 financial years. The report was based on officers’ projections 
of spending need and took into account the provisional settlement issued 
by Welsh Government on 9th October 2018. It was reported that the 
announced provisional settlement had been better than anticipated 
though the reduction on the current year’s settlement, which had an 
enhanced impact when inflationary factors, demographic and demand 
changes were considered, had a significant negative impact on the 
Council’s resources.  

 
The budget proposals, as presented in the report, assumed the full delivery of all of 
the savings proposals submitted, together with the identification and delivery of the 
shortfall in savings proposals 2020-21, and 2021-22. Further cost reductions in the 
region of £9m needed to be identified and/or larger council tax increases would need 
to be agreed to deliver a balanced budget in each of the three years. Given the scale 
of the budget gap forecasted Council Tax increases had been increased from the 
previous MTFP [Medium Term Financial Plan] to 4.89% in each of the three financial 
years which provided at least some mitigation to the savings proposals. 
Officers were thanked for their work in preparing the report and appendices. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 146



 
103 

Amongst the issues raised during consideration of the report were the following: 

 The Head of Corporate Services, in response to a query, commented that he 
would be willing, via One Voice Wales, to provide assistance with any training 
required by community councils on budget management; 

 The Head of Corporate Services agreed to ascertain whether Land Charges 
Unit reclaimed VAT on search fees; 

 The Head of Corporate Services agreed, in future, to include in his report, 
relevant questions raised and responses given at the budget consultation 
sessions involving Councillors prior to Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee; 

 Concerns were reiterated over the possible economic and budgetary 
implications of BREXIT;  

 Reference was made to the jobs which could be lost as a result of efficiency 
savings and the knock on effect for the local economy. 

 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED to accept the report and endorse the Charging 
Digest. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 147



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPENDIX B

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 552 534 464 1,551 Chief Executive 552            534           464           1,551

Education & Children 1,249 1,208 1,048 3,505 Education & Children 1,249         1,208        1,048        3,505

Schools Delegated 2,642 2,593 2,452 7,687 Schools Delegated 2,145         2,593 2,452 7,190

Corporate Services 238 230 199 667 Corporate Services 238            230           199           667

Community Services 3,443 3,330 2,890 9,664 Community Services 3,443         3,330        2,890        9,664

Environment 1,700 1,644 1,427 4,772 Environment 1,700         1,644        1,427        4,772

9,825 9,539 8,481 27,845 9,328 9,539 8,481 27,348

 Proposals Pages 2 to 11 Page 12-13 Page 14-17

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 498 279 153 930 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 7 498 286 153 937

Education 380 235 0 615 50 50 0 100 610 475 280 1,365 1,040 760 280 2,080

Schools Delegated 0 0 0 0 2,145 2,593 2,452 7,190 0 0 0 0 2,145 2,593 2,452 7,190

Corporate Services 292 286 228 806 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 292 286 228 806

Community Services 3,361 2,646 2,815 8,822 74 14 14 102 188 110 105 403 3,623 2,770 2,934 9,327

Environment 996 432 697 2,125 312 469 555 1,336 422 68 311 801 1,730 969 1,563 4,262

5,527 3,878 3,893 13,298 2,581 3,126 3,021 8,728 1,220 660 696 2,576 9,328 7,664 7,610 24,602

Total

£'000

Chief Executive 614

Education & Children 1,425

Schools Delegated -0 

Corporate Services -139 

Community Services 336

Environment 510

Unallocated -                

2,746

ORIGINAL TARGETS REVISED TARGETS

MANAGERIAL EXISTING POLICY PROPOSALS NEW POLICY PROPOSALS TOTAL PROPOSALS

SHORTFALL - to be identified

page 1 of 17

T
udalen 149



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive

Information Technology

Information Technology 3,672

ICT Services underpins and contributes towards all that the Council delivers both internally as an 

organisation and externally to service users and communities, independently or in partnership. It is a vital 

function providing innovative opportunities for improving services and achieving our priorities in an 

efficient and effective way. IT Services is pivotal as an enabler of change and a vehicle for driving forward 

transformational improvement to all services. We have a workforce of 62.5 FTE's which has reduced over 

the last 7 years from 109 FTE's and we have delivered £3.1m in efficency savings over the last 9 years. 

As we continually strive to deliver our solutions in an efficient manner and in line with our key Digital 

Strategies ( Digital Transformation Strategy, Digital Technology Strategy, Digital Schools Strategy) our  

major savings in 2019/20 are delivered through rationalising software and hardware maintenance 

contracts that we hold. 

173 169 153 495

 2019/20 -  £135k  will be delivered by rationalising the software maintenance contracts we have in 

ICT Services. £38k from operational costs e.g reduce travelling costs, consumables, subscriptions.                                                                                                    

2020/21 - Over the years the BT technology has been superseded with modern Internet Protocol 

based solutions.  ICT Services will be replacing this aging infrastructure in order to utilise the latest 

technology which in turn will deliver the £150k revenue efficiencies. £19k will be delivereed through 

reducing Operational Costs.                                                                   2021/22 - Technology 

improvements being implemented by ICT and BT on the PSBA network will deliver reduced 

revenue costs. We will be looking to benefit from the latest technology regarding ChatBotts and 

Artifical Intelligence to assist in delivering services and this will allow us to conisder staff EVR 

requests.

Total Information Technology 173 169 153 495

Democratic Services

Council & Committee Reports 
The cost of officer support to County Councillors including administrative support, member allowances and 

expenses. 
25 25

County council has approved that meeting report packs will in future be sent to councillors 

electronically. This will reduce administration cost, printing and postage 

Total Democratic Services 0 25 0 25

People Management

Human Resources 798

HR provides advice and guidance to people managers as well as ensuring the Authority is compliant with 

employment legislation .  Employment Policy framework development and maintenance.  The service is 

currently being reviewed with a view  to providing a more integrated HR/Payroll Support service to its 

users and meet the challenges of the Education agenda and collaborative working.

38 38 2019/20 income generation ie Pembs OH service

Payroll 353 

Payroll: administering pay for all employees and members, managing payroll records and providing a 

number of returns and statistics on staffing.The corporate Payments Service provides a range of payment 

solutions that support both internal and external clients in the settlement of supplier invoices relating to the 

receipt of goods and services. 

40 40 2019-20 Structure realignment & postage

Learning & Development 474

The service is currently responsible for meeting the corporate, generic learning & development needs of 

Carmarthenshire County Council’s workforce & through a strategic partnership enabling the needs of the 

social care sector workforce in Carmarthenshire to be met.  All corporate L&D programmes are developed 

to meet the needs of the organisation by closely aligning with the vision, objectives & priorities of the 

organisation.  Social care workforce development is closely aligned with WAG/Care Council/SSIW 

regulations, guidance & frameworks and the needs of changing service provision, in particular the 

integration of Health & Social Care. It coordinates the Investors in People programme supporting the 

organisation via the IiP Steering group to maintain IiP recognition

0 35 35 2020/21 SCWDP regional working

Total People Management 78 35 0 113

Total Chief Executive, IT,  PMP & Administration & Law 251 229 153 633

Regeneration, Policy & Property
Customer Focus & Policy

Registrars 130

Carmarthenshire Registration Service is a single district civil registration authority, co-terminous with the 

county boundary, called Carmarthenshire Sir Gaerfyrddin district 822.  The district is managed and 

delivered by Carmarthenshire Registration Service.  The Carmarthenshire Registration Service consists of 

26 members of staff, who work across the county as one team with three offices open to the public in 

Carmarthen, Llanelli and Ammanford.   In any given year the service registers approximately 500 

marriages / civil partnerships, 2700 births and 2300 deaths.  

9 9 Reduce supplies & Services expenditure

Net Departmental Administration 394

The Unit discharges the budget monitoring and acts as the support role for the services of the department 

based at County Hall, i.e. Chief Executive, Regeneration and Policy and Administration and Law, together 

with departmental staffing functions and business support including the central mail service and the 

management of access to buildings under the Council’s Security Card System and the issuing of 

identification cards.

25 25
2019-20 - Realignment of service area to focus on wider departmental services within Chief 

Executives; 

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

page 2 of 17

T
udalen 150



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Performance Management 514

The Performance Management Unit is responsible for providing a corporate lead on performance 

management for the Council that ensures a strong ethos of continuous improvement runs through 

everything the Council does. 

5 5
2019-20 Income generation from provision of Performance Management software to other 

Authorities

Marketing and Media (contact centres, press, 

communiciation, translation and customer services)
1,533

Newly formed business unit comprising of translation, marketing and tourism, contact centres, customer 

services, press and communications.
96 96

2019-20 -  Continued service review within the newly formed Marketing and Media section (this also 

to include contact centres and customer services) 

Total Customer Focus & Policy 135 0 0 135

Regeneration

Economic Development Division 1,541

Economic Development Division forms part of Carmarthenshire County Council’s Chief Executive 

Department.   Led by the Director of Regeneration and Policy , it plays a fundamental role in regenerating 

both Carmarthenshire and the Region through investment and support.  Economic Development is an 

extremely proactive service which has to constantly change to address the needs of Carmarthenshire’s 

businesses and communities through the Integrated Community Strategy as well as addressing and 

contributing to the delivery of the policies and strategies of the newly formed Swansea Bay City Region, 

European Commission, UK and Welsh Governments.  

112 50 162

Supporting of severance application. Continue to work with external funding partners to maximise 

income streams.  Continue to review the contributions to current programmes and activities. Year 2 - 

Continue to review all business units within the portfolio

Total Regeneration 112 50 0 162

Total Regeneration, Policy & Property 247 50 0 297

Chief Executive Total 498 279 153 905

page 3 of 17

T
udalen 151



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Education & Children
Director & Management Team

Departmental - cross cutting 556 Casual travel budgets across the Department 25 25 50

Reduce all casual mileage budgets by approximately 5% per annum through better journey 

planning, challenging the need for journeys, and utilising cheaper travel options including use of 

pool cars

Departmental - cross cutting 5,503 Budgets for supplies & services across the Department 50 25 75 Reduce budgets for supplies and services across the Department (e.g. training, stationery)

Departmental - cross cutting 5,503 Cross-departmental support costs including adminstration, financial processing, & premises management 100 100 200
Root & branch review of support services across the Department in order to realise savings and 

increase flexibility

Total Director & Management team 175 150 0 325

Access to Education

Catering Services 276 The management & administration of school meals income and banking 55 45 100

Provide the ability for parents to pay online for school meals (& other school payments, e.g. trips). 

Introduce electronic meal registers in primary schools, removing paper based systems. The 

changes will likely mean the removal of the School Meal Clerical role.

Catering Services 1,316 

• The Catering Service provides school meals in all Carmarthenshire primary schools and 11 of the 12 

secondary schools.  

• Based on current charges for a primary school meal, Carmarthenshire prices are the joint highest in 

Wales.  

• Costs have been saved over recent years by reducing staffing levels and smarter purchasing of food and 

other supplies.

40 40
Remodel the central Catering Services Management Team in light of changes to school meal 

payment processes (reducing the full time equivalent)

Total Access to Education 55 85 0 140

Education Services & Inclusion

Home Tuition 270 A service to meet the needs of learners who due to illness cannot access their mainstream school. 20 20 Reduce costs

Business Support 405

The central Business Support Team provides a range of support services to the Department and Building 

2 at St. David's Park, Carmarthen.  This includes reception duties, management of pool cars, 

processesing applications for Free School Meals, administering School Milk, and School Clothing Grants, 

and processing creditor payments across the Department

30 30 possible severance or reduction across multiple budget headings pending workload review

Total Education Services & Inclusion 50 0 0 50

Children's Services

Children's Services 6,628 A range of preventative and support services for children. 100 100 Review of services/utilisation of grants

Total Children's Services 100 0 0 100

Education & Children Total 380 235 0 615

page 4 of 17

T
udalen 152



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Corporate Services
Financial Services

Accountancy 1,306 

The provision of a decentralised accounting and financial management service, covering:

• Technical Accounting (Preparation of final accounts, corporate accounting and taxation), 

• Management Accounting (Month end close, maintenance of financial records and budgeting) 

• Strategic Finance functions (projects, planning and financial advice to members)

138 135 122 395

2019-20 - Increased SLA's income  £50k, Reduction in external audit fees £58k,  reduction in 

subscriptions  £30k;

2020-21 - additional income from receivership work £50k,  £15K reduction in subscriptions; 

restructuring £70k; 2021-22 Restructuring £122k

Total Financial Services 138 135 122 395

Revenues & Financial Compliance

Audit& Risk 701 

The Division’s costs are primarily made up of staffing costs: Head of Division (1 FTE),  Internal Audit (10.8 

FTE), Risk Management / Insurance (3 FTE), Corporate Procurement Unit (8.8 FTE) and Corporate 

Services Business Support Unit (2.6 FTE). Audit Committee have made consistent representations to 

maintain and strengthen the Internal Audit provision which currently stands at 10.4 FTE. The Risk Unit 

maintains the Corporate Risk Register and co-ordinates the approach to Risk Management across the 

Authority whilst also dealing with the Authority’s Insurances (including management of all “live claims” 

made against the Council by employees and the public). The Corporate Procurement Unit supports 

Departments in ensuring cost effective legally compliant procurement of the array of goods and services 

utilised by the Authority’s various Services (savings emanating from better procurement are shown in 

Departmental savings). Finally a small Departmental Business Support Unit supports the whole Corporate 

Services Department’s approach to Performance & Development work and the range of administrative 

requirements including FOIA and Appraisal Monitoring.

0 0 20 20 Income generation from work undertaken on behalf of external organisations

Revenues & Benefits 1,768 

Revenue Services Unit is responsible for the administration, billing and collection of Council Tax and Non 

Domestic Rates from householders and businesses, respectively.  The unit also undertakes on behalf of 

all the Authority's departments, the billing, collection and recovery of miscellaneous income (known as 

Sundry Debts) as well as having responsibility for operating the Councils full time cash offices with the 

associated back-office income functionsIn addition to these income collection functions, the unit is 

responsible for the administration of Council Tax Reduction scheme  (formerly Council Tax Benefit) and 

Housing Benefit schemes which help low income households meet their rent and /or Council Tax. 

Although the Housing Benefits Fraud Investigation function formerly undertaken within the unit transferred 

the Department for Work & Pensions in 2015/16 the service continues to investigate Council tax 

Reduction fraud

54 50 86 190
2019-20 Realignment of Management Structure £54k; 2020-21 Further evaluation and potential 

relignment of division following implemetation of Universal Credit

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 15,826 50 50 Budget currently greater than the demand for the scheme

Rent Allowances recovered -117 50 50 100 Increase income target to reflect the high efficiency of overpayment recovery

Procurement 486 51 51 Structure Realignment

Total, Revenues and Financial Compliance 154 151 106 411

Corporate Services Total 292 286 228 806

page 5 of 17

T
udalen 153



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Community Services
Leisure 

Pembrey Country Park -43

Pembrey Country Park has been transformed into one of Wales’s top visitor attractions providing a unique 

blend of coast and countryside.  Eight miles of golden sands set against the spectacular backdrop of the 

Gower Peninsula and overlooking the coastal scenery of Carmarthen Bay.  There is everything from 

caravan and camping (with electric), 550 acres of idyllic woodlands, 130m long dry ski slope to the longest 

toboggan run in Wales - all providing a perfect family day out or a relaxing holiday in idyllic surroundings.

40 40
PCP Efficiency saving from previously implemented Invest 2 Save project - no impact on service 

delivery 

Pembrey Country Park -43

Pembrey Country Park has been transformed into one of Wales’s top visitor attractions providing a unique 

blend of coast and countryside.  Eight miles of golden sands set against the spectacular backdrop of the 

Gower Peninsula and overlooking the coastal scenery of Carmarthen Bay.  There is everything from 

caravan and camping (with electric), 550 acres of idyllic woodlands, 130m long dry ski slope to the longest 

toboggan run in Wales - all providing a perfect family day out or a relaxing holiday in idyllic surroundings.

25 25 25 75 Increased Income - combinatation of Campsite / parking / events

Pembrey Country Park -43

Pembrey Country Park has been transformed into one of Wales’s top visitor attractions providing a unique 

blend of coast and countryside.  Eight miles of golden sands set against the spectacular backdrop of the 

Gower Peninsula and overlooking the coastal scenery of Carmarthen Bay.  There is everything from 

caravan and camping (with electric), 550 acres of idyllic woodlands, 130m long dry ski slope to the longest 

toboggan run in Wales - all providing a perfect family day out or a relaxing holiday in idyllic surroundings.

5 10 15 Energy production schemes

Country Parks 115

Our Country Parks generate significant quantities of waste, especially at the caravan and campsite in 

Pembrey. Whilst every effort is made to minimise and re-cycle waste, the are opportunities to be more 

efficient in this area

8 8 Improved Waste Management procurement

Dinefwr Bowls Club 5
The Indoor Bowls in Ammaford is being managed by a local management board on a reducing subsidy 

from the authority.  
5 5 Dinefwr Bowls - last year of reducing subsidy

Llanelli Leisure Centre 214

There are 6 Leisure Centres in Carmarthenshire.  Llanelli, Carmarthen, Ammanford, Llandovery, St Clears 

and Newcastle Emlyn.  A variety of activities at your local leisure centre such as; Swimming, Diving, 

Canoeing, Fitness, Cycling, Badminton, Tennis, Table Tennis, Squash, Hockey, Netball, Basketball, 

Football, Rugby, Cricket, Gymnastics, Birthday Parties, Holiday programmes.  There were over a million 

visits to the Leisure facilities in 2017/2018.  

50 50 New Llanelli LC improved trading position

Gwendraeth Leisure Centre 3

Gwendraeth Sports Centre has a 4 court hall, 2 squash courts;and mulit function room. Management has 

recently been transferred to a community group generating savings of circa £16k.  Future community asset 

transfer via long term lease will deliver further savings. 

11 11 Gwendraeth LC - saving from already agreed asset transfer

Carmarthen Leisure Centre -53
Salix funding has been secured to invest in more energy efficient lighting and the installation of swimming 

pool covers to reduce overnight heat loss at our leisure centres
6 6

Carmarthen LC  Energy Efficiency saving from previously implemented  project - no impact on 

service delivery 

Carmarthen Leisure Centre -53

There are 6 Leisure Centres in Carmarthenshire.  Llanelli, Carmarthen, Ammanford, Llandovery, St Clears 

and Newcastle Emlyn.  A variety of activities at your local leisure centre such as; Swimming, Diving, 

Canoeing, Fitness, Cycling, Badminton, Tennis, Table Tennis, Squash, Hockey, Netball, Basketball, 

Football, Rugby, Cricket, Gymnastics, Birthday Parties, Holiday programmes.  There were over a million 

visits to the Leisure facilities in 2017/2018.  

21 17 12 49 CLC increased income - combination of new products and increased usage

Amman Valley Leisure Centre 51
Salix funding has been secured to invest in more energy efficient lighting and the installation of swimming 

pool covers to reduce overnight heat loss at our leisure centres
5 5

Amman Valley LC  Energy Efficiency saving from previously implemented  project - no impact on 

service delivery 

Amman Valley Leisure Centre 51

There are 6 Leisure Centres in Carmarthenshire.  Llanelli, Carmarthen, Ammanford, Llandovery, St Clears 

and Newcastle Emlyn.  A variety of activities at your local leisure centre such as; Swimming, Diving, 

Canoeing, Fitness, Cycling, Badminton, Tennis, Table Tennis, Squash, Hockey, Netball, Basketball, 

Football, Rugby, Cricket, Gymnastics, Birthday Parties, Holiday programmes.  There were over a million 

visits to the Leisure facilities in 2017/2018.  

15 15 15 45 AVLC increased income - combination of new products and increased usage

Llanelli Leisure Centre 214
Salix funding has been secured to invest in more energy efficient lighting and the installation of swimming 

pool covers to reduce overnight heat loss at our leisure centres
5 1 6

Llanelli LC   Energy Efficiency saving from previously implemented  project - no impact on service 

delivery 

Llanelli Leisure Centre 214

There are 6 Leisure Centres in Carmarthenshire.  Llanelli, Carmarthen, Ammanford, Llandovery, St Clears 

and Newcastle Emlyn.  A variety of activities at your local leisure centre such as; Swimming, Diving, 

Canoeing, Fitness, Cycling, Badminton, Tennis, Table Tennis, Squash, Hockey, Netball, Basketball, 

Football, Rugby, Cricket, Gymnastics, Birthday Parties, Holiday programmes.  There were over a million 

visits to the Leisure facilities in 2017/2018.  

13 13 16 42 Llanelli LC increased income - combination of new products and increased usage

Coedcae Sports Centre 28

Coedcae Sports Centre is a dual use site, predominently used for educational purposes by Coedcae 

School. The facility is opened up for community use in the evenings and weekends, mainly for club 

bookings, however, there is also individual use of the fitness facility and associated membership offers. 

The centre compliments and adds capacity to the local authority's offer at Llanelli Leisure Centre

2 2 Coedcae - extra fitness income

St Clears Leisure Centre 98 Salix funding has been secured to invest in more energy efficient lighting  at our leisure centres 4 4
St Clears Energy Efficiency saving from previously implemented  project - no impact on service 

delivery 

Llandovery Swimming Pool 108
Salix funding has been secured to invest in more energy efficient lighting and the installation of swimming 

pool covers to reduce overnight heat loss at our leisure centres
2 2

Llandovery Pool Energy Efficiency saving from previously implemented  project - no impact on 

service delivery 

Pembrey Ski & Activity Centre 38

Pembrey Ski Centre compliments the wider Country park. It has a 130m dry ski slope, one of few left 

across Wales, and the longest toboggan run in Wales. There is scope to develop the centre for adreniline 

based activities and an improved catering offer

15 15 15 45
Pembrey Ski & Activity Centre - new income streams from adrenaline based activities and improved 

catering offer

Theatres 848

Y  Ffwrnes, The Miners Welfare Theatre and The Lyric form part of the Theatres portfolio. We are planning 

to undertake carbon trust energy assessments of all Cultural buildings, with a view to reducing costs 

through more efficient use and management of energy. 

5 5 Building Energy savings

Theatres 848

Carmarthenshire Theatres manages the Miners’ Ammanford, Lyric Carmarthen and Ffwrnes Llanelli and 

promotes a broad range of events and productions throughout the year for all age groups and 

interests. During 2017/18 a total in excess of 100,000 paying customers and participants visited and made 

use of our facilities.  As Carmarthenshire’s flagship theatre The Ffwrnes is increasingly establishing itself 

as one of Wales’s leading Cultural and Entertainment venue.  

266 visiting companies and hirers

400 performances/events

74,130 attendances 

33,805 participants 

29 15 8 52 Reduced agency staffing costs & Increased income - Theatres

page 6 of 17

T
udalen 154



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Libraries 2,421

Carmarthenshire libraries provides an extensive choice of books, DVDs, CDs, online services, 

newspapers and magazines, there is something for everyone! With over half a million books on offer 

between 3 regional, 13 branch and mobile libraries you’re never too far away from a centre of knowledge.  

Public access computers and Wi-Fi are available at all libraries.  Keeping up to date with technology there 

is now the Playstation 4 available at Llanelli, Carmarthen and Ammanford library.  Carmarthenshire is the 

4
th

 busiest Library in Britain.  There have been over 600,00 issues of books per year.  Promoting a new 

mobile service in January 2017 as an out of reach service, linking up with various partners to deliver this 

new service.

5 5 37 47 Libraries - cost efficiencies and income generation through room hire

Museums 429
 The Museums Service is made up of the County Museum at Abergwili, Parc Howard, The Museum of 

Speed, and Kidwelly Industrial Museum which is managed through a Trust.  
13 13 Museums - reduced costs & increased income

Arts 249
 Arts venues include Oriel Myrddin Art Gallery in Carmarthen, Y Gat in St. Clears and the Dylan Thomas 

Boathouse, Laugharne 
10 10 10 30 Arts Venues - reduced costs & increased income

Archives 128
 A new archive is currently being built at the rear of Carmarthen Library. Arhive material is currently stored 

at Glamorgan Archives in Cardiff and the Richard Burton Archive in Swansea.  
2 2 4 Archives - income generation

Total Leisure 200 137 224 560

Communities - Excl Leisure

Domiciliary Care 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

298 300 100 698
Domiciliary Care Reduce % of Double handed care to match best performing authorities' 

performance.  Needs an £80k Invest to Save

Domiciliary Care 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

75 75 75 225 Domiciliary Care Reduce % of people receiving 4 calls+ per day

Domiciliary Care 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

130 130 130 390 Domiciliary Care Outcome focused Dementia care / Fulfilled Lives

Domiciliary Care 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

164 0 0 164
Rightsizing of long term care packages for new clients discharged from hospital, including improved 

reablement

Care Management  TEXT NEEDED 60 0 0 60 Review/remove vacant posts & general review of staffing

Domiciliary Care 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

94 156 140 390 Domiciliary Care Halve the number of small packages of care by 2020

Domiciliary Care 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

0 186 186 372 Information Advice & Assistance Support people to manage their difficulties without care

Residential Care 25,161

Residential care is provided in local authority and private sector care homes for individuals who can no 

longer live independently in the community. Depending on the nature of their needs, their placement may 

be made by the local authority or jointly with the health board, or entirely by the health board if they qualify 

for free continuing health care (CHC).

60 30 30 120 Residential Care Moving 6 S.U out to Adult Placements

Residential Care 25,161

Residential care is provided in local authority and private sector care homes for individuals who can no 

longer live independently in the community. Depending on the nature of their needs, their placement may 

be made by the local authority or jointly with the health board, or entirely by the health board if they qualify 

for free continuing health care (CHC).

150 300 300 750 Residential Care Manage Demand from hospital inc CHC + Out of County placement

Residential Care 25,161

Residential care is provided in local authority and private sector care homes for individuals who can no 

longer live independently in the community. Depending on the nature of their needs, their placement may 

be made by the local authority or jointly with the health board, or entirely by the health board if they qualify 

for free continuing health care (CHC).

0 0 0 0 Respite/Short Term - proposal under development

Domiciliary Care 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

0 0 0 0 TEC Solutions - proposal under development

Residential Care Homes 25,161

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

199 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients funded in a Private Residential Care Home

120 80 80 280
Stepping down 9 individuals from residential care into Shared Lives settings

£1000-£350 = £650pw, £300k (half year effect = £150k)

Residential Care Homes 25,161

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

199 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients funded in a Private Residential Care Home

41 50 50 141
Conversion of residential placements into Supported Living for 6 individuals

Based on evidence of Y BWA project in February 2018

Supported Living 6,863

Supported living is a type of residential support that helps vulnerable adults, including people with learning 

disabilities, to live independently in the community. Supported living arrangements are very flexible and 

are designed to give each person choice and control over their home and the way they live their life.  As of 

the 30th September 2016 there were 146 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients receiving supported 

accommodation.

255 100 100 455
Review of hours in supported living

3.5% reduction of hours of 7m

Residential Care Homes 25,161

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

199 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients funded in a Private Residential Care Home

195 100 100 395

reduction in 1:1 hours in residential care due to reviews / right sizing and intervention of Positive 

Behaviour Team

25 x 10 hours per week x 52 weeks x £20ph based on 9 months

page 7 of 17

T
udalen 155



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Residential Care Homes 25,161

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

199 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients funded in a Private Residential Care Home

300 200 200 700 Review existing and new joint funded service users to ensure correct CHC contribution

LD Day Services 4,249

LD & MH day services currently provide support for approximately 300 individuals across the county 

utilising 9 different sites. The services provide opportunities for individuals to receive therapy, maintain 

their health and wellbeing, gain skills, socialise whilst also providing respite for carers. The review of day 

services has highlighted the need to develop community options and specialist services which will see a 

decline in the use of building based services. This will provide opportunities for us to develop 

intergenerational sevices in partnership with adult services within Coleshill and Manor rd and vacate the 

premisis at Crosshands.

216 100 10 326 Collaboration with social enterprise for craft / Reprovision of a day centre / transport

Community Inclusion

LD & MH day services currently provide support for approximately 300 individuals across the county 

utilising 9 different sites. The services provide opportunities for individuals to receive therapy, maintain 

their health and wellbeing, gain skills, socialise whilst also providing respite for carers. The review of day 

services has highlighted the need to develop community options and specialist services which will see a 

decline in the use of building based services. This will provide opportunities for us to develop 

intergenerational sevices in partnership with adult services within Coleshill and Manor rd and vacate the 

premisis at Crosshands.

138 138 restructure of management posts in Community Inclusion and removal of vacant posts

Community Services 2,216  Provision by the private sector of Day Care and Community Support for people with learning disabilities 60 30 30 120 Improved commissioning framework for LD Community Services

Residential Care Homes 25,161

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

199 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients funded in a Private Residential Care Home

0 100 200 300 Develop market for range of accommodation

Residential Care Homes 25,161

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

199 Mental Health & Learning Disability clients funded in a Private Residential Care Home

0 50 150 200 Utilisation of Intermediate care Fund Capital and Housing revenue Account

Preventative Services

Preventative services for Mental Health, Learning Disability and Substance Misuse clients need to be 

developed and strengthened in order to prevent crisis, escalation of need and to enable service users to 

live as well and independently as possible.  There are a range of services currently available and a 

number of opportunities to explore with in house provision and external partners
0 100 200 300 Investment in preventative services

Management 
 This proposals will explore the possibilities of working closer and building on existing relationships with 

our partners in other organisations and sectors.  
0 50 50 100 Explore opportunities for regional and integrated management structure

Packages of care

Resource Allocation System is a tool to allow for a more fair, transparent and equitable distribution of 

resources for social care.  Evidence suggests that the current systems produce a mismatch in the 

allocation of resources relative to need and that the proposed model results in better choice and control 

for service users and their families and lower overall expenditure.

0 50 150 200 Employment of resource allocation system

Local Authority Residential Care Service 2858

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

875 clients funded in a Residential Care Home for Older People and Physical DIsabilities 

120 120 120 360

Care Homes Voids - Quicker turnaround of empty beds in Care Homes, increasing availability and 

not buying care home placements from private sector.

Local Authority Residential Care Service 2858

People may move into a care home because they have gradually found it more difficult to manage at 

home, or because an illness or accident has affected their ability to live independently. Residential care 

homes offer services such as laundry and meals and help with personal care. Some homes offer short-

term stays but normally they provide more long-term or permanent care. As at August 2018 there were 

875 clients funded in a Residential Care Home for Older People and Physical DIsabilities 

180 180
Care Homes - convalescence beds - Additional income received from remaining 12 convalescence 

beds in Care Homes

Local Authority Domiciliary Care Service 15527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2017 there were 1,041 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

120 50 50 220
Domiciliary Care - introduction of new IT system- 3% efficiency through increased contact capacity 

to take on additional service users thus reducing reliance on private sector commissioning. 

Local Authority Domiciliary Care Service 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2017 there were 1,041 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

45 45
Domiciliary Care - introduction of new IT system - 10% reduction in mileage costs due to better 

rostering planning

Local Authority Domiciliary Care Service 15,527

Domiciliary Care Services, also known as Homecare, provide practical or personal care for someone in 

their own home. This could be because health or mobility is declining, or a person may have been in 

hospital or they have a long term health condition. As at the end of August 2018 there were 1,098 clients 

receiving a Domiciliary Service.

26 26 Domiciliary Care - introduction of new IT system - Reduction in stationery/postage costs 

Local Authority Day Services 1,014

Day Care Services provide an opportunity for people to take part in activities or learn new skills outside of 

the home, whilst providing a break for carers.  

There are four day centres for older people managed by Carmarthenshire County Council:  Llys y Bryn and 

Y Bwthyn in llanelli,  and the day centres at Cartref Cynnes and Cwmamman. Demand is low in some 

areas. Day Care Services are also provided by other providers.

20 20
Reduction in transport related costs to in-house Day Services  - New IT system will result in review 

of routes and more efficient planning)

Financial Investiagtor -24

Trading Standards enforce around 40 Acts of Parliament and over 1,000 associated regulations, which 

impact on all aspects of  life, from the safety of children's toys, to the honesty of property descriptions 

when buying a home. It is responsible for ensuring that sales are carried out within the law.  Trading 

Standards list a number of local handypersons and gardeners on the Registered Traders Scheme. 

100 100 100 300 Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) - Utilisation of POCA income to support current service provision

page 8 of 17

T
udalen 156



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Council Fund Housing 1,160

The Housing Options and Advice Team receive over 30,000 calls a year for housing related advice. One 

of the duties of the team is to assist homeless households with rehousing. Interim accommodation is used 

whilst completing an investigation into our statutory duty to rehouse. B&Bs were historically used to 

provide temporary accommodation while the investigation was undertaken. However, this was costly and 

often not the most appropriate type of accommodaton. We now procure/lease properties from the private 

rented sector which is better vale and allows us to place households in appropriate accommodation. 

Lease contracts are currently being reviewed so that they are fit for purpose and provide better value for 

money. There are also identified opportunties to increase the income of the section through fees and 

recharges. 

100 100
Realignment of funding for existing posts as a result of utilisation of Homelessness Prevention 

Grant and reassessment of Housing Revenue Account support

Support Services 2,244

The service provides business support for Social Care.  The functions include payment of creditors, 

management of transport and premises; the assessment and collection of income for residential and non 

residential services; and general business support

15 10 10 35 Supplies & Services

Support Services 2,244

The service provides business support for Social Care.  The functions include payment of creditors, 

management of transport and premises; the assessment and collection of income for residential and non 

residential services; and general business support

18 14 32 Staffing

Support Services 2,244

The service provides business support for Social Care.  The functions include payment of creditors, 

management of transport and premises; the assessment and collection of income for residential and non 

residential services; and general business support

21 21 21 63 Income

Regional Collaboration 195

The Regional Collaboration Unit provides strategic support for the  West Wales Care Partnership which is 

one of seven strategic partnerships across Wales which oversee delivery of the Sustainable Social 

Services agenda and ensure that statutory requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 

2014 are met.  The Regional COllaboration Unit coordinates development and delivery of the regional 

programme. It is hosted by Carmarthenshire County Council.

9 9 9 27 Contribution to West Wales Care Partnership Regional Collaboration Unit

Care management 3,465
Community Resource Team Social Workers responsible for commissioning services for older people and 

those with physical disabilities - receive referrals, carry out assessments, review care packages
15 0 0 15 Reduce staff travelling budget

Grants to Voluntary Organisations 211 Provision of grants to Voluntary Organisations related to support provided to older people 17 0 0 17 No inflation for voluntary organisations

Total - Communities Excl Leisure 3,161 2,510 2,591 8,262

Community Services Total 3,361 2,646 2,815 8,822

page 9 of 17

T
udalen 157



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Environment

Business Support and Performance

Additional training income -51 Alcamus is a training records software package 2 0 0 2
Income from neighbouring authorities (Pembrokeshire & Ceredigion CC) for use of Alcamus and 

managing their operational training database.

Business Support review 1,662 
A further review of the departmental business support function will be undertaken during the next 3 years 

but this is dependant on system developments to enable more efficient processes.
22 45 77 144

2019/20 : Potential reduction of 1 Business Support Assistant post - dependant on system 

developments to enable more efficient processes. 2020/21 : deletion of Customer Focus officer 

post - duties to transfer to other posts; potential to delete another BSA post - dependant on system 

developments. 2021/22 : further realignment of the Business support team  - all dependant on 

system developments to enable more efficient processes.

Total Business Support and Performance division 24 45 77 146

Highways & Transport

Highways 7,281 

The County Council maintains 3,371 km of highway in Carmarthenshire. It is the second largest length of 

highway network in Wales. The Authority has a statutory duty to maintain the network to a safe standard to 

facilitate the safe movement of goods and people. Over fifty five percent of the Gross Expenditure relates 

to supplies and services.   

120 0 0 120
Improving the efficiency across the supply chain from supplies and services, programme 

management and works delivery.

Highways as above ---------------"-------------- 0 70 70 140 Reduce mechanical plant hire

Highways as above ---------------"-------------- 80 0 0 80 Commuted sums

Civil Design -488 

The Engineering Design Unit is responsible for the design and delivery of infrastructure Projects. Projects 

are diverse and range from small traffic management and passenger transport schemes through to new 

road constructions projects such as the Cross Hands Link Road. Engineering Design provides 

Engineering advice corporately across all departments of the Authority. It also manages the ‘Gateway’ 

function for Regional frameworks for both Engineering Design and Engineering Contractors Frameworks.

80 0 0 80

We currently do not have capacity within the team to deliver all work , we are therefore having to 

pay externally for this work. We intend to employ a Structural Engineer and CAD technicians to 

improve capacity to generate income.

Service reconfiguration
divisional 

budget
0 0 100 100 Reconfiguration of services within the division

Public Rights of Way 292 

The Countryside Access Team has responsibility for the Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of 

Way in Carmarthenshire which is the conclusive legal record. Public Rights of Way include footpaths, 

bridleways, restricted byways and byways open to all traffic. There are urban and semi-urban routes in 

towns and villages but much of the 1,500 mile network is out in the countryside crossing fields, farmland 

and open country. It’s a fantastic leisure and recreational resource for the people of Carmarthenshire and 

visitors to the County with the Wales Coast Path and numerous other walking/riding and cycling routes on 

offer.Enforcement and legal issues associated with the implementation of the Rights of way Improvement 

plan.

8 2 10 20
2019/20 : PROW Increased Income from Path Orders  (Increase in number of Orders Processed). 

2020/21 & 2021/22 : PROW Enforcement + Furniture Maintenance

288 72 180 540

Planning

Development Management 211 

• The Development Management Unit manages the statutory planning application process (including pre 

application and also discharge of conditions and variation of conditions post approval). 

• The Unit deals with between 1700 and 1900 applications on average each year (roughly 150 cases per 

annum per Officer). 

• The unit is also responsible for planning enforcement matters including enforcement of planning 

conditions and unauthorised development and built conservation matters, dealing with roughly 500 cases 

per annum.

12.5 20 10 42.5

 2019/20 - £10k : additional predicted income from new statutory Pre-application service; £2.5k : 

reduction in meeting costs.  

2020/21 - £10k : additional predicted income from new statutory Pre-application service. 

2020/21 - £20k : additional predicted income from new statutory Pre-application service. 

2019/20 start charging for discretionary pre application advice. Schedule being worked up to take 

through Council by December 2018. On average in last 2 years we have dealt with 250 of these but 

have not charged. The fee will vary depending on the advice being sought, type of proposal etc.

Minerals & Waste 134 

• The Team ensure that the significant aggregate resources and waste within Carmarthenshire are 

provided and managed in a sustainable way.

• This involves dealing with applications for waste and mineral workings/sites, dealing with enforcement 

matters relating to such sites and also required monitoring regarding the operation of such sites.

• The Team also undertake the above functions in whole or in part for another 7 Local Authorities in South 

and West Wales.

10 10 0 20

Increase in income through various Service Level Agreements coupled with some savings to be 

made through reconfiguration of the Team which is aimed at improving the resilience of the Team 

going forward.

Forward Planning 548 

• Division responsible for producing and assisting with implementation, including on-going monitoring of 

plan delivery and on-going revision of evidence base, of all development plans which cover or part cover 

Carmarthenshire.

• These plans include:

o Spatial plans – the potential for plans to span more than one (or part of) County in future years

o the Local Development Plan  which was adopted for Carmarthenshire in 2014 and 

o Development Briefs for specific sites and areas - a number of which have now been produced for the 

County.

• Also involved in assisting with development and or disposal of Council owned land/property in relation to 

advising on potential uses and providing consultancy role regarding preparation of planning applications 

on behalf of the Council.

3.5 3.5 0 7
General savings identified within the Forward Planning budget which are not related to the 

production of the LDP.

Rural Conservation 377 Conservation of the natural environment. 2 0 0 2  2019/20 - reduction in travel costs.

Planning Admin. 325 

• Budget covers Head of Service functions along with business and administrative support to all functions 

within the Planning Division including: Development Management & Built Heritage (incl. Enforcement); 

Building Control, Rural Conservation, Waste and Minerals, Forward Planning (Development Plans) .• 

Functions include general research and policy work, publishing and printing, business planning, budget 

planning, orders and payments, monitoring, health and safety, IT systems and licenses, general 

procurement.

9.3 0 0 9
£5.3k : Reduction in translation and postage budgets; £2k : Use QGIS by 2019/20, can reduce 

mapinfo license annual fee for 10 users; £2k : revised contract with scanner/printer company.

Planning Admin. See above ---------------------"------------------- 4 0 0 4 Increase street Name and Numbering fees which hasn’t been done for a number of years

Building Control 148 
• The Building Control Unit has overall responsibility for the management and administration of building 

control compliance in accordance with statutory requirements.
5 0 0 5

2019/20 Start charging for demolition notices. Other LAs charge between £200 and £400 for these, 

no extra work as do this work already but for free. Checking number per annum. Had 11 last year 

but we know there are far more that shold be getting permission - by checking weekly lsist more 

business could be picked up

Total Planning division  46 34 10 90

Total Highways & Transport division

page 10 of 17

T
udalen 158



MANAGERIAL

Department
2018-19 

Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Property 

Admin Buildings 2,381 Energy, rates, telephone and cleaning costs for Administrative Office buildings including St David's Park 97 68 35 200
Savings on the running costs of the Council's office accommodation following vacation and 

subsequent sale or rental.

Cleaning 297 

Cleaning budgets ie. labour, plant, materials and sub-contractor costs associated with the undertaking of 

cleaning related works on behalf of the Authority and other organisations, including Mid & West Wales 

Fire Service.

0 0 20 20 Efficiencies following revised cleaning contract arrangements

Industrial Premises -914
Rental income and costs of managing  the Coucnil's 400 industrial units, which provide business 

accommodation supporting 2,000 jobs in the County
10 20 20 50 Above-inflation increase in income target

Carbon Reduction Programme 277 Payments under the Government's Carbon Reduction Commitment 35 0 0 35 Reduction in CRC payments

Total Property division 142 88 75 305

Waste & Environmental Services

Waste Treatment and Disposal 7,809 

Targeted campaigns to reduce waste and  increase the awareness and use of all recycling 

schemes/initiatives. It is anticipated that this will result in the diversion of waste from the residual waste 

stream to the the recycling waste stream, thereby realising savings due to the differential in the treatment 

costs as set out.
0 100 0 100

2020/21 :

By undertaking waste minimisation activities realising an overall reduction in Residual Waste by 

500t saving = £53k

Further diversion of food waste @ 500t - gate fee saving = £24k

Further diversion into Blue Bag Recycling @ 350t  - saving = £11k

Further diversion to Green/Garden Waste @ 175t - saving = £12k

Closed landfill Sites 230 

We currently manage the ongoing aftercare at two former refuse landfill sites - Nantycaws (Phase 1) in 

Carmarthen and Wern Ddu in Ammanford. This includes dealing with leachate from the landfill sites and 

ensuring the adequacy and functionality of the infrastructure, including drainage systems.

0 0 5 5 Reduction in annual expenditure due to a regular maintenance programme.

Grounds - Plant rationalisation 1,316 

The Grounds Maintenace Section incorporates the direct responsibility of managing and maintaining parks 

and playgrounds, inland water areas and a large number of public open spaces within Carmarthenshire. It 

also maintains grounds for many other departments of the County Council such as Social Care and 

Housing, Cultural Services, Education and many individual schools. The Section also has numerous 

external clients such as Town and Community Councils and private sports clubs.

15 10 0 25

Review of Fleet Replacement Programme - due to the success of the Community Asset Transfer 

programme and resulting rationalisation of plant, some items of plant due for renewal within the 

Fleet Renewal Programme can be disposed of instead of replaced. 

Grounds - income generation as above -----------"---------- 0 0 50 50

Following the proposed review of the Grounds maintenance service, with a view to developing a 

more commercially-focused service, there is potential to increase income into the Authority for 

additional works undertaken.

Asset Transfers - Parks as above
Transfer of Parks, Playgrounds and Amenity areas to Town Councils, Community Councils or Sports 

organisations.
179 0 179

Reduction in maintenance costs following the transfer of assets to Town/Community Councils or 

sports organisations.

Waste Operational - vehicle cleaning 2,615 

The refuse collection vehicles are required to change their rounds weekly from a black bag route to a blue 

bag recycling route.  It is therefore necessary to cleanse the refuse vehicles after they return to the depot 

on a Friday afternoon to ensure the cleanliness of the vehicles for Monday morning.   Any contamination 

from the black bag collection will affect the quality of recycling, thus impacting on our recycling targets.  

70 0 0 70

A vehicle washing service is created within the council’s Waste Services Department by 

the employment of two additional part-time members of staff and therefore terminate the 

external contract.

Waste Operational - collection rounds as above

Following the assessment of resources within the Waste Operational Team the new levels of resource 

requirements has been identified. Following this an assessment of current usage of agency staffing for 

leave, sickness and absence cover has been undertaken.  

83 83 0 166 Adjustments to resources (agency) as a result of amendments to existing collection rounds.

Waste Operational - Plant as above
Following the assessment of resources within the Waste Operational Team the new levels of resource 

requirements has been identified.
99 0 99

Adjustments to fleet requiirements resources as a result of amendments to existing collection 

rounds.

Bring site - operational 301 
Bring sites are located across the County to provide recycling facilities within communities.. They currently 

cater for glass, paper and cans in the main.
35 0 0 35

By rationalising bin types and converting all sites to galss only (with the exception of textiles and 

small electrical items at some sites) we can make collection rounds more efficient. 

Bring sites - glass collection as above -----------"---------- 15 0 0 15 Increased income through renegotiated contract.

Public Conveniences 546 Operation and maintenance of Public Conveniences 0 0 300 300

Review of general expenditure budgets and a  reduction in the anticipated costs of the public 

convenience maintenance contract (Danfo facilities) - the anticipated reduction will be due to the 

capital upgrade cost contained within the original contract no longer being applicable. 

Total Waste & Environmental Services division 496 193 355 1,044

Environment Total 996 432 697 2,125

page 11 of 17

T
udalen 159



  EXISTING POLICY PROPOSALS 

18-19 Budget

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Education & Children

Catering Services - primary school breakfasts 857 

The Catering Service delivers the Welsh Government's free primary breakfast initiative to all those primary 

schools in Carmarthenshire that request it (currently 96).  Savings have been delivered in the last 2 financial 

years by remodelling the staffing level.

50 50 100

Review Breakfast club provision to distinguish between catering and care element of the service, 

with the consideration of a parental charge towards care element (20 pupils paying £1 per day in 30 

schools would be £114k per annum). 

Education & Children Total 50 50 0 100

Schools Delegated Budget

Delegated school budget 107,446 

• This is the budget delegated to every school under the Fair Funding formula.

• The budget is to meet all the costs associated with running a school e.g. staff costs, premises costs, SEN 

specialist support, Service Level Agreements for specific services such as HR, IT, legal, grounds maintenance, 

music. 

2,145 2,593 2,452 7,190

•The proposal has been revised to fully pass on the additional Revenue Support Grant to 

schools, an addition of £497,000                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

• Schools will need to meet inflationary pressures

• To manage this level of reduction, there will be an impact on staffing as a high % of a school’s 

budget is used to employ staff.   

• Schools have been encouraged to work in partnership and collaborate with other schools in 

matters of resourcing and employment, however the scale of the budget reduction will result in some 

redundancies. 

• Reduced provision could impact on the high standards achieved by Carmarthenshire's learners 

and the support provided for vulnerable/disabled pupils.

2,145 2,593 2,452 7,190

Community Services

Y Gat 51 

Y Gât (formerly known as St. Clears Craft Centre) is an arts facility that also hosts the local library and a 

franchise catering operator. The facility has an open gallery / shop area along with conference rooms facilities 

and studio spaces for local artists to hire. 

14 14 14 42 Business review of Y Gat (St. Clears) 

Local Authority Day Services 1,014 

Day Care Services provide an opportunity for people to take part in activities or learn new skills outside of the 

home, whilst providing a break for carers.  

There are four day centres for older people managed by Carmarthenshire County Council:  Llys y Bryn and Y 

Bwthyn in llanelli,  and the day centres at Cartref Cynnes and Cwmamman. Demand is low in some areas. Day 

Care Services are also provided by other providers.

60 60
Redevelopment and expansion of Llys y Bryn (continuation of relocating day service provision to  Y 

Bwthyn / Coleshill)

Community Services Total 74 14 14 102

Environment

Highways & Transport

Parking Services -1,441 

The County Council provides off street car parking facilities in towns and villages to support the expeditious 

movement of traffic to enable town centres to function. Parking supports these wider transport policy objectives 

and enables the authority to maintain highway and public transport services. There are 57 car parks across the 

county.  

100 100 100 300
Increase charges to allow investment in new parking technology and payment systems and to 

support investment in transportation and highway related services.

School Crossing Patrols 147 Manage and maintain an efficient , effective and safe school crossing patrol service. 38 0 0 38

The Council currently provides School Crossing Patrols both where the National Safety Criteria 

requires them, plus at other locations where the criteria do not indicate a Patrol is required (around 

50%). The proposal is to retain Patrols where they are required but phase out patrols where there is 

no requirement according to the criteria.

Road Safety 176

The Road Safety unit is responsible for delivery of road safety initiatives to meet road casualty reduction 

targets. The unit has responsibility for road safety education, training and publicity, the School crossing patrol 

service, national driver improvement schemes and road safety outside schools.

0 120 0 120 Road safety innovation

Highways 7,281 

The County Council maintains 3,371 km of highway in Carmarthenshire. It is the second largest length of 

highway network in Wales. The Authority has a statutory duty to maintain the network to a safe standard to 

facilitate the safe movement of goods and people. 

25 0 25 Reduction in frequency of verge mowing

School transport policy review 8,078 

The County Council provides school and college transport for 8,258 pupils/students who are eligible for 

assistance. Circa 3.07 million passenger journeys per annum are undertaken on the school/college network of 

services. Elements of the service are provided on a non statutory basis - many authorities have chosen to 

restrict free school/college transport provision to  the statutory requirements.

0 65 455 520

This will mean charging or removal of transport for post 16 education. The saving has been put back 

one year to allow the authority to meet the statutory obligations in terms of changes. If Executive 

Board support,  then we will need to have consulted and have the revised policy in place by 1st 

October in the preceding year to effect the change. i.e. 1st October 19 to effect the change in 2020. 

If Members are not of a mind to approve removal or full charging, they may wish to consider 

introducing a charge of £200 (payment twice per 2*£100 or just over £1 per day for the bus pass as 

this is likely to reduce the numbers whereby some use the bus pass as an insurance policy in case 

the car breaks down.   Efficiency level would reduce to circa 200k in 2021-22 and zero in 2020-21.

163 285 555 1,003 Total Highways & Transport division

Department FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

Schools Delegated Budget Total

12 of 17

T
udalen 160



  EXISTING POLICY PROPOSALS 

Waste & Environmental Services

Cleansing 1,752 

The County Council maintain over  3,500km of roads throughout the County. The Cleansing Service provides 

for the sweeping and de-littering of streets and footways. The service includes mechanical sweeping of 

highways, footways and pedestrianised town centre areas, hand litter picking and emptying bins, chewing gum 

removal, graffiti and illegal poster removal, clearing up illegal dumping of rubbish and dog mess. On average 

the County Council removes around 40 tonnes of litter every week, the equivalent of 5 elephants.

0 164 0 164

Review and re-configure the routine scheduled mechanical sweeping of residential areas with a view 

to undertaking sweeping/cleansing work on a reactive basis in the future, potentially adopting a 

zoned approach. In order to achieve the saving identified, the number of mechanical sweepers will 

need to be reduced, together with the number of drivers through voluntary severance.

Clinical Waste Collections  221 

The collection of hygiene waste is currently undertaken by a third party contractor. The contract comes to an 

end in November 2019.

Hygiene waste includes the following types of waste:

    Items used to dispose of urine, faeces and other bodily secretions or excretions including:

    Disposable bed pans

    Bed pan liners

    Incontinence pads

    Stoma bags

    Urine containers

This type of waste can be placed in black bags.

10 20 0 30
The current contract has provision within it to re-negotiate the contractual terms at the end of Nov 

2018.  It is predicted that a reduction  in costs will be achieved through this process.

Trade Waste 129 The collection of trade waste from commercial premises. 129 0 0 129

The current service is running at a loss. If the collection service is transferred to CWM  i.e. the client 

list onl. The existing plant can be sold/offhired and operatives will be placed within vacancies within 

the department. This loss would then be negated and CWM could provide the service at more 

attractive commercial rates in line with their wider business model.

Grounds at Llanelli Town Hall
included in 

Grounds budgets
The Maintenance of the grounds surrounding the Town Hall 10 0 0 10

We propose to review the supply and planting of Spring Bedding, leaving the bed fallow. Non 

planting of spring bedding will result in colourful flower displays through the summer months only.

Total Waste & Environmental Services division 149 184 0 333

Environment Total  312 469 555 1,336

13 of 17

T
udalen 161



NEW POLICY PROPOSALS

Department 2018-19 Budget FACT FILE

'2019-20 

Proposed

'2020-21 

Proposed

'2021-22 

Proposed Total EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executives

Democratic Services 

The cost of running the democratic services unit - includes administrative support, County Councillor 

allowances  and travel expenses
7 7 Proposal to change full County Council meetings from Monthly to Quarterly - the saving will  be 

achieved through the reduction in County Councillor travelling expenses incurred

Chief Executives Total 0 7 0 7

Education & Children

Education Support Services to Schools                   1,141 

The service provides support to all our schools to improve leadership, provision and therefore raised 

educational standards and achievement. The service is delivered through collaboration between the 

Carmarthenshire Team of Challenge Advisers and  the regional consortium Associate Advisory staff 

(supporting 6 neighbouring LAs) and our schools.

55 55

Currently Carmarthenshire contributes the sum of £55k following delegation of the grant from WG 

to the regional consortium and then on to the Council. 

Implementation of this proposal would reduce the funding retained by the regional consortium, 

increasing the funding available to the council. 

The reduction represents 5% of the budget available to the service.

School Improvement                   1,141 
The Council is obliged to employ a notional number of officers to provide a School Improvement Service to 

meet the needs of our schools. With a reduced number of schools it is possible to review this notional figure.
20 50 70

Not replacing an Advisory Team member following recent retirement. Senior Council officers are 

currently reviewing a range options in an attempt to mitigate any reduction in service provision 

and therefore ensure ongoing high quality support to our schools.       

Curriculum and Wellbeing- Learning Transformation                   1,141 

A small service to support schools with partnership working, curriculum development and 14-19 learning 

networks. Areas of activity include helping secondary schools to prepare for the new national curriculum and 

promoting pupils’ learning pathways into further and higher education and future careers. This  develops 

young peoples’ employability. Vulnerable learners are monitored and supported, as are the more able and 

talented.

20 20

Not replacing 1 Full-time member of staff following an employee leaving the service.

Temporary arrangements are in place where duties have been distributed to a range of other 

team members. These arrangements will be monitored and evaluated. 

The permanent solution to this area of service delivery is anticipated to deliver a modest saving, 

whilst also maintaining an acceptable level of service delivery.

Curriculum and Wellbeing- Youth Support Services                      772 

The Youth Support Service provides a range of statutory and non-statutory functions to meet the needs of 

Carmarthenshire's  children and young people. The service offers support from universal youth support (e.g. 

Duke of Edinburgh & Youth Clubs) through to specialist interventions in working with children and young 

people with complex needs. This incorporates School-based Youth Work; Youth Justice and post 16 provision.

100 50 150

This reduction represents 13%  of the budget available to the service. There will be an actual 

reduction in the staffing capacity  given to offer support young people/schools, for example in the 

provision of the Duke of Edinburgh Award; the Costs for the school trip risk assessment software 

would need to be re-distributed to county schools; withdrawal of funding currently given over to 

support vulnerable young people (attending a town centre youth project); withdrawal of funding to 

3 Welsh Language medium Youth Clubs; withdrawal of funding for specialist provision for Harmful 

Sexual Behaviour;  not recruiting to a vacant post that is core funded. Reducing county youth club 

provision.

Curriculum and Wellbeing- Athrawon Gwella'r 

Gymraeg a Dwyieithrwydd
                     286 

A team of advisory teachers are employed to support the promotion and development of Welsh in our schools. 

This helps learners  to become confidently bilingual. Newcomers and latecomers to the County are supported 

as well as those who require additional linguistic support. This team provide key support for the statutory 

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan

25 25 50

Reduction of 1 advisory teacher available to support schools by not replacing a member of staff 

who will be retiring. The staffing will be restructured to accommodate this saving. Service 

provision will need to adjust accordingly.

Primary School Delegated Budget                 55,897 

• This is the budget delegated to every school under the Fair Funding formula.

• The budget is to meet all the costs associated with running a school e.g. staff costs, premises costs, SEN 

specialist support, Service Level Agreements for specific services such as HR, IT, legal, grounds 

maintenance, music. 

100 250 250 600

Rationalise primary schools that are disproportionately expensive to operate and unable to 

sustain educationally effective teaching and learning structures due to low pupil numbers.  

Through carefully selected decommissioning and strategically driven school federations the 

primary school estate will be reduced.

Education Otherwise than at School                   1,488 

This service meets the needs of learners who, due to a wide range of often complex behaviour and 

engagement issues, cannot access education in mainstream schools. These learners require a bespoke and 

specialist package of support.

60 50 110

Under this proposal, the council will reconsider recoupment of the true value of provision from 

schools (ensuring consideration of all elements of cost related activities e.g. officer time within 

administration / monitoring and progress reviews etc) . Currently, the Council only recoups the 

allocated basic entitlement funding for pupils in mainstream education and not the true cost of 

provision.

Children's Services- Welfare Service                      393 

The EWS (Education welfare Service) works in close partnership with schools, other professionals within the 

LA, and other statutory and voluntary agencies in order to promote and enforce regular and punctual school 

attendance of children of compulsory school age. 

180 180

Cease provision of service to schools who already manage most aspects of attendance. Staff 

would transfer into existing vacancies across Children's Services.  Balance of budget maintained 

to ensure LA's statutory responsibilities can be met.

Children's Services- Education and Child Psychology                      540 

The Educational and Child Psychology Service use the psychology of how people learn, behave, think and feel 

to help support children and young people to reach their potential. They work mostly in schools but also in 

preschool settings, at home, in foster homes and in respite care settings.

50 50 100 Reduce number of Education and Child Psychologists and reconsider structure

Children's services- School Counselling Service                      303 

Access to professional counselling support is available for young people in post-primary schools during 

difficult and vulnerable periods in their lives. Counselling contributes to tackling barriers to learning which may 

result from personal trauma, difficult home circumstances, stress, bullying and child abuse. 30 30
Review SLA with external provider at next renewal which may reduce level of service to 

schools/young people

Education & Children Total 610 475 280 1,365

Community Services

Leisure & Culture

Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 160

Pendine Outdoor Education Centre offers residential opportunities for primary schools from Carmarthenshire 

and beyond to experience Outdoor recreation, catering for up to 120 children at any given time. The service 

has an excellent reputation with schools and often provides the first opportunity for children to spend time 

away from their family on a residential basis. 

50 50 100

The proposal is to close the Outdoor Education Centre. The service is not statutory and can be 

provided by alternative private providers, albeit at greater cost. The centre’s infrastructure 

requires investment to meet modern standards.

Libraries 2,421

Carmarthenshire libraries provides a wide variety of books, DVDs, CDs, online services, newspapers and 

magazines for the residents of Carmarthenshire. The libraries contain over half a million books between 3 

regional, 13 branch and mobile libraries, furthermore, all libraries also have public access computers and Wi-

Fi.

10 5 5 20
This proposal considers the potential to co-locate branch libraries with other businesses or 

premises to help reduce running costs and potentially increase visitor numbers. 

Parc Howard 52
 Parc Howard Museum is located within the listed Mansion house at Parc Howard, Llanelli. The costs of 

running Parc Howard are shared between Carmarthenshire County Council and Llanelli Town Council. 
8 8

This proposal considers revised opening hours for the Museums, reducing overall opening 

periods, especially during the Winter months when visitor numbers drop off significantly. 

Feedback is welcomed on revised opening hours (times / days and seasonally) to improve the 

efficiency of the service.
14 of 17

T
udalen 162



NEW POLICY PROPOSALS

Kidwelly Industrial Museum 16
Kidwelly Industrial Museum which is managed through a Trust, forms part of the wider Carmarthenshire 

Museums service. The local authority provides some funding support for the facility, however, the site requires 

significant investment and development to meet required health and safety standards.   

5 5

The proposal is to cease the local authority’s support funding for the facility, which is likely to 

result in the facility closing to the public or only being open on certain days of the year for special 

events.

18 60 55 133

15 of 17

T
udalen 163



NEW POLICY PROPOSALS

Community Services - Excluding Leisure & Culture

LD Day Services 4,249

LD & MH day services currently provide support for approximately 300 individuals across the county utilising 9 

different sites. The services provide opportunities for individuals to receive therapy, maintain their health and 

wellbeing, gain skills, socialise whilst also providing respite for carers. The review of day services has 

highlighted the need to develop community options and specialist services which will see a decline in the use 

of building based services. This will provide opportunities for us to develop intergenerational sevices in 

partnership with adult services within Coleshill and Manor rd and vacate the premises at Crosshands.

120 120
Cease provision of one LD Day Services which used to provide catering training - no service 

users affected

Third Sector Contracts 447
 Provision of grants to voluntary organisations relating to support for people with learning disabilities and 

mental health 
50 50 More strategic approach and collaboration between third sector providers

Day Services 4,249

LD & MH day services currently provide support for approximately 300 individuals across the county utilising 9 

different sites. The services provide opportunities for individuals to receive therapy, maintain their health and 

wellbeing, gain skills, socialise whilst also providing respite for carers. The review of day services has 

highlighted the need to develop community options and specialist services which will see a decline in the use 

of building based services. This will provide opportunities for us to develop intergenerational sevices in 

partnership with adult services within Coleshill and Manor rd and vacate the premises at Crosshands.

0 50 50 100
Improve building usage in day centre provision to reduce by one building, saving building 

operating costs

170 50 50 270

Community Services Total 188 110 105 403

Environment

Highways & Transport

Highways  - Grounds Maintenance
Highways Budget: 

8,871

The Grounds Maintenance Unit undertake maintenance of the flower beds in Carmarthen 

town centre. These areas will consist of beds and planters with both spring and summer 

bedding plants provided annually. Maintenance will also include weeding of the beds and 

planters. 

38 0 0 38

Review maintenance of Flower Beds and Shrubbery in town centres. The proposal is to 

cease town centre planting or transfer to town councils as we are aware that some town 

councils have expressed an interest in undertaking this work.

Highways  - Eastgate Roundabout Planting as above

Grounds Maintenance Unit undertake maintenance of the roundabout at Eastgate in Llanelli. 

The roundabout will be planted with both spring and summer bedding plants annually. 

Maintenance will also include weeding of the flower beds 0 19 0

19 To cease planting on Eastgate roundabout but will engage with TC and BID to explore 

option of transfer.

Highways  - Amenity Grass Cutting as above

Amenity grass cutting is undertaken on urban 30/40 mph speed roads inside towns and villages and 

is not undertaken on rural class roads or high speed roads. This type of cutting regime which utilises 

sit on or push along mowers results in a finer cut compared to the rural verge mowing operation 

which uses tractor mounted flail mowers. Unlike the verge mowing operation which in undertaken 

for safety purposes once per year , amenity grass cutting is undertaken 4 No. times throughout the 

summer season. 0 49 0

49
To cease Amenity Grass Cutting around town centres or transfer to town councils as we 

are aware that some town councils have expressed an interest in undertaking this work. 

Highways  - Winter Gritting as above

Carmarthenshire has an area of 934 square miles and its road network comprises Motorway, Trunk, 

County,  Principal, Non Principal and Unclassified Roads. This network is primarily rural in 

character, but there is a significant urban element as well. The total length of the highway network is 

some 3,649km.  The total pre-salt gritting run treats around 1040km of carriageway, which is 

approx. 30% of the entire County/Trunk Network. 

32 0 0 32
Review all winter maintenance routes to rationalise the number of routes that are subject 

to treatment.

Highways - Rural Road Sweeping as above

Sweeping of rural roads is undertaken on a demand / ad-hoc basis and is generally concentrated on 

rural  class 3 and 4 roads. There are no regular programmes or prioritised zones associated with 

highway sweeping. Sweeping demands will generally be identified following routine highway safety 

inspections carried out by our Highway Inspectors or following complaints / requests from the public 

or police. The operation primarily concerns removal of earth, mud, stones, leaves and other organic 

type matter from the road surface. We do not undertake sweeping of any litter.

282 0 0 282

Cease scheduled mechanical sweeping on rural roads. The proposal is that Highways 

will not continue to undertake ad hoc sweeping and will respond on a reactive basis to 

emergencies by hiring if there is a safety issue. Highways will also procure brush 

attachments to support the patch planing operation.

Highways  as above

Surface dressing is a highway maintenance treatment used extensively by all highway authorities in 

Wales, UK and indeed many other countries around the world. Surface Dressing treatments have 

been used extensively across Carmarthenshire for a number of years with great success. Surface 

dressing is the prescribed treatment for prolonging the life of the carriageway surface and sub-

structure. The authority carries out a large programme of surface dressing works each year. The 

maintenance procedure which involves the application of a bitumen binder sprayed onto the 

carriageway surface ollowed by a dressing of stone seals the carriageway and restores skid 

resistance. This operation prevents the ingress of water into the surface and sub-structure of the 

carriageway and prevents degradation and formation of potholes thereby substantially prolonging 

the life of the carriageway. The treatment also improves the safety of road users by increasing the 

skid resistance properties of the road surface which assists in reducing wet skidding accidents. 

Many roads across the whole of Carmarthenshire have benefitted from this treatment over the past 

50 years. Carmarthenshire County Council has a large network of roads to maintain and surface 

dressing provides a cost effective solution for keeping the roads in a safe and serviceable condition 

ensuring continuity for public and business travel alike.

0 0 150 150
The proposal is to reduce the number of schemes delivered by the surface dressing 

programme. The annual surface dressing programme totals approx. £1,300k.

352 68 150 570

 

Waste & Environmental Services

 Total Highways & Transport division

16 of 17

T
udalen 164



NEW POLICY PROPOSALS

Household Waste recycling centres

included in total 

waste services 

budget

There are currently four HWRCs located across the County that serve all communities. The HWRCs are open 

7 days a week. The waste recycled at the sites account for a significant proportion of Carmarthenshire’s 

overall recycling performance. 

0 0 25 25 Review the operating parameters for all sites to provide a  less costly service.

Household Waste recycling centres as above

There are currently four HWRCs located across the County that serve all communities. The HWRCs are open 

7 days a week. The waste recycled at the sites account for a significant proportion of Carmarthenshire’s 

overall recycling performance. 

70 0 70 140 HWRC-review future provision in the north of the County

Bring sites 301
There are over 150 bring sites located in communities across the County for the disposal of mainly glass 

(although provision for paper and cans are currently also offered).
0 0 66 66

A review of all bring site provision is proposed with the aim of rationalising and standardising 

collections, thereby making the collection rounds more efficient. Glass currently accounts for 

about 6%age points in overall recycling performance. The review would take into account levels 

of usage and any other difficulties with the sites. A reduction of between 30 and 40% is predicted 

reducing performance by up to 2% points

Total Waste & Environmental Services division 70 0 161 231

Environment Total  422 68 311 801

17 of 17

T
udalen 165



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Assessing Impact  

The Equality Act 2010 

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) brings together and replaces the previous anti-discrimination laws with a single Act. It simplifies and 

strengthens the law, removes inconsistencies and makes it easier for people to understand and comply with it. The majority of the 

Act came into force on 1 October 2010. 

The Act includes a new public sector equality duty (the ‘general duty’), replacing the separate duties on race, disability and gender 

equality.  This came into force on 5 April 2011. 

What is the general duty? 

The aim of the general duty is to ensure that public authorities and those carrying out a public function consider how they can 

positively contribute to a fairer society through advancing equality and good relations in their day-to-day activities.  The duty 

ensures that equality considerations are built into the design of policies and the delivery of services and that they are kept under 

review. This will achieve better outcomes for all. 

The duties are legal obligations. Failure to meet the duties may result in authorities being exposed to legal challenge. 

Under equality legislation, public authorities have legal duties to pay ‘due regard’ to the need to eliminate discrimination and 

promote equality with regard to race, disability and gender, including gender reassignment, as well as to promote good race 

relations. The Equality Act 2010 introduces a new public sector duty which extends this coverage to age, sexual orientation, 

pregnancy and maternity, and religion or belief. The law requires that this duty to pay ‘due regard’ be demonstrated in the decision 

making process. It is also important to note that public authorities subject to the equality duties are also likely to be subject to the 

obligations under the Human Rights Act and it is therefore wise also to consider the potential impact that decisions could have on 

human rights as part of the same process. 

Carmarthenshire’s approach to Equality Impact 

T
udalen 167



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

In order to ensure that the council is considering the potential equality impact of its proposed policies and practices, and in order to 

evidence that we have done so, every proposal will be required to be supported by the attached Equality Impact Assessment. 

Where this assessment identifies a significant impact then more detail may be required. 

Reporting on assessments  

Where it is clear from the assessment that the likely impact on the authority’s ability to meet the general duty is substantial, then it 

must publish a report.  

Initial and Detailed Equality Impact Assessments 

The initial EIA (appendix 1) is a simple and quick method of assessing the effect of a policy, function, procedure, decision including 

financial cuts on one or more of the protected characteristics.   

The Service Manager responsible for the relevant new or revised policies, functions, procedures and financial decisions must 

undertake, at least, an initial EIA and where relevant a detailed Equality Impact Assessment (appendix 2); EIA must be attached as 

background paper with reports to Executive and Scrutiny .   

 

  

T
udalen 168



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Equality impact assessment – Process to follow where HR implications have been identified  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Lead/service Manager to identify the policy, function, procedure or a change in Policy. 

Undertake an initial or detailed EIA. See appendix 1 and if there is a requirement go 

on to complete appendix 2  

 

New HR Policy or HR policy change 

Circulate EIA with draft Policy to strategic 

HR team for comment. 

Organisational change/restructure 

EIA and proposed changes taken to 

change review panel for comment. 

Amendments identified /further work to complete or referral to legal 

Passed to the Policy and Partnership Team for approval (equalities@carmarthenshire.gov.uk)  

T
udalen 169



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Andi Morgan 

Date of initial assessment: 15th November 2018 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, National Model for School Improvement ERW Contribution 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy decision 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

 ECS Director and Senior LA Officers have analysed WG / Regional Grant Funding Regulations to ensure compliance  

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

 2019-20 £55k 

The value of LA contributions to be secured from Welsh Government grant by ERW prior to delegating to schools/LAs 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? Please indicate 

high (H) medium (M), low (L), no 

effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

Risks  

 

Positive effects  

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P r o t e c t e d
 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s
 

Age N 
 

   

T
udalen 170



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Disability N 
 

   

Gender reassignment N 
 

   

Race N 
 

   

Religion/Belief N 
 

   

Pregnancy and maternity N 
 

   

Sexual Orientation N 
 

   

Sex N 
 

   

Welsh language N 
 

   

 Any other area N 
 

   

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. None 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service?  

T
udalen 171



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

None 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by:                                 

Head of Service 

Andi Morgan  17.11.18 

T
udalen 172



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Andi Morgan 

Date of initial assessment: 15th November 2018 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, National Model for School Improvement ERW Staffing 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy decision 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

 ECS Director and Senior Officers have given due regard and consideration to WG and Regional guidance for school improvement including ‘Education in Wales: Our 

National Mission’ (WG, 26.9.17)   

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

 2019-20 £20k 

We are obliged to employ a notional number of officers to provide a School Improvement Service to meet the needs of our 

schools. With a reduced number of schools it is possible to review this notional figure, not replacing 1 FTE following retirement. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? Please indicate 

high (H) medium (M), low (L), no 

effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

Risks  

 

Positive effects  

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P r o t e c t e d
 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s
 

Age N 
 

   

T
udalen 173



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Disability N 
 

   

Gender reassignment N 
 

   

Race N 
 

   

Religion/Belief N 
 

   

Pregnancy and maternity N 
 

   

Sexual Orientation N 
 

   

Sex N 
 

   

Welsh language N 
 

   

 Any other area N 
 

   

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. None 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service?  

T
udalen 174



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Implementation of this proposed policy would impact upon our current level of advisory support for schools. We are attempting to realign some key, specific areas of activity such 

as the statutory element of 'SACRE' (Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education) however, we have limited staff resources to achieve this. In addition, the implementation 

of the revised curriculum (following the Donaldson Review) would benefit from our ability to continue to recruit, albeit to a potentially broader agenda across our school support 

provision.   

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by:                                 

Head of Service 

Andi Morgan 17.11.18 

  

T
udalen 175



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Aeron Rees 

Date of initial assessment:  16th November 2018 

 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Learning Transformation 

 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy decision 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Consultative discussions with and between: 

Director of Education and Children’s Services; Head of Curriculum and Wellbeing; DMT;  

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

2019/20 £20k 

Not replacing 1 FTE following staff turnover (give up core funding element of staff costs), with partial backfill of key duties. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? Please indicate 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 176



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

high (H) medium (M), low (L), no 

effect (N) for each.  

Risks Positive effects  

 

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N    

Disability N    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language N    

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                          NO   

T
udalen 177



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

Discuss with staff and managers how to alter or adapt working arrangements. 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  No 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

There are implications for present employees. If required, established HR processes are available for re-deployment, etc.  

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Aeron Rees 

Date: 

 

 

  

T
udalen 178



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Aeron Rees 

Date of initial assessment:  16th November 2018 

 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Youth Support Service (YSS) 

 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy decision 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Consultative discussions with and between: 

Director of Education and Children’s Services; Head of Curriculum and Wellbeing; DMT; Principal Manager, Youth Support Service; YSS Finance Officer 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

2019-20 £100k 

2020-21 £50k 

 

Reduce provision available to young people/schools e.g. Duke of Edinburgh support, Youth Clubs. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? Please indicate 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 179



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

high (H) medium (M), low (L), no 

effect (N) for each.  

Risks Positive effects  

 

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age L Young people aged 

11-25 accessing youth 

services may be 

affected.  

This proposal makes 

the service more prone 

to the vagaries of grant 

funding and potentially 

poses a challenge to 

job security for staff of 

working age.  

Any cuts to grant 

funding in the future 

will generate some risk 

across the the 4 pillars 

of YSS service 

delivery. 

The exercise is ensuring 

greater efficiency and 

value for money, drawn 

carefully from a variety of 

expenditure items. 

It is anticipated that the recent 

announcement relating to the 

strengthening of the Youth Support 

Grant by Welsh Government in 

2019/20 will provide funding to 

mitigate any reduction against core 

funding and would be used to 

continue to provide the necessary 

staffing for youth clubs. 

 

Disability N    

T
udalen 180



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language M The ending of funding 

for Welsh Language 

Youth Clubs could 

have an effect on 

Welsh language 

speakers.  

 It is anticipated that the recent 

announcement relating to the 

strengthening of the Youth Support 

Grant by Welsh Government in 

2019/20 will provide funding to 

mitigate any reduction against core 

funding and would be used to 

continue to provide the necessary 

staffing for Welsh Language youth 

clubs in the county. 

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                          NO  X 

T
udalen 181



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

Discuss with staff and managers how to alter or adapt working arrangements in some cases. 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  No 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

There are implications for present employees. If required, established HR processes are available for re-deployment, etc.  

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO  X 

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Aeron Rees 

Date: 

16/11/18 

 

  

T
udalen 182



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Aeron Rees 

Date of initial assessment:  16th November 2018 

 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Gwella'r Gymraeg 

 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy decision 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Consultative discussions with and between: 

Director of Education and Children’s Services; Head of Curriculum and Wellbeing; DMT; Welsh Language Development Manager 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

2019/20 £25k 

2020-21 £25k 

 

Reduce number of Welsh advisory teachers 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? Please indicate 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 183



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

high (H) medium (M), low (L), no 

effect (N) for each.  

Risks Positive effects  

 

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N    

Disability N    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language H Reduction of Welsh 

advisory teachers 

could affect the 

teaching of Welsh as a 

subject and teaching 

through the medium of 

Welsh. It could affect 

provision for 

 Restructure the service accordingly 

T
udalen 184



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

latecomers to the 

county 

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                          NO   

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

Discuss with staff and managers how to alter or adapt working arrangements. 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  No 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Aeron Rees 

Date: 

 

 

T
udalen 185



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Aeron Rees 

Date of initial assessment:  16th November 2018 

 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Gwella'r Gymraeg 

 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy decision 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Consultative discussions with and between: 

Director of Education and Children’s Services; Head of Curriculum and Wellbeing; DMT; Welsh Language Development Manager 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

2019/20 £25k 

2020-21 £25k 

 

Reduce number of Welsh advisory teachers 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? Please indicate 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 186



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

high (H) medium (M), low (L), no 

effect (N) for each.  

Risks Positive effects  

 

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N    

Disability N    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language H Reduction of Welsh 

advisory teachers 

could affect the 

teaching of Welsh as a 

subject and teaching 

through the medium of 

Welsh. It could affect 

provision for 

 Restructure the service accordingly 

T
udalen 187



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

latecomers to the 

county 

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                          NO   

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

Discuss with staff and managers how to alter or adapt working arrangements. 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  No 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Aeron Rees 

Date: 

 

 

T
udalen 188



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Andi Morgan 

Date of initial assessment: 15th November 2018 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Educated Otherwise than School 

 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy decision 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Consultative discussions with: 

Director of Education and Children’s Services; DMT; Departmental Colleagues 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

2019-20 £60k 

2020-21 £50k 

Reconsider recoupment from schools cost for EOTAS provision i.e. true value of provision which includes officer support time 

and associated administrative costs to ensure effective delivery of service 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? Please indicate 

high (H) medium (M), low (L), no 

effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

Risks Positive effects  

 

T
udalen 189



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(see guidance notes) 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N     

Disability N    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language N    

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                         NO   

T
udalen 190



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  NO 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

Implementation of this new policy proposal will enable the LA to process a recoupment mechanism containing all elements of costs related to this provision e.g. 

administrative costs and LA Officer time as central part of the smooth functioning of this service. The LA's view is that this proposal reflects a more realistic and 

equitable system to support the funding of this crucial service. 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Andi Morgan 

Date:  17.11.18 

 

 

T
udalen 191



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Stefan Smith 

Date of initial assessment: 16th November 2018 

Revision Dates:  

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Children’s Services – Welfare Service 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Review of Education Welfare Service. 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

 2019-20 £180k  

 

Cease provision of service to schools who already manage most aspects of attendance. Staff would transfer into existing 

vacancies across Children's Services.  Balance of budget maintained to ensure LA's statutory responsibilities can be met. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

 

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

Risks 

There is a risk that the 

level of school 

attendance could decline, 

although this wouldn’t 

affect any one protected 

characteristic 

disproportionately. 

Positive effects  

Increased school 

engagement and 

coproduction of services.  

T
udalen 192



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N    

Disability N    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language N    

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                      NO       

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  No. 

T
udalen 193



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service 

Yes; there is a slight risk of redundancy where staff cannot be re-deployed. Current HR procedures will be followed. 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO       

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stefan Smith 

Date: 

19/11/18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 194



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Stefan Smith 

Date of initial assessment: 16th November 2018 

Revision Dates:  

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Children’s Services – Education Psychology Service 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Review of Education Welfare Service. 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

 2019-20 £50k  

 2020-21 £50k 

 

Reduce number of Education and Child Psychologists and reconsider structure. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

 

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

Risks 

 

Positive effects  

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P r o t e c t e d
 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s
 

Age N    

T
udalen 195



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Disability N    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language N    

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                      NO       

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  No. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

T
udalen 196



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service 

Yes; service restructure and any staff reduction would be conducted with full consultation of HR. 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO       

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stefan Smith 

Date: 

16/11/18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 197



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment 

Department: 

Education & Children 

Completed by (lead): 

Stefan Smith 

Date of initial assessment: 16th November 2018 

Revision Dates:  

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Department for Education & Children, Children’s Services – School Counselling 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Review of Education Welfare Service. 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

 2021-22 £30k  

 

Review SLA with external provider at next renewal which may reduce level of service to schools/young people. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

 

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

Risks 

There may be a reduction 

in level of service to 

schools/young people 

which could affect some 

groups/characteristic 

disproportionally due to 

the proportion of these 

Positive effects  

 

T
udalen 198



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

groups that may require 

additional support. 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N    

Disability Y    

Gender reassignment Y    

Race Y    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity Y    

Sexual Orientation Y    

Sex Y    

Welsh language N    

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                      NO       

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

T
udalen 199



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.  No. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service 

Yes; service restructure and any staff reduction would be conducted with full consultation of HR. 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO       

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stefan Smith 

Date: 

16/11/18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 200



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department: 

Outdoor Recreation Service 

Completed by (lead): 

Neil Thomas 

Date of initial assessment: 

29/11/2018 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? Existing Function 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

 

 Review of the provision and annual bookings at Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 
 Leisure Senior Management meetings 

 The current physical condition of the building and grounds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

We are seeking to consult on the impact of the closure of the Pendine Outdoor Education Centre on existing facility staff and 

users 

T
udalen 201



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, 

harassment and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different 

groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the 

three aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium 

(M), low (L), no effect (N) for 

each.  

 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could 

result for each of the group/protected 

characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

The consultation will identify 

whether staff/users with protected 

characteristics are 

disproportionately affected. This 

EIA will be updated accordingly, 

and any necessary mitigating 

actions will be identified. 

Risks  

 

Positive effects  

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age High Existing Centre users 
(predominately School 
groups) will have to 
access private sector 
outdoor education 
residential provision 
outside of 
Carmarthenshire which 
is likely to cost more 
financially and in time 
for travel. 
Alternatively, Schools 
may decide not to 
access residential 
outdoor education at 
all. 
Alternative provision 
may also not align or 
have content relevant 
to the National 
Curriculum guidance. 

The private sector may be 
able to provide a higher 
standard of facility but not 
necessary a higher 
standard of instruction. 

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 
EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

Disability Medium 

 

Existing Centre users 
(predominately School 
groups) will have to 
access private sector 

The private sector may be 
able to provide a higher 
standard of facility but not 

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 

T
udalen 202



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

outdoor education 
residential provision 
outside of 
Carmarthenshire which 
is likely to cost more 
financially and in time 
for travel. 
Alternatively, Schools 
may decide not to 
access residential 
outdoor education at 
all. 
Alternative provision 
may also not align or 
have content relevant 
to the National 
Curriculum guidance. 

necessary a higher 
standard of instruction. 

EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

Gender reassignment Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Race Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Religion/Belief Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

T
udalen 203



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Pregnancy and maternity Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Sexual Orientation Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Sex Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Welsh language High Pendine Outdoor 
Education Centre aims 
to provide a bilingual 
service to the Schools 
in Carmarthenshire. 
There is no guarantee 
that alternative 
provision can be 
provided bilingually. 
 

There will be a need to 
ensure that service users 
are able to access 
services in the language 
of their choice. This can’t 
be guaranteed. 
 
 

Current users will have to assess if 
alternative service provision outside 
of Pendine Outdoor Education 
Centre caters for Welsh language 
provision. 
 

 

Pre School Education Low The Centre currently 
The Centre does not 
cater for pre-school 
education  

The Centre currently The 
Centre does not cater for 
pre-school education 

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 
EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

T
udalen 204



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 Any other area N/A    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES   X                        NO   

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

 Provide Schools and user groups lists of alternative provision. 

 The five fulltime equivalent staff members, if placed at risk, will be placed on the redeployment register and we will make every attempt to redeploy them to other 

business areas within the County Council if the decision is to close Pendine Outdoor Education Centre. 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. 

N/A 

8. Human resources 
Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 
 
There will be implications for the nine permanent staff members who will be placed on the redeployment register and we will make every attempt to displace them to other areas 
within the County Council if the decision is to close Pendine Outdoor Education Centre. 
 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES   x  

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

Ian Jones Date: 29/11/18 

T
udalen 205



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

 Equality Impact Assessment 

Contact Name Ian Jones Title Head of Leisure 

        

Budget title  Branch Library co-location  

Amount £ £2,393k 

Saving £ £10k (19/20); £5k (20/21); £5k (21/22) 

Description County Library Services has been tasked with finding £20k of savings in the 2019/20 to 2021/22 financial years. 

A service review has taken place looking at branch library provisions across Carmarthenshire. The review outlines a new direction for the 
Service against a background of significant cuts to local authority budgets.  

Library services are continually changing to meet the needs of a developing service, which has led to a need to review the pattern of service 
delivery. Stronger community participation and widening the appeal are essential for the Service to prosper.  

In order to meet the £20k efficiency, some service provision will inevitably be affected. These efficiencies will impact on the following 
areas: 

 Community Branch Library services 

The review suggests that some community branch libraries could be delivered in an alternative way i.e. by co-location with other community 
facilities.  

 

        

Will this proposal have an adverse impact on any particular groups of people including those who may be disadvantaged by virtue of gender, race, 
religion / belief, age, disability or sexual orientation? Will it impact disproportionately on those in lower income groups? 
 

Yes    
Public libraries are a powerful resource and important in addressing a number of the priorities set out in the Welsh 
Government’s “Programme for Government”, including promoting growth and tackling poverty. 
 
Welsh public libraries address poverty by tackling the digital divide, providing access to the internet with trained staff delivering 
advice and guidance, and helping people develop vital information literacy skills. They are also an important community resource 

T
udalen 206



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

in helping people claim Universal Benefit and enabling them to take advantage of a broad range of statutory and voluntary 
support available in their local community.  These and other aspects of the service are planned, shaped and delivered by skilled 
and knowledgeable professional library staff. 

Additionally libraries play an important role in advancing knowledge by providing access to information, supporting 
entrepreneurial activity, and inspiring life-long learning and reading for enjoyment. They foster social mobility and strengthen 
our communities, catering, as they do, for the needs of all parts of society from toddlers and their parents, to students (of all 
ages) and researchers, from local activists to small businesses, and from the frail and elderly and their carers to hobbyists and 
creators.   

 
 

If Yes, please briefly describe the nature of the impact. Which groups are likely to be affected and in what way? 
 

1. There will be limited impact in terms of what is currently provided, and what may be provided in the future.  
2. Welsh Public Library Standards (WPLS) focusses on a more outcome based impact perspective approach, demonstrating the wider contribution 

and value of public libraries and allowing for greater reconfiguration along more innovative lines within local authorities.  
 

Description of 
impact 

Alternative delivery model, rather than reduction in provision.  

 

Consultation 
Have you consulted any of these groups or their representative bodies?   
 
A Service Review has been completed with recommendations being implemented. Service used have been consulted as part of budget consultation 
process.  
 
If so please give details, what was the outcome? 
 
Proposals generally supported.  
 

Description of 
consultation 

Views and opinions sought from Elected Members, local community organisations and groups and all other interested parties, via the 
Council’s established consultation process. 

 

T
udalen 207



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Mitigation 
 

Details of 
steps to be 
taken to 
mitigate any 
adverse 
impact 

Alternative Methods/Forms of Service Delivery 
 

 Volunteer run libraries  
The use of volunteers in libraries has become prominent in the last couple of years. Currently one Community library is operated by 
volunteers within the county. This could be further explored/extended within Carmarthenshire and where implemented would be 
supported and managed by professional Library Service, providing professional support, stocks of books and non book materials along 
with IT support to small community based libraries run by volunteers from within the community. 

 Community councils 

In a number of authorities, community councils have contributed towards library provision. Working in partnership, community councils 
often provide accommodation and staffing, while the county council provide book stock and professional support for these small 
community based libraries. Pontyberem library goes a long way towards this route with the Community Council funding the building and 
staffing costs.  

 Relocation of existing libraries (Proposed) 
Across the Principality libraries are being relocated within other local authority buildings such as Leisure Centres, Community Centres and 
Civic Centres all having been used with varying degrees of success. Where practical, shared premises and staffing with other departments 
/ organisations within Carmarthenshire may be able to offer extended library provision. Such a move would bring savings from having 
shared premises but investment would be needed to fund any such relocations. A good example of shared services can be seen at “Y Gat” 
St Clears.  

 Enhanced housebound  services 
The current housebound delivery service provides a tailored service specific to the requirements of the individual members with stock 
carefully selected by professional staff and delivered to borrowers’ homes by library staff. Many current users in more remote locations 
could be transferred to the home delivery service, which would work in partnership with the Mobile library service. Adopting this 
approach may lead to an increase in transport costs and, in line with many other local authorities, consideration should be given to the 
use of volunteers and the establishment of partnerships with existing providers e.g. social services to deliver the extended service.  

 Deposit collections  
The library service already supplies a number of large deposit collections of books to day centres, nursing homes and hospitals, Stock is 
changed on a regular basis and selected by professional library staff. Providing there are suitable community venues this is a model that 

T
udalen 208



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

can be replicated. Costs for this would be met within existing budget providing there was no staffing or building cost to the Service.  This 
option is currently being explored at Kidwelly.  (Gwenllian Centre)   

 Mobile library service 
By streamlining our static branch library service with an adapted mobile library service,  this has facilitated ‘community’ stops of between 
1 to 3 hours per visit  replacing  the present traditional ‘silver service’ door to door type mobile stop approach of  between  5 and 30 
minutes.       

 Other Provision 

Libraries are recognised as important community venues which often provide a safe learning environment for children out of school 
hours and adults wishing to learn new skills. In many communities, the library may provide the only IT facilities in the area, enabling 
access to the internet. Where possible, consideration should be given to providing access to these services from other alternative 
premises in the area. Where possible, grant funding bodies should be explored in order to facilitate these changes. (e.g. Trimsaran) 

 

Context 
Is this proposal part of a wider plan which would place it in context?  (e.g. closure of an individual facility in the context of a wider investment 
programme).  
 
These efficiencies come on the back previous efficiencies, and the well documented challenge to all public sector organisations to deliver their services 
with fewer resources. Almost every division within the authority has had to deliver significant budget efficiencies over the past number of years; however 
these efficiencies become more challenging to deliver every year.  

In order to support a programme of change and develop a service that responds to the wider agenda for efficiencies and service challenges ahead, the 
service review has had to determine whether to continue to support resources in services that are not fit for purpose and inefficient in terms of hourly 
costs and performance. The “Alternative Methods/Forms of Service Delivery” should enable resources to be applied where performance and service levels 
can best deliver as centres of excellence. 
 

Details of 
context of the 
proposal 

 
These proposals should be subject to an ongoing equalities impact assessment as part of a consultation process. 
 

Monitoring 
Do you have any plans to monitor the ongoing impact on the affected group(s)? 
 

  

T
udalen 209



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Any of these alternatives forms of service delivery would come with a considerable amount of planning and preparation to ensure that 
the replacement service meets with community needs.  Along with this, the need to continually assess performance against delivery will 
be paramount.  (WPLS/CIPFA and Service Review Group) 

 

Other information 
Is there anything else which ought to be recorded? 

  
None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 210



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department 

Communities / Leisure / Culture 

 

Completed by (lead): 

Jane Davies 

Date of initial assessment: 

29/11/2018 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Reduced opening hours at Parc Howard Museum, Llanelli 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? Existing Function 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

 

 Review of the provision through annual budget monitoring and performance management data at the facility 
 Leisure Senior Management meetings 

 User numbers income targets. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

We are seeking to consult on the impact of slightly reducing the opening hours at Parc Howard Museum, on existing facility staff 

and users 

T
udalen 211



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, 

harassment and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different 

groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the 

three aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium 

(M), low (L), no effect (N) for 

each.  

 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could 

result for each of the group/protected 

characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

The consultation will identify 

whether staff/users with protected 

characteristics are 

disproportionately affected. This 

EIA will be updated accordingly, 

and any necessary mitigating 

actions will be identified. 

Risks  

 

Positive effects  

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age Medium Existing users range 
from young children 
through to older adults. 
The facility houses the 
local collections and 
plans to re-open the 
café in the near future 
when opening hours 
may be reviewed 
positively again. 
Reduced opening 
hours may offer less 
opportunity for people 
to access the Museum 
collection.  

Less running costs at 
times when the facility is 
quiet should result in 
better service at the time 
it’s open with re-alignment 
of some resources. 

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 
EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

Disability Medium 

 

The building is 
accessible for existing 
users and visitors. 
Flexibility of visiting 
times may be affected 
with slightly less 
opening times.   

Less running costs at 
times when the facility is 
quiet should result in 
better service at the time 
it’s open with re-alignment 
of some resources. 

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 
EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

T
udalen 212



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Gender reassignment Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Race Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Religion/Belief Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Pregnancy and maternity Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Sexual Orientation Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Sex Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A T
udalen 213



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

protected 

characteristic group 

Welsh language High The Museum aims to 
provide a bilingual 
service to all of its 
visitors. There is no 
guarantee that 
alternative provision 
can be provided 
bilingually. 
 

Less running costs at 
times when the facility is 
quiet should result in 
better service at the time 
it’s open with re-
alignment of some 
resources. 

Current users will have to assess if 
alternative service provision outside 
of the facility caters for Welsh 
language provision. 
 

 

Pre School Education Medium Some of the holiday 
activities provides for 
pre-school education. 
This would have to be 
picked up by external / 
private / third sector 
provision  

Potential for new 
businesses to see this as 
an opportunity for new 
provision. 

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 
EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

 Any other area N/A    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES   X                        NO   

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

 Provide user groups with list of alternative provision. 

 The full-time equivalent staff member, if placed at risk, will be placed on the redeployment register and we will make every attempt to redeploy them to other business 

areas within the County Council if the decision is to close. 

 

T
udalen 214



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. 

N/A 

8. Human resources 
Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 
 
There will be limited implications for the small number of permanent staff members who may be placed on the redeployment register and we will make every attempt to redeploy 
them to other areas within the County Council, or re-negotiate their working hours if the decision is to reduce the opening hours for the facility. 
 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES   x  

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

Ian Jones Date: 29/11/18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 215



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department 

Communities / Leisure / Culture 

 

Completed by (lead): 

Jane Davies 

Date of initial assessment: 

29/11/2018 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Kidwelly Industrial Museum 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? Existing Function 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

 

 Review of the provision through annual budget monitoring and performance management data at the facility 
 Leisure Senior Management meetings 

 User numbers income targets. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

We are seeking to consult on the impact of reducing CCC support funding to the Kidwelly Industrial Museums Trust who manage 

this facility, on existing facility staff and users 

T
udalen 216



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, 

harassment and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different 

groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the 

three aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium 

(M), low (L), no effect (N) for 

each.  

 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could 

result for each of the group/protected 

characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

 

The consultation will identify 

whether staff/users with protected 

characteristics are 

disproportionately affected. This 

EIA will be updated accordingly, 

and any necessary mitigating 

actions will be identified. 

Risks  

 

Positive effects  

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age Medium Existing visitors range 
from young children 
through to older adults, 
but are mainly older in 
profile. Reducing 
funding may result in 
less access or closure 
of the facility and an 
understanding of an 
important part of the 
County’s industrial 
heritage 

Reduced funding may 
make the trust stronger 
and more resilient thus 
sustaining the future of 
the Museum.  

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 
EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

Disability Medium 

 

The site aims to be 
fully accessible for 
users, and reduced 
support funding may 
have an impact on the 
trust’s ability to meet 
this aim.  

Reduced funding may 
make the trust stronger 
and more resilient thus 
sustaining the future of 
the Museum. 

The consultation will identify 
whether staff/users with protected 
characteristics are 
disproportionately affected. This 
EIA will be updated accordingly, 
and any necessary mitigating 
actions will be identified. 

Gender reassignment Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A T
udalen 217



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

protected 

characteristic group 

Race Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Religion/Belief Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Pregnancy and maternity Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Sexual Orientation Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Sex Low Low risk with limited 

impact on this 

protected 

characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 

impact on this protected 

characteristic group 

N/A 

Welsh language High The Museum aims to 
provide a bilingual 

Reduced funding may 

make the trust stronger 

Current users will have to assess if 
alternative service provision outside 

T
udalen 218



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

service to all of its 
visitors. There is no 
guarantee that 
alternative provision 
can be provided 
bilingually. 
 

and more resilient thus 

sustaining the future of 

the Museum and it’s 

provision of Welsh 

language services. 

of the centre caters for Welsh 
language provision. 
 

 

Pre School Education Low Low risk with limited 
impact on this 
protected 
characteristic group 

Low risk with limited 
impact on this protected 
characteristic group 

N/A 

 Any other area N/A    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES   X                        NO   

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

 Provide user groups with list of alternative provision. 

 The part-time equivalent staff member, if placed at risk, will be placed on the redeployment register and we will make every attempt to redeploy them to other business 

areas within the County Council if the decision is to close. 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. 

N/A 

8. Human resources 
Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 
 

T
udalen 219



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

There may be implications for one P/T staff member who will be placed on the redeployment register and we will make every attempt to displace them to other areas within the 
County Council if the decision is to close the Centre. 
 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES   x  

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

Ian Jones Date: 29/11/18 

 

  

T
udalen 220



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department: 

Communities 

Completed by (lead): 

Sharon Frewin 

Date of initial assessment: 

29th December 2017 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Closure of catering training provision.  

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? Existing practice. 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Knowledge of current usage. 

Discussion with relevant staff. 

Consideration of financial implications. 

Consideration of other contracting arrangements.  

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

The Mental Health and Learning Disability division has offered training opportunities for those who face barriers to training and 

employment in two commercial catering settings within the council. There has been a significant decline in the take up of the 

catering training with those who require this being supported in commercial ventures in the community. 

Information on savings proposal: 

Cease provision of one facility which provides catering training - no service users affected. The proposal is to close the catering 

training provision which is also a staff canteen.. The service was originally established via the COASTAL project which ended in 

Dec 2014. Since that time student numbers have dwindled with alternatives within the community being preferred. 

The proposal would also achieve a financial saving as the service is currently subsidised. 

T
udalen 221



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age L    

Disability M Loss of a facility for 

staff. 

 Community work experience 

opportunities can be provided if an 

alternative is needed. 

Gender reassignment L    

Race L    

Religion/Belief L    

Pregnancy and maternity L    

Sexual Orientation L    

Sex L    

Welsh language L    

 Any other area L    

T
udalen 222



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES   x                         NO   

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

Person Centred Reviews have been  undertaken to ensure that any activity  can be undertaken in a more effective way, eg, cooking skills can be developed in the 

persons own home and employment / training can be undertaken in supported work experience. The one remaining student has transferred to a work placement at a 

café in Carmarthen town centre. 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, and service. No. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? Yes. Members of staff will be 

supported to find alternative job opportunities via the redeployment policy / process. To date three out of the six staff have already been redeployed within the 

council. 

 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO  x  

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 Date: 

 

  

T
udalen 223



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department: 

Communities 

 

Completed by (lead): 

Avril Bracey 

Date of initial assessment: 20th January 2019 

 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Review of Third Sector Contracts 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? Existing 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

WAO Report 2017 LA funding of Third Sector Contracts 

Social Services and Wellbeing ( wales) Act 2014 

Budget information concerning Third Sector Contracts 

Reporting Information from Third Sector Contracts 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

The third sector receives grants from CCC to deliver services and support to individuals with a Learning Disability, Mental health 

and substance misuse issues. The WAO report on LA funding of Third Sector contracts in 2017 concluded that LA’s need to be 

more strategic in their approach to third sector contracts and review such contracts to ensure outcomes align with the LA’ 

strategic priorities to ensure value for money . There are also opportunities for the third sector to collaborate to deliver services 

such as information, advice and assistance as prescribed in the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. Outcomes for 

individuals with protected characteristics will be improved if collaboration is enabled and the alignment of third sector objectives  

with the local authority strategic priorities will improve cost effectiveness and   impact on the council’s budget  savings proposals. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 224



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

Risks  Positive effects  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N    

Disability L    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language N    

 Any other area     

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                           NO  X  

T
udalen 225



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? There has been consultation with the Third Sector to explain our intention to 

review their activity and ensure we are working together to deliver the priorities in the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act. Opportunities for collaboration 

between and review of commissioning arrangements with  third sector partners is also an important facet of the HDUHB led Transforming Mental health Services 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. NO 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? NO 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO  X  

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 Date: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 226



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department: 

Communities 

Completed by (lead): 

Sharon Frewin 

Date of initial assessment: 

20th January 2019 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Improve building usage in day centre provision to reduce by one building, saving building operating costs. 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? Existing practice. 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Knowledge of current usage. 

Person Centred reviews 

Discussion with relevant staff. 

Consideration of financial implications. 

Consideration of other contracting arrangements.  

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

Learning Disabilities & Mental Health day services currently provide support for approximately 300 individuals across the county 

utilising 8 different sites. The services provide opportunities for individuals to receive therapy, maintain their health and wellbeing, 

gain skills, socialise whilst also providing respite for carers. The review of day services has highlighted the need to develop 

community options and specialist services which will see a decline in the use of building based services. This will provide 

opportunities for us to develop community hubs, social enterprises and activities in existing community venues. 

 T
udalen 227



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age L    

Disability M Loss of a building 

based facility. 

Move from segregated 

service to community 

inclusion. 

Individuals will access existing 

community groups, services or 

develop activities within community 

venues. 

Gender reassignment L    

Race L    

Religion/Belief L    

Pregnancy and maternity L    

Sexual Orientation L    

Sex L    

Welsh language L    

T
udalen 228



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 Any other area L    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES   x                         NO   

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

Person Centred Reviews have been undertaken to understand what activities currently undertaken within building based settings could be undertaken in a 

community setting. A community mapping activity has also been undertaken in order to identify activities and venues within the community which could be 

accessed or developed. 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, and service. No. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service?  

Yes, the change to community based activities could result in a change to the work base of some staff. The necessary consultation and notice periods will be 

applied as per policy. 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO  x  

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 Date: 

 

T
udalen 229



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date of initial assessment: 14/11/2018 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £38,000 (by 2021/22) 

Review maintenance of flower beds and shrubbery in town centres.  

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Budget 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

The proposal is to cease town centre planting or transfer to town councils as we are aware that some town councils have 
expressed an interest in undertaking this work. 
 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  

T
udalen 230



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Disability (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Gender reassignment (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Race (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Religion/Belief (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Pregnancy and maternity (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Sexual Orientation (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Sex (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Welsh language (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

 Any other area (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal / service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. N/A 

T
udalen 231



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? N/A 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

Stephen Pilliner Date: 

14/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 232



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date of initial assessment: 14/11/2018 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £19,000 (by 2021/22) 

Planting at Eastgate roundabout, Llanelli.  

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Budget 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

To cease planting on Eastgate roundabout but will engage with the Town Council and BID to explore option of transfer. 
 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  

T
udalen 233



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Disability (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Gender reassignment (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Race (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Religion/Belief (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Pregnancy and maternity (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Sexual Orientation (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Sex (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Welsh language (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

 Any other area (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal / service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. N/A 

T
udalen 234



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? N/A 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date: 

14/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 235



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date of initial assessment: 14/11/2018 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £49,000 (by 2021/22) 

Amenity grass cutting around town centres.  

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Budget 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

To cease Amenity Grass Cutting around town centres or transfer to town councils as we are aware that some town councils 
have expressed an interest in undertaking this work.  

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  

T
udalen 236



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Disability (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Gender reassignment (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Race (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Religion/Belief (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Pregnancy and maternity (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Sexual Orientation (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Sex (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

Welsh language (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

 Any other area (1) N  (2) N  (3) N N/A N/A N/A 

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal / service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. N/A 

T
udalen 237



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? N/A 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date: 

14/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 238



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date of initial assessment:  14/11/2018  Updated: 16/01/2019. 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £32,000 (by 2021/22). 

Review all winter maintenance routes to rationalise the number of routes that are subject to treatment. 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Budget 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

Review all winter maintenance routes to rationalise the number of routes that are subject to treatment. 

All groups of people are impacted by winter weather conditions and the Winter Maintenance service which is conducted in the 

area. Overall, anyone who has a need to travel would be impacted to some extent. The review of the Winter Maintenance routes 

will adopt the risk based approach as set in our Highway Asset Management Plan, so that resources are targeted at those areas 

of greatest need. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  T
udalen 239



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(see guidance notes) 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Disability (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Gender reassignment (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Race (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Religion/Belief (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Pregnancy and maternity (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Sexual Orientation (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Sex (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Welsh language (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

 Any other area (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

T
udalen 240



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Some routes could be added to secondary routes with minimal impact to the routes taken by gritters, others will be impractical, so we may decide to place grit bins out. The 

availability of alternative and safer routes which continue to receive a gritting service should also be identified – for example, in adverse weather conditions, people can 

choose to use a main route, which may be a safer alternative to using a more direct albeit smaller, untreated road. 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, or service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date: 

16/01/2019 

 

T
udalen 241



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date of initial assessment:  14/11/2018 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £282,000 (by 2021/22). 

The County Council maintains 3,371 km of highway in Carmarthenshire. It is the second largest length of highway 

network in Wales. The Authority has a statutory duty to maintain the network to a safe standard to facilitate the safe 

movement of goods and people 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Budget 

 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

To cease scheduled mechanical sweeping on rural roads. Town centre areas are swept by the Cleansing team, however, 

Highways undertake scheduled and ad hoc sweeping of rural roads and retain or hire sweepers to do this work. The proposal is 

that Highways will not continue to undertake ad hoc sweeping and will respond on a reactive basis to emergencies by hiring if 

there is a safety issue. Highways will also procure brush attachments to support the patch planing operation. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 242



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

Risks  Positive effects  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
P

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) L  (2) N  (3) N    

Disability (1) L  (2) N  (3) N    

Gender reassignment (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Race (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Religion/Belief (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Pregnancy and maternity (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Sexual Orientation (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Sex (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Welsh language (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

 Any other area (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                           NO   

 

T
udalen 243



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, or service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date: 

14/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 244



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date of initial assessment:  14/11/2018  Updated: 16/01/2019. 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £150,000 (by 2021/22). 

The County Council maintains 3,371 km of highway in Carmarthenshire. It is the second largest length of highway 

network in Wales. The Authority has a statutory duty to maintain the network to a safe standard to facilitate the safe 

movement of goods and people. 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Budget 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

The proposal is to reduce the number of schemes delivered by the surface dressing programme. There will be an increased risk 

of further deterioration in the network that will affect all road users. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  T
udalen 245



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(see guidance notes) 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) Low  (2) N  (3) N Older people can be 

less steady on their 

feet and more prone to 

trip hazards. 

Deteriorating 

carriageway conditions 

may lead to increased 

accidents and a 

reduced confidence in 

going out in public. 

 Surface dressing is predominantly 

used on rural roads, where 

pedestrian traffic is very light and 

the risk is perceived to be very low. 

If the road is pot holed, the pot hole 

will be repaired prior to surface 

dressing. 

Disability (1) Low  (2) N  (3) N As above but 

especially important 

with certain 

impairments such as 

poor vision or limited 

mobility. 

 Surface dressing is predominantly 

used on rural roads, where 

pedestrian traffic is very light and 

the risk is perceived to be very low. 

If the road is pot holed, the pot hole 

will be repaired prior to surface 

dressing. 

Gender reassignment (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Race (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Religion/Belief (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

T
udalen 246



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Pregnancy and maternity (1) Low  (2) N  (3) N Women who are 

heavily pregnant may 

be at increased risk of 

falls if they are 

unsteady on their feet. 

 Surface dressing is predominantly 

used on rural roads, where 

pedestrian traffic is very light and 

the risk is perceived to be very low. 

If the road is pot holed, the pot hole 

will be repaired prior to surface 

dressing. 

Sexual Orientation (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Sex (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

Welsh language (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

 Any other area (1) N  (2) N  (3) N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

 

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? 

 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, or service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

T
udalen 247



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Stephen Pilliner 

Date: 

14/11/2018 

 

  

T
udalen 248



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Daniel W John, Waste Services 

Manager 

Date of initial assessment: 14/11/2018 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £165,000 (by 2021/22) 

Household Waste Recycling Centre provision.  

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

Budget  

Scoping Review  

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

Review the Household Waste Recycling Centre provision in the north of the County in addition to altering the operating 
parameters for all sites to provide a less costly service. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

Risks  Positive effects  T
udalen 249



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(see guidance notes) 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Disability (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Gender reassignment (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Race (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Religion/Belief (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Pregnancy and maternity (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Sexual Orientation (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Sex (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Welsh language (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

 Any other area (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                           NO   

 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

 

T
udalen 250



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal / service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. N/A 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? N/A 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Ainsley Williams 

Date: 

14/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 251



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template     

Department: 

Environment 

Completed by (lead): 

Daniel W John, Waste Services 

Manager 

Date of initial assessment: 14/11/2018 

 

Revision Dates: Ongoing 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Financial savings:  £66,000 (by 2021/22) 

Bring sites are located across the County to provide recycling facilities within communities. They currently cater for 

glass, paper and cans in the main.  

Undertake a review into the Bring site locations taking into account levels of usage and any other difficulties with the 

sites. A reduction of between 30 and 40% is predicted.  

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) 

 Budget 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

Reduce fleet by 50% through reduction in Bring site provision. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 252



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

Risks  Positive effects  

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Disability (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Gender reassignment (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Race (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Religion/Belief (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Pregnancy and maternity (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Sexual Orientation (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Sex (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

Welsh language (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

 Any other area (1) L  (2) L  (3) L N/A N/A N/A 

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

YES                           NO   

 

T
udalen 253



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?  N/A 

 
7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal / service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. N/A 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? Yes – The reduction in servicing of 

the sites would result in the displacement of a member of staff into another front line service.  

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO   

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

 

Ainsley Williams 

Date: 

14/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 254



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template    Appendix 1 

Department: 

Chief Executive’s 

 

Completed by (lead): 

Linda Rees-Jones 

Date of initial assessment: 09/11/18 

 

Revision Dates: 

Area to be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function, 

procedure, practice or a financial decision) 

Schedule of Council Meeting Dates 

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision? New Policy 

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only) Assessment of volume of County Council business requiring decisions on 

Agendas 

 

 

1.  Describe the aims, objectives or 

purpose of the proposed function/policy, 

practice, procedure or decision and who 

is intended to benefit. 

To streamline County Council decision making based on the reduction in the volume of business to be transacted following the 

implementation of executive arrangements. 

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 

the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to:-  

2.  What is the level of impact on 

each group/ protected 

characteristics in terms of the three 

aims of the duty? 

3.  Identify the risk or positive effect that could result 

for each of the group/protected characteristics?  

4.  If there is a disproportionately 

negative impact what mitigating 

factors have you considered? 

T
udalen 255



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

(1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment 

and victimisation; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between 

different groups; and 

(3) foster good relations between different groups 

(see guidance notes) 

Please indicate high (H) medium (M), 

low (L), no effect (N) for each.  

Risks  Positive effects  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s

 

Age N    

Disability N    

Gender reassignment N    

Race N    

Religion/Belief N    

Pregnancy and maternity N    

Sexual Orientation N    

Sex N    

Welsh language N    

 Any other area N    

 

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate 

protected characteristics?  

 

Not applicable. 

YES                           NO   

T
udalen 256



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any? Not applicable 

7. Procurement  

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service. 

Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice. 

Not applicable 

8. Human resources 

Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service? 

Reduction in officer time scheduling, preparing for and attending meetings. 

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this 

function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed 

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2)  

 

YES    

 

NO  x  

Approved by: 

Head of Service 

Linda Rees-Jones Date: 09/11/18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 257



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 258



Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013 

 

T
udalen 259



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



Demographic, Legislative or continuing pressures APPENDIX D

Description

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Project Development Officer - Llanelli Wellness Centre 55

Total for the Chief Executives Department 55 0 0 0

Childrens Services 100 50
Increasing cost of legal services due to cases tending to be more 

complex. Trends suggest that this pressure will continue

ALN Reform 400

Provide key team to implement statutory reform provision & 

dissipate future financial /lgal challenges arising from a lack of 

capacity to deal with an incresing numbers of ALN/Inclusion 

challenges.

Behaviour Support Services 200
Initial stage of behaviour review - setting up inclusion 

bases/behaviour pods

WESP strategy implementation 70 Revenue funding to staff Welsh language immersion centres

Curriculum Reform - Local 25
To support local curriculum developments as further releases of 

curriculum reform are progressed

Transforming 14-16 Learning Pathways & Young Apprenticeships 200
Continuing work previously grant funded - partnership working, 

curriculum chioce, developing links, helping to reduce NEETs.

Families First Hub coordinator 40
Provide more flexibility across the 3 hubs and ennsure staff are 

deployed effectively to maixmise benefit to young people.

Youth Worker- Health & Well being 36
Previously funded via a grant and recognised as good practice to 

provide such a service.

Governance/Finance/School Reorganisation Challenge Advisor 60
Education post to coordinate school management and review 

with HR & Finance 

School Meals Service - legislative kitchen maintenance 100
Maintenance of school kitchens is on a priority basis and current 

budget does not cover urgent works across over 100 kitchens. 

School Admissions-IT Development and Post 50

Further development of software required to meet needs of the 

LA.  In the longer term, an additional member of staff would then 

enable system maintainence & upgrade.

Assessment team - additional social worker 45
Existing teams need additional resource to manage case loads 

within appropriate time constraints.

Direct payments 50

Ongoing review of most effective support for families.  Increasing 

offer of flexibility for families moving away from traditional respite 

support.

Total for the Education & Childrens Department 1,376 50 0 600

Demographic Pressure 3.9% population growth 75+ 1,797 1,867 1,940
Based on anticipated increase in demand on residential and 

domiciliary care related to population growth

National Living Wage pressure on Commissioned care 1,695 1,695 1,145

Current estimate on commissioned services if Govt make 

mandatory increases in hourly rate of Dom care and

res care

Domiciary Care - impact of Allied Health situation 100 100 100

Total for the Communities Department 3,592 3,662 3,185 2,400 (600 excl grant)

Housing Benefit - Administration Grant reduction 50 reduction in administration grant received from DWP

Corporate Insurance 53 Increase in premium for corporate cover

Total for the Corporate Services Department 103 0 0 0

Waste strategy 205 590 644 as per draft Waste strategy costings. 

Potential reduction in SWM Grant 156 156 156
Estimated shortfall in the Sustainable Waste Management grant 

based on the reduction between 17/18 and 18/19.
 

Kerbside Glass Collection 250
Potential net cost of introducing kerbside glass collection (cost 

offset by reduction in Bring Site provision).

Potential New HWRC in northern sector of County. 50
Running costs for potential new HWRC in the northern sector of 

the County, over current and previous provision.

Eradication of Japanese knotweed 25 Statutory obligation to remove the knot weed from Council land

Purchase of litter bins 25 Purchase of litter bins

Creation of a Sustainable Drainage Approval Body 108 76

Implementation of schedule 3 of the Flood and Water 

Management Act 2010. From the 7th of January 2019 CCC will 

be required to review and approve applications for all 

developments with ‘drainage implications’. In addition, there is a 

requirement for the SAB to adopt and manage the surface water 

drainage systems once they are satisfied that, if constructed, the 

drainage system is compliant with national standards. The cost of 

funding 3 FTEs as the first phase of implementation would be 

approximately £108k (Systems Officer, Engineer & Technician) 

with an additional 2 FTES in the following year.

 

Transport

Cycle routes maintenance 75  
Highways maintenance of cycle routes plus on road C class 

routes to support the Cycling strategy.

School transport 200 180 180
Market pressures, Demographic growth and MEP pressures. 

Review of profiling to be undertaken.

Public rights of way 70 80 ROWIP commitments - cessation of a ROWIP grant

Proposed Allocation 

2019-20

1 of 2

Tudalen 261



Description

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Proposed Allocation 

2019-20

Tywi Valley path 50 70 50 Maintenance of the Tywi valley path

Active Travel Act 45 45

Requirements of the Active Travel Act as a legislative demand, 

particularly given the future shape of LTF funding; we currently 

spend Circa £15-£20 p.a. on the administration elements (this 

does not include scheme delivery that recognises our 

requirement to demonstrate continuous improvement)

Parking Services - income 451
Car Park validation of income not achievable plus carry forward 

of legacy policy decisions on charging.

Parking Services - ticket machines 160 Modernise car park ticket machines

Highway Maintenance 500 500 500 Adverse weather repairs to highway

Delivery of the Highways Asset Management Plan 100 150 150

Highway drainage inventory and condition survey - Collection 

of above and below ground inventory data to address flood risk 

management and risk based maintenance prioritisation. (£50k in 

years 2 and 3); Infrastructure video inventory update  - 

Network video survey enabling inventory capture, point cloud 

data and condition assessment (£100k in years 1,2 and 3)

 

Planning

LDP - Programme Officer & enquiry costs 10 90

Additional funding required to meet the ongoing costs associated with 

the legislative requirements arising from the review and preparation of 

the Local Development Plan including ICT requirements, evidence 

gathering and examination costs.

 

Built Heritage Projects & Training Co-ordinator 29 17

Additional funding is required to employ a Projects and Training 

coordinator within the Built Heritage team.  A business plan is 

currently being developed that demonstrates that the continued 

development of the Built Heritage Team will have outcomes 

which will contribute to meeting the requirements of the Well-

being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 

Establishment of a Development and Delivery Unit. 104

Establishment of a Development and Delivery unit that would 

support delivery of CCC's statutory functions, capital projects, 

generation of capital receipts and regeneration ambitions.  The 

unit would put in place an innovative approach aimed at 

delivering the above, adding value and control through bringing 

planning support in house reducing external commissions etc. 

and building on skills across the authority.  

 

Total for the Environment Department 2,313 2,254 1,680 1,300

TOTAL 7,439 5,966 4,865
4,300

 (2,500 excl grant)

2 of 2

Tudalen 262



CYNGOR SIR  
20ain CHWEFROR 2019

RHAGLEN GYFALAF PUM MLYNEDD (CRONFA’R CYNGOR) - 
2019/20 - 2023/24

ARGYMHELLION Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL:
Bod y Cyngor Sir yn cymeradwyo: 

1. Y Rhaglen Gyfalaf Pum Mlynedd a’i ariannu yn unol ag Atodiad B, gyda 
chyllideb 2018/19 yn un bendant a chyllidebau 2019/20 i 2022/23 yn rhai 
mynegiannol.

2. Bod y rhaglen yn cael ei hadolygu, fel sy'n arferol, os na cheir y cyllid 
allanol neu'r  Cyngor Sir a ragwelwyd.

3. Cymeradwyo'r Strategaeth Gyfalaf (Atodiad C).

Y RHESYMAU: 
Galluogi'r Awdurdod i gytuno Rhaglen Gyfalaf Pum Mlynedd 2018/19 i 2022/23. 

Ymgynghorwyd â’r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol DO          
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad   OES 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
Chris Moore

Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Mark Gower

Swydd: 

Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau
Corfforaethol

Uwch Gyfrifydd - Cyfalaf

Rhif ffôn:  (01267) 224120
Cyfeiriad E-bost:
cmoore@sirgar.gov.uk

mgower@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 263

Eitem Rhif  9.2

mailto:cmoore@sirgar.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE 20TH FEBRUARY 2019

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME (COUNCIL FUND)  – 2019/20 
TO 2023/24

The report brings together the latest proposals for the Five Year Capital Programme 
2019/20 to 2023/24. The report also takes account of the consultation exercise 
undertaken and the revenue implications arising from the capital programme.

The capital programme proposed gross expenditure for 2019/20 is £104.708m with the 
projected funding of the programme being £59.109m from the County Council through 
the use of borrowing, capital receipts, reserves and general capital grant. The balance 
of funding of £45.599m will come from external sources.

The capital programme is projected to be fully funded over the 5 years from 2019/20 
through to 2023/24.

The Capital Programme also includes projected expenditure that is to be expended on 
the Swansea Bay City Region Deal projects, which the authority will borrow against with 
the funding being returned from WG and UK government over a 15 years period.

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was updated by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in December 2017. 

This Code dictates that “authorities should have in place a capital strategy that sets out 
the long-term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made 
and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of 
priority outcomes.” The Capital Strategy covers both Council Fund and HRA capital. 
This Capital Strategy is included as Appendix C.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 264



INTEGRATION

I confirm that the Community Strategy Integration Tool has:

Not been used to appraise the subject of this report as it is not appropriate to do so.

Signed:        C. Moore                                                          Director of Corporate Services.                                                     

IMPLICATIONS 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:        C. Moore                                                            Director of Corporate Services.

Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Organisational 
Development 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE NONE YES 

Finance
The updated Capital Programme is projected to be fully funded for the 5 years 2019/20 through 
to 2023/24. If any of the currently anticipated funding does not materialise, the Capital 
Programme will need to be revisited.
Physical Assets
New assets created from the Capital Programme will be added to the Council’s portfolio. In 
addition the Programme proposes expenditure to improve the existing assets and comply with 
statutory responsibilities.

Tudalen 265



CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed:    C. Moore                                                           Director of Corporate Services

1.Local Member(s)    N/A.
2.Community / Town Council    N/A
3.Relevant Partners    Full consultation has been undertaken
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   Full consultation has been 
undertaken 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

These are detailed below
             

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

2018-23 Capital 
Programme Corporate Services Dept, County Hall, Carmarthen

2019-24 Capital 
Programme Corporate Services Dept, County Hall, Carmarthen

Tudalen 266



1

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES

 COUNTY COUNCIL
  

20th FEBRUARY 2019
FIVE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME – 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22, 

2022/23 and 2023/24

HEAD OF SERVICE & DESIGNATION

C Moore,  Director of Corporate Services

DIRECTORATE

Corporate 
Services

TELEPHONE NO.

01267 224120

AUTHOR &  DESIGNATION 

C Moore,  Director of Corporate Services

M Gower, Senior Accountant 

DIRECTORATE

Corporate 
Services

TELEPHONE NO.

01267 224120

01267 224188

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Executive Board on the 17th December 2018 considered and endorsed 
the draft five year Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2023/24 report for 
consultation purposes. 

1.2. This report updates members on the latest position taking account of 
the consultation results and aims to establish the Authority’s five year 
Capital Programme.

1.3. Since the consultation process, an extra £600k has been confirmed by 
Welsh Government in relation to additional general capital grant 
awarded. Details are included in paragraph 3.5 below. The Additional 
£600k has been allocated equally (£200k each) to Disabled Facilities 
Grant (2019/20), Tywi Valley Path (2019/20) and Amman Valley Leisure 
Centre (2020/21). There was also a minor change to the supported 
borrowing figure from Welsh Government, which increased the 
supported borrowing from £5.867m to £5.868m for 2019/20, thus giving 
an additional £5k over the 5 years of the capital programme. The 
additional £5k has been allocated to Provision Expenditure in Education 
for 2019/20.

1.4. The Authority is required to approve a rolling capital programme each 
year as part of the budget process. This facilitates forward planning, is 
consistent with the requirements of the Prudential Code in terms of 
financial planning and funding, and assists officers in bidding for 
external funding.

1.5. The Executive Board needs to consider the detailed proposals within 
the report and approve the recommendations in accordance with 
Council policy.

Tudalen 267



2

2. CONSULTATION

2.1. The budget consultation exercise was launched with the approval of the 
three year budget strategy by executive board on 19th November 2018. 
The detailed provisional Capital Programme (Appendix B) was then 
endorsed for consultation by Executive Board on 17th December 2018 
and has subsequently been presented to the Policy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee on 11th January 2019 to seek their views on the 
five year proposals. The relevant minute of the Committee meeting is 
appended (Appendix A) for review and comprehensive feedback on the 
wider consultation is detailed within the Revenue Budget report which 
is being presented to the same meeting. 

3. FUNDING

3.1. The final settlement which has recently been received from the Welsh 
Government (WG) indicates capital funding of £11.421m for the 
Authority in 2019-20. This is made up of Supported Borrowing of 
£5.868m and General Capital Grant of £5.553m. Included within the 
General Capital Grant of £5.553m is £1.983m of additional General 
Capital funding referred to in point 3.5 below.

3.2. The level of capital receipts funding included within the programme has 
been revised in line with latest estimates. General capital receipts of 
£9.642m are forecast over the 5 year period.  In addition a further 
£0.488m of earmarked education receipts is expected from the sale of 
redundant school buildings. It should be noted that there may be a need 
to amend future capital programmes if there is a shortfall in expected 
receipts.

3.3. Use of earmarked reserves was approved as part of previous year’s 
reports and were included as funding for the current capital programme. 
In total some £45m of reserve funding is included over the five years of 
this programme.  

3.4. Within the Modernising Education Programme (MEP) additional 
resources have been approved in recent years for the Band A 21st 
Century Schools projects. (This was in response to a request by the WG 
to bring forward their Band A projects). This investment includes 
supported borrowing, earmarked reserves and capital receipts and is 
part of the County Council’s 50% contribution towards the Band A 
projects with the balance in funding coming from the WG. 

WG have recently announced the approval of the Band B programme 
running from 2019 to 2026, with an estimated programme value of 
£129.5m for Carmarthenshire.  This will require a Local Authority (LA) 
contribution in the region of £36.5m capital funding of which £23m is 
allocated within the programme to 2024. Recently the WG annonced an 
increase to their contribution level towards the Band B projects with the 
new rate being 65% and the County Council’s contribution rate now 
being 35%. For Special Schools the WG contribution rate has increased 
to 75% of scheme costs.  

Tudalen 268



3

The £129.5m allocation includes £25m for the Mutual Investment Model 
(MIM) projects for which the LA is required to contribute 25% from 
revenue funding. The Mutual Investment Model is an alternative funding 
model developed by Welsh Government, which takes account of the 
whole life costs of the education building, and would be funded through 
a revenue contribution of up to 25% and WG grant funding of 75%. The 
Authority will need to monitor closely the development of this 
programme in order to ensure that funding is available to cover the 
projects as they are committed.

3.5. On the 20th November 2018 Welsh Government announced proposals 
for additional funding for local authorities. Within this announcement the 
then Cabinet Secretary identified an additional £100m general capital 
grant over a 3 year period, this being phased £50m 2018/19, £30m 
2019/20, £20m 2020/21. On the 10th January Welsh Government 
confirmed the amount of this additional funding for us as an Authority, 
and it equates to £6.6m., this has now been included within the 
proposed capital programme funding. The council’s additional allocation 
per year is as follows, £3.298m in 2018/19, £1.983m in 2019/20 and 
£1.319m in 2020/21.

3.6. Funding from external parties in the form of grants for the whole of the 
capital programme is currently expected to be in the region of £128m.

4. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2023/24

4.1. When the capital programme was approved at County Council on 21st 
February 2018 it was fully funded apart from the 4th year (2021/22) that 
showed a shortfall of £1.462m.  This  shortfall was subsequently 
addressed during the closure of the  2017-18 accounts.

4.2. As part of the compilation of the proposed Capital Programme a review 
of the years 2019/20 to 2022/23 has been undertaken and new 
expenditure/schemes have been proposed for the 5th Year 2023/24. 
The paragraphs below detail the changes to the existing projects and 
identifies the new proposals.   The revised capital programme inclusive 
of the amendments and new projects is set out in Appendix B    

Community Services

4.3. Within Community Services a commitment was made previously for 
continued developments at Pembrey Country Park, Carmarthen 
Museums Collections and Park Howard museum.

4.4. A further £700k has been allocated in 2020/21 for the upgrading of 
Amman Valley Leisure Centre.

4.5. In 2023/24 within Private Sector Housing, funding is provided for 
Disabled Facility Grants £2m. An additional £200k was also allocated to 
Disabled Facility Grants in 2019/20.

Tudalen 269



4

4.6. The forecast figures in this report do not include the impact on the 
programme of the Executive Board decision, taken in February 2019, to 
approve and recommend to County Council  a loan facility of up to 
£6million to the housing company Cartrefi Croeso. The precise values 
and timings will be subject to the business plan, and consequently will 
be clearly articulated as part of the report to County Council.

Environment

4.7. For 2023/24 further allocations to existing rolling programmes of work 
are included such as Highway Improvements £600k, Bridge 
Maintenance £400k and Road Safety Improvement £250k.

4.8. Highway Maintenance has been successful in securing £1.5m 
additional Welsh Government grant for 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 
through a Road Refurbishment Grant. The 2019/20 and 2020/21 will 
directly benefit this proposed capital programme.

4.9. An additional £450k has been allocated to Tywi Valley Path for 2019/20.

4.10. A further phase of the redevelopment of the Glanamman Industrial 
Estate at £1m is included within the programme. The continuation and 
ongoing investment into Capitalised Maintenance of £3m is proposed 
for 2023/24. 

4.11. The 5 year Fleet Replacement Programme for £9.275m is included to 
ensure that vehicles and plant machinery assets are replaced when 
they reach the end of their viable economic life. The funding for this 
capital spend will be provided directly from revenue budgets of the 
service users via prudential borrowing.

Education and Children

4.12. In the Education and Children capital programme the MEP includes the 
continuation of the Band A 21st Century Schools improvement 
programme. The programme has been re-profiled to reflect updated 
costs and the phasing of work. Schemes are funded jointly by Welsh 
Government grant and the Authority. 

4.13. Further funding has been allocated for the next stage of the 21st Century 
Schools improvement programme – Band B.  £23m has been 
earmarked from County Council resources to match fund this 
investment. The councils investment will attract £47m of Welsh 
Government match funding based on a 65% grant for schools and a 
75% grant for special school.

Welsh Government have recently approved a programme of schemes 
totalling £129.5m for Carmarthenshire, which includes Capital Grant 
funding and the Mutual Investment Model.

The Mutual Investment Model looks at life cycle cost over a 25 year 
period, and will be delivered with a Welsh Government partner. The 

Tudalen 270



5

model currently being developed by the Welsh Government council has 
identified 3 schemes that are likely to be delivered by this model. 
However as clarity is provided by Welsh Government, these schemes 
may change with other Band B proposals. The match funding available 
for the MIM programme currently is at an intervention rate of 75%.

Chief Executive 

4.14. IT services have £2.2m allocated across the programme.  Priority of 
projects is to be reviewed by the service to ensure that the authority’s 
needs are managed.

Regeneration

4.15. Transformation Strategy Project Fund has been allocated £1.5m for 
2023/24, along with allocations made in February 2018 for 2019/20 for 
Rural Enterprise Fund of £1m and the Commercial Property 
Development Fund £1.5m to meet demand on existing grant schemes 
for 3rd party business’s and commercial developments to create new 
employment opportunities and encourage economic growth.

4.16. Included within Regeneration (City Deal) is a budget of £6.918m for the 
Llanelli Area Review. This budget will be used in conjunction with the 
£82k allocated in previous years. Thereby the total budget for this 
scheme still stands at £7.0m and will form part of the council’s 
contribution to the Wellness village.

4.17. Also included within the Regeneration (City Deal) is a budget of 
£16.470m for Llanelli Leisure Centre. This budget will be used in 
conjunction with the £30k allocated in previous years. Thereby the total 
budget for this scheme still stands at £16.5m and will form part of the 
council’s contribution to the Wellness village.

4.18. The Capital Programme includes the proposed expenditure on the 2 
Capital City Deal Projects that are funded by WG. This expenditure, 
whilst being incurred by the Authority will be repaid to the Authority over 
a 15 year period by Welsh Government. The structure of the City Deal 
projects is that WG expects the Authority deliver the projects and raise 
the funding through borrowing which will then be repaid by grant over 
the next 15 years. The projects or the Authority will need to 
accommodate the interest payments on this borrowing (CC revenue 
budget currently does not include any funding for these interest 
payments).  The 2 Capital projects the Authority will deliver are the 
Wellness Village at £40m with current forecasted expenditure being 
profiled £20m for 2019/20, £19.6m for 2020/21 and £0.4m for 21/22., 
and Yr Egin at £5m being profiled £3m for 2018/19 and £2m for 2020/21. 
You will note that in Appendix B, both the £40m for the Wellness Village 
and the £2m for Yr Egin are reflected as External Funding.

Tudalen 271



6

5. WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

5.1. In considering the capital programme, members need to take into 
consideration the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. The Act requires the public bodies to carry out 
development sustainably, improving the economic, social, environmental 
and cultural well-being of Wales. 

‘… the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the 
needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs’

5.2. In doing so, we must demonstrate the following five ways of working:

i. Looking at the long-term so that we do not compromise the ability 
of future generations to meet their own needs

ii. Understanding the root causes of issues to prevent them recurring

iii. Taking an integrated approach so that we look at all well-being 
goals and objectives of other services and partners

iv. Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared 
sustainable solutions

v. Involving a diversity of population in decisions that affect them

5.3. The Act identifies seven well-being goals and provide a shared vision for 
public bodies to work towards. We must work towards achieving all of 
them.

i. A prosperous Wales

ii. A resilient Wales

iii. A healthier Wales

iv. A more equal Wales

v. A Wales of cohesive communities

vi. A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language

vii. A globally responsible Wales

5.4. Our well-being objectives are designed to maximise our contribution to 
achieving the seven well-being goals of the Act. 

5.5. All projects within the programme have been assesses and scored with 
the five ways of working, the seven goals and our corporate well-being 
statement in mind.

Tudalen 272



7

6. SUMMARY

The table below gives a breakdown of the expenditure by departments and the 
sources of funding. 

Capital Programme Summary    
   

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure   
Community Services 9,014 2,800 2,550 2,100 2,000
Environment 11,890 10,456 13,865 7,215 4,310
Education & Children 36,381 27,820 16,518 10,543 2,705
Chief Executive 1,060 250 900 0 0
Regeneration 46,363 37,100 6,058 4,500 4,500
Total Expenditure 104,708 78,426 39,891 24,358 13,515
      
Grants and Contributions      
External Funding 45,599 50,560 17,925 10,860 3,200
      
Net Expenditure Funded by CCC 59,109 27,866 21,966 13,498 10,315
      
CCC Funding      
Supported Borrowing 5,868 5,868 5,868 5,868 5,868
Unsupported Borrowing 5,000 500 0 0 0
General Capital Grant 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570
General Capital Grant (3 year allocation of £6.6m) 5,281 1,319 0 0 0
Capital Receipts 7,130 1,500 1,500 0 0
Capital Reserves 23,624 8,393 48 80 627
Additional Borrowing – MEP 4,987 0 0 0 0
Prudential Borrowing - Fleet Replacement 549 366 6,380 1,980 0
MEP Reserve/DRF 0 5,750 4,000 2,000 250
Joint Venture Funding Llanelli Leisure Centre 2,500 0 0 0 0
Direct Revenue Funding 600 600 600 0 0
      
Overall Net Position : Surplus (+) / Deficit (-) 0 0 0 0 0

6.1. To summarise the overall position, the capital programme is fully funded 
for the 5 years from 2019/20 to 2023/24, based on the Authority’s 
estmated projection of funding.

6.2. The total cost of the programme is £261m of which £133m is to be 
funded by the County Council and £128m is funded from external grants 
and contributions. 

6.3. The full detail of the proposed five year capital programme is attached 
in Appendix B.

Tudalen 273



8

7. REVENUE IMPLICATIONS

7.1. No revenue implications have been validated within the revenue budget 
and if funding is required, departments will need to find resources from 
within their existing budgets.

8. RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1. That Executive Board consider and recommend to County Council:

8.1.1 The five year Capital Programme and funding as detailed in 
Appendix B, with 2019/20 being a hard budget and 2020/21 to 
2023/24 soft/indicative budgets.  

8.1.2. That the programme be reviewed, as is usual, if anticipated 
External or County Council funding does not materialise

8.1.3 That the Capital Strategy (appendix C) be approved. 

Tudalen 274



Appendix A

1

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES
COUNTY COUNCIL

  

20th FEBRUARY 2019
Capital Budget Consultation 

DESIGNATION.

C Moore,  Director of Corporate Services

DIRECTORATE
Corporate 
Services

TELEPHONE NO.

 01267 224120
AUTHOR &  DESIGNATION 

C Moore,  Director of Corporate Services

DIRECTORATE
Corporate 
Services

TELEPHONE NO

 01267 224120

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – BUDGET CONSULTATIONS COMMENTS

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 11th JANUARY 2019
5. FIVE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20 - 2023/24

The Committee considered the 5 year capital programme which had been approved 
by the Executive Board for consultation on the 17th December 2018. It was noted 
that feedback from the consultation process, along with the outcome of the final 
settlement, would inform the final budget report which would be presented to Council 
for consideration in February, 2019. The proposed capital programme was a capital 
spend of some £260m over the next 5 years and current funding proposals included 
external funding of £128m. The report highlighted the provisional settlement 
received from the Welsh Government which indicated capital funding of £9.437m for 
the Authority in 2019-20. The funding was made up of Supported Borrowing of 
£5.867m and General Capital Grant of £3.570m. In summary, the overall position of 
the capital programme was funded for the 5 years from 2019/20 to 2023/24.

The Director of Corporate Services advised that the Welsh Government had recently 
announced its approval for the Band B 21st Century Schools programme running to 
2024 with the significant change in the intervention rate from 50% to 65% for schools 
generally and from 50% to 75% for special schools. This had provided the authority 
with scope to deliver more schools within the £129.5m Band B programme of which 
it funded £70m.

It was noted that also included were the City Deal Schemes for the Wellness Village 
and Yr Egin. The Llanelli Leisure Centre and the Llanelli area review had also been 
identified as key components of the Wellness Village.

Tudalen 275



Appendix A

2

Amongst the issues raised during consideration of the report were the following:

 In response to queries and concerns relating to the future of the Wellness 
Village scheme following recent suspensions at Swansea University the 
Director of Corporate Services advised that the Collaboration Agreement had, 
as reported to Council on the 12th December 2018, been terminated, and 
officers were working with Hywel Dda Local Health Board, University of Wales 
Trinity St David and Swansea University to bring forward an alternative 
delivery model that would see the Council itself facilitating the private 
investment needed. Members were assured that there were no financial risks 
for the Authority and the only expenditure which had been committed had 
been utilised for planning purposes and infrastructure. The Director of 
Corporate Services agreed to apprise the Committee members of any further 
developments via e mail;

 The Director of Corporate Services clarified that ‘Prudential Borrowing’ 
referred to un-supported borrowing funded directly by the Authority.

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED 

5.1 that the Five Year Capital Programme 2019/20 – 2023/24 be endorsed;

5.2 that an update report on the Wellness Village scheme be submitted to the 
next meeting.

Tudalen 276



Appendix B
Five Year Capital Programme Proposals 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24

Capital Programme
County  County  County  County  County  

COUNCIL FUND Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total
Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

COMMUNITIES
Private Sector Housing
Disabled Facility Grants 2,200 2,200 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Social Care
Learning Disabilities 148 148
Leisure
Sports & Leisure
AstroTurf Pitch (ATP) replacement at CLC 250 250
Parks & Countryside
Rights of Way Improvement Programme 50 50 100 50 50 100 50 250 300 50 50 100
Pembrey Country Park Masterplan 500 500
Carmarthen Leisure Centre & Track 375 375
Amman Valley Leisure Centre Masterplan 975 975 700 700
Burry Port Harbour Dredging 488 488
Burry Port Harbour Wall Works 1,399 1,399
Libraries & Museums
Parc Howard Museum Masterplan 500 500
Carmarthenshire County Museum Abergwili 1,134 1,134
Carmarthenshire Museums Collections 495 495
Carmarthenshire Archive Relocation 700 700

Total Communities 8,964 50 9,014 2,750 50 2,800 2,300 250 2,550 2,050 50 2,100 2,000 0 2,000

ENVIRONMENT
Street Scene
Highways Infrastructure
 - Highways 600 1,500 2,100 600 1,500 2,100 600 600 600 600 600 600
 - Bridges 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400
Pen Y Coed Landfill - Culvert 100 100
Transportation
Multi Storey Car Park, Llanelli 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60
Road Safety Improvement Schemes 275 275 350 350 375 375 350 350 250 250
Cross Hands Economic Link Road Phase 2 100 100 300 1,280 1,580 750 750 750 750
Tywi Valley Path 1,000 750 1,750 500 750 1,250 500 750 1,250
Ammanford Distributor Road Phase 2 100 50 150 150 25 175 150 150
Walking & Cycling Linkages 100 300 400 100 325 425 100 375 475 100 100
Transport Interchange & Bus Corridor Improvements 0 5 5 100 100 100 100
Safe Routes in the Communities 0 225 225 225 225 225 225
Wind St/Tirydail Junction Ammanford 0 90 90
A4138 Hendy Link Road 100 275 375 25 250 275 150 150 50 50
Highway Junction Improvements/Signals Upgrade 25 135 160 25 110 135 25 25 50 25 25
Fleet Replacement - Prudential Borrowing 549 549 366 366 6,380 6,380 1,980 1,980
Property
Agile Working 521 521 115 115
Capital Maintenance 3,572 3,572 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900 3,000 3,000
Glanamman Industrial Estate Redevelopment 1,000 1,000
East Gate Fit Out 58 58

Total Environment 8,460 3,430 11,890 5,891 4,565 10,456 12,090 1,775 13,865 7,215 0 7,215 4,310 0 4,310

T
udalen 277



EDUCATION & CHILDREN
Modernising Education Programme
Burry Port - New School 67 67
St John Lloyd Phase 1 120 120
Penrhos 1,029 1,029
Llangadog 1,495 1,495 124 124
Trimsaran 347 347
Parc Y Tywyn 170 170
Pontyberem 500 500
Laugharne 1,807 1,807 1,193 1,193 63 63
Gorslas 3,050 2,700 5,750 305 305
Dewi Sant 1,000 1,550 2,550 2,450 3,000 5,450 192 192
Rhys Prichard 205 1,450 1,655 850 700 1,550 832 832 23 23
Rhydygors 618 629 1,247
Y Castell 1,175 2,000 3,175 136 725 861 0
Pembrey 1,500 3,000 4,500 750 1,810 2,560 165 165
Five Roads 1,500 3,000 4,500 290 1,810 2,100 200 200
Llandeilo 120 120 20 2,800 2,820 786 2,000 2,786 765 920 1,685 1,252 1,252
Ammanford  Primary Welsh Medium 1,120 1,290 2,410 1,057 3,000 4,057
Heol Goffa New School 1,500 2,500 4,000 1,500 5,000 6,500 230 4,500 4,730 250 250
Ammanford Primary Dual Stream 50 50 50 50 500 1,000 1,500 600 3,090 3,690 1,110 200 1,310
Gwenllian 500 500 100 100 1,000 2,500 3,500 600 2,050 2,650 143 143
Hendy 100 100 100 100 1,000 1,500 2,500 495 1,750 2,245
Llanybydder/Llanllwni 10 10 10 10 10 10
Gwendreath Valley North 10 10 10 10 10 10
Cross Hands Area 10 10 10 10 10 10
Gwendreath Valley Central 10 10 10 10 10 10
Llandybie CP 10 10 10 10 10 10
Penygar 0 0
Carmarthen West 0 0
Provisions 119 119

Potential schemes could be delivered via MIM

Catering
School Kitchen Refurbishments 120 120

Total Education & Children 18,262 18,119 36,381 8,975 18,845 27,820 5,018 11,500 16,518 2,733 7,810 10,543 2,505 200 2,705

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
IT Strategy Developments 
Enhancements to County Backbone Network 610 610
Virtual Unix Replacement 110 110
IT Strategy Developments 250 250 250 250
Information Security and Governance 60 60
Virtualised Server & Storage Environment Replacement 315 315
Digital Transformation 75 75
Disaster Recovery 190 190
Legacy Network & Telephony Equipment Replacement 150 150
Digital Transformation - Scheme development 200 200

0 Total Chief Executive 1,060 0 1,060 250 0 250 900 0 900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Appendix B
Five Year Capital Programme Proposals 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24

Capital Programme
County  County  County  County  County  

COUNCIL FUND Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total
Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

T
udalen 278



REGENERATION
Transformation Strategy Project Fund 1,230 500 1,730 1,500 3,000 4,500 1,500 3,000 4,500 1,500 3,000 4,500 1,500 3,000 4,500

Rural Enterprise Fund 2,066 2,066

Cross Hands East Employment Site 592 592

Cross Hands East Plot 3 985 985

Cross Hands Phase 2 190 190

Transformation Commercial Property Development Fund 3,130 3,130

Pendine Iconic International Visitors Destination 2,290 2,500 4,790

Ammanford Regeneration Development Fund 230 230

Carmarthen Town Regeneration - Jacksons Lane 873 873

Opportunity Street 339 339

Laugharne Carpark 208 208

City Deal Projects

City Deal - Wellness Village *** 0 20,000 20,000 19,600 19,600 400 400 0 0

City Deal - Llanelli Leisure Centre 4,970 1,000 5,970 7,000 2,500 9,500 1,000 1,000 0 0
City Deal - Llanelli Area Review 5,260 5,260 1,500 1,500 158 158 0 0

City Deal - Yr Egin Phase II *** 0 2,000 2,000

Total Regeneration 22,363 24,000 46,363 10,000 27,100 37,100 1,658 4,400 6,058 1,500 3,000 4,500 1,500 3,000 4,500

Total Council Fund 59,109 45,599 104,708 27,866 50,560 78,426 21,966 17,925 39,891 13,498 10,860 24,358 10,315 3,200 13,515

County Council Funding
Supported borrowing 5,868 5,868 5,868 5,868 5,868

Unsupported borrowing 5,000 500

General Capital Grant (Additional £6.6m) 5,281 1,319

General Capital Grant 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570

Capital Receipts 7,130 1,500 1,500

Reserves 23,624 8,393 48 80 627

Borrowing MEP 4,987

Joint Venture Funding Llanelli Leisure Centre 2,500

MEP Reserve Contribution 0 5,750 4,000 2,000 250

Direct Revenue Financing 600 600 600

Prudential Borrowing - Fleet Replacement 549 366 6,380 1,980

Total County Council Funding 59,109 27,866 21,966 13,498 10,315

Net Position (Minus = Shortfall) 0 0 0 0 0

*** The external funding for the Wellness Village and Yr Egin will be paid over a 15 year period and the county council will have to partially borrow against that future flow of income.

Appendix B
Five Year Capital Programme Proposals 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24

Capital Programme
County  County  County  County  County  

COUNCIL FUND Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total Council External  Total
Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme Funding Funding Scheme

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

T
udalen 279



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



Appendix C

1

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2019-20

A. PURPOSE AND AIMS

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was updated by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in December 2017. 

This Code dictates that “authorities should have in place a capital strategy that sets 
out the long-term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are 
made and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the 
achievement of priority outcomes.”

The Capital Strategy is a new requirement from April 2019 to show how this Council 
makes capital expenditure and investment decisions in line with service objectives 
and properly takes account of:

 Stewardship / good professional practice
 Value for money
 Prudence / risks considered
 Sustainability
 Affordability

This Capital Strategy sets out a framework for the self-management of capital 
finance and examines the following areas:

 Capital expenditure and investment plans
 Treasury Management 
 Prudential Indicators
 Commercial activity
 Knowledge and skills

The above considerations help to support local strategic planning, local asset 
management planning and effective option appraisal.

Through this Capital Strategy elected members will see how future capital 
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activities will contribute to 
the provision of services, together with a summary of how associated risks are 
managed and the implications for future financial sustainability. It will highlight the 
governance framework required to ensure the Strategy is delivered.

Tudalen 281



Appendix C

2

B. ECONOMIC BACKGROUND

It is important to set out the external environment in which Carmarthenshire County 
Council is currently operating. One of the key factors that impact directly on the 
capital programme is the reduced revenue funding for local government. Due to the 
pressure on public finances, the Welsh Government’s budget is substantially lower 
than it was in 2010. The Welsh Government’s budget in 2019-20 will be 5% lower 
in real terms than in 2010-11. This is the equivalent of £800m less to spend on 
public services in Wales. 

The Welsh Government has indicated that “with the prospect of a UK Government 
Spending Review in 2019 and many unanswered questions surrounding the future 
of the UK outside the EU, including what the final Brexit deal will look like, our ability 
to plan beyond the short-term is restricted.” (Welsh Government Draft Budget 2019-
20 Outline Proposals).
Despite these uncertainties Carmarthenshire will continue to identify, plan, fund and 
implement long term in non-current assets in order to help the Council deliver 
departmental strategies and wider Council plans.

C. CARMARTHENSHIRE’S STRATEGIC RESPONSE

In considering capital implications, the Council takes into consideration the 
requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Act 
requires that we must carry out sustainable development, improving the economic, 
social environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The Act requires us to look 
at the long term, prevention of recurring problems, integration of approach, 
collaboration with others and involving stakeholders. Carmarthenshire’s Well Being 
objectives have a direct impact on the Council Capital Strategy. Some of these 
include:

 Start Well - help to give every child the best start in life and improve their 
early life experience

 Live Well - increase the availability of rented and affordable homes
 Age Well - support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity 

and independence in their later years
 In a Healthy and Safe Environment - improve the highway and transport 

infrastructure and connectivity

This Capital Strategy supports Carmarthenshire’s Well-being Objectives.
 

D. WHAT IS CAPITAL EXPENDITURE?

Capital expenditure is expenditure on non-current assets such as Property, Plant 
and Equipment, Investment Properties and Heritage Assets. This would include the 
acquisition or construction of new assets, together with any subsequent expenditure 
on major upgrades or development work to those assets.
Expenditure which adds to and does not merely maintain the value of an existing 
asset, should be capitalised, provided that it yields benefits to the authority and the 
services it provides are for a period of more than one year.

Tudalen 282



Appendix C

3

Capital expenditure is defined by legislation as:

 the acquisition, reclamation, enhancement or laying out of land
 the acquisition, construction, preparation, enhancement or replacement of 

roads, buildings and other structures
 the acquisition, installation or replacement of moveable or immovable plant,
 machinery, apparatus, vehicles and vessels.

An understanding of what constitutes capital expenditure is fundamental to realising 
the benefits that an authority can obtain under the Prudential framework. Unless 
expenditure qualifies as capital it will normally fall outside the scope of the 
framework and be charged to revenue in the period that the expenditure is incurred. 
If expenditure meets the definition of capital, there may be opportunities to finance 
the outlay from capital receipts or by spreading the cost over future years’ revenues.

E. CARMARTHENSHIRE’S APPROACH TO CAPITAL INVESTMENT

A ‘Managing Capital’ procedure document has been adopted as a policy for the 
Authority. Within this document Carmarthenshire’s approach to capital investment 
is conveyed. A sub-strategy that feeds into the Authority’s overall Corporate 
Strategy is the Capital Programme. The Programme is closely linked to various 
other sub-strategies such as the Corporate Asset Management Plan, Local 
Transport Plan, Digital Transformation Strategy and the Service Departments’ 
Business Plans. The ‘Managing Capital’ document explains that the aim is to deliver 
projects and outputs that meet the set objectives. The Capital Programme is 
prepared and approved on a five-year forward plan basis in order to:

 Provide a detailed implementation plan to enable the high level objectives to
 be realised
 Provide a financial commitment to allow sufficient time to adequately plan,
 design and implement future schemes and projects
 Provide an overview of the likely future commitments arising from current

Schemes.

Carmarthenshire’s Capital Strategy defines and outlines its approach to capital 
investment and is fundamental to the Council’s financial planning processes. It aims 
to ensure that: 

 Capital expenditure contributes to the achievement of the Council’s strategic 
plan

 An affordable and sustainable capital programme is delivered
 Use of resources and value for money is maximised
 A clear framework for making capital expenditure decisions is provided
 A corporate approach to generating capital resources is established
 Access to sufficient long term assets to provide services are acquired and 

retained
 Invest to Save initiatives to make efficiencies within the Council’s revenue 

budget are encouraged
 An appraisal and prioritisation process for new schemes is robust.

Tudalen 283



Appendix C

4

F. GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
 
It is important given the risks surrounding Capital Projects that the appropriate 
Governance framework is in place:

Capital Programme Approvals

All capital expenditure must be carried out in accordance with the financial 
regulations. The expenditure must comply with the statutory definition of capital 
purposes as defined within this document and wider financial standards. The 
Capital Programme approved by Full Council as part of the Council’s annual budget 
report sets the capital funding availability for the Council, the prioritisation of funding 
and the schemes receiving entry into the Capital Programme. All schemes are 
formally approved into the capital programme by following a process as set out in 
the financial regulations. Officers are not authorised to commit expenditure without 
prior formal approval as set out in the financial regulations. Each scheme must be 
under the control of a responsible person/project manager.

The Departmental Project Working Group (DPWG) monitors and reports on 
departmental capital programmes, in line with parameters set by the Strategic 
Assets Steering Group (SASG). The working groups will identify, monitor, develop 
and manage the Directorate’s medium and long term capital programme. The 
groups will champion best practice and help ensure compliance with the Council’s 
Project Management Procedures and Policies, ensuring the Grants Compliance 
Project Manual is followed, the Council Managing Capital document is adhered to 
and there is liaison with the Council’s SASG.

SASG develops and maintains on a rolling basis a longer-term 'vision' of the capital 
investment requirements of the authority, together with the likely funding. It co-
ordinates the development of the Corporate Asset Management Plan and other 
asset management plans and oversees the Capital Maintenance Strategy. It also 
provides recommendations and options for future capital program priorities.

SASG will carry out a priority assessment of all schemes included in the five year 
capital programme, balanced against an evaluation of risk and its integration into 
Council objectives. Results are fed to the Corporate Management Team, Executive 
Board and County Council, following full examination with Scrutiny Committees and 
other relevant stakeholders.

Corporate Management Team (CMT)

Recommend to Executive Board a prioritised 5-year Capital Programme.

Executive Board

To endorse the 5-year Capital Programme and it’s funding, and make 
recommendation for approval to County Council. To monitor the Capital Programme 
throughout the year.

Tudalen 284



Appendix C

5

Scrutiny Committees

Receive and scrutinise the quarterly capital expenditure/progress reports and to 
make recommendations to Executive Board.

County Council

Approve the five-year Capital Programme and its funding.

Project Managers

Authorise expenditure against budgets, monitor expenditure and income, reporting 
to Responsible Officers on performance against budgets.

Director of Corporate Services (Section 151 Officer)

Lays out the funding consequences of the five-year programme and the effect on 
the Prudential Indicators.

Head of Financial Services

Collates, estimates and reviews methods of financing the capital programme. 
Monitors the Council’s Capital Programme during the year based on expenditure 
reports provided by the Responsible Officer or Budget Managers via DPWG. 
Advises Executive Board on potential overspends, under spends or slippages on 
individual schemes.

Departmental Management Team (DMT)

Considers departmental Business Plans put forward by DPWG and makes 
recommendations to SASG.

G. FUNDING STREAMS FOR THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

This Strategy is intended to maximise the financial resources available for 
investment in service provision and improvement within the framework of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. Whilst at the same time ensuring that each business 
case has a robust self-sustaining financial model that delivers on the wider 
outcomes of the strategy. 
The main sources of capital funding are:

 Capital receipts – sale proceeds from the disposal of land and buildings 
which are restricted in their use by statute. They can be used to fund new 
capital expenditure or set aside to finance historic capital expenditure

 Government grants – the largest form of capital funding come from the Welsh 
Government

 Sums set aside from revenue – the Authority can use revenue resources / 
reserves to fund capital projects

 Direct revenue contributions – resources provided by the Authority’s revenue 
budget to finance the cost of capital projects

Tudalen 285



Appendix C

6

 Prudential borrowing – The Local Government Act 2003 sets the legal 
framework within which local government may undertake capital 
expenditure. The Act allows local authorities to raise additional finance 
(unsupported borrowing) for capital expenditure over and above that already 
provided by the Welsh Government. It is essential that an assessment is 
made as to whether the Authority can afford to service the debt within our 
own resource. This type of borrowing is subject to the requirements of the 
Prudential Code for Capital Expenditure.

H. OVERVIEW OF CAPITAL PROGRAMME (excluding HRA)

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22CAPITAL SPENDING BY 

DEPARTMENT:-
(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)

Communities 9,014 2,800 2,550
Environment 11,890 10,456 13,865
Education & Children 36,381 27,820 16,518
Chief Executive 1,060 250 900
Regeneration 15,133 4,500 4,500
City Deal Projects 31,230 32,600 1,558
TOTAL 104,708 78,426 39,891

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22CAPITAL FUNDING FROM:

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
External Funding 25,599 28,960 17,525
MEP Balances 0 5,750 4,000
Reserves 23,624 8,393 48
General Capital Grants 8,851 4,889 3,570
Revenue Contributions 600 600 600
Borrowing 36,404 28,334 12,648
Capital Receipts 9,630 1,500 1,500
TOTAL 104,708 76,426 39,891

I. DESCRIPTION OF MAJOR SCHEMES

Executive Board have set out their aspirations for Carmarthenshire in the document 
“Moving forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 years”.  The capital programme has 
been developed and approved to support this vision for the future to become a 
reality.

Tudalen 286



Appendix C

7

Modernising Education

A modernising Education Programme which has seen over £200million invested to 
date, in the building of new schools and upgrading others, with a further commitment 
to fund future investments of £129million, is the flagship policy.

Health & Wellbeing

Improving the health and wellbeing of residents is a key aspiration and to this end 
we are committed to delivering:

 A new leisure centre for Llanelli as part of the Swansea Bay City Deal 
wellness village

 Developing Carmarthenshire as a national hub for cycling.  Investments in 
the Towy Valley path, which will see the redevelopment of the old railway 
line from Carmarthen to Llandeilo as a walking and cycling resource, and 
further developments at the new closed road circuit in Pembrey, will 
complement the existing facilities at the Brechfa Forest and the velodrome 
in Carmarthen.

Agile Working

The implementation of a new agile working approach across the authority, in order 
to make the best use of resources, will enable redundant assets to be sold, raising 
income from capital receipts to fund strategic capital projects.

Cultural Heritage

A transformation plan is in place for the museum provision. Major refurbishment at 
the county museum at Abergwili, Parc Howard, Kidwelly Industrial Museum, and a 
new Museum of Speed at Pendine, together with a new county archive and storage 
facility at “Y Stordy” will ensure that our valuable culture learning and tourism 
resource is improved for residents and visitors and maintained for future 
generations.

Highways

The economic prosperity of our towns is enhanced by improvements to road 
infrastructure.
The new Carmarthen western link road will provide much needed improvements to 
traffic flows, access to the new S4C headquarters at “Yr Egin” and development 
opportunities for new housing and retail.
The Cross Hands economic distributor road coupled with associated developments 
at the Cross Hands strategic employment site will boost the economy in the 
Gwendraeth Valley.
The development of the Ammanford distributor road will improve traffic flows and 
enhance retail investment opportunities. 

Tudalen 287



Appendix C

8

Digital Transformation

A commitment to continue investment in ICT coupled with a digital transformation 
programme aims to ensure that Carmarthenshire services are fit for purpose in the 
digital age.

Housing

The Carmarthenshire Home Standards Plus (CHS+) Business Plan 2019-2022 
details the Council’s priorities, plans and actions for council housing in 
Carmarthenshire for the future years. The plan covers all housing services and 
assets in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). It sets out the objectives of the 
CHS+ and what this means for tenants and leaseholders across a range of housing 
activities. The CHS+ is 100% compliant with the Welsh Government’s own standard 
of social housing quality, the ‘Welsh Housing Quality Standard’ (WHQS). Against a 
background of the borrowing cap being lifted by central government for local 
authority HRA borrowing, Carmarthenshire is committed to deliver 1,000 more 
affordable homes by 2021, and is more than half way through this objective. The 
Council is developing a 10 year Housing Transformation Master Plan which will 
“play a pivotal role in not only developing additional affordable homes but will allow 
us to significantly contribute to key Council developments and regeneration 
initiatives to grow the economy across the County.”

In addition the Council plans to continue to invest over £45m in maintaining tenants’ 
homes over the next three years.

A local housing company, Cartrefi Croeso, was recently established with the aim of 
realising new opportunities, to offer families an alternative to social housing by 
delivering a mix of new affordable homes for sale or rent, and to take advantage of 
the commercial skills of local organisations. 

The Council recognises the importance of strategic asset management in providing 
the foundation for its investment plans so within the CHS+ Business Plan has 
highlighted two key themes for future investment. These are ‘investing in our homes 
and the environment’ and ‘providing more homes.

Tudalen 288



Appendix C

9

J. HRA CAPITAL SPENDING AND FUNDING

K. TREASURY MANAGEMENT

The Council produces a Treasury Management Policy and Strategy which is 
approved by full Council annually as part of the budget setting process. There are 
close links between the Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy.

The capital programme determines the borrowing need of the Council, essentially 
the longer term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council can meet its capital 
spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve arranging 
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On occasion any 
debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.

L. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

Under the Local Government Act 2003 and the Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities (revised in 2017), local authority capital spending and its 
borrowing to fund that spending is limited by what is affordable, prudent and 
sustainable. The Prudential Code sets out a number of indicators that enables the 
authority to assess affordability and prudence.

These indicators are included in the annual Treasury Management Policy and 
Strategy

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22CAPITAL SPENDING TO:-

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Maintain the standard 10,638 8,725 9,399
Support Tenant and 
Residents 4,002 5,523 4,809

Provide more affordable 
homes 15,452 15,952 13,000

Support the delivery of 
CHS+ 786 558 562

TOTAL 30,878 30,758 27,770

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22CAPITAL FUNDING FROM:

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Welsh Government Grant-
MRA 6,190 6,190 6,190

Housing Finance Grant 3,452 3,452 0
External Borrowing 21,236 21,116 21,580
TOTAL 30,878 30,758 27,770

Tudalen 289



Appendix C

10

M. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY 

Our commercial portfolio consists of a variety of asset types, namely: Retail Units, 
Industrial Estates, Farms, Ground leases and Provision & livestock Markets. The 
portfolio generates revenue through rental receipts with opportunities to enhance 
income through rent reviews and renewals depending on the terms of each agreement. 
The Council has 20 Industrial estates located around the County with a total of around 
400 units, together with 26 farms, 2 Provisions markets and 3 Livestock Markets. 
There are 104 Ground leases and Retail units (other than those forming part of the 
provisions markets).

 

In addition to generating a commercial return the portfolios meet corporate objectives 
of encouraging and supporting business and employment development, rural 
initiatives and town centre regeneration. In many instances the support of these 
broader aims is as important and income generation, and it’s the Council’s role to 
balance commercial returns with economic development objectives and corporate 
priorities.

 

Each portfolio will be managed uniquely taking into account its particular objectives, 
however, the underlying principle is that the Council makes the best use of its 
resources by increasing returns wherever possible, taking on board wider corporate 
priorities.

N. RISK APPETITE 

Risk appetite can be thought of as the amount of risk an organisation is willing to 
accept, tolerate or be exposed to, in pursuit of its strategic and organisational 
objectives. The Council recognises that its appetite for different types of risks will 
vary and needs to reflect both its capability and its ability to exercise control. 
By virtue of its statutory responsibilities for public services and associated functions 
the Council often has limited choice in whether or not to accept or tolerate risk. 
Clearly there are some types of risks where the Council’s tolerance will be extremely 
low, or risk averse, for example, those that could:
 

 Endanger the safety of service users, employees, members or the general 
public

 Damage the Council’s reputation or financial standing 
 Lead to breaches of laws and/or regulations
 Threaten the future operations of the Council. 

In some circumstances, the Council is willing to accept a different level or type of 
risk in pursuit of its strategic objectives. For example, capital schemes typically 
invoke risks such as achievement of timescales and financial targets, management 
of contractors and satisfaction of service requirements. 

In other areas, the Council’s appetite for risk has evolved in response to the 
changing and challenging environment in which local government now operates. 

Tudalen 290



Appendix C

11

For example, in response to reductions in central government funding, the Council 
has been willing to consider commercial income generating ventures and invest to 
save proposals in addition to service reductions and efficiencies to secure financial 
stability. 

It is not possible to articulate the Council’s appetite for every form of risk it may 
encounter or to predetermine which risks are acceptable or not acceptable. Instead, 
this strategy aims to inform and strengthen the decision making process, to ensure 
that:
 

 Risks, as well as benefits and opportunities, are always considered, 
identified and reported

 Risks are assessed and recorded consistently, in accordance with the 
Council’s risk management methodology

 Proposals which are likely to involve higher or more challenging levels of risk, 
such as creation of new partnerships, investments in major projects, or 
commercial activities, are subject to a robust and detailed risk appraisal 
process

 Risks which are likely to impact the achievement of one or more corporate 
objectives or to carry significant financial implications are escalated to the 
senior management team and the Executive Board for review and approval. 

 Exposure to risks for which the Council’s tolerance is low, such as the 
examples given above, is minimised.

O. KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS

The Capital Programme and Treasury Management Strategy are managed by a 
team of professionally qualified accountants with extensive Local Government 
finance experience between them. They all follow a Continuous Professional 
Development Plan (CPD) and attend courses on an ongoing basis to keep abreast 
of new developments and skills. 

The Council’s Section 151 Officer is the officer with overall responsibility for Capital 
and Treasury activities and views the strategy to be prudent and affordable and fully 
integrated with the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan, Treasury Management 
Strategy and other Strategic Plans. 

All the Council’s commercial projects have project teams from all the professional 
disciplines from across the Council and when required external professional advice 
is taken. 

Internal and external training is offered to members on an annual basis to ensure 
they have up to date skills to make capital and treasury decisions. A register is also 
kept on member attendance. The Council also involves members at a very early 
stage of a project’s life cycle.

Tudalen 291



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

Y CYNGOR SIR  

20FED CHWEFROR 2019 
 

Cyfrif Cyllideb Refeniw Tai 2019/20 – 2020/21 a Lefelau 
Rhenti Tai 2021/22 – Refeniw a Chyfalaf 

ARGYMHELLION Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL: 

Bod y Cyngor Sir yn ystyried a chymeradwyo yr argymellion canlynol: 

1. Cynyddu cyfartaledd y rhent tai yn unol â Pholisi Rhenti Tai Cymdeithasol Llywodraeth 
Cymru [diwygiwyd ar 30 Ionawr] h.y:- 

• Bydd eiddo ‘rhenti targed’ yn cynyddu gan 1.92% 
• Bydd rhenti sy’n uwch na’r targed yn cael eu rhewi hyd nes iddynt ddod yn unol 

â’r rhent targed 
• Bydd rhenti sy’n is na’r targed yn cynyddu gan 1.92% ac yna’n cynyddu gan 

uchafswm o £1 yr wythnos 
 

Felly bydd yn golygu cynnydd yng nghyfartaledd y rhent tai o 2.4% neu £2.05 
a bydd yn darparu’r un gwerth cyffredinol i’r Cyfrif Tai drwy gasglu rhenti  
 

2. Bod rhenti garejys ddim yn cynyddu am 2019/20 ac yn parhau ar yr un lefel ar flwyddyn 
gyfredol, gyda rhenti garejys yn cael eu gosod ar £9.00 yr wythnos a sylfaen garejys i 
£2.25 yr wythnos. 

3. Cymhwyso’r polisi tâl am wasanaeth i sicrhau bod y tenantiaid sy’n derbyn y budd o 
wasanaethau penodol yn talu am y gwasanaethau hynny. 

4. Cynyddu’r taliadau am ddefnyddio ein gweithfeydd carthion yn unol â chynnydd rhent. 
5. Cymeradwyo Cyllideb Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 2019/20 (2020/21 & 2021/22 bod yn cyllideb 

meddal) a nodir yn Atodiad B. 
6. Cymeradwyo Rhaglen Gyfalaf arfaethedig a chyllid cymwysiadol 2019/20 ynghyd â'r 

gwariant dangosol ar gyfer 2020/21 i 2021/22 a nodir yn Atodiad A. 

 
Y RHESYMAU:  
Galluogi'r Awdurdod i osod Cyllideb ei Cyfrif Refeniw Tai a'r lefelau Rhenti Tai am 2019/20 
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol -OES 
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad -OES  
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad  -OES  
YR AELOD O’R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. David Jenkins (Adnoddau)                            
                                                                                                                                      Cyng. Linda Evans (Tai)         

 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Enw Cyfarwyddwr: 
Chris Moore 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Andrea Thomas 

Swydd: 
 
 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 
 
Cyfrifydd-Grwp 

Rhifau ffôn /Cyfeiriadau E-
bost: 
01267 
224160 CMoore@sirgar.gov.u
k 
01267 228742 
AndThomas@sirgar.gov.uk 

Tudalen 293

Eitem Rhif  9.3

mailto:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:AndThomas@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

COUNTY COUNCIL 
20TH FEBRUARY 2019 

 
 

Housing Revenue Account Budget and Housing Rent 
Setting for 2019/20 

 
 
 
 

This report has been prepared in conjunction with officers from the Communities Department 
and brings together the latest proposals for the Revenue and Capital Budgets for the Housing 
Revenue Account 2019/20 to 2021/22. The report has been presented to the Community 
Scrutiny Committee on the 23rd January 2019 as part of the budget consultation process and 
an update was provided on 14th February 2019 to include additional information from Welsh 
Government. 
 
Executive Board considered the Housing Revenue Account Budget and Housing Rents for 
2019/20 on 4th February 2019. 
 
The HRA budget for 2019/20 is being set to reflect: 

• Interim Social Housing Rent Policy set by Welsh Government (WG) 30/01/19 
(amendment from original issue 12/12/18) 

• Proposals contained in the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus (CHS+) 
• Affordable Homes Delivery Plan 
• Removal of the HRA Borrowing Cap (recently agreed by WG) 

 
The report has been prepared reflecting the latest proposals contained in the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan, which is the primary financial planning tool for 
delivering the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus (CHS+) for the future. The proposed 
investment within the current business plan delivered the CHS by 2015 (to those homes 
where tenants agreed to have work undertaken), provides investment to maintain CHS+ and 
continues investment for our Affordable Housing Commitment. 
 
The report also details how rents will increase for 2019/20. Previously we have applied the 
WG Social Housing Rent Policy to progress to the mid-point target rent (County Council 
approved on 24/02/15). This policy ended in 2018/19. 
 
A one year policy of maximum of CPI only was issued by WG 12/12/2018 for 2019/20, with no 
discretion to apply ‘progression’ for those tenants below target rents if an LA’s current average 
rent is within the target rent band. 
 
Rent increases could be set at lower than 2.4% but as there is no certainty over future rent 
levels applying the interim policy seems the most prudent approach for 2019/20. Setting at a 
lower level than 2.4% rent increase will also impact of the current proposed Business Plan. 
 
However on the 30 January 2019, after the consultation had been completed and the report to 
Executive Board had been written and despatched, Welsh Government notified Local 
Authorities of an amendment to the interim policy which allowed Local Authorities with 

Tudalen 294



 

average rent within the Target Rent Band the flexibility to use the 'up to £2 per week' 
progression, subject to ensuring that the overall rent increase for your general needs and 
sheltered housing stock does not exceed 2.4% and that no individual tenant will receive a rent 
increase of more than the agreed policy uplift of 2.4% plus the £2.00 progression. 
 
 
This change in direction by WG was considered by Executive Board on 4th February and it 
was felt that it was appropriate to change the original recommendation of the report, as the 
change in the interim policy allowed the Authority to meet its previous commitment to tenants 
by implementing the harmonisation policy and establishing a fairer rent level for all tenants. 
 
The revised recommendation will be considered by Community Scrutiny on 14th February.  
 
Documents included with this report are: 

• Original Executive Board report of 4th February 2019, (before the proposed 
amendments noted above) 

• Appendix A the proposed Capital Programme for 2019/22. 
• Appendix B the proposed Revenue Account Budget for 2019/22. 

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  
 

 

Tudalen 295



 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 
 
Signed: Chris Moore                                                                  Director of Corporate Services                           
 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

NONE 
 

NONE  
 

YES  
 

NONE  
 

NONE  
 
 

NONE  
 
 

NONE  
 

 
FINANCE 

The report details the HRA proposals to be considered by Executive Board. If the proposals are 
agreed the budget for the HRA will be set for 2019/20 with an expenditure level of £38M.  
The average rent will increase from £85.52 to £87.57 (2.4% or £2.05). 

The proposed Capital Programme will be £30.9M for 2019/20, £30.8M for 2020/21 and £27.8M 
for 2021/22. 
 
Physical Assets  

The capital programme continues the works to bring the housing properties up to/maintain the 
Carmarthenshire Home Standard+ as per the 30 year business plan. 

 
 

  

Tudalen 296



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 
 
Signed:  Chris Moore                                                                Director of Corporate Services                                                
 

1.Local Member(s)  - Not applicable  
2.Community / Town Council – Not applicable 
3.Relevant Partners  - Not applicable 
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – Not applicable  
 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

   
Social Housing Rents 
Policy 

 Financial Services, County Hall, Carmarthen 

30 year Housing 
Business Plan 

   Financial Services , County Hall, Carmarthen 

 

Tudalen 297



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 1 

     REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

EXECUTIVE BOARD  

4th FEBRUARY 2019 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
AND HOUSING RENT SETTING 

2019/20 

- REVENUE AND CAPITAL 

 

   

DIRECTOR & DESIGNATION. 

C Moore Director of Corporate   
Services  

DIRECTORATE 

Corporate Services 

TELEPHONE NO. 

01267 224120 

AUTHOR & DESIGNATION  

A Thomas Group Accountant 

DIRECTORATE 

Corporate Services 

TELEPHONE NO 

01267 228742 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report explains the proposed 2019/20 Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) budget for both revenue and capital. It has been prepared in 
conjunction with officers from the Communities Department. The 
Community Scrutiny Committee considered the HRA budget on 23rd 
January 2019 as part of the budget consolation process. A verbal update 
will be given to the Executive Board during the meeting.  

 1.2. The HRA budget for 2019/20 is being set to reflect: 

 Interim Social Housing Rent Policy issued by Welsh Government 
(WG) 12/12/2018 

 Proposals contained in the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus 
(CHS+) 

 Affordable Homes Delivery Plan 

 Removal of HRA Borrowing Cap which has recently been agreed by 
WG. 

 

1.3. The HRA budget is prepared to maintain the CHS(+) Business Plan, 
deliver our affordable homes aspirations and manage and maintain our 

Tudalen 299



 2 

homes on a daily basis. As a ring fenced account this expenditure is 
balanced by income primarily generated through rents charged to tenants. 
Supporting the CHS(+) Business Plan is a 30 years financial model which 
is submitted to and scrutinised/approved by WG annually (as part of the 
Major Repairs Allowance application). 

Carmarthenshire County Council along with the other 10 local authorities 
(LAs) in Wales who retained their Housing Stock, exited the Housing 
Revenue Account Subsidy (HRAS) system on 1/4/15. 

Part of the agreement to exit included LAs with retained stock were 
required to adopt the new Social Housing Rents Policy set by the WG. It 
aimed to develop a coherent and consistent rent policy framework that 
would apply to all social landlords, reflect local variations in affordability 
and housing market values, providing for a more equitable distribution of 
rents for social sector tenants across Wales, while at the same time 
ensuring the viability of individual social landlords. County Council 
approved the implementation of the policy on 24/02/15.This policy provided 
consistency for 5 years but ended in 2018/19. WG have provided an 
interim policy for 2019/20 while they await the results of the Affordable 
Housing Supply Review .This should result in the development of a new 
policy due for implementation in 2020/21. 

1.4 Capital investment 

A capital investment of £231m has been undertaken to deliver the CHS+ 
by 2015. This included £117million of unsupported borrowing. This 
investment was being funded by Major Repairs Allowance received from 
the WG, capital receipts from the sales of land and dwellings, HRA revenue 
funding, external grants and borrowing. This ensured the delivery of work 
programmes to all our tenants homes (with the exception of where the work 
was declined by tenants). Since achieving the CHS, a further £33M will 
have been spent on maintaining the standard and £20M on providing 
additional affordable homes in the HRA by the end of 2018/19. 

The (CHS+) Business Plan 2019-22 highlights the approach that will be 
taken over the next three years and will be presented by the interim Head 
of Homes and Safer Communities in this meeting.  It includes further 
investment over the next 3 years of £45million to maintain the CHS+ and 
£44million for our Affordable Homes programme. This will be supported by 
an on-going cost certainty exercise to ensure our investment is targeted to 
maintain the CHS+ and deliver our Affordable Homes targets. 
 
The timing and method of sale of HRA land is being kept under review to 
ensure that receipts are maximised to support the Business Plan. It is 
recognised that CHS+ supports the building of new council homes and 
utilising existing Council land for future housing opportunities is a key 
influence in whether the land is sold or retained, depending on housing 
demand for housing within that area. 
 

Tudalen 300



 3 

The profile of capital expenditure required to maintain the CHS+ and invest 
in affordable homes is detailed in appendix A. The plan is extremely 
sensitive to change and is currently being fully reviewed every 6 months, 
with ongoing monthly monitoring to identify any potential issues.  

2. BUSINESS PLAN ASSUMPTIONS 

2.1.   There are many assumptions within the Business Plan, including 
future rental levels, interest rates, inflation, pay awards etc. Business Plan 
guidance from the WG (received 21/12/18 for 2019/20) requires 
submission of a viable plan by 29/03/2019. 

Underpinning the CHS(+) Business Plan is the 30 year financial model 
which has many assumptions including: 

 Rents  The WG Interim Social Housing rents policy allows local 
authorities within their target rent band to increase rent by CPI only 
(the County Council is currently marginally within the target rent 
band). The increase in target rent for 2019/20 has been notified as 
2.4%.The ability to progress rents for those properties below the 
target rent, a maximum of £2 per week increase until the target rent 
is reached has been removed, unless current average rent is below 
the target rent band. 

 Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) is a grant from WG which is 
provided to support our works in maintaining the standard and is 
audited annually. This has not been increased for future years, but 
has been varied for changing stock numbers. Our MRA is estimated 
to be £6million for 2019/20. 

 Capital Receipts We have suspended our Right to Buy for tenants 
so there are no planned receipts from sales of houses. We expect 
receipts from the sale of land in the current year to be £75k, which 
can be used to fund capital expenditure. The programme of land 
sales was re-profiled in 2016 with fewer sales planned and none for 
the next two years. This strategy allows us to consider what is 
required for our Affordable Homes ambitions. 

 Void Loss incurred on dwellings currently set at 2.9% in line with 
current performance. This has changed from 2018/19 due to the 
decision not to let specific properties while strategic plans are 
developed.  

 Central Support Costs are based on services received by 
departments, these have been validated accordingly.  

 Stock Numbers have been updated based on affordable homes 
delivery plan. 

 Interest on Balances is estimated to be £102k based on an interest 
rate of 0.6% (average interest earned). 

 

2.2. 

Tudalen 301



 4 

Members will be aware  as part of the HRAS exit agreement in 2015,  Local 
Authorities were required to agree a Borrowing Cap, which was a 
requirement put in place by the UK Government. This restricted what a 
Local Authority could borrow in respect of the HRA, for this Authority the 
limit was set at £228M. The minister for Housing and Regeneration wrote 
to LA’s 29/10/2018 detailing that the Chancellor of the Exchequer had 
confirmed that the removal of HRA borrowing caps applied to Wales as 
well as England. This is a significant change in policy designed to 
encourage LA’s to build at pace and scale and to deliver their affordable 
homes ambitions. This places a responsibility on LA’s to develop Business 
Plans which are financially sustainable as well as ambitious. This has led to 
a review of how we fund our capital investment programme to release 
additional resources in a prudent manner.  

However, although the borrowing cap has been released, it should be 
noted that there is a significant responsibility on the County Council to 
ensure any borrowing for the HRA is sustainable, prudent and affordable 
within the HRA financial business plan.  

As most of the schemes delivering Housing projects have a significant lead 
in time, there will be an ongoing review of what is needed to maintain 
CHS+ and deliver our Affordable Housing ambitions, which will utilise the 
borrowing available as we develop our plans. 

 

3. EXPENDITURE 

The expenditure levels in the Business Plan have been set in anticipation 
of the Business Planning guidance. 

Maintenance and Stock Improvement 

Revenue repairs and maintenance expenditure is forecast to be 
£10.3million in 2019/20. This is an increase on the 2018/19 budget 
(£9.5million) which reflects local building costs, forecast outturn for 2018/19 
changes in stock numbers and additional revenue costs relating to void 
properties. 

The capital programme provides resources to:- 

 maintain our stock to the CHS+  (including carrying out 
improvements to previously declined properties) 

 deliver our Affordable Homes commitment  

 

 

Maintain our Stock 

Tudalen 302



 5 

For 2019/20 the capital programme to maintain the CHS(+) is £15.4million. 
This gives an overall spend of £25.7million on stock improvement and 
maintenance (the total for 2018/19 was £20million). This includes 
increasing capital resources available for works relating to major voids 
(£0.8million), structural works on estates (£0.7million), roofing works 
(£0.3million), investment in sheltered schemes (£1.7million), risk reduction 
measures (£0.25million) and sewerage treatment works (£0.19million). 

 

Affordable Housing Commitment 

WG have indicated the availability of Housing Finance Grant (HFG2) funding 
for new affordable housing .This will provide £6.9million extra funding for the 
county, which is planned as part of the 5 year programme. The anticipated 
funding will be provided as a revenue source, requiring the authority to 
borrow the money and WG repaying the capital charges. Further clarification 
on how the resources will be given to LA’s is outstanding from WG. 
We have set aside £44million over the next three years as part of the capital 
programme to increase the supply of affordable homes. Within 2019/20 
£15.5million has been identified for the Delivery Plan (including development 
costs).  

The capital programme and funding sources for this programme up to 
2021/22 are detailed in Appendix A.  

Validation 

The proposed Business Plan includes the following validations for 2018/19, 
which is in line with the proposed budget strategy: 
 

 general payroll costs are +3.5% (average) with a greater uplift on 
the lower pay bands (as per the current national employers pay 
offer). 

 general inflation has been accommodated at  +2.4%  

 Electricity, gas & oil at +5%. 

 Increased pension costs from 17.8% to 18% 
 
 
Capital Financing and Subsidy  

 
The capital financing costs reflect the borrowing requirement inclusive of 
the exit from HRAS. 
Details of the budget for Housing Revenue Account for the period up to 
2021/22 is shown in Appendix B. 
 
 

 

Tudalen 303



 6 

4. INCOME 

4.1. Previously we have applied the WG Social Housing Rent Policy to 
progress to the mid-point target rent (County Council approved on 
24/02/15). This policy ended in 2018/19. 
 
A one year policy of maximum of CPI only has been issued by WG for 
2019/20, with no discretion to apply ‘progression’ for those tenants below 
target rents if an LA’s current average rent is within the target rent band. 
Rent increases could be set at lower than 2.4% but as there is no certainty 
over future rent levels applying the interim policy seems the most prudent 
approach for 2019/20. Setting at a lower level than 2.4% rent increase will 
also impact of the current proposed Business Plan. 

Carmarthenshire’s current average rent is £85.52 per week, which 
leaves us between the low-end WG target rent level of £85.27 and 
the mid-point target £89.76. Housing Association rents in 
Carmarthenshire average £91.29 for 2018/19. In the private sector 
median rents for 2 bedrooms are £106 and 3 bedrooms are £121 as 
at June 2018. At the present time there are 12 homes above target 
rent, 3186 homes below this level with the remainder at target rent.  

When setting rents for 2019/20 the WG interim policy will need to be 
applied. 

For those properties below and at target rent the increase will be:-  

Consumer Price Index (CPI for September 2018) = 2.4%. 

Those rents above target are frozen until such time that they meet the 
target, there are only 12 of these properties remaining. When a property 
becomes empty it is placed in the target rent band. 

Based on applying the above for 2019/20 at 2.4% rent increase this 
would produce an average rent of £87.57 (increase of £2.05). 

Details of the rent increases on individual households are below :- 

 
Receive an increase of :- 2.4% increase 

No increase 12 

up to £1.00 17 

£1.00 to £1.99 1,368 

£2.00 to £2.99 7,692 

  

 9,089 

Table 2 : No .of Householders affected by average increases. 

Tudalen 304



 7 

Currently 38% of tenants are on full Housing Benefit (HB), 27% are on 
partial HB and 35% in receipts of no HB. 

4.2. Target Rents for Carmarthenshire 

Target rents and forecast rents for 2019/20 are set out below:- 

 

  Houses and Bungalows (£) Flats(£) Bedsits 
(£) 

  1Bed 2Bed  3Bed  4Bed  5+Bed 1Bed  2Bed 3Bed  4+Bed   

Target Rent (mid-
point) 2019/20 as 
notified by WG 81.51 90.57 99.63 108.68 117.74 73.75 81.94 90.14 98.33 65.55 

Actual Rent 
2019/20 with 2.4% 
increase 79.80 88.66 97.52 106.38 115.26 72.18 80.22 88.23 96.27 64.17 

 

 

 

 

 

          

WG policy rent band, 2019-20 

Low end Mid point High end 

(£ per week) (£ per week) (£ per week) 

86.67 91.23 95.79 

Table 3 : Comparison of Forecast Average Weekly Rents to Target Rents over 52 weeks and 
Rent Bands  

          

           

For Carmarthenshire our average target rent for 2019/20 is £91.23 (mid 
point) with the all Wales average being £96.00 .Carmarthenshire’s 2018/19 
actual rent is the 2nd lowest of eleven stock retaining authorities. 

WG have advised LA’s that a 2.4% increase should be the maximum 
applied in 2019/20, however for Carmarthenshire our target rents have only 
increased by 1.6% due to changes in indicies. This restricts authorities at 
the high end of their target rents but does not affect Carmarthenshire. 

The proportion of dwellings below target rents is 35% as a result of the 
£1.62 progression implemented last year and the target rent being charged 
as a result of properties becoming vacant. This was over 85% when we 
began the harmonisation process.   

 

Tudalen 305



 8 

4.3. Garage Rental Income  
 
The HRA currently receives a net rental income of £125k per annum. This 
equates to a weekly charge of £9.00 per week. It is proposed that garage 
rents are maintained at £9.00 per week. Garage bases will similarly remain 
at £2.25 per week. 
 
4.4. Service and Heating charges  
 
Service charges are calculated in line with the policy adopted in 2011. 
These charges are  made to cover the additional services we provide as a 
landlord that are not covered within the rent and to ensure that 
all  communal areas  are kept in a good condition.  
 
These charges will vary annually as they are based on actual expenditure 

from the previous financial year. By implementing the Service Charge Policy 

we are ensuring that tenants who receive additional services pay for them in 

a fair and transparent way.  

 
 
4.5. Sewerage Treatment Works 
 
We have 15 pumping stations serving approx. 154 properties, the cost of 
running and maintaining the stations falls on the HRA. We also have 8 
cesspits. It is proposed for 2019/20 that current charges are increased as 
per our rent increase. In the meantime Officers are reviewing the future use 
and running of the Works as part of the Asset Management Plan.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6. Commission on Collection of Water Rates 
 
In addition to the rent collection process we act as an agent on behalf of 
Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water, which generates an income of £400k in the form 
of commission. The implementation of the HelpU scheme for tenants has 
reduced this commission receivable by approximately £100k.The HelpU 
tariff assists tenants with low household income (less than £15k per 
annum) by reducing their water bills by nearly £200 per annum. 
 
 
 
4.7. Universal Credit 

Tudalen 306



 9 

 
The roll out of universal credit will impact on tenants and residents of 
Carmarthenshire. From a business plan point of view, evidence from the 
pilots has shown that rent arrears will increase in the short to medium term 
and we have allowed for this within this plan in terms of our bad debt 
provision. Currently there is a working group of officers from communities 
department, corporate services as well as department of works & pensions 
and job centre plus mapping the potential impact and how to best support 
our tenants. Also officers are investigating the information technology 
solutions on the market to aid welfare reform impact analysis, poverty 
tracking and aiding front line staff to give best advice. 
 
 
  
The CHS+ Business Plan presents more detail on this, including the 
actions that are being undertaken to mitigate the impact for Council 
tenants. 
 
 
 
 

5. BALANCES 

5.1. A rental increase is set at 2.4% the overall proposed budget will result 
in a surplus on the Housing Revenue Account of £6.1million for the year. It 
should also be noted in Appendix B that balances are required to support 
the current strategy of funding our capital expenditure and continue to 
make our business plan affordable over a 30 year period. 

 

6. PROPOSED RECOMMENDATIONS TO EXECUTIVE BOARD 

1. To increase the average housing rent as per the WG Interim 
Social Housing Rents Policy. 

a. Properties at target rents will increase by 2.4% 
b. Those rents above target are frozen until such time that they 

meet the target. 
c. This will produce an increase on the average housing rent of 

2.4% or £2.05 

This will produce a sustainable Business Plan, maintain CHS+, 
resource our Affordable Homes programme and is supported by 
the CHS+ Steering Group. 

2. To maintain garage rents at £9.00 per week and garage bases at 
£2.25 per week. 

3. To apply the service charge policy to ensure tenants who receive 
the benefit from specific services pay for those services. 

Tudalen 307



 10 

4. To increase charges for using our sewerage treatment works in 
line with rent increases. 

5. To approve the Housing Revenue Account Budget for 2019/20 
(with 2020/21 and 2021/22 being soft budgets) as set out in 
Appendix B. 

6. To approve the proposed Capital Programme and applicable 
funding for 2017/18 and the indicative spends for the future years 
2017/18 to 2021/22 as set out in Appendix A. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 308



Department for Communities

Homes and Safer Communities

HRA - Capital Programme Budget 2019/20 - 2021/22

Appendix A

Budget 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)

Maintain the standard:

Internal works - kitchens, bathrooms, electrics, heating etc. 1,178 998 1,066

EWI, Render and Fascia (inc. gardens) 1,770 3,478 3,652

Roofing 1,292 1,086 1,140

Boiler replacements 680 563 941

Structural works - Estates and boundary walls (inc. identified 

structural works)
1,704 600 600

Voids and Major Works to homes 4,014 2,000 2,000

Support Tenant and Residents:

Sheltered Scheme Investment(boilers) 499 714 0

Sheltered Scheme Investment 1,500 3,000 3,000

Adaptations 1,700 1,500 1,500

Environmental works 303 309 309

Provide more affordable homes:

Housing Development Programme 15,452 15,952 13,000

Support the delivery of CHS+:

Programme management 198 200 201

Stock condition information 150 100 100

Risk Reduction Measures 254 258 261

Sewerage treatment works & assiciated costs 184 0 0

TOTAL 30,878 30,758 27,770 

Budget 

2019/20

Budget 

2020/21

Budget 

2021/22

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)

Welsh Government Grant-MRA 6,190 6,190 6,190

Housing Finance Grant 3,452 3,452 0

External Borrowing 21,236 21,116 21,580

TOTAL 30,878 30,758 27,770

CAPITAL SPENDING TO:-

CAPITAL FUNDING FROM:

Tudalen 309



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Department for Communities

Homes and Safer Communities

Housing Revenue Account 2019/20 - 2021/22

Appendix B

Budget 2019/20 Budget 2020/21 Budget 2021/22

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)

Repair and maintain homes 10,288                               10,623                               10,897                               

Supervision and management 10,189                               10,402                               10,574                               

Support services e.g. legal and finance 1,620                                 1,620                                 1,620                                 

Provision for Bad debts 585                                     770                                     1,110                                 

Capital charges 14,941                               15,822                               16,770                               

TOTAL 37,623                               39,237                               40,971                               

Budget 2019/20 Budget 2020/21 Budget 2021/22

REVENUE FUNDING FROM: (£000s) (£000s) (£000s)

Tenant rents 41,390                               42,150                               43,863                               

Service charges 706                                     720                                     734                                     

Interest received 102                                     136                                     168                                     

Housing Finance Grant 2 124                                     247                                     247                                     

Water rates commission 401                                     409                                     417                                     

Grants / Other 1,001                                 898                                     913                                     

TOTAL 43,724                               44,560                               46,342                               

Budget 2019/20 Budget 2020/21 Budget 2021/22

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)

Balance brought forward from last year -14,002 -20,103 -25,426

HRA budgeted surplus (-)/ deficit (+) -6101 -5,323 -5,371

Balance Carried Forward -20,103 -25,426 -30,797

REVENUE SPENDING TO:

HRA END OF YEAR POSITION:

Tudalen 311



netted off rents

Tudalen 312



Y CYNGOR SIR
DYDDIAD: 20 CHWEFROR, 2019

PWNC:
SAFON TAI SIR GAERFYRDDIN A MWY (STSG+)

CYNLLUN BUSNES 2019–22
Y Pwrpas: 

 Egluro gweledigaeth a manylion cynnal a gwella Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a Mwy dros y 
tair blynedd nesaf, a'r hyn y mae'r Safon yn ei olygu i'r tenantiaid.

 Amlinellu sut y gallwn gyflawni newid a buddsoddiad trawsnewidiol, a gosod targedau tai 
fforddiadwy hyd yn oed yn fwy uchelgeisiol ar gyfer y dyfodol.

 Cadarnhau'r proffil ariannol, yn seiliedig ar y rhagdybiaethau presennol, ar gyfer cyflawni 
STSG+ dros y tair blynedd nesaf.

 Llunio cynllun busnes y cais blynyddol i Lywodraeth Cymru am Lwfans Atgyweiriadau 
Mawr (MRA), 2019/20, sy'n gyfwerth â £6.1 miliwn.

Argymhellion Y Bwrdd Gweithredol:
 Cadarnhau gweledigaeth uchelgeisiol STSG+ a chadarnhau'r rhaglen ariannol a'r 

rhaglen gyflawni dros y tair blynedd nesaf; a
 Cadarnhau bod y cynllun yn cael ei gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru.

Y Rhesymau: 
 Er mwyn parhau â'n gweledigaeth ar gyfer STSG+ i gyflawni'r hyn sydd o wir bwys i 

denantiaid.
 Er mwyn parhau i gefnogi tenantiaid drwy gynnal a gwella STSG+ a gwneud 

buddsoddiad cyffredinol o £45 miliwn dros y tair blynedd nesaf.
 Adeiladu ar ein Cynllun Tai Fforddiadwy llwyddiannus drwy gyflwyno Cynllun Newid a 

Buddsoddi Trawsnewidiol uchelgeisiol iawn a fydd yn darparu dros 900 o dai Cyngor 
dros y 10 mlynedd nesaf gyda chyfanswm buddsoddiad o bron £150 miliwn. Dyma 
fyddai’r cynnydd mwyaf mewn tai fforddiadwy yn y Sir ers 1970au.  Bydd y buddsoddiad, 
o fewn y tair blynedd nesaf, bron yn £44 miliwn.

 Er mwyn sicrhau bod yr Aelodau'n ymwybodol bod cyflawni'r Cynllun yn dibynnu ar godi 
rhenti 2.4% ar gyfartaledd yn 2019/20.

 Galluogi cyflwyno cais i Lywodraeth Cymru er mwyn cael £6.1 miliwn o Lwfans 
Atgyweiriadau Mawr (MRA) am 2019/20.

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol : DO – Y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau – 
23 Ionawr, 2019

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:
 Penderfynwyd argymell i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol i gymeradwyo’r Cynllun Busnes 2019-22 

Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a Mwy (STSG+).

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad: Oes - 4 Chwefror 2019 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad: Oes - 20 Chwefror 2019

Tudalen 313

Eitem Rhif  9.4



YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- 

Y Cyng. Linda Evans (Deiliad y Portffolio Tai)
Y Cyng. Hazel Evans (Deiliad Portffolio yr Amgylchedd)
Y Cyng. David Jenkins (Deiliad y Portffolio Adnoddau)
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Cymunedau

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth:
Jonathan Morgan

Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Angie Bowen

Swydd:

Pennaeth Dros Dro Cartrefi a 
Chymunedau Mwy Diogel 

Rheolwr Dros Dro Buddsoddi 
ac Incwm 

Rhifau ffôn/ Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
(01267) 227285

AnBowen@sirgar.gov.uk
(01554) 899292

Tudalen 314



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD

DATE: 4TH FEBRUARY, 2019

SUBJECT:
THE CARMARTHENSHIRE HOMES STANDARD PLUS (CHS+)

Business Plan 2019-22

What is the purpose of the plan?

 To explain the vision and detail of the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus over the 
next three years, and what it means for tenants;

 To outline how we can deliver transformational change and investment, and set even 
more ambitious affordable homes targets for the future;

 To confirm the financial profile, based on current assumptions, for the delivery of the 
CHS+ over the next three years; and

 To produce a business plan for the annual application to Welsh Government for Major 
Repairs Allowance (MRA) for 2019/20, equating to £6.1m.

What is the context?

Since 2006, we have been working to deliver the published work programmes to our tenants’ 
homes. We called this the CHS+ and achieved this to homes where tenants agreed to have the 
work done during 2015. We fully acknowledge, however, that this is not the end of the journey 
and want to do more. This plan sets out how we will do this, confirming the financial and 
delivery programme over the next three years.

Our commitment to CHS+ remains firmly on track, building on what has already been achieved 
and trying to be as ambitious as we can.

We continue to challenge and review the stock information we hold and how it is collated.  The 
importance we place on our strategic asset management arrangements enables us to provide 
the foundation for our investment plans. It also confirms the future expenditure needed to 
maintain the standard, and what money will be available for our affordable homes delivery 
programme. Nearly £45m has been set aside to maintain the CHS+ for existing tenants over 
the next three years.

By taking opportunities, we can also deliver transformational change and investment, and set 
even more ambitious affordable homes targets for the future. This would be the biggest 
increase in affordable housing in the County since the 1970s. We plan to deliver 900 new 
Council homes, with a total investment of nearly £150m over the next 10 years. 
We have committed nearly £44m over the next three years to get this ambitious programme 
started. This programme will also align with our existing plans, Cartrefi Croeso delivery and 

Tudalen 315



wider regeneration initiatives across the County.

This year, we are also proposing that keep the average rent increase for 2019/20 to 2.4%.

Supporting Tenants and Residents
As part of the CHS+, we continue to support tenants and residents in everything we do.   We 
believe we should give our tenants the opportunity to influence decisions about their homes, 
the area they live in and ensure the services they receive are value for money. Tenants have 
told us that they would like us to focus on providing more advice and support for them with bills 
and benefits, which will help them to maintain their home. As a result:

 We will change the current structures of tenant involvement to encourage more 
involvement from under-represented groups.  We will also improve systems for 
gathering and acting on tenant feedback, and continue to use ‘Planning for Real’ as a 
method of engagement and consultation on estate issues.  We plan to increase the use 
of digital services, survey our tenants (STAR Survey) to establish baseline information, 
re-survey every three years and periodically on single issues;

 We will focus on providing more advice and support to tenants in managing their 
monthly budgets.  We will also deliver a range of support and services to help tenants 
cope with the cultural change of Universal Credit, and mitigate the impact as much as 
we are able;

 We will continue to expand the pre-tenancy service to provide support and training to 
applicants and potential new tenants before a tenancy begins.  We will also focus on 
pre-tenancy work to minimise rent arrears, maximise income for both us and tenants 
and improve tenancy sustainability; and

 We will continue to work with tenants to see what improvements they would like to see 
to CHS+ in the future.

Two key themes have been identified in terms of future investment. These are:

THEME 1- Investing in our Homes’ and the Environment.  

This plan confirms work that will be undertaken to maintain the standard and what our key 
principles are to support our future approach to managing the homes and gardens, land, 
garage areas and the environment. Over £45m will be invested.

We will:

 Make sure our stock information is as good as it can be, and fill in any existing gaps, in 
order that we know where we need to maintain and improve the CHS+;

 Continue to identify homes where tenants have refused part or all of the intended CHS+ 
works, and agree with them when works are to be programmed;

 Continue to review and update our annual work programmes based on evidence and 
need, only replacing components nearer to the time of failing and not time;

 Install low carbon technologies on a small number of our homes, and analyse the 
results in terms of costs, benefits to tenants and ease of use. This will enable us to 

Tudalen 316



better understand the potential for helping tenants to reduce their energy bills, improve 
the comfort of their homes and reduce carbon emissions to levels set by Welsh 
Government;  

 Continue to make void properties available for letting as quickly as possible, minimising 
rent loss and maximising the housing available, whilst striving to meet CHS+;

 Continue to provide a customer focussed responsive repairs service, which achieves 
high levels of performance, customer satisfaction and good value for money;

 Continue to provide homes better suited to tenants needs by:
- investing in adapting homes;
- understanding the future investment needs for our sheltered housing stock; and
- completing option appraisals on sites that may need changing/ converting into 

homes that can better meet housing need.

THEME 2 - Providing more Homes.  

We are well on our way to delivering our initial 1,000 additional affordable home target by 2021 
through our current planning- but we want to do more!

As has been stated, we plan to further increase the supply of affordable housing, building on 
what has already been achieved. 

Over the next three years, an additional 250 Council homes will be built with an investment of 
nearly £44m. This programme will further support the current earmarked developments of the 
recently established housing company ‘Cartrefi Croeso’. The Company will not only deliver a mix 
of new affordable homes for sale or rent, but will also offer families additional choices as 
alternatives to social housing.  

Through careful financial planning in terms of borrowing we have been able to open up some 
exciting opportunities for Carmarthenshire in terms of building more Council homes. This will 
enable the Council and its housing stock to play a pivotal role in not only developing much 
needed social housing but also delivering wider Council priorities to grow the economy.

As a result, this plan will now be able to:
 Continue to provide a range of solutions to deliver more affordable homes, including 

building new homes, purchasing private sector homes to increase the Council’s housing 
stock in the areas of greatest housing need; and managing private sector homes 
through the ‘Simple Lettings Agency’; 

 Align our 10 year ambitious new build programme with Cartrefi Croeso plans to develop 
new build homes, in order to maximise future opportunities; and

 Use our new build programme to further support wider regeneration initiatives, including 
rural areas.

On a wider scale we also want to maximise the impact of the Swansea Bay City Region Deal 
’Delivering Homes as Power Stations’ project.  We see this as a huge opportunity for 
Carmarthenshire as the project will create a new industry in the region which will develop and 
build innovative energy technologies. 

Tudalen 317



DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES – Carmarthenshire Homes Standard PLUS (CHS+)  
Business Plan 2019/2022

Finally we set out what the key assumptions are to make sure the plan remains viable, what we 
will spend the money on and how it is funded. 

Recommendations:

1. To confirm the ambitious vision of the CHS+ and the financial and delivery 
programme over the next three years.

2. To confirm the submission of the Plan to Welsh Government for the 2019/20 MRA 
Application.

Tudalen 318



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report :

Signed:      Jonathan Morgan                                       Acting Head of Homes and Safer Communities

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES NONE YES NONE YES

1. Policy, Crime and Disorder and Equalities 

The CHS+ will act as the framework for policy development across housing services 
delivery and will contribute to wider agendas and programmes.

2. Legal  

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 sets out our statutory duty to maintain the Welsh 
Housing Quality Standard (our version is the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard PLUS) 
in our existing stock.

3. Finance

Delivering the CHS+ will continue to present significant financial challenges and risks to 
the County Council.

We have spent over £240m to achieve and maintain the standard, with nearly £120m of 
this spend has been funded through a prudential borrowing programme.

Through careful management, the financial model remains viable to not only maintain 
the CHS+, but also deliver more affordable homes. A summary of costs over the next 
three years is included in the plan.

A general rent increase of 2.4% for 2019/20 is also assumed in the plan.

4. Risk Management

The CHS+ programme is identified as moderate risk in the Council’s Risk Management 
Plan. A risk management plan has been developed to mitigate and review all risks 
associated with the programme. 

Failure to deliver a viable Business Plan to Welsh Government by the end of March 
2019 will mean the MRA of £6.1m for 2019/20 being withdrawn.

Tudalen 319



5. Physical Assets

The CHS+ will involve the management, maintenance and improvement of the Council’s 
housing stock. This will be carried out within the context of our asset management 
principles which are defined within the plan. Any decision to acquire, convert or dispose 
of homes, land and/or garage areas will be considered in line with these principles.

This plan will also result in an increase in the Council housing stock through the new 
build and purchasing homes in the private sector.

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below

Signed:     Jonathan Morgan Acting Head of Homes and Safer Communities

1. Scrutiny Committee – Community Scrutiny Committee was consulted on 23rd January, 
2019.
1.Local Member(s)
n/a
2.Community / Town Council 
n/a
3.Relevant Partners  
Engagement with stakeholders and partners has taken place in order to develop this Plan, 
including stakeholder events, 1-2-1 interviews and various meetings.  
4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  
Engagement with tenants, has taken place in order to develop this Plan, including 
stakeholder events, 1-2-1 interviews, visits and events in communities, and various 
meetings.  
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of document File Ref No. Location that the file is available for 
public inspection

Carmarthenshire Homes 
Standard PLUS (CHS+)  

Business Plan 2019/2022

Housing General Files Council website- Democratic 
Services

Tudalen 320



0

Carmarthenshire 
Homes Standard 
PLUS (CHS+)  
Business Plan 
2019/2022

February 2019 

Tudalen 321



1

Contents
Foreword by our Executive Board Members .............................................................................2
Introduction...............................................................................................................................4
Achievements and Priorities......................................................................................................5
Context ......................................................................................................................................8
Supporting Tenants and Residents..........................................................................................12
Theme 1 – Investing in Homes’ and the Environment .............................................................16
Theme 2 – Providing more homes...........................................................................................22
Community Benefits and Procurement ...................................................................................24
Funding and Risk Management ..............................................................................................25
Compliance, Verification and Monitoring ...............................................................................29

Tudalen 322



2

Foreword by our Executive Board Members
We are pleased to introduce our Carmarthenshire Homes Standard PLUS (CHS+) Business 
Plan 2019-2022, which sets out our priorities, plans and actions for council housing for the 
coming years.

Through careful financial planning, this Plan will not only allow us to continue to maintain 
the standard but will provide a real boost to our ambition to build even more affordable 
homes.

We plan to continue to invest over £45m in maintaining tenants’ homes over the next three 
years.  We know from the recent publication of our major Health Impact Study, in 
conjunction with Cardiff and Swansea Universities, that our investment has had a really 
positive impact on our tenants’ health and well-being.  We will continue to prioritise this 
investment. 

Also, three years into our promise to deliver 1,000 more affordable homes by 2021, we have 
already passed the half-way mark, with nearly 650 households benefitting from the 
Council’s £25million investment to provide more good quality low-cost homes. 

Demand for social housing remains high, but we are aware that there are information gaps 
about housing need, particularly rural parts of the County.  Our recent needs survey has 
resulted in over 5,000 responses and will help us to further plan the right type of homes in 
the right areas.

Last year we also established Cartrefi Croeso, our local housing company, to open up new 
opportunities, offer families an alternative to social housing and to take advantage of the 
skills of local companies.  We are hoping the first development will be on site in spring 2019.

We want to do more, however. We are developing a 10 year council housing new build 
programme that will enable us to play a pivotal role in developing additional affordable 
homes and support wider Council priorities. Nearly £44m has been set aside for the next 
three years and it is planned to invest nearly £150m and deliver 900 new council homes 
over the next ten years, in addition to what is already planned. It will also allow us to not 
only align with Cartrefi Croeso delivery but significantly contribute to key Council 
developments and regeneration initiatives to grow the economy across the County.

Finally, we know that the introduction of Universal Credit (UC) last year presented a cultural 
change for many tenants in managing their monthly budgets.  This is going to be a major 
challenge for us in terms of future income and, more importantly, for tenants.  We have 
recognised this by implementing an action plan to reduce the impact as much as possible for 
tenants across all tenures.

These are exciting times, but we know that this is also a time of uncertainty for our tenants. 

Tudalen 323



3

As a result, we have been able to keep the rent increase for 2019/20 at an average of 2.4%, 
whilst still maintaining the standard and building more homes. This achievement should not 
be underestimated.

We are so proud to be delivering on our promise to local families, and we are very confident 
that we can do more. This will be achieved by continuing to work together and making a real 
difference in our communities and to the local economy.  

Linda Davies Evans
Executive Board Member 
for Housing

Cllr Hazel Evans
Executive Board Member 
for Environment

Cllr David Jenkins
Executive Board Member 
for Resources

Tudalen 324



4

Introduction
Introduction

The Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) is the Welsh Government (WG) standard of 
social housing quality. The WHQS was first introduced in 2002 and aimed to ensure that all 
homes are of good quality and suitable for the needs of existing and future residents. WG 
set a target for all social landlords to improve their housing stock to meet the WHQS as soon 
as possible, but in any event by 2020.

Carmarthenshire’s tenants developed their own standard, called the CHS+, and this was 
successfully delivered in 2015, well in advance of the WG timescales.

Purpose of the CHS+ Plan

The purpose of this Plan is to explain the vision and detail of the CHS+, and what it means 
for tenants. It also confirms the financial profile, based on current assumptions, for the 
delivery of the CHS+ over the next three years.  The approved Plan enables us to submit our 
annual application to WG for Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) for 2019/20, which amounts 
to £6.1m.

Development of the CHS+ Plan

Tenants and stakeholders have been consulted through the Tenant Consultative Forum and 
by face to face interviews and their views taken into account in preparing this Plan.  The 
Plan is updated annually taking into account these views, the latest stock condition 
information, updated financial information, WG Guidance and any revised Council policies.

All actions in this Plan will be monitored every two months by the CHS+ Steering Group. This 
group provides strategic direction and corporate leadership to ensure progress is made on 
the initiatives in the Plan.   The CHS+ Steering Group is also responsible for monitoring 
progress, reviewing and managing the overall 30 year financial plan that supports our 
planned investment. 

How this plan links with our corporate priorities, together with the overall governance 
structure is set out in Appendix A.

Tudalen 325



5

Achievements and Priorities
The previous CHS+ Business Plan 2018-2021 has achieved a number of notable successes 
over the last 12 months:-

2018/19 main achievements:

 Over £19m spent to maintain the CHS+ in tenants’ homes;
 Over 240 additional affordable homes delivered during our third year of delivery;
 Over 530 adaptations completed, with over £1m being invested to ensure tenants’ 

homes meet their needs;
 Over £285,000 spent on 35 Environmental Improvement Projects (plus £60,000 on 

improving garage plots, demolishing garages, clearing areas and creating car parking 
spaces);

 Managed improvements and lettings of 900 homes, including new homes added to 
our stock;

 Started development on two sites for 48 new affordable homes in Llanelli and 
Pembrey;

 Continued our time-banking initiative, Spice, with over 57,970 of total volunteer 
hours being given.  Over 1,800 tenants and their family members took part;

 Housed over 40 households who have specific needs through our Accessible  
Housing Register (AHR);

 Introduced a Choice Based Letting scheme, Canfod Cartref, that gave tenants more 
choice and  which will make tenancies more sustainable ; 

 The findings of our Health Impact Study with Swansea University showed the 
positive impact on health of investing over £200m in tenants homes since 2007. This 
investment also brings social, economic and environmental benefits for all; 

 Shortlisted for CIH Cymru Wales Housing awards recognising our work on improving 
tenants’ homes;

 Over 250 people attended 23 comprehensive consultation events using “Planning for 
Real” to engage with residents of Tyisha ward in Llanelli; 

 Taken on three apprentices in Property Maintenance;
 Re-let the gas servicing contract for tenant homes;
 Set up a new minor works framework with up to date Schedules of Rates to ensure 

value for money for housing repairs; and
 Started to realign our Property Maintenance section to improve arrangements for 

future lettings and maintenance of Council homes. 

Roll out of Home Checker visits: 

In 2018/19 we carried out basic checks to all Council homes (where we gained access) 
through servicing contractors, repair visits and tenancy support calls.  As a result of these 
visits about 5% of homes were identified as requiring a more in-depth visit by a housing 
officer.

Tudalen 326



6

Some issues identified and attended to in terms of preventative maintenance, included:

 Leaking showers;
 Loose tiles and guttering;
 Broken windows;
 Window locks and handles not working;
 Plugs and sockets loose;
 Toilet leaks;
 Extractor fans not working;
 Damp; and
 Condensation.

The continuation of our Home Checker visits will enable us to identify specifically what help 
tenants want, such as support with Universal Credit and household budget management.   
This will enable us to plan for the future and identify preventative maintenance and 
component failure.

What did the tenants think of the service provided? 

During 2018/19 we have continued to engage with tenants and other stakeholders in a 
number of ways. One of the key questions we asked during our Home Checker visit was 
“How happy are you with the service we provide?”  The results are provided in Appendix B. 

2019/20 priorities: 

From carrying out this initial work on Home Checker we will:

 Continue with Home Checker and look at ways to improve how we capture data 
from the visits;

 Further improve our approach to preventative maintenance in next year’s CHS+ 
Business Plan;

 Develop and encourage tenants to take a proactive approach in maintaining their 
homes to a high standard;

 Make our services more effective and responsive by tailoring them more closely to 
the needs of our tenants;

 Help more tenants with a range of issues including saving money on fuel bills, 
budgeting and financial assistance and housing support; and

 Further develop our approach to tenant feedback in order that we analyse trends 
over time.

Health Impact Study

During 2018/19 we also published the results of our major health impact study (in 
conjunction with Swansea and Cardiff Universities funded through Public Health Research 
programme). 

Tudalen 327



7

The findings of the study demonstrates that by bringing our housing stock up to CHS+ we 
are improving people’s lives and well-being, achieving outcomes that will benefit 
generations to come. The study tracked tenants’ health and well-being while we were 
carrying out the investment programmes to homes. We assessed the health outcomes for 
over 32,000 residents living in 8,558 Council homes, which were compared to a control 
group of residents who did not receive housing improvements.

The heath evaluation results and study recommendations identified a number of key 
priorities:

 Preventative maintenance;
 Reducing the risk of trips and falls inside and out of homes;
 Making sure our homes are warm; and
 Improving air quality by installing extractor fans in kitchens and bathrooms.

We have used this information to update our development plans. Our CHS+ programme is 
addressing the findings raised in the report, particularly around energy efficiency by bringing 
homes up to CHS+ where the tenant had previously declined the works. The report itself 
encourages the adoption of the recommendations by local authorities around the UK and 
further afield.  

The following sections will provide the context to, and detail of, what we plan to deliver 
over the next three years, including how we intend paying for it, the community benefits 
and verifying what we have done.

The importance of strategic asset management in providing the foundation for our 
investment plans, as well as the central role of supporting tenants and residents in 
everything we do, is also highlighted. Leading on from this, we will cover two key themes 
that have been identified in terms of future investment. These are:

1. THEME 1- Investing in our Homes’ and the Environment.

2. THEME 2 - Providing more Homes.

Tudalen 328



8

Context
The CHS+ Business Plan

This Plan covers all housing services and assets in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). It 
sets out the objectives of the CHS+ and what this means for tenants and leaseholders across 
a range of housing activities.  

The Council has:

 Over 9,000 homes;
 Over 1,400 garages (including bases); and
 Areas of land.

Details of our housing assets and the profile of our tenants and applicants are provided in 
Appendix C. 

This Plan confirms the delivery programmes of repair, maintenance and improvement, as 
well as setting the framework for the potential redevelopment of some of the most 
uneconomic stock.  This is set in the context of maintaining our 100% compliance with WG’s 
WHQS, and we will continue to do this through the CHS+.  

This Plan demonstrates our commitment to sustained investment and shows how the 
investment in the existing stock is delivered, as well as an ambitious affordable homes 
programme.  We have also ensured a balance of investment across the entire housing stock 
so that our capital and revenue spend is complementary, enabling tenants to receive best 
value services.

We will invest nearly £45m in our existing homes over the next three years. This is based on 
current assumptions, together with a three year revenue provision of £10m a year for 
planned and responsive repairs and maintenance.  We have also identified a further £44m 
to build more Council homes, aligning with our wider delivery ambitions.  

The delivery of the above investment, however, must be built on a robust approach to 
managing our housing assets.

Our approach to managing assets 

Managing housing assets goes beyond just investing in good repair and improvements.  
Asset management is also about reviewing and potentially changing the asset base to end 
up with the right homes in the right location, supported by excellent, flexible services for 
our tenants.  It must consider quality and value for money, particularly the whole life of a 
home and how running costs will affect tenants.  

By applying an effective asset management strategy to our 9,000 plus homes, it will also 
enable us to meet our legal requirement of maintaining the CHS+ in the future.

Tudalen 329



9

Consequently our approach is underpinned by the following principles:

 Carrying out regular stock condition surveys to assess condition, use and required 
investment; 

 A planned maintenance programme achieving value for money by replacing 
components such as kitchens and bathrooms based on need, not time;

 A regular cyclical maintenance programme for certain components in a home e.g. 
heating appliances, electrical upgrades and external painting;

 A continual programme of works to meet health and safety requirements e.g. 
asbestos removal and structural repairs ;

 A maintenance service to respond to unplanned failures in homes and to prevent 
deterioration in their condition, such as boiler replacements;

 An efficient and effective voids repair service, helping to quicken the repairs process 
and save money by carrying out CHS+ works when a home becomes empty;

 A programme of environmental estate improvements that is strategically targeted;
 A basic check to all homes on an annual basis through our existing visits; 
 A more in-depth visit to homes where there are potential issues in terms of 

condition, tenancy or welfare issues; 
 Continuing to invest in adapting homes to suit the needs of tenants;
 Understanding the future investment needs for our sheltered housing stock;
 Completing individual options appraisals if homes are no longer fit for purpose to 

determine the best course of action, including considering demolishing homes, or 
disposing of them;

 Completing options appraisals on sites that may need converting into homes that 
can better meet housing need; and

 Delivering the targets within the Affordable Homes Delivery Plan.

When considering the above we will:

 Engage with tenants, stakeholders and Members using new ways of participation 
and challenge; 

 As far as is possible, meet tenants’ aspirations and priorities;
 Maximise our assets and minimise liabilities;
 Seek value for money in all investment decisions and contract procurement; 
 Comply with current and future regulations; 
 Create good neighbourhoods for Council tenants and their neighbours; and 
 Provide assurance to the Council’s auditors and regulators that our housing service is 

well managed. 

We fully recognise that in order to achieve the above we must ensure that:

 The right structures, skills, resources and capacity are in place to manage future 
programmes, procurement and contract management effectively;

 Robust stock condition information, data and analysis is in place to produce 
programmes of investment that will appropriately maintain and improve standards, 
as well as services to tenants;

Tudalen 330



10

 Our data is further enhanced and regularly validated by feedback from all 
programmed and cyclical repairs, and maintenance activities; and

 We complete our cost certainty exercise for our overarching 30 year financial plan.

Over the next 12 months we will continue to focus on ensuring that asset management 
resources, both people and systems, are challenged to make sure they are in the right areas 
for the future.   Our joined-up approach will enable us to:

 Commence a rolling programme of stock condition surveys to verify our cost 
certainty business plan, identify gaps and provide independent verification;

 Understand why work has not been completed within the stock, such as when the 
tenant has requested that no work be carried out. These are called ’acceptable fails‘ 
(see Appendix D); and 

 Review our asset management systems and strategy to ensure all stock is fit for both 
current and emerging needs.

Ensuring our assets are economical to maintain and meet our strategic objectives

Homes

Every year there are a small number of homes that need major work. Generally these are 
homes where the previous tenants have declined the CHS+ works, or where structural works 
are identified in tenanted homes.

Before committing to do the work we need to ensure that the level of expenditure, and the 
housing need can be demonstrated. This is important to avoid major investment being 
made in a home that could remain empty longer than we would expect.  It is necessary to 
have a consistent approach, and this is known as an MSCA (Most Satisfactory Course of 
Action).

Similarly, when we identify a number of similar repair issues in homes, in a particular area, 
we will consider whole site appraisals.  This enables us to gather whole life costs for our 
homes in a defined area so that we can consider longer term solutions.  Where high 
investment is required and there is low demand for homes in the area, tenants, 
leaseholders and stakeholders will be involved in the option appraisal process.

Garages 

We will continue to actively gather information on the types of agreements used and the 
condition of garages, in order to:

 Repair and maintain existing garages which are in-use and/or vacant.  An assessment 
will be made, and if any  are unsafe and need demolishing on health and safety 
grounds, we will:

- Establish who uses garages and bases;
- Standardise agreements and charges; and

Tudalen 331



11

- Consult on future options for garage sites.  In areas where there is limited 
parking we would aim to replace any demolished garages with parking bays.

 
Land 

We have areas of land across the County.  As part of our commitment to affordable housing 
we have identified areas of land that could be used for development, prioritising those in 
areas of greatest need.  

Where we have identified areas, however, which have no use and cost us to maintain we 
shall include them in a programme for sale.  The receipts from sale contribute to 
maintaining the CHS+.

 Sewer Treatment Works

We currently have 15 sewer treatment works and 8 septic tanks.  Over the last 12 months 
we have reviewed the charging arrangements and monitored the ongoing maintenance of 
these facilities in order to consider future options and arrangements for all tenures.  We will 
develop a programme and consult with residents on the future strategy for maintaining and 
charging for sewer treatment works.

Tudalen 332



12

Supporting Tenants and Residents
The commitment and support of our tenants’ and Members’ continues to be important to 
us to ensure that we maintain and improve on the CHS+ in the future.  

Tenant and residents’ engagement and communication

Tenant and community engagement has always underpinned the delivery of the CHS+, but 
we want to do more. We want to get better by engaging as widely as possible and 
maximising opportunities to help build stronger communities. 

We asked TPAS Cymru to conduct an independent report into tenant participation and 
involvement with our tenants. As a result, we identified there was a lack of diversity and a 
low number of tenants who engage with tenant networks. These issues are not unique to 
Carmarthenshire and can be demonstrated across Wales.  

We also believe we should give our tenants the opportunity to influence decisions about 
their homes, the area they live and ensure the services they receive achieve value for 
money. Our vision is:-

“To make it easy and inviting for tenants to get involved in shaping strategic 
decisions and improve services through meaningful involvement by ensuring 

residents have the relevant skills”.

In order that our vision for participation fully reflects the work we undertake and for us to 
be consistent with other social landlords, we believe our vision should be set out along the 
following key principles:

 Improving communities – Ensuring that our communities are positive places to 
live by fostering a sense of community and ensuring that estates are well 
maintained; 

 Improving services – Ensuring that services delivered by us are those that 
tenants wish to receive, and that these are delivered to the highest standards;

 Improving accountability – Ensuring that the views of our tenants are heard 
when decisions are made at all levels, and that these decisions are 
communicated to tenants in a transparent manner; and

 Improving resident skills – Ensuring that tenants have the relevant skills to take 
part in managing their homes and providing broader support to tenants within 
the community to develop their skills.

We have reviewed the participation techniques we currently use, and it showed that 
newsletters are by far the most popular means of communication for tenants.  There are 
three further methods of participation that we can use to improve the way that tenant 
participation is undertaken. These are:

 More use single issue meetings;

Tudalen 333



13

 Increased use of digital participation; and
 Strengthening challenge and responsibility.

We aim to deliver on these principles by introducing the following new activities: 

 Changing the current structures of tenant involvement to encourage more 
involvement from under-represented groups;

 Improving systems for gathering and acting on tenant feedback;
 Using ‘Planning for Real’ as a method of engagement and consultation on estate 

issues;
 Increasing the use of digital services to reach out to under-represented groups and 

to those who do not want to attend meetings;
 Putting forward proposals for a challenge panel for our tenants;
 Holding single issue meetings; and
 Surveying our tenants (STAR Survey) to establish baseline information, and re-survey 

every three years and periodically on single issues.
 

As well as giving their views on general engagement activities, tenants and residents have 
also highlighted other priorities in terms of supporting them. They have told us that they 
would like us to focus on providing more advice and support for them with bills and benefits 
that will help them to maintain their homes.  We will be addressing these priorities in a 
number of areas.

Responding to Universal Credit

Universal Credit (UC) is a new monthly payment for people who are either unemployed, or 
working, but on a low income.  It will eventually replace six legacy benefits, including 
Housing Benefit.

In December 2018 Carmarthenshire became a full service UC area.   We have over 3,000 
tenants below pensionable age in receipt of Housing Benefit that would naturally migrate to 
UC if they have a qualifying change of circumstances.  A managed migration programme will 
then begin to move all remaining claimants over to UC by 2024.   This will mean that for any 
tenant claiming UC, payments for their housing support will be paid directly to them as 
opposed to it automatically being paid into their rent accounts.   

Experience from the UC pilots has identified it is a huge cultural change for many tenants in 
managing their monthly budgets and we must support as much as we can. We know that 
our tenants have a negative view of UC, and the current 4-8 week delays in processing and 
receiving payments can cause significant anxiety.

Private sector tenants who go onto UC are also likely to require support and may face issues 
with their landlords due to length of time taken to assess claims. 

From a business point of view, evidence from the pilots has shown that rent arrears will 
increase in the short to medium term and we have allowed for this within this plan in terms 
of our bad debt provision.

Tudalen 334



14

In order to mitigate the impact we have put in place an action plan which has involved:

 Ensuring that tenants are aware of what help we, or our partner organisations, can 
offer;  

 Visiting tenants we believe may be affected;  
 Continuing to work with housing providers to ensure that they are ready to provide 

support to our tenants;
 Increasing the range of Direct Debit (DD) payment dates available to tenants; 

Tenants will be able to choose any date within the month between 1 and 28;
 Enabling tenants to use the new ‘My Account’ facility to view their rent balance and 

recent rent transactions. It will also allow them to pay their rent, order a new 
payment card and request a direct debit form;

 Working closely with Welsh Water to encourage tenants to make an application 
under the ‘HelpU’ tariff which helps low income households to reduce their water 
bill; 

 Targeting our prevention fund to help the most vulnerable tenants;
 Developing guidance documents and procedures to assist in staff training;
 Introducing payment reminder e-mails and texts for individual tenants; and
 Building close partnerships with Housing Benefit, Job Centre Plus and DWP staff.

Focusing on Pre tenancy work

A review carried out by the Housing Quality Network (HQN) recommended that more 
detailed pre–tenancy work should be carried out with tenants to minimise rent arrears, 
maximise income for both us and tenants and improve tenancy sustainability. We have 
supported this recommendation by creating a pre-tenancy service as part of our Homes and 
Safer Communities realignment. 

We know that at present tenants are allocated homes with no prior insight into what a 
tenancy actually involves. Many are young, with no previous experience of running a home, 
living on a small budget.   Unsurprisingly some end up going into rent arrears, cause noise or 
disturbance to their neighbours and ultimately lose or end their tenancy within the first year 
or two. 

We have set up ‘The Home Ready’ project which provides support and training to applicants 
and potential new tenants of the Council before a tenancy begins.  The project aims to:

 Provide applicants with the most relevant and tailor made training to make them 
more confident and knowledgeable in gaining and sustaining their tenancy;

 Ensure that applicants will be more financially aware in their future day to day lives 
such as learning how to live on a budget; understand the benefits of their local 
credit unions; be more aware of what running and maintain a home and tenancy 
involves and the benefits of saving; and

 Provide applicants with training that will focus on understanding the terms of their 
tenancy, being a good neighbour and the importance of paying their rent.

Tudalen 335



15

Whilst the project remains in its initial stages progress to date involves:

 The appointment of a project officer; and
 216 new tenants have had training or one-to-one support.

The aim is that further resources will be allocated to this work and all new tenants will have 
pre-tenancy training or one-to-one support.

Our approach to this year’s rent increase

For 2019/20, through careful financial planning, we have been able to keep the average rent 
increase to 2.4%.

Tudalen 336



16

Theme 1 – Investing in Homes’ and the 
Environment
Maintaining the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus (CHS+)

In 2015 we achieved the CHS+ to homes where tenants have agreed to have work 
completed - well before WG’s target of 2020.   This is in line with our agreed assumptions 
that the standard of our homes will be to the CHS+ and replacement programmes will be 
based on condition, not time.  

Tenants tell us that getting repairs done on time and maintaining homes to a good standard 
is important to them.  Maintaining the standard is now a statutory duty, and the Council has 
made a commitment to achieve and maintain the CHS, which states that all homes will be:
 

 in a good state of repair;
 free from damp;
 free from significant condensation;
 structurally stable;
 in safe and attractive environments;
 suitable for the household; and
 managed to the CHS+

Our on-going consultation with tenants has identified five key themes in this area in terms 
of “What a good housing service looks like?”

 Repairs and Maintenance - proper and timely maintenance, consistent service, 
maintain homes to a high standard and continue to improve the housing stock;

 Internal Works and Servicing – heating, bathroom and kitchens, soundproofing in 
flats, removal of old plumbing and electrics and options of a newer kitchen;

 External Works and the Environment - roofs, removal of moss, rendering, tackling 
dampness, paths, solar panels, responding to requests for paths, provide a home 
that is secure, fencing, painting of outside of houses, garden walls and improve 
communal areas;

 Voids - standards to be applied to every home and finish the CHS programme; and
 Improving Standards - improvements which result in tenants maximising their 

income/saving money on utilities, a standard that doesn't stand still and provides 
service improvement.

The actions identified to address these themes are set out below. The resultant investment 
requirements have been built into the HRA Capital Programme 2019/2022 (set out in our 
capital spend table on page 26)

Repairs and Maintenance: The responsive repairs service has more contact with tenants 
and customers than any other maintenance service, and is therefore used as an important 

Tudalen 337



17

measure of how effective both the Housing and Property services are by the majority of 
customers.  

The objective of the repairs service is to provide a customer- focussed responsive and 
cyclical repairs service, which achieves high levels of performance, customer satisfaction 
and good value for money. We will continue to achieve this by:

 Advising tenants when they report minor repairs how quickly we can carry out the 
repairs. We will always prioritise emergency and urgent repairs. For larger repair 
requests, we will often assess the problem first before letting tenants know how 
long the works will take;

 Carrying out repairs in the timescales we have set out or at a time that is more 
convenient for the tenant. Sometimes, however, there may be delays because we 
cannot get materials, we need to carry out further investigations or the work is 
dependent on the weather;

 Introducing an appointments system for our urgent responsive repairs service, using 
mobile technology to make appointments with tenants at a time convenient for 
them, and evaluating the effectiveness of this service; and

 Introducing automatic scheduling of repairs to ensure efficient and timely use of our 
in-house repair teams.

Internal Works - For internal components such as kitchens, bathrooms, electrical upgrading 
and central heating, we replace components nearer to the time of failing.  We will achieve 
this by:

 Contacting tenants who have previously declined CHS+ works to discuss any issues 
they have and agree with them when works are to be programmed; and

 Ensuring homes have the appropriate smoke alarms, heat detectors or carbon 
monoxide devices, and discuss with tenants how we can upgrade these to improve 
the fire safety within their homes.   

Servicing – The objective of the servicing process is to assess the condition both correctly 
and consistently of our gas, oil, electric and solid fuel appliances.  Our cyclical servicing 
contract ensures that this assessment is carried out annually and enables us to replace 
components nearer to the time of failing.  We have recently reviewed our approach to fire 
safety across all our stock, and our approach to when tenants have requested not to have 
work carried out.  

We believe that it is in the best interest of tenants, and to protect our investment, that 
tenants will no longer have the option to decline electrical works including the installation of 
hard wired smoke detectors and Carbon Monoxide (CO) detectors. We will achieve this by:

 Continuing our annual programme of safety checks on gas fires, and gas or oil 
boilers, and only replace  boilers with energy-efficient condensing boilers, when 
defective and no longer economical to run; and

 Checking homes have the appropriate smoke alarms, heat detectors or carbon 
monoxide devices, and discussing with tenants how we can upgrade these;

Tudalen 338



18

 Gain access to ensure that the necessary works are completed; and  
 Install servicing timers when we gain access (where a tenant repeatedly does not 

give us access), to help tenants understand and manage their responsibilities under 
their tenancy agreement and help us to protect the lives of tenants.  

External Works and the Environment: - whilst it is known that our homes are generally in 
good condition and meet the CHS+, our objective is to achieve economies of scale by only 
replacing components nearer to the time of failing; and thus saving tenants money. We will 
achieve this by:

 Continuing to review and update our annual programme of roof and render 
component replacement including providing exterior wall insulation (EWI), based on 
evidence and need, and not time; 

 Working with a range of partners to identify opportunities to install low carbon 
technologies to our housing stock to try to save tenants money on their energy bills, 
improve the comfort of tenants’ homes and reduce pollution in the environment;

 Continue our programme of replacing structural boundary and retaining walls; and  
 Ensuring sheds and outhouses, gardens, paths and fencing meet the CHS+ standard 

where reasonably practicable, where we carry out planned external works. 

Empty homes (voids): The objective of the void process is to make void homes available for 
letting as quickly as possible, striving to meet customers’ expectations.  We will achieve this 
by:

 Completing individual options appraisals if homes are no longer fit for purpose to 
determine best course of action, including considering demolishing homes, or 
disposing of them;

 Making sure that homes are maintained to our standards and any repairs from 
previous tenants have been carried out before a new tenant moves in, together with 
making sure gardens are clear of rubbish and safe to use;

 Bringing all homes up to the CHS+, except in exceptional circumstances, such as 
people fleeing domestic violence, flood or fire (this list is not exhaustive);      

 Ensuring every new tenant receives a home information pack, to include information 
on boiler inspections, asbestos advice, Energy Performance Certificates (EPCs), 
electrical tests, recycling and service charges if applicable; and

 Providing additional investment to bring the “back-log” of major works voids back 
into use. 

Improving Standards - Tenants have told us they do not want a standard that stands still. 
We will achieve this by:

 Giving tenants a say through single-issue meetings, digital participation and 
challenge panel;

 Developing a programme to ensure we have robust and up to date Energy 
Performance Data (EPCs) to better inform future planned programmes which 
includes energy saving measures; 

Tudalen 339



19

 Continuing our programme of providing adaptations for our tenants to ensure that 
our homes meet their needs;

 Continuing to utilise our stock in an efficient manner through the Accessible Housing 
Register (AHR), where a void property with existing adaptations is matched to a 
client on the AHR whose needs will be met;

 Piloting a bio-degradable soft wash treatment to treat the effects of lichen and algae 
growth on affected properties and evaluate its impact over a 12 month period; and

 Investigating the potential costs and benefits of undertaking external works such as 
gutter clearance and external high-level cleaning on homes.

Type of work to be completed in 2019/20

We know the following work may be required to maintain the standard in 2019/20. 

Type of work/components Target homes to be completed in the full 
year 2019 – 2020 

Kitchens 108
Bathrooms 99
Central heating Systems 52
Electrical Systems 70
Mains Powered Smoke Detectors 70
Roofs 126
Render and Fascia 142
Gardens and outhouse planned programme 142
Retrofitting Low Carbon Technology (increasing SAP 
rating 65+)

6

The above figures represent target homes to be completed through the planned programme 
of works.  Additional works to homes will also be completed throughout the year as part of 
void and capital minor works delivery.

Further development and new opportunities

Health & safety - approach to fire management 

We have now further reviewed the fire risk assessments on all of our purpose built blocks of 
flats, including sheltered schemes.  Our approach has been to assess the likelihood of fires 
occurring, and any person(s) who may be put at risk from a fire. When carrying out the 
assessment we have also taken into consideration that fires can be started accidentally, 
through carelessness or started deliberately. 

For each block of flats, where we have identified improvements to be made and an action 
plan has been developed. This provides a record of present risks, together with an indication 
of the scope of the changes and/or improvements which need to be provided to minimise 
the risks present.  The risk assessments are monitored by the ‘Investing in our Homes’ 
Group, as set out in our governance structure.

Tudalen 340



20

Investing in sheltered housing 

Demand for our sheltered housing remains high generally, but we need to ensure that the 
right type of support is in the right schemes. Some schemes are very popular whilst others 
less so because of things like their location and/or access to amenities. 

During 2018/19 we assessed the current standards and condition of our sheltered housing 
schemes and started a pilot programme of upgrading.  As part of our programme we will 
continue to challenge whether schemes will meet the expectations of future residents over 
the next 10 to 20 years.

We will also continue our annual sheltered housing scheme programme of:

 Communal boiler replacement/upgrades making boilers more energy efficient with 
the ability to regulate temperatures on site;

 Maintaining and servicing lifts; 
 Upgrading aerial and satellite infrastructures and connections to enable tenants to 

access digital TV and internet services; and
 Transferring lifelines to our Telecare service, giving our tenants a person-centred 

approach which can adapt to their needs in later years.

Assisting with regeneration plans

The Council has been working with local residents, and other key stakeholders, to develop a 
masterplan for the potential regeneration of the Station Road area in the Tyisha ward, 
Llanelli.  Station Road is located between Llanelli Town Centre and the proposed Well-Being 
village in Machynys. There are ambitious and exciting plans for both areas and we want to 
make sure that the Station Road area benefits from sustainable change that will have an 
impact into the future.

We have adopted the “Planning for Real” approach, which is a nationally recognised 
community planning process which uses a 3D model to enable residents to put their views 
forward under a range of themes. It then goes on to work together to identify priorities, and 
in partnership with local agencies develop an action plan for change.  Over the summer 
months a programme of 15 events was organised with a total of 253 people taking part.

From this information we have been developing our masterplan for the area, and delivery 
options, which will be presented to the community in the spring 2019.

Retrofitting our existing housing stock with low carbon technology

We are working with the Welsh School of Architecture at Cardiff University as part of its Low 
Carbon Built Environment project to install low carbon technologies on a small number of 
our homes.  We have identified a small scheme for which we will receive support for the 
cost of technologies from the SPECIFIC 2 LCBE project which is part-funded by the European 
Regional Development Fund through the Wales European Funding Office. 

Tudalen 341



21

The ‘systems-based approach’ combines renewable energy supply, energy storage and 
energy demand reduction technologies creating a holistic approach to retrofitting. The 
solutions proposed are:

 External wall insulation (EWI);
 Loft insulation;
 LED lighting;
 Mechanical ventilation with heat recovery (MVHR);
 High efficiency gas boilers;
 Solar PV (location dependent on the orientation of each house); and
 Lithium ion batteries.

Where tenants have agreed to participate in this scheme, discreet monitoring equipment 
has been installed to measure the environmental conditions and energy use in the homes 
before and after the work has been carried out.  

We shall be analysing the results of the installation of low carbon technology in terms of 
costs, benefits to tenants and ease of use. This will enable us to better understand the 
potential for helping tenants to reduce their energy bills, improve the comfort of their 
homes and reduce carbon emissions to levels set by Welsh Government.  

Homes as Power Stations 

We also want to maximise the impact of the Swansea Bay City Region Deal ’Delivering 
Homes as Power Stations’ project which will:

 Carry out an extensive new house build and retrofit programme which integrates 
new technologies to allow buildings to generate, store and release energy;

 Develop and seek to attract new sector supply chains incorporating leading research 
and high value manufacturing and construction operations;

 Help to generate sustainable and affordable homes and address fuel poverty; and
 Focus on smart technologies in relation to energy demand management.

We see this as a huge opportunity for Carmarthenshire and are currently working up a 
detailed business plan to confirm what delivery will look like, across tenures, over the next 
five years.

Tudalen 342



22

Theme 2 – Providing more homes 
Affordable Homes 

HRA Business Plan - Affordable Homes
We began our journey to increase the supply of affordable homes in March 2016 with the 
creation of our first Affordable Homes Delivery Plan. Our original plan aimed to deliver over 
1,000 affordable homes by 2021. We are well on course to exceed this target and increasing 
the supply of affordable homes is now a core part of our business. 

The Affordable Homes Delivery Plan – Our story so far……..
We are about to begin our fourth year of delivery. The first three years have been very 
successful with over 640 affordable homes being delivered.

Our first delivery plan has focused on increasing the supply of homes through a variety of 
innovative solutions which provide value for money and create quality homes in our 
communities. Examples of our approach to date includes:

 managing homes in the private sector through our Simple Lettings agency;
 bringing empty homes back into use and helping to create attractive sustainable 

communities;
 buying private sector homes and increasing the Council’s own housing stock;
 working with partner housing associations (HA) to maximise all external funding 

opportunities and increase the number of HA homes in the County for rent and low 
cost home ownership; and

 working with private developers and their Section 106 planning obligations.

We will continue with this approach but we want to do more through an ambitious new 
build programme.

Tudalen 343



23

We have recently announced plans to build 900 Council homes over the next 10 years with a 
total investment of nearly £150m.

Over the next three years, an additional 250 Council homes will be built with an investment 
of nearly £44m. This programme will further support the current earmarked developments of 
the recently established housing company ‘Cartrefi Croeso’. The Company will not only deliver 
a mix of new affordable homes for sale or rent, but will also offer families additional choices 
as alternatives to social housing.  

Through careful financial planning in terms of borrowing we will be able to open up exciting 
opportunities for Carmarthenshire in terms of building more Council homes. This will enable 
the Council and its housing stock to play a pivotal role in not only developing much needed 
social housing but also delivering wider Council priorities to grow the economy.
As a result, this plan will now be able to:

 Continue to provide a range of solutions to deliver more affordable homes, including 
building new homes, purchasing private sector homes to increase the Council’s 
housing stock in the areas of greatest housing need; and managing private sector 
homes through the ‘Simple Lettings Agency’; 

 Align our 10 year ambitious new build programme with Cartrefi Croeso plans to 
develop new build homes, in order to maximise future opportunities; and

 Use our new build programme to further support wider regeneration initiatives, 
including rural areas.

On a wider scale we also want to maximise the impact of the Swansea Bay City Region Deal 
’Delivering Homes as Power Stations’ project.  We see this as a huge opportunity for 
Carmarthenshire as the project will support the creation of a new industry in the region 
which will develop and build innovative energy technologies. 

Funding for this ambitious new build programme will come from HRA borrowing but we will 
also making sure we maximise external funding opportunities. The following funding has 
already been confirmed to support the wider programme

 Affordable Housing Grant (WG) £4.7m;
 Innovative Housing Programme Funding (WG) £4m;
 Social Housing Grant and Housing Finance Grant £29m;
 Housing association private finance £21m; and
 Section 106 commuted sums £11m.

We are confident more funding opportunities will arise and our ambitious programme will 
ensure that we will have “on the shelf” developments to take advantage of opportunities as 
they become available.

Tudalen 344



24

Community Benefits and Procurement 
Community Benefits

The Council is committed to:

 Contributing to the social, economic and environmental well-being of the wider 
community;

 Asking tenderers to deliver community benefits in our tendering activities through 
the delivery of the contracts or frameworks awarded; 

 Maximising the value for every pound we spend, applying a community benefits 
approach to any tender valued over £1million; and

 Capturing and recording community benefits utilising WG’s community benefits 
measurement tool.  

For contracts completed in 2017/18, three contractors were used through the South West 
Wales Contractors Framework.  Approximately £1.8m of CHS+ works were carried out in 
total, achieving the following results:

 For every £1 spent, £1.78 was reinvested into the Welsh economy;
 75% of the total expenditure was spent on businesses based in Wales
 £43,777 was contributed to the Welsh economy in the form of cash donations 
 £18,025 was contributed to the Welsh economy in the form of in-kind donations of 

labour, goods and services during the period covered by this submission  
 14 people were hired during this period who were previously unemployed, and who 

will continue to be employed;
 Over 280 weeks of training was provided, including:

- 7 apprenticeships started and over 122 weeks carried out; and
- 6 traineeships completed amounting to over 112 weeks in total.
- 3 work experience / internship opportunities were started and completed with 

over 36 weeks completed in total 
- 5 work trials were completed with over 10 weeks in total

Since June 2017, Carmarthenshire County Council and Pembrokeshire County Council 
entered into a joint procurement shared service for a period of two years. The aim of the 
shared service is to deliver regional benefits and efficiencies through shared use of 
resources.

Tudalen 345



25

Funding and Risk Management

Removal of the HRA Borrowing Cap

The Welsh Government Minister for Housing and Regeneration provided written 
confirmation (29/10/2018) that the Chancellor of the Exchequer had agreed in his budget 
statement, that the removal of the borrowing cap for HRA’s applied to Wales as well as 
England. This significant change in policy will provide the opportunity for local authorities 
to deliver their Affordable Homes ambitions at pace and scale. We were already on this 
journey in Carmarthenshire and this plan has been developed with this new freedom to 
borrow at an affordable level as a key driver.

Major Repairs Allowance

Every year we receive £6 million from Welsh Government to support our capital 
investment. The grant comes with clear guidance on what it can and cannot be used for. 
The main condition is that is must be spent on property within the HRA. It cannot be used 
for revenue repairs or maintenance, demolition costs, repayment of borrowing etc. A full 
breakdown can be found in our MRA acceptance letter issued by Welsh Government.

The MRA makes a significant contribution towards achieving and maintaining the CHS. It is 
currently reviewed annually by Welsh Government and, as such, it is regularly under 
scrutiny. A reduction or end of the MRA could have a significant impact on our future 
investment plans.

Planning Assumptions

To help us plan our investments, we must make certain assumptions. Changes to our 
assumptions may mean that we have to re-visit the objectives included in this plan.

INCOME
Major Repairs Allowance (MRA)
i.e. the amount of capital funding we get 
from the Welsh Government

£6m each year. This is on the basis that we 
receive £673 for each home.

Rent increase 2019/20 2.4% average

Future rent increase levels
Based on Welsh Government Policy

Consumer Price Index increases only.
Welsh Government will be producing a new 
policy from 2020/21 financial year.

Borrowing i.e. the amount we need to borrow 
to support our investment

£64m over next 3 years to maintain the CHS+
and deliver our Affordable Homes ambitions.

Tudalen 346



26

OTHER
Expenditure/income inflation Employees’ pay at 3.5% for 2019/20 then 2% per 

year for the next two years (as per assumptions 
for Council Fund).

Right to Buy receipts i.e. Money we get from 
tenants’ buying their home

No receipts from 1st April 2015 following 
suspension of Right to Buy

Balances on the revenue account
i.e. the amount of money we need to keep in 
reserve

Minimum of £1.359m (based on £150 per 
property)

SPENDING
Assumed Borrowing costs
i.e. the amount it costs to borrow money

Cost of existing and 
new debt:                                  
2019/20: 4.57%     
2020/21: 4.41%
2021/22: 4.41%     

Cost of exiting HRAS:

Average of 4.57%

Provision for Bad debt i.e. debt that we will 
be unable to recover

2019/20: £585k
2020/21: £770k
2021/22:£1110k

Delivering efficiencies

This current business plan is supported by a drive to improve value for money over the next 
three years and enhance service delivery.  

Over the next 12 months we will develop measures to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated in terms of cost and quality, whilst striving to meet tenants’ expectations on 
service improvements. 

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22CAPITAL SPENDING TO:-

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Maintain the standard:    
Internal works - kitchens, bathrooms, electrics, heating etc. 1,178 998 1,066
EWI, Render and Fascia (including gardens) 1,770 3,478 3,652
Roofing 1,292 1,086 1,140
Boiler replacements 680 563 941
Structural works - Estates and boundary walls 1,704 600 600
Voids and Major Works to homes 4,014 2,000 2,000
Support Tenant and Residents:    
Sheltered Scheme Investment (communal boilers) 499 714 0
Sheltered Scheme Investment 1,500 3,000 3,000
Adaptations 1,700 1,500 1,500
Environmental works 303 309 309
Provide more affordable homes:    
Housing Development Programme 15,452 15,952 13,000
Support the delivery of CHS+:    

Tudalen 347



27

Programme management 198 200 201
Stock condition information 150 100 100
Risk Reduction Measures 254 258 261
Sewerage treatment works & associated costs 184 0 0

TOTAL 30,878 30,758 27,770 

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22CAPITAL FUNDING FROM:

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Welsh Government Grant-MRA 6,190 6,190 6,190
Housing Finance Grant 3,452 3,452 0
External Borrowing 21,236 21,116 21,580

TOTAL 30,878 30,758 27,770

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22REVENUE SPENDING TO:

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Repair and maintain homes 10,288 10,623 10,897
Supervision and management 10,189 10,402 10,574
Support services e.g. legal and finance 1,620 1,620 1,620
Provision for Bad debts 585 770 1,110
Capital charges 14,941 15,822 16,770

TOTAL 37,623 39,238 40,970

 Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22

REVENUE FUNDING FROM: (£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Tenant rents 40,557 43,012 43,863
Service charges 706 720 734
Interest received 100 134 168
Housing Finance Grant 2 124 247 247
Water rates commission 401 409 417
Grants / Other 1,001 898 913

TOTAL 42,889 45,420 46,342

Budget 
2019/20

Budget 
2020/21

Budget 
2021/22HRA END OF YEAR POSITION:

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s)
Balance brought forward from last year -14,002 -19,268 -25,450
HRA budgeted surplus (-)/ deficit (+) -5,266 -6,182 -5,372

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD -19,268 -25,450 -30,822

Tudalen 348



28

Risk Management   

Each year, as part of the HRA business planning process, we identify, assess and prioritise 
potential risks and consider the likelihood and impact of each.  This exercise is carried out by 
each service delivery area.  Once this has been done, we identify ways in which we can 
reduce or manage the potential risk and impact.  These are recorded corporately and 
monitored regularly.

Three of the greatest risks identified in delivering this plan are:

 Maintaining up to date asset information about our stock;
 Uncertainty of the impact of market conditions with regard to inflation, pricing and 

availability of workforce, to inform the 30 year cost certainty exercise; and 
 The impact of Universal Credit on tenants’ ability to maintain their responsibilities 

and obligations to pay their total rent in advance for the week ahead.

All risks will be monitored by the CHS+ Steering Group on a regular basis.

Tudalen 349



29

Compliance, Verification and Monitoring

Compliance and Acceptable Fails

Recording compliance and acceptable fails is not a simple collection of condition 
information for things like kitchens, bathrooms, electrics and so on. It is a combination of 
occupancy and property condition information.  Surveying of homes, collating of 
information, how we manage our data, and the ability to report 100% accurate information, 
are all data-hungry activities.  The details of our compliance are set out in Appendix E, our 
full CHS+ compliance document is set out in Appendix F.

Acceptable Fails 

An acceptable fail occurs when an individual component e.g. a kitchen or bathroom, has not 
been completed for one or more of the following reasons:

 Cost of remedy;
 Timing of remedy;
 Resident’s choice; and
 Physical constraint

Energy Efficiency

We have had a number of different programmes running to improve the energy efficiency of 
homes.  These programmes have helped save tenants money on their heating costs and 
improve the SAP rating of our homes.  The average SAP across our stock is 65 out of 100.

Independent Verification

We believe that we report compliance accurately in achieving and maintaining the CHS+, 
and we will continue to do so.  We will also back this up with further verification by:

 Demonstrating compliance by ensuring there is a clear separation of duties between 
CCC staff reporting compliance and those staff responsible for delivering the CHS+;

 Using internal staff in conjunction with Internal Audit to undertake desktop reviews;
 Agreeing and commencing a sample programme of stock condition visits every year, 

carried out by an independent verifier;
 Asking tenants how they would like to be part of the process of verification;
 Continuing to use service reviews to assess compliance. Some data is already 

independently collected, e.g. boiler inspections, EPCs and electrical tests; and
 Introducing Home Information packs for all new tenants, informing them of boiler 

inspections, asbestos advice, Energy Performance Certificates, electrical tests and 
when any outstanding CHS+ work will be carried out.

Tudalen 350



30

THIS PAGE IS LEFT 
INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

Tudalen 351



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

Carmarthenshire 
Homes Standard+ 
(CHS+) HRA 
Business Plan 

Appendices A-E 

 

 

 

    

 

Tudalen 353



 

Contents 

Appendix A: Corporate Priorities and Governance Structure................................................................. 

Appendix B: How Happy Tenants are with the Services we Provide.......................................................     

Appendix C: Stock, Tenant and Housing Choice Register Profile............................................................. 

Appendix D: Acceptable Fails.................................................................................................................. 

Appendix E: Compliance.........................................................................................................................  

3 

6 

7 

10 

10 

 

2 

    

 

Tudalen 354



 

Appendix A: The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

We are committed to delivering the CHS+ in a sustainable way as outlined in the Well-being Act. We do 
this by: 

Looking at the long term so that we do not compromise the ability of future generations to 
meet their own needs 

• The Business Plan contributes to this by planning for the next 3 years and also over the 
longer term of 30 years. We do this by analysing our asset data and market conditions to 
enable us to maintain our existing stock, and plan our affordable housing delivery. We 
set out our plans to deliver a pre-tenancy service to enable tenants to sustain their 
tenancies as long as possible. 

Understanding the root causes of the issues to prevent them reoccurring 

• The Business Plan identifies the key issues that tenants have highlighted to us. We also 
monitor the demand for reactive repairs. All this information enables us to plan 
programmed works to resolve issues and prevent them reoccurring. 

Taking an integrated approach so that we look at all well-being goals and objectives of 
other services and partners 

• The Business Plan highlights how we contribute to the well-being of our tenants. 
Examples of this include delivering adaptations to meet the needs of tenants, re-housing 
tenants through the adapted home register to more suitable accommodation, working 
with Swansea and Cardiff University to carry out a health impact study, and carrying out 
estate improvement works to the local environment. 

Collaboration - Working with others in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable 
solutions 

• The Business Plan is delivered in a Partnership approach between Housing and Property 
Services. It sets out our ambition to work with partners locally and regionally to deliver 
energy efficiency measures to existing and new homes to reduce fuel poverty for our 
tenants. Our procurement process is delivered through a collaborative approach 
ensuring community benefits are maximised. 

Involving a diversity of population in decisions that affect them 

• Tenant involvement in the delivery of the Business Plan is an overarching principle. We 
have set out our plans to produce a tenant engagement strategy and widen our support 
and advice services for both preventative services and to mitigate the impact of Welfare 
Reform. Tenants will continue to contribute to the development of both the CHS+ and 
the Environmental Improvement Programme. 

3 

    

 

Tudalen 355



 

The CHS+ business plan contributes to the seven Well-being goals under the sustainable development 
principles in the following way: 

A Prosperous Wales 
Carmarthenshire has a stronger and more prosperous economy: 

We will focus on: 
• Ensuring long-term economic and social benefits for Carmarthenshire 

through the Swansea Bay City Region and future European and external 
funding avenues. 

A Healthier Wales 
People in Carmarthenshire are healthier: 

We will focus on: 
• Increasing the availability of rented and affordable homes to support the 

needs of local people by building new homes, bringing empty homes 
back into use and ensuring an allocation of affordable homes on new 
developments; 

• Mitigating the local impacts of welfare reform by supporting affected 
residents through the changes; 

• Supporting residents suffering from fuel poverty and introducing 
renewable energy technology to our tenants’ homes in order to save 
them money on energy costs. 

A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
People who live, work and visit Carmarthenshire are safe and feel safer: 

We will focus on: 
• Reducing anti-social behaviour by working in partnership with other 

agencies and communities to tackle local problems. 

4 

 

A more prosperous 
Wales 

 

1 

A resilient Wales 

2 

 

 

 

 
A healthier Wales 

 

3 

A more equal Wales 

4 

 
A Wales of cohesive 

communities 
 

5 

A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 

Welsh language 

6 

A globally 
responsible Wales 

7 

    

 

Tudalen 356



 

Governance Structure 
 

All actions in this Plan will be monitored on a bi-monthly basis by the CHS+ Steering Group. This group 
provides strategic direction and corporate leadership to ensure appropriate progression on the 
initiatives included. 

Housing Services 
Advisory Panel 

5 

  

 
 

CHS+ Steering Group 

 

Capital Project 
Working Group 

 

Financial 
Monitoring 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

CHS+ Tenant Consultation / Involvement Groups 
 

    

     

 

    

  

 

    

  

  

   
   

   

 

Political Decision Making 
(Exec Board / Scrutiny/Full Council) 

    

 

Affordable Homes 
Group 

Investing in 
Homes’ Group 

Task and Finish 
Groups 

Supporting 
Tenants & 

Residents Group 

Tudalen 357



 

Appendix B: How Happy Tenants are with the Services we Provide 

6 

 
  

During 2017/18 we have continued to engage with tenants and other stakeholders in a number of 
ways. One of the key questions we asked throughout the year was “How happy are you with the service 
we provide?” 
 
90% of tenants rated us with a score of 7 or above.  
 
The results are provided below: 

 

Tudalen 358



 

Appendix C: Stock, Tenant and Housing Choice Register Profile 

Stock 01/11/18 Stock Return 

Stock Make Up 
 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s HRA stock (as set out 
below) comprises 9,128 homes, including 509 sheltered 
homes, and an additional 221 leasehold homes. 

The following table sets out the HRA housing stock by Ward: 

Ward Homes Ward Homes 

Ammanford 150 Llanegwad 43 

Bigyn 387 Llanfihangel Ar Arth 123 

Bynea 262 Llangeler 180 

Carmarthen Town South 159 Llangunnor 173 

Cenarth 59 Llannon 262 

Cynwyl Elfed 62 Llanybydder 138 

Dafen 225 Llwynhendy 614 

Felinfoel 254 Pembrey 224 

Glanamman 151 Pontaman 143 

Glyn 105 Quarter Bach 204 

Hendy 102 St Clears 102 

Kidwelly 198 Swiss Valley 17 

Llanboidy 19 Trimsaran 207 

Llandeilo 103 Tyisha 298 

7 

Llandovery 123 Whitland 86 

Llanddarog 81 Tycroes 91 

Laugharne 90 Trelech 29 

Hengoed 227 St Ishmael 50 

Gorslas 240 Saron, Ammanford 259 

Glanymor 516 Pontyberem 185 

Garnant 140 Penygroes 74 

Elli 58 Manordeilo & Salem 22 

Cynwyl Gaeo 13 Lliedi 274 

Cilycwm 26 Llansteffan 46 

Carmarthen Town West 139 Llangyndeyrn 193 

Carmarthen Town North 404 Llangennech 245 

Burry Port 161 Llangadog 46 

Betws 76 Llanfihangel Aberbythych 20 

Abergwili 40 Llandybie 210 

Type 
 

No. of Homes 
 

Sheltered 
Homes 

House 4968  

Bungalows 2164  

Flats 1935 509 

Maisonettes 40  

Bedsit 21  

Total 9128  

    

 
 

 

Tudalen 359



 

The housing stock comprises 4,968 houses and 2,164 bungalows, with the remainder made up of 1,487 
flats, bedsits and maisonettes. The majority of the stock is 2 and 3 bedroom homes. 104 of the homes 
have 4 bedrooms, and only two, are 5 and 6 bedrooms. 

Tenant Profile 

We know that 12% of our lead tenants are aged 80 or over and a further 24% are aged 65 to 79. As a 
result, 36% of our lead tenants are 65 or above. Only 4% of our lead tenants are under 25. Furthermore, 
28% of our lead tenants are aged 25-44 with the remaining 32% are aged 45 to 64. 

We know that 71% of our lead tenants are white British. A further 26% did not provide information 
about their ethnic group. 

} 

} 

Under 25 (352) - 4% 
25-44 (2441) - 28% 
45-64(2842) - 32% 
65-79 (2119) - 24% 
80+ (1015) - 12% 

Number of 
Council tenancies 
by age group 

Number of Council 
tenancies by ethnic 
group 

1% 

European 
non UK 
(69) 1% 

2% 

Other 
(141) 2% 

26% 

Did not respond 
(2270) 26% 

71% 

White 
(6258) 71% 

<1% Asian (12) <1%, Black (12) <1%, Gypsies & travellers (7) <1% 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

Type of Home  Bedrooms Total 

 
0 1 2 3 4 5 6+ 

 

Flats 
 

643 775 7 
   

1425 

Bedsits 21 1 
     

22 

Maisonettes 
  

9 31 
   

40 

Bungalows 1 362 1770 30 1 
  

2164 

House 3 19 1136 3706 102 1 1 4968 

Sheltered flats  460 42 6 1 
  

509 

Total 25 1485 3732 3780 104 1 1 9128 

    

 

Tudalen 360



 

Universal Credit Tenant Payment Profile 

For tenants currently claiming Universal Credit, we know that only 8% are paying their rent by direct 
debit. A further 6% are still receiving DWP direct payments and 52% are receiving Universal Credit 
Payments direct to CCC. 

Universal Credit Accounts TENANT Payment METHODS 

} Payment methods 
by type 

Housing Choice Applicants Profile 

} 

} 

Under 25 (819) - 15% 
25-44 (1997) - 37% 
45-64(1396) - 26% 
65-79 (792) - 15% 
80+ (335) - 6% 

Housing Choice 
Register applicants 
by age 

Housing Choice 
Register applicants 
by ethnic group, 
November 2018 

10% 
3% 

European 
non UK 
(154) 

2% 

Other 
(130) 

Did not respond 
(541) 83% 

White 
(4442) 

<1% Asian (22) <1%, Gypsies & travellers (23) <1% 

9 

 

 

 

 

 

    

1% 

Black 
(28) 1% 

 

We know that 37% of our lead applicants are aged 25 to 44 with a further 15% aged under 25. 6% are 
aged 80+ and the remaining 42% are aged 45 to 79. We know that 83% are white British and a further 
10% of our lead applicants did not provide information about their ethnic group. 

Tudalen 361



 

Appendix D: Acceptable Fails 
Acceptable Fails 

} 2% Physical constraint 
0% Timing of remedy 
3% Cost of remedy 
95% Residents Choice 

Acceptable Fails 
by Reason 

We know that 95% of our acceptable fails are as a result of residents’ choice. The remaining 5% being 
the cost of the remedy or physical constraints. 

We also know that 32% of the residents who chose not to have the CHS+ works completed are aged 80 

} 
or over and a further 34% are between the age of 65 and 79. 

25-44 yrs - 7% 
45-64 yrs - 27% 
65-79 yrs - 34% 
80+ yrs - 32% 

Residents Choice 
Fails 

10 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Appendix E: WHQS Compliance 

The following tables set out our achievement of meeting the CHS+ in 2015 by components, together 
with the annual programme to maintain compliance of the CHS+. 

WHQS Compliance by Component 

  Fully compliant Acceptable Fails 

R
o

o
fs

 

W
in

d
o

w
s 

Ex
te

rn
al

 D
o

o
rs

 

K
it

ch
en

s 

B
at

h
ro

o
m

s 

El
ec

tr
ic

al
 S

ys
te

m
s 

G
ar

d
e

n
s 

Sm
o

ke
 D

et
ec

to
rs

 

En
er

gy
 r

at
in

g 
(S

A
P

 =
 6

5
) 

C
en

tr
al

 H
ea

ti
n

g 
Sy

st
em

s 

 

The Welsh Government Outlines ‘acceptable fails’ as a home which meets the standard but has not had 
all works carried out to make if full compliant. There are different reasons for why these acceptable 
fails would occur. 
 
Some tenants have chosen not to have the work done (Residents’ choice) because they were happy 
with their homes, have made their own improvements or some, particularly older tenants, do not want 
the disruption. This is, by far, the main reason why homes do not currently meet the standard.  

Tudalen 362



 

10 

    

 

Tudalen 363



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Page |   
 

 
 
  Achieving and 

Maintaining the 
Carmarthenshire 
Homes’ Standard +  

Compliance Policy 
Appendix F 

February  2019 

Tudalen 365



   

    1 | P a g e  
 

Contents 

 
1. The purpose.... ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

2. The context.... ............................................................................................................................................. 2 

3. Our approach to achieving and maintaining the CHS+ in the future ......................................................... 3 

  What is our policy statement? 

 How have we developed the approach? 

 How are we interpreting the CHS+ and what have we done to achieve it? 

 Further development and new opportunities. 

 What has been achieved to date? 

 What have been the wider benefits of delivering the CHS+? 

 How will we go about maintaining the CHS+ in the future? 

 How will we deal with homes that do not meet the CHS+? 

 Have we any plans to improve the CHS+? 

 How do we go about monitoring progress on the CHS+? 

 How do we prepare out financial plan to deliver our work programmes to maintain the standard? 

 How do we manage the stock information to inform future planning to maintain the CHS+? 

 How do we link with Welsh Government reporting with our business and asset plans? 

 How will we go about verifying progress in the future? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 366



   

    2 | P a g e  
 

1. The purpose.... 
 

1.1. The purpose of this document is to confirm our approach in achieving and maintaining (and 
further improving) the Carmarthenshire Homes’ Standard (CHS). It takes account of the 
guidance produced by the Welsh Government in 2015 in terms of compliance and verification. 

 

2. The context.... 
 
2.1. Carmarthenshire has been committed to achieving the CHS by providing homes for council 

tenants that are modern, safe, fuel efficient, situated in well maintained neighbourhoods and 
are well managed. 
 

2.2. The CHS is an amended version of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard that has been defined 
by the tenants themselves. In 2006, the Council started its ambitious programme to achieve the 
CHS by the end of 2015. 
 

2.3. We are pleased to say that we have delivered this programme, on time, to homes where 
tenants have agreed to have the work carried out. Even though these programmes have been 
delivered, this does not mean the end of the CHS. There remains much more to do. 

 
2.4. During 2015, we introduced the concept of the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus (CHS+), 

building on the success of the CHS and extending to ensure we maintain and improve on what 
has been achieved. 

 
2.5 We have acknowledged the importance of strategic asset management in providing the 

foundation for our investment plans, as well as the central role of supporting tenants and 
residents in everything we do, is critical to the delivery of the plan. The 2019/22 business plan 
covers two key themes that have been identified in terms of future investment. These are: 

 
1. THEME 1- Investing in our Homes’ and the Environment. 

 
2. THEME 2 - Providing more homes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 367



   

    3 | P a g e  
 

 

3. Our approach to achieving and maintaining the CHS+ in the future 
 
3.1. The following table will confirm our approach in achieving and maintaining (and improving) the 

CHS+ in the future. Where appropriate, it will confirm policy decisions that have already been 
made e.g. through documents like our CHS+ Business Plan 2018-21. It will also identify any 
current gaps, and how they will be addressed, to deliver the standard in the future. 

 
  

 
What is our 

policy 
statement? 

 
In 2015 we achieved the CHS+ to homes where tenants have agreed to have work 
completed - well before WG’s target of 2020. This is in line with our agreed assumptions 
that the standard of our homes will be to the CHS+; and replacement programmes will 
be based on condition, not time.   
 
Tenants tell us that getting repairs done on time and maintaining homes to a good 
standard is important to them.  Maintaining the standard is now a statutory duty, and 
the Council has made a commitment to achieve and maintain the CHS, which states that 
all homes will be: 
  

 in a good state of repair; 

 free from damp; 

 free from significant condensation; 

 structurally stable; 

 in safe and attractive environments; 

 suitable for the household; and 

 managed to the CHS+ 
 

 
How have 

we 
developed 

the 
approach? 

 
The commitment and support of our tenants’ and Members’ continues to be important 
to us to ensure that we maintain and improve on the CHS+ going forward.  
 
Tenant and community engagement has always underpinned the delivery of the CHS+, 
but we want to do more. We want to get better by engaging as widely as possible and 
maximising opportunities to help build stronger communities.  
 
Tenants and stakeholders have been consulted through the Tenant Consultative Forum 
and by face to face interviews and their views taken into account in preparing this Plan.  
The Plan is updated annually taking into account these views, the latest stock condition 
information, updated financial information, WG Guidance and any revised Council 
policies. 
 
All actions in this Plan will be monitored every two months by the CHS+ Steering Group. 
This group provides strategic direction and corporate leadership to ensure progress is 
made on the initiatives in the Plan.   The CHS+ Steering Group is also responsible for 
monitoring progress, reviewing and managing the overall 30 year financial plan that 
supports our planned investment.  

Tudalen 368



   

    4 | P a g e  
 

 
During 2018/19 we have continued to engage with tenants and other stakeholders in a 
number of ways. One of the key questions we asked during our Home Checker visit was 
“How happy are you with the service we provide?”   
 
From carrying out this initial work on Home Checker we will: 
 
• Continue with Home Checker and look at ways to improve how we capture data from 
the visits; 
• Further improve our approach to preventative maintenance in next year’s CHS+ 
Business Plan; 
• Develop and encourage tenants to take a proactive approach in maintaining their 
homes to a high standard; 
• Make our services more effective and responsive by tailoring them more closely to the 
needs of our tenants; 
• Help more tenants with a range of issues including saving money on fuel bills, budgeting 
and financial assistance and housing support; and 
• Further develop our approach to tenant feedback in order that we analyse trends over 
time. 
 
The commitment and support of our tenants’ and Members’ continues to be important 
to us to ensure that we maintain and improve on the CHS+ in the future.   
 
Tenant and community engagement has always underpinned the delivery of the CHS+, 
but we want to do more. We want to get better by engaging as widely as possible and 
maximising opportunities to help build stronger communities.  
 
We asked TPAS Cymru to conduct an independent report into tenant participation and 
involvement with our tenants. As a result, we identified there was a lack of diversity and 
a low number of tenants who engage with tenant networks. These issues are not unique 
to Carmarthenshire and can be demonstrated across Wales.   
 
We also believe we should give our tenants the opportunity to influence decisions about 
their homes, the area they live and ensure the services they receive achieve value for 
money. Our vision is:- 
 

“To make it easy and inviting for tenants to get involved in shaping strategic 
decisions and improve services through meaningful involvement by ensuring 

residents have the relevant skills”. 
 

 
How are we 
interpreting 

the CHS+, 
and what 
have we 

 
In order that our vision for participation fully reflects the work we undertake and for us 
to be consistent with other social landlords, we believe our vision should be set out along 
the following key principles: 
 
Improving communities – Ensuring that our communities are positive places to live by 
fostering a sense of community and ensuring that estates are well maintained;  

Tudalen 369



   

    5 | P a g e  
 

done to 
achieve it? 

Improving services – Ensuring that services delivered by us are those that tenants wish 
to receive, and that these are delivered to the highest standards; 
Improving accountability – Ensuring that the views of our tenants are heard when 
decisions are made at all levels, and that these decisions are communicated to tenants 
in a transparent manner; and 
Improving resident skills – Ensuring that tenants have the relevant skills to take part in 
managing their homes and providing broader support to tenants within the community 
to develop their skills. 
 
We have reviewed the participation techniques we currently use, and it showed that 
newsletters are by far the most popular means of communication for tenants.  There are 
three further methods of participation that we can use to improve the way that tenant 
participation is undertaken. These are: 
 
More use single issue meetings; 
Increased use of digital participation; and 
Strengthening challenge and responsibility. 
 
We aim to deliver on these principles by introducing the following new activities:  
 
Changing the current structures of tenant involvement to encourage more involvement 
from under-represented groups; 
Improving systems for gathering and acting on tenant feedback; 
Using ‘Planning for Real’ as a method of engagement and consultation on estate issues; 
Increasing the use of digital services to reach out to under-represented groups and to 
those who do not want to attend meetings; 
Putting forward proposals for a challenge panel for our tenants; 
Holding single issue meetings; and 
Surveying our tenants (STAR Survey) to establish baseline information, and re-survey 
every three years and periodically on single issues. 
  
As well as giving their views on general engagement activities, tenants and residents have 
also highlighted other priorities in terms of supporting them. They have told us that they 
would like us to focus on providing more advice and support for them with bills and 
benefits that will help them to maintain their homes.  We will be addressing these 
priorities in a number of areas. 

 
Further 

Development 
and new 

opportunities 

 
Roll out of Home Checker visits - In 2018/19 we carried out basic checks to all Council 
homes (where we gained access) through servicing contractors, repair visits and tenancy 
support calls.  As a result of these visits about 5% of homes were identified as requiring 
a more in-depth visit by a housing officer. 

 
Some issues identified and attended to in terms of preventative maintenance, included: 

 

 Leaking showers; 

 Loose tiles and guttering; 

 Broken windows; 

Tudalen 370



   

    6 | P a g e  
 

 Window locks and handles not working; 

 Plugs and sockets loose; 

 Toilet leaks; 

 Extractor fans not working; 

 Damp; and 

 Condensation. 
 
The continuation of our Home Checker visits will enable us to identify specifically what 
help tenants want, such as support with Universal Credit and household budget 
management.   This will enable us to plan for the future and identify preventative 
maintenance and component failure. 
Health and Safety – approach to fire management – We have now further reviewed the 
fire risk assessments on all of our purpose built blocks of flats, including sheltered 
schemes.  For each block of flats, where we have identified improvements to be made 
and an action plan has been developed. The risk assessments are monitored by the 
‘Investing in our Homes’ Group. 
Investing in sheltered housing – During 2018/19 we assessed the current standards and 
condition of our sheltered housing schemes and started a pilot programme of upgrading. 
We will also continue our annual sheltered housing scheme programme of; 
Communal boiler replacement, maintaining and servicing lifts, upgrading aerial and 
satellite infrastructures and transferring lifelines to our Telecare service 
Assisting with regeneration plans – The Council has been working with local residents, 
and other key stakeholders, to develop a masterplan for the potential regeneration of 
the Station Road area in the Tyisha ward, Llanelli.  We have adopted the “Planning for 
Real” approach, which is a nationally recognised community planning process. From this 
information we have been developing our masterplan for the area, and delivery options, 
which will be presented to the community in the spring 2019. 
Retrofitting our existing housing stock with low carbon technology – We are working 
with the Welsh School of Architecture at Cardiff University on a small number of our 
homes. The ‘systems-based approach’ combines renewable energy supply, energy 
storage and energy demand reduction technologies creating a holistic approach to 
retrofitting. We shall be analysing the results of the installation of low carbon technology 
in terms of costs, benefits to tenants and ease of use.  
Homes as Power Stations – We want to maximise the impact of the Swansea Bay City 
Region Deal ’Delivering Homes as Power Stations’ project which will; carry out an 
extensive new house build and retrofit programme, develop and seek to attract new 
sector supply chains help to generate sustainable and affordable homes and address fuel 
and focus on smart technologies. We see this as a huge opportunity for Carmarthenshire 
and are currently working up a detailed business plan to confirm what delivery will look 
like, across tenures, over the next five years. 
 
 

 
What has 

been 
achieved to 

date? 

 
The following table sets out our achievement of meeting the CHS+ in 2015 by 
components, together with the annual programme to maintain compliance of the CHS+. 

Tudalen 371



   

    7 | P a g e  
 

2018/19 main achievements: 

 Over £19m spent to maintain the CHS+ in tenants’ homes; 

 Over 240 additional affordable homes delivered during our third year of delivery; 

 Over 530 adaptations completed, with over £1m being invested to ensure 
tenants’ homes meet their needs; 

 Over £285,000 spent on 35 Environmental Improvement Projects (plus £60,000 
on improving garage plots, demolishing garages, clearing areas and creating car 
parking spaces); 

 Managed improvements and lettings of 900 homes, including new homes added 
to our stock; 

 Started development on two sites for 48 new affordable homes in Llanelli and 
Pembrey; 

 Continued our time-banking initiative, Spice, with over 57,970 of total volunteer 
hours being given.  Over 1,800 tenants and their family members took part; 

 Housed over 40 households who have specific needs through our Accessible  
Housing Register (AHR); 

 Introduced a Choice Based Letting scheme, Canfod Cartref, that gave tenants 
more choice and  which will make tenancies more sustainable ;  

 The findings of our Health Impact Study with Swansea University showed the 

positive impact on health of investing over £200m in tenants homes since 2007. 

This investment also brings social, economic and environmental benefits for all;  

 Shortlisted for CIH Cymru Wales Housing awards recognising our work on 

improving tenants’ homes; 

 Over 250 people attended 23 comprehensive consultation events using “Planning 

for Real” to engage with residents of Tyisha ward in Llanelli;  

 Taken on three apprentices in Property Maintenance; 

 Re-let the gas servicing contract for tenant homes; 

 Set up a new minor works framework with up to date Schedules of Rates to 

ensure value for money for housing repairs; and 

Tudalen 372



   

    8 | P a g e  
 

 Started to realign our Property Maintenance section to improve arrangements 

for future lettings and maintenance of Council homes.  

 
What have 
been the 

wider 
benefits of 
delivering 
the CHS+? 

The Council is committed to: 

 Contributing to the social, economic and environmental well-being of the wider 
community; 

 Asking tenderers to deliver community benefits in our tendering activities through 
the delivery of the contracts or frameworks awarded;  

 Maximising the value for every pound we spend, applying a community benefits 
approach to any tender valued over £1million; and 

 Capturing and recording community benefits utilising WG’s community benefits 
measurement tool.   

For contracts completed in 2017/18, three contractors were used through the South 
West Wales Contractors Framework.  Approximately £1.8m of CHS+ works were carried 
out in total, achieving the following results: 

 For every £1 spent, £1.78 was reinvested into the Welsh economy; 

 75% of the total expenditure was spent on businesses based in Wales 

 £43,777 was contributed to the Welsh economy in the form of cash donations  

 £18,025 was contributed to the Welsh economy in the form of in-kind donations of 
labour, goods and services during the period covered by this submission   

 14 people were hired during this period who were previously unemployed, and who 
will continue to be employed; 

 Over 280 weeks of training was provided, including: 

-7 apprenticeships started and over 122 weeks carried out; and 

-6 traineeships completed amounting to over 112 weeks in total. 

-3 work experience / internship opportunities were started and completed with over 
36 weeks completed in total  

-5 work trials were completed with over 10 weeks in total 

Since June 2017, Carmarthenshire County Council and Pembrokeshire County Council 
entered into a joint procurement shared service for a period of two years. The aim of the 
shared service is to deliver regional benefits and efficiencies through shared use of 
resources. 

 
 

How will we 
go about 

maintaining 

 
Where tenants have already had work completed, the emphasis will be to maintain these 
to CHS (+) in the future. For each of the CHS (+) components, there is an estimated 
lifespan built into our planning that allows us to work out the anticipated financial 
investment that will be needed to maintain the standard. 

Tudalen 373



   

    9 | P a g e  
 

the CHS+ in 
the future? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
We have made a policy commitment, however,  through the latest version of our 
business plan to: 
 

 Replace components based on their condition; and 

 Implement a programme of inspections to monitor the condition of homes. 
 
Homes will be visited in advance of when components are due to need replacing to assess 
their condition. At this point we may decide to confirm the component life has been 
extended or is in need of replacing. We will inform tenants of this decision and the 
reasons for it. 
 
The following table identifies the components needing inspection over the next three 
years to ensure they continue to meet the CHS (+): 
 
CAPITAL SPENDING TO: 

CAPITAL SPENDING TO:- 

Budget 
2019/20 

Budget 
2020/21 

Budget 
2021/22 

(£000s) (£000s) (£000s) 

Maintain the standard:       

Internal works - kitchens, bathrooms, electrics, heating 
etc. 

1,178 998 1,066 

EWI, Render and Fascia (including gardens) 1,770 3,478 3,652 

Roofing 1,292 1,086 1,140 

Boiler replacements 680 563 941 

Structural works - Estates and boundary walls  1,704 600 600 

Voids and Major Works to homes 4,014 2,000 2,000 

Support Tenant and Residents:       

Sheltered Scheme Investment (communal boilers) 499 714 0 

Sheltered Scheme Investment 1,500 3,000 3,000 

Adaptations 1,700 1,500 1,500 

Environmental works 303 309 309 

Provide more affordable homes:       

Housing Development Programme 15,452 15,952 13,000 

Support the delivery of CHS+:       

Programme management 198 200 201 

Stock condition information 150 100 100 

Risk Reduction Measures 254 258 261 

Sewerage treatment works & associated costs 184 0 0 

TOTAL 30,878  30,758  27,770  
 

 
How will we 

deal with 
homes that 

 
There are some homes that currently fail to meet the CHS+. These are known as 
“acceptable fails”. 
 

Tudalen 374



   

    10 | P a g e  
 

do not 
currently 
meet the 

CHS+? 

Some tenants have chosen not to have the work done (Residents’ choice) because they 
were happy with their homes, have made their own improvements or some, particularly 
older tenants, do not want the disruption. This is, by far, the main reason why homes do 
not currently meet the standard. 

 
We know that 95% of our acceptable fails are as a result of residents’ choice.  The 
remaining 5% being the cost of the remedy or physical constraints.   
 
We also know that 32% of the residents who chose not to have the CHS+ works 
completed are aged 80 or over and a further 34% are between the age of 65 and 79.  

For homes where part or some of the work has previously been declined we will: 
 

 Contact tenants who have previously declined CHS+ works to discuss any issues they 
have and agree with them when works are to be programmed; and 

 Ensure homes have the appropriate smoke alarms, heat detectors or carbon 
monoxide devices, and discuss with tenants how we can upgrade these to improve 
the fire safety within their homes.    

 
For empty homes where there is some or all of the CHS+ work to be completed we will: 
 

 Complete individual options appraisals if homes are no longer fit for purpose to 
determine best course of action, including considering demolishing homes, or 
disposing of them; 

 Make sure that homes are maintained to our standards and any repairs from 
previous tenants have been carried out before a new tenant moves in, together 
with making sure gardens are clear of rubbish and safe to use; 

 Bring all homes up to the CHS+, except in exceptional circumstances, such as 
people fleeing domestic violence, flood or fire (this list is not exhaustive);       

Tudalen 375



   

    11 | P a g e  
 

 Ensuring every new tenant receives a home information pack, to include 
information on boiler inspections, asbestos advice, Energy Performance 
Certificates (EPCs), electrical tests, recycling and service charges if applicable; and 

 Provide additional investment to bring the “back-log” of major works voids back 
into use.  

 
We have recently reviewed our approach to fire safety across all our stock, and our 
approach to when tenants have requested not to have work carried out.  We believe that 
it is in the best interest of tenants, and to protect our investment, that tenants will no 
longer have the option to decline electrical works including the installation of hard wired 
smoke detectors and Carbon Monoxide (CO) detectors. 
 
For homes where we believe the above work has not been upgraded, we will: 
 

 Continuing our annual programme of safety checks on gas fires, and gas or oil boilers, 
and only replace  boilers with energy-efficient condensing boilers, when defective 
and no longer economical to run; and 

 Checking homes have the appropriate smoke alarms, heat detectors or carbon 
monoxide devices, and discussing with tenants how we can upgrade these; 

 Gain access to ensure that the necessary works are completed; and   

 Install servicing timers when we gain access (where a tenant repeatedly does not give 
us access), to help tenants understand and manage their responsibilities under their 
tenancy agreement and help us to protect the lives of tenants.   

 
 

Have we any 
plans to 

improve the 
CHS +? 

 
As has been stated our CHS(+) Business Plan takes account of supporting tenant’ and 
residents in their home, increasing the supply of affordable of homes as well as 
maintaining the standard to existing homes. 
 
We are looking to improve the existing standards to maintain and this will need to be 
carried out in partnership with tenants and members. 
 
CHS was originally set by our tenants and it is very important that any changes are driven 
by them, within the financial resources that are available. Examples of areas that may be 
considered include: 
 

 Reviewing specification of key components e.g. bathrooms/kitchens 

 Increasing technology in the home to save money; and 

 Developing a different standard for older people’s accommodation to suit future 
needs 

 
 

How do we 
go about 

monitoring 
progress on 
the CHS+? 

 
As well as our reporting mechanisms to Welsh Government our CHS(+) compliance is 
monitored and reported through a robust governance structure that includes: 

 A cross departmental Director led Steering Group 

 Operational sub groups aligned to our three main themes 

Tudalen 376



   

    12 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 A Project Working Group focusing on financial monitoring 

 A Housing Services Advisory Panel consisting of tenants, members and officers; and 

 A CHS+ Consultative Group 
 
We also have a Corporate and Departmental Performance Management Framework that 
monitors quarterly/ monthly performance on key CHS+ measures. Measures are also 
reported through our Scrutiny and Improvement Plan processes. 

 
 

How do we 
prepare our 

financial plan 
to deliver 
our work 

programmes 
to maintain 

the 
standard? 

 
As part of the development of the annual CHS+ business plan we; 
 

 Assess variations in forecast expenditure and income, including likely rent increases 
and interest payments, 

 Consider emerging pressures and opportunities in consultation with service 
managers and tenants e.g. relating to what matters to tenants, new legislation, 
demographic changes and asset management priorities, 

 Carry out a cost certainty exercise over three, five and 30 years (three year detailed 
component analysis); and 

 Confirm level of investment possible in relation to our borrowing cap. 
 
In order to make sure we are fully equipped to maintain the CHS (+) in the future we are 
now investing in a new HRA Business Planning model, developed by Capita Housing and 
Consultancy. The model is specifically designed for use with the new financing regime for 
local authorities with retained stock. 
 
The model generates a full set of revenue and capital cash flows, based on the best 
currently available local information. It produces a range of summary tables and charts, 
offering flexibility in how we use it. With a relatively few number of inputs, the model 
will produce a full set of forecasts. More complex modelling can also be carried out if 
needed. 
 

 
How do we 
manage the 

stock 
information 

to inform 
future 

planning to 
maintain the 

CHS+? 

 
Stock Condition 
 
Before implementing the CHS an internal asset management database was developed to 
produce the programme of works. This was populated through an 80% stock condition 
survey and information received from major works programmes at the time. The 
remaining property data was modelled giving a high level of accuracy to achieve the CHS. 
 
Managing housing assets goes beyond just investing in good repair and improvements.  
Asset management is also about reviewing and potentially changing the asset base to 
end up with the right accommodation in the right location, supported by excellent, 
flexible services for our tenants.  It must consider quality and value for money, 
particularly the whole life of a home and how running costs will affect tenants.   
 

Tudalen 377



   

    13 | P a g e  
 

 
 
By applying an effective asset management strategy to our 9,000 plus homes, it will also 
enable us to meet our legal requirement of maintaining the CHS+ in the future. 
 
Consequently our approach is underpinned by the following principles: 

 

 Carrying out regular stock condition surveys to assess condition, use and required 
investment;  

 A planned maintenance programme achieving economies by replacing components 
e.g. kitchen, bathrooms etc. based on need, not time; 

 A regular cyclical maintenance programme for certain components in a home e.g. 
heating appliances, electrical upgrades and external painting; 

 A continual programme of works to meet Health and Safety requirements e.g. 
asbestos removal and structural repairs; 

 A maintenance service to respond to unplanned failures in homes and to prevent 
deterioration in their condition e.g. boiler replacements; 

 An efficient and effective voids repair service, helping to quicken the repairs process 
and save money by carrying out CHS+ works when a home becomes empty; 

 A programme of environmental estate improvements that is strategically targeted; 

 A basic check to all homes on an annual basis through our existing visits;  

 A more in-depth visit to homes where there are potential issues in terms of condition, 
tenancy or welfare issues;  

 Continuing to invest in adapting homes to suit the needs of tenants; 

 Understanding the future investment needs for our sheltered housing stock, linking 
in with our Care Home development programme; 

 Completing individual options appraisals if homes are no longer fit for purpose to 
determine the best course of action, including considering demolishing homes, or 
disposing of them; 

 Completing options appraisals on sites that may need changing/converting into 
homes that can better meet housing need; and 

 Delivering the targets within the Affordable Homes Delivery Plan. 
 
When considering the above we will: 
 

 Engage with tenants, stakeholders and Members using new ways of participation and 
challenging;  

 As far as is possible, meet tenants aspirations and priorities; 

 Maximise our assets and minimise liabilities; 

 Seek value for money in all investment decisions and contract procurement;  

 Comply with current and future regulations;  

 Create good neighbourhoods for council tenants and their neighbours; and  

 Provide assurance to the council’s auditors and regulators that its housing service is 
well managed.  

 
 

Tudalen 378



   

    14 | P a g e  
 

 
 
We fully recognise that in order to achieve the above we must ensure that: 
 

 The right structures, skills, resources and capacity are in place to manage future 
programmes, procurement and contract management effectively; 

 Robust stock condition information, data and analysis is in place to produce 
programmes of investment that will appropriately maintain and improve standards, 
as well as services to tenants; 

 Our data is further enhanced and regularly validated by feedback from all 
programmed and cyclical repairs, and maintenance activities; and 

 We complete our cost certainty exercise for our overarching 30 year financial plan. 
 
Over the next 12 months we will be specifically focusing on ensuring that asset 
management resources, both people and systems, are challenged to make sure they are 
in the right areas for the future. Our joined-up approach will enable us to: 
 

 Commence a rolling programme of stock condition survey to verify our cost certainty 
business plan, identify gaps and provide independent verification; 

 Understand why work has not been completed within the stock e.g. the tenant has 
requested that no work be carried out; and 

 Review our Asset Management Systems and Strategy to ensure all stock is fit for both 
current and emerging needs. 

 
 

How do we 
link Welsh 

Government 
reporting 
with our 

business and 
asset plans? 

 
We submit a three year Business Plan to the Welsh Government on an annual basis that 
reports progress on the delivery of the CHS (+). Underpinning our business plan will be 
our stock condition, asset management information and our 30 year financial 
projections. 
 
We also provide quarterly monitoring reports on progress of the Business Plan to the 
Welsh Government as part of our Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) application, which is 
an annual grant of over £6 million to support investment in tenant homes.  
 
Maintaining the CHS+ is now considered a medium risk by the Authority as part of its risk 
assessment process, and is still supported by robust governance arrangements through 
the Director led cross departmental Steering Group. 
 

 
How will we 

go about 
verifying 

progress in 
the future? 

 
Compliance and Acceptable Fails 
 
Recording compliance and acceptable fails is not a simple collection of condition 
information for things like kitchens, bathrooms, electrics etc. It is a combination of 
occupancy and property condition information.  Surveying of homes, collating of 
information, how we manage our data, and the ability to report 100% accurate 
information, are all data-hungry activities.   
 

Tudalen 379



   

    15 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Energy Efficiency 
 
We have had a number of different programmes running to improve the energy 
efficiency of homes.  These programmes have helped save tenants money on their 
heating costs and improve the SAP rating of or homes.  The average SAP across our stock 
is 65 out of 100. 
 
Independent Verification 
 
Whilst we believe that we are, and will continue to, accurately report compliance in 
achieving and maintaining the CHS+, we will also back this up with further verification 
by: 
 

 Demonstrating compliance by ensuring there is a clear separation of duties between 
Carmarthenshire County Council staff reporting compliance and those staff 
responsible for delivering the CHS+; 

 Using internal staff in conjunction with Internal Audit to undertake desktop reviews; 

 Agreeing and commencing a sample programme of stock condition visits every year, 
carried out by an independent verifier; 

 Asking tenants how they would like to be part of the process of verification; 

 Continuing to use service reviews to assess compliance. Some data is already 
independently collected, e.g. boiler inspections, EPC’s and electrical tests; and 

 Introducing Home Information packs for all new tenants, informing them of boiler 
inspections, Asbestos advice, Energy Performance Certificates, electrical tests and 
when any outstanding CHS+ work will be carried out. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 380



   

    16 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY 
BLANK 

 

 

Tudalen 381



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

CYNGOR SIR
20FED CHWEFROR 2019 

Y Pwnc 
Pwrpas: Polisi Rheoli’r Trysorlys a Strategaeth  2019-2020

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd eu Hangen:

1. Bod y Cyngor yn mynd ati’n ffurfiol i gymeradwyo Polisi a Strategaeth          
Rheoli’r Trysorlys 2019-20 a’r argymhellion sydd ynddynt .
2. Bod y Cyngor yn mynd ati’n ffurfiol i gymeradwyo Dangosyddion 
Rheoli’r Trysorlys, Dangosyddion Darbodus, y Datganiad MRP a’r 
argymhellion sydd ynddynt.

Y Rhesymau: 
Er mwyn cydymffurfio ag adolygiad Cod Darbodaeth CIPFA ac adolygiad 
Cod Ymarfer CIPFA o ran Rheoli’r Trysorlys 2017. 

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    
Pwllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau 6ed Chwefror 2019

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cllr. D.M. 
Jenkins

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Gwasanaeth 
Corfforaethol
Cyfarwyddwr: Chris Moore

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Anthony 
Parnell

Swyddi:

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol

Rheolwr Pensiwn a 
Buddsodiadau Gyllidol

Rhif ffôn: 01267 224120; E-
bost:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk
Rhif ffôn: 01267 224180; E-
bost:AParnell@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 383

Eitem Rhif  9.5



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
COUNTY COUNCIL
20th February 2019

SUBJECT

Treasury Management Policy and Strategy 2019-20

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT.

It is a requirement of the revised CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, 
which Council have adopted, that 

a. The Council  maintains  a Treasury  Management Policy which states the  
policies  and  objectives  of  the  Authority’s  treasury  management  activities  

and    

b. The  Council  approves  a  Treasury  Management  Strategy  annually  before  the  
start  of  the  financial  year  to  which  it  relates.

In addition, under the Local Government Act 2003 the Council approves the 
Treasury Management Indicators for the coming year. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

Tudalen 384



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report :

Signed:        C Moore   Director of Corporate Services                            

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

Council has adopted the revised CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, 
one of the requirements is that an annual Treasury Management Policy and Strategy 
be approved by Council before the commencement of the year to which it relates.  

2. Legal  

Under the Local Government Act 2003 and the revised CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, local authorities must set out their Treasury Management 
Indicators that relate to the Authority’s capital spending and its borrowing.  

3. Finance  

The Treasury Management Policy and Strategy details the procedures that the 
Authority adheres to in managing its treasury management function.
Interest paid and earned has a direct impact on the Authority’s Revenue Budget. The 
estimated projections are included in the Budget which is to be presented to Council 
on 20th February 2019.

Tudalen 385



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: C Moore      Director of Corporate Services

(Please specify the outcomes of consultations undertaken where they arise against the following headings)

1. Scrutiny Committee
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee will be consulted on the 6th February 2019.

2.Local Member(s)  
Not Applicable

3.Community / Town Council 
Not Applicable

4.Relevant Partners  
Not Applicable

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  
Not Applicable

Tudalen 386



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW    

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

The Local Government 
Act 2003 

County Hall, Carmarthen 

Guidance issued  by  
Welsh Government 

County Hall, Carmarthen 

Revised CIPFA  
Treasury Management 
Code of Practice and 
Cross-Sectoral 
Guidance Notes 

County Hall, Carmarthen 

Revised CIPFA 
Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities 

County Hall, Carmarthen 

Tudalen 387



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

MEETING OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL
DATE: 20th FEBRUARY 2019

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY 2019-2020

A. INTRODUCTION 
 

This Council carries out its treasury management activities in accordance with the 
Prudential Code of Practice first developed for public services in 2002 by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). This Code was last 
revised in 2017. The Council also carries out its treasury management activities in 
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017.

The revised Code identifies three key principles: 

1. The Council should put in place formal and comprehensive objectives, policies 
and practices, strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective 
management and control of their treasury management activities.

2. The Council’s policies and practices should make clear that the effective 
management and control of risk are prime objectives of their treasury 
management activities and that responsibility for these lies clearly within their 
Council. The Council’s appetite for risk should form part of its annual strategy 
and should ensure that priority is given to security and liquidity when investing 
funds.

3. The Council should acknowledge that the pursuit of value for money in treasury 
management, and the use of suitable performance measures, are valid and 
important tools for responsible Councils to employ in support of their business 
and service objectives; and that within the context of effective risk management, 
the Council’s treasury management policies and practices should reflect this. 

Tudalen 389



2

B. CIPFA PRUDENTIAL CODE AND CIPFA TREASURY MANAGEMENT CODE OF 
PRACTICE  

1. This Council has adopted the Revised CIPFA Prudential Code 2017 and the 
Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017.

This Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017 stipulates 
that there should be Member scrutiny of the treasury policies, Member training 
and awareness and regular reporting.

The objectives of the Revised Prudential Code 2017 are to ensure, within a 
clear framework, that the capital expenditure plans of local authorities are 
affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions 
are taken in accordance with good professional practice and in full 
understanding of the risks involved and how these risks will be managed to 
levels that are acceptable to the organisation.

The Council has adopted the four clauses shown in 1.1 as part of its financial 
procedure rules and the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee is 
responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy 
and policies, before making recommendations to Council.
The policies and parameters within this report provide an approved framework 
within which the officers undertake the day to day treasury activities.

1.1 The four clauses adopted are:

(1) This Council will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for effective 
treasury management:

 A treasury management policy statement, stating the policies, 
objectives and approach to risk management of its treasury 
management activities

 Suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMPs), setting out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and 
objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those 
activities

(2) The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.  

This Council will therefore receive reports on its treasury management 
policies, practices and activities, including an annual strategy in advance of 
the year, a mid year review report and a year end annual report, in the form 
prescribed in its TMPs. This treasury management policy and strategy 
report includes the prudential indicators (Appendix D) and the minimum 
revenue provision (MRP) policy (Appendix E).

(3) This Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and 
monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices, and the 
quarter 1 and quarter 3 monitoring reports to the Executive Board, and 
for the execution and administration of treasury management decisions 

Tudalen 390



3

to the Director of Corporate Services, who will act in accordance with the 
Council's policy statement and TMPs and CIPFA's Standard of 
Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

(4) The Council nominates the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee to 
be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury 
management strategy and policies.

1.2 Treasury Management Practices (TMPs)

The Schedule of TMPs is shown in Appendix A. 

C. TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY

1. This Council defines its Treasury Management activities as:

The management of the Council’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions and the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities, and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.

‘Investments’ in the definition above covers all the financial assets of the 
organisation, as well as other non-financial assets which the organisation holds 
primarily for financial returns, such as investment property portfolios. This may 
therefore include investments which are not managed as part of normal 
treasury management or under treasury management delegations. All 
investments require an appropriate investment management and risk 
management framework under this Revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice 2017.

2. This Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk 
to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management 
activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury 
management activities will focus on their risk implications for the Council. 

The key principle of control of risk and optimising returns consistent with the 
organisation’s risk appetite should be applied across all investment activities, 
including more commercially based investments.

3. This Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide 
support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is 
therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury 
management and to employing suitable comprehensive performance 
measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management. 

This policy holds indefinitely until circumstances dictate that a change is necessary. 
Any changes must be done before the beginning of the financial year to which it 
relates, or in exceptional circumstances within the year if approved by Council. 

It is the Director of Corporate Services responsibility to implement and monitor the 
Treasury Management Policy, revising and re-submitting the Policy for consideration 
to the Executive Board and the Council if changes are required. 

Tudalen 391



4

D. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2019-20

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Treasury Management Strategy provides details of the expected activities 
of the Treasury Management function in the financial year 2019-20.

1.2 The Council’s financial procedure rules require an annual strategy to be 
reported to Council outlining the expected treasury activity for the forthcoming 
year. A key requirement of this report is to explain both the risks, and the 
management of the risks, associated with the treasury service. Further treasury 
reports will be produced during the year if the strategy needs updating and a 
year-end annual report on actual activity for the year.

1.3 The strategy covers:
 Treasury Indicators and Limits on Activity 
 Prospects for interest rates
 Borrowing Strategy
 Investment Strategy
 Debt Rescheduling and Premature Repayment of Debt
 Performance Indicators
 Treasury Management Advisers
 Member and Officer Training

2. TREASURY INDICATORS AND LIMITS ON ACTIVITY 

2.1 Under the Local Government Act 2003 and the Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities (revised in 2017), local authority capital spending 
and its borrowing to fund that spending is limited by what is affordable, prudent 
and sustainable. The Prudential Code sets out a number of indicators that 
enables the authority to assess affordability and prudence. The Prudential 
Indicators that related to Treasury Management were reclassified as Treasury 
Indicators in recent revisions of the Codes and are:

 Upper Limit for Fixed Rate Exposure
 Upper Limit for Variable Rate Exposure
 Limits on the Maturity Structure of Borrowing
 Limits on Total Principal Sums Invested Long Term
 

In addition the Prudential Code requires that the total external debt does not 
exceed the Authorised Limit for external debt and only exceeds the Operational 
Boundary for external debt temporarily on occasions due to variation in cash 
flow. Full Council when approving the Budget sets the Authorised Limit and the 
Operational Boundary.

Tudalen 392



5

2.2 The Treasury Management Indicators for 2019-20 are:

2.2.1 Interest rate exposure limits for 2019-20 are estimated as follows:

Estimated Average Position for 2019-20
Fixed Interest Rate Variable Interest Rate Total

£m £m £m
Borrowed +446 +3 +449
Invested    (20) (30)     (50)
Net Debt +426 (27) +399
Proportion of 
Total Net Debt +107% (7%) +100%

It is recommended that the following maximum exposure limits are
adopted: 

Fixed Interest Rate Variable Interest Rate
Proportion of 
Total Net Debt +125% +5%

2.2.2 It is recommended that the following exposure limits for 2019-20, 2020-21 
and 2021-22 are adopted:

Interest Rate Exposures 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Upper Upper Upper
£m £m £m

Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt

515 550 566

Limits on variable 
interest rates based on 
net debt

51 55 57

2.2.3 It is recommended that the Council sets upper and lower limits for the 
maturity structure of its borrowing as follows:

Upper 
Limit

Lower 
Limit

Under 12 months 15% 0%
12 months to 2 years 15% 0%
2 years to 5 years 50% 0%
5 years to 10 years 50% 0%
10 years to 20 years 50% 0%
20 years to 30 years 50% 0%
30 years to 40 years 50% 0%
40 years and above 50% 0%

Tudalen 393



6

2.2.4 Maximum principal sums invested longer than 365 days:

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

£m £m £m
Maximum principal sums 
invested longer than 365 days 10 10 10

3. PROSPECTS  FOR  INTEREST  RATES 

Based on the average projection from a number of sources we can expect the trend in 
the Bank Rate, set by the Monetary Policy Committee, over the next three years to be 
as follows:

Current 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
% % % %

Average Bank Rate 0.75 1.06 1.38 1.81

4. BORROWING STRATEGY 2019-20 – 2021-22
  

4.1 Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external 
influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts (and MPC decisions) will 
be liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and 
developments in financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical 
developments, especially in the EU, could also have a major impact. Forecasts 
for average investment earnings beyond the three-year time horizon will be 
heavily dependent on economic and political developments.
 
The overall balance of risks to the UK economy is probably to the downside, 
particularly with the current level of uncertainty over the final terms of Brexit. 

The uncertainty over future interest rates increases the risks associated with 
treasury activity. As a result the Council will continue to take a cautious 
approach to its treasury management strategy.

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will 
be adopted with the 2019-20 treasury operations.  The Director of Corporate 
Services will monitor  interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic 
approach to changing circumstances.

The Director of Corporate Services, under delegated powers, will take the most 
appropriate form of borrowing depending on the prevailing interest rates at the 
time, taking into account the risks shown in the forecast above. It is likely that 
shorter term fixed rates may provide lower cost opportunities in the 
short/medium term. 
 

Tudalen 394



7

The option of delaying borrowing and utilising investment balances is likely to 
continue for the time being. However, this will be carefully reviewed to avoid 
incurring higher borrowing costs in later years due to an overall current trend of 
rising rates. This strategy reduces counterparty risk and hedges against any 
expected fall in investment returns.

The Council continues to maintain an under-borrowed position. This means that 
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent 
as investment returns are low and counterparty risk should still be considered.

The timing of any action is important and the Director of Corporate Services 
and treasury advisers will monitor prevailing rates for any opportunities during 
the year. 
 
The Council will be expected to borrow, for the Carmarthenshire led projects 
within the Swansea Bay City Deal partnership, £40m for the Life Science & 
Wellbeing Village and £2m for Yr Egin from 2019-20 to 2021-22.

The forecast figures in this report do not include the treasury implications of the 
Executive Board decision taken in February 2019 to approve and recommend 
to County Council a loan facility of up to £6million to the housing company 
Cartrefi Croeso. The precise values and timings will be subject to the business 
plan, and consequently will be clearly articulated as part of the report to County 
Council.

4.2 The Council’s agreed policy is to raise funding only from the following: 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)
Market Long-Term (including European Investment Bank (EIB))
Market Temporary
Local Authorities
Overdraft
Internal Capital Receipts and Revenue Balances
Leasing
Welsh Government and Central Government

4.3 Borrowing in advance of need
The Council has some flexibility to borrow funds in advance of future years.
The Director of Corporate Services may do this under delegated power where, 
for instance, a sharp rise in interest rates is expected, and so borrowing early at 
fixed interest rates will be economically beneficial or meet budgetary 
constraints.  Whilst the Director of Corporate Services will adopt a cautious 
approach to any such borrowing, where there is a clear business case for doing 
so borrowing may be undertaken to fund the approved capital programme or to 
fund future debt maturities.  
Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraints that:

Tudalen 395



8

 It will be limited to no more than 50% of the expected increase in borrowing 
needed (CFR) over the three year planning period; and

 Not to borrow more than 12 months in advance of need.
Risks associated with any advance borrowing activity will be appraised in 
advance and subsequently reported through the quarterly reporting mechanism. 

5. INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2019-20  –  2021-22

5.1 INTRODUCTION

5.1.1 The Investment Strategy has been prepared with due regard to: 

The Local Government Act 2003

Regulations made under the Local Government Act 2003 (as amended)

2017 Revised Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2008

Guidance issued by the Welsh Government 

2017 Revised CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of 
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes

CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018

5.1.2 Key Objectives

The Council’s investment strategy primary objectives are:

 safeguarding the repayment of the principal and interest of its investments 
on time 

 ensuring adequate liquidity 

 the investment return 

Following the interest rate views above, the current investment climate has 
counterparty security risk as the over-riding risk consideration. While there is so 
much uncertainty around the Brexit negotiations, consumer confidence, and 
business confidence to spend on investing, it is far too early to be confident 
about how the next two to three years will actually pan out. As a result of 
concerns over Eurozone sovereign debt and the potential negative impact on 
the banking industry, officers have implemented detailed operational 
procedures which are included in the treasury management procedure manual. 
These procedures tighten the controls already in place in the approved 
investment strategy.

Tudalen 396



9

5.1.3 Risk Benchmarking

A development in the revised Codes and the WG Investment Guidance is the 
consideration and approval of security and liquidity benchmarks.  Yield 
benchmarks are currently widely used to assess investment performance.  
Discrete security and liquidity benchmarks are new requirements to the Member 
reporting, although the application of these is more subjective in nature. The 
approach taken is attached at Appendix B. 

5.2 DEFINITIONS

5.2.1 A credit rating agency is one of the following three companies: Fitch Ratings 
Limited (Fitch), Moody’s Investors Service Limited (Moody’s) and Standard and 
Poors (S&P).

5.2.2 An investment is a transaction that relies upon the power in section 12 of the 
Local Government Act 2003 and is recorded in the balance sheet under the 
heading of investments within current assets or long-term investments.

5.3 INVESTMENT COUNTERPARTIES

The Director of Corporate Services maintains a counterparty list in compliance 
with the following criteria and revises the criteria and submits them to Council 
for approval as necessary. This criteria is separate to that which approves 
Specified and Non-Specified investments as it selects which counterparties the 
Council will approve rather than defining what its investments are. The rating 
criteria use the lowest common denominator method of selecting counterparties 
and applying limits.  This means that the application of the Council’s minimum 
criteria will apply to the lowest available rating for any institution.  For instance if 
an institution is rated by all three agencies, two meet the Council’s criteria, the 
other does not, the institution will fall outside the lending criteria.

5.3.1 Investment Counterparty Selection Criteria 
The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the security 
of its investments, although the yield or return on the investment is also a key 
consideration.  To meet this main principle the Council will ensure:

 It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it will 
invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate 
security, and monitoring their security. This is set out in the Specified and 
Non-Specified investment sections.

 It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will set out 
procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds may 
prudently be committed. These procedures also apply to the Council’s 
prudential indicators covering the maximum principal sums invested.  

Tudalen 397



10

5.3.2 UK Banks 1 (Upper Limit) – This Council will use banks which have at least 
the following Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors ratings:

Short Term – F1, P-1, A-1
Long Term – AA-, Aa3, AA- 

UK Banks 2 & UK Building Societies (Middle Limit) – This Council will use 
all UK Banks and Building Societies which have at least the following Fitch, 
Moody’s and Standard & Poors ratings:

Short Term – F1, P-1, A-1
Long Term – A, A2, A 

UK Banks Part Nationalised – Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc (Royal Bank 
of Scotland and National Westminster Bank). These banks will be included if 
they continue to be part nationalised or they meet the ratings above. 
The UK Government (HM Treasury) holds 62.4% stake within Royal Bank of 
Scotland Group. 
UK part nationalised banks which are significantly owned by the UK 
Government will be included as investment counterparties, as long as they 
continue to have appropriate UK Government support. UK Government backing 
provides a credit quality overlay above that provided by the credit rating 
agencies.  The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc will be monitored for any 
material reduction in state ownership or deterioration of the credit rating which 
suggests a reduction of its use or suspension from the counterparty list.

UK Banks 3 – The Council’s banker for transactional purposes if it falls below 
the above criteria. Balances will be minimised in both monetary size and time.

Money Market Funds – The Council will use AAA rated money market funds 
(MMFs) that are credit rated by at least two of the three credit rating agencies.  
These are pooled investment funds whose primary aims are liquidity and 
security and allow daily access to funds when required.  Their operations are 
strictly regulated by the credit rating agencies and are operated by a financial 
institution but do not form part of that institutions assets, should the sponsoring 
institution fail the MMF is entirely separate, effectively owned by the investors.  
These types of funds invest in a range of instruments and institutions and 
therefore provide a low risk spread of investments.

The Money Market Fund reforms in Europe came into force during 2018 and 
provide the Council the opportunity to invest into Public Debt Constant Net Asset 
Value (“CNAV”) MMFs and Low Volatility NAV (“LVNAV”) MMFs. This is 
consistent with our current strategic approach.

UK Government (including gilts and the DMADF)

Local Authorities (including Police & Fire Authorities)

5.3.3 Use of additional information other than credit ratings 
Under the Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017 the 
Council is still required to supplement credit rating information.  Whilst the 

Tudalen 398



11

above criteria relies primarily on the application of credit ratings to provide a 
pool of appropriate counterparties for officers to use, additional operational 
market information will be applied before making any specific investment 
decision from the agreed pool of counterparties.  The market information (for 
example, negative rating watches/outlooks, individual/viability and support 
ratings) will be applied to compare the relative security of differing investment 
counterparties.
The UK Government, like other Western governments, are initiating market 
regulations which will mean they may not bail out financial institutions in the 
future.  This will not be initiated until corresponding rules and regulations are in 
place so that institutions are much stronger and less likely to fail.  Whilst not an 
immediate concern, officers will continue to monitor the situation and changes 
to future investment strategies are likely.

5.3.4 The time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s Counterparty List 
are shown below: (Specified and Non-Specified Investments)

Fitch Moody’s Time Limit 

  

Standard 
&

Poors

Money 
Limit

 
Upper Limit Category -       

Short Term  F1 P-1 A-1   
and     £10m 3 years

Long Term  AA- Aa3 AA-   
Middle Limit Category -       

Short Term  F1 P-1 A-1   
and     £7m 1 year

Long Term  A A2 A   
Part Nationalised - - - £7m 1 year

Council’s Banker
(not meeting criteria above)

- - - £3m 1 day

Other Institution Limits:       
       
- Any One Local Authority
(including Police & Fire authorities)

 
- - - £5m 1 year

- Any AAA Rated Money Market Fund 
CNAV - - - £5m Daily 

Liquidity
 

- Any AAA Rated Money Market Fund 
LVNAV

- - - £5m Daily 
Liquidity

- Debt Management Account Deposit  
Facility (DMO)

 - - - £40m 6 months
(max term  
specified 
by DMO)

Tudalen 399



12

5.3.5 There are two types of investments – Specified and Non Specified 

5.3.5.1 Specified Investments

These investments are sterling investments of not more than one-year maturity.  
These are low risk assets where the possibility of loss of principal or investment 
income is small.  These would include investments with:

(1) The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Office, UK 
Treasury Bills or a Gilt with less than one year to maturity).

(2) A local authority, police authority and fire authority.
(3) Pooled investment vehicles (such as money market funds) that have

been awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency.
(4) A body that has high credit quality (which may include a high credit rating 

by a credit rating agency) such as a bank or building society. For this 
purpose a body with a short term rating of F1, P-1 or A-1 will be 
considered high quality. 

5.3.5.2 Non Specified Investments

These investments are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as 
Specified in 5.3.5.1 above). 
The maximum sum and time limit for non specified investments is £5m per 
counterparty with a limit of 3 years.

 
Non specified investments will only be made in local authorities, bodies with a 
minimum long-term credit rating of AA– and in AAA rated money market funds.

Note: Barclays Bank plc are the Council’s current bankers. If the bank’s credit 
rating falls and it no longer meets the criteria for a specified investment no 
deposits will be made with the exception of the bank’s overnight (Moneymaster) 
account. The average day to day operational balance on the account will not 
exceed £3m in these circumstances. See 5.3.4 above.  

In the normal course of the council’s cash flow operations it is expected that 
both Specified and Non-specified investments will be utilised for the control of 
liquidity as both categories allow for short term investments.  
The use of longer term instruments (greater than one year from inception to 
repayment) will fall in the non-specified investment category.  These 
instruments will only be used where the Council’s liquidity requirements are 
safeguarded.  

5.3.6 The Monitoring of Investment Counterparties

The credit ratings of counterparties are monitored regularly. The officers receive 
credit rating information (changes, rating watches and rating outlooks) from the 
treasury management advisers as and when ratings change, and 
counterparties are checked promptly. Occasionally ratings may be downgraded 
when an investment has already been made. The criteria used are such that a 
minor downgrading should not affect the full receipt of the principal and interest. 
Any counterparty failing to meet the criteria will be removed from the list 
immediately by the Director of Corporate Services, and if required new 
counterparties which meet the criteria will be added to the list. 

Tudalen 400



13

The criteria for choosing counterparties set out above provide a sound 
approach to investment in “normal” market circumstances.  Whilst Members are 
asked to approve this base criteria above, under exceptional current market 
conditions the Director of Corporate Services will temporarily restrict further 
investment activity to those counterparties considered of higher credit quality 
than the minimum criteria set out for approval.  These restrictions will remain in 
place until the banking system returns to “normal” conditions. Similarly the time 
periods for investments will be restricted.
Further restrictions would be the greater use of the Debt Management Account 
Deposit Facility (DMADF – an account within the Government Debt 
Management Office (DMO) which accepts local authority deposits), Money 
Market Funds, guaranteed deposit facilities and strongly rated institutions 
offered support by the UK Government. The credit criteria have been amended 
to reflect these facilities. 

The present Schedule of Approved Counterparties for Lending 2019-20 is 
shown in Appendix C.

5.4 LIQUIDITY OF INVESTMENTS

Investments are made for periods which coincide with the Council’s cash flow 
requirements. 

  
When investing (within the risk criteria mentioned above), the aim is to achieve 
a level of return greater than would be secured by internal investments. The “7 
day LIBID rate” is the recognised rate which the Council aims to exceed when 
lending money. 

5.5 INVESTMENTS THAT ARE NOT PART OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
ACTIVITY

This Council recognises that investment in other financial assets and property 
primarily for financial return, taken for non-treasury management purposes, 
requires careful investment management. Such activity includes loans supporting 
service outcomes, investments in subsidiaries, and investment property portfolios. 
This Council will ensure that all the organisation’s investments are covered in the 
investment strategy or equivalent, and will set out, where relevant, the 
organisation’s risk appetite and specific policies and arrangements for non-
treasury investments. It will be recognised that the risk appetite for these activities 
may differ from that for treasury management. 
The council will maintain a schedule setting out a summary of existing material 
investments, subsidiaries, joint ventures and liabilities including financial 
guarantees and the organisation’s risk exposure.

Prior to making these investments, appropriate financial review procedures will
be undertaken, including Profit and Loss, Balance Sheet and cash flow 
monitoring, as appropriate.

This Council acknowledges that it is critical that due diligence processes and 
procedures reflect the additional risk an organisation is taking on. Due diligence 
procedures should ensure effective scrutiny of proposed investments, 
identification of risk to both capital and returns, any external underwriting of 

Tudalen 401



14

those risks, and the potential impact on the financial sustainability of the 
organisation if those risks come to pass. Where necessary independent and 
expert advice should be sought to ensure due diligence is suitably robust.

 

6. DEBT RESCHEDULING AND PREMATURE REPAYMENT OF DEBT

As short term borrowing rates are likely to be considerably cheaper than longer term 
fixed interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by 
switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will need to 
be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of the cost of 
debt repayment (premiums incurred). 

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include: 
 the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings
 helping to fulfil the treasury strategy
 enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the balance 
of volatility).

Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for making 
savings by utilising current investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short 
term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt.  

7. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Council to set 
performance indicators to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over the year. 
These are distinct historic indicators, as opposed to the prudential indicators, which 
are predominantly forward looking.  Examples of performance indicators used for the 
treasury function are:

 Debt (Borrowing) – New borrowing rate to outperform the average 
PWLB rate for the year 

 Debt – Average weighted debt rate movement year on year

 Investments – Return on Investments to outperform the average “7 day 
LIBID rate”

The results of these indicators will be reported in the Treasury Management Annual 
Report for 2018-19.

8. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ADVISERS  

The Council has a contract with Link Asset Services as its external treasury 
management advisor.

Link provides a range of services which include: 

 Technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues and the 
drafting of Member reports

Tudalen 402



15

 Economic and interest rate analysis

 Debt advisory services which includes advice on the timing of borrowing

 Debt rescheduling advice surrounding the existing portfolio

 Generic investment advice on interest rates, timing and investment 
instruments

 Credit ratings/market information service comprising the three main credit 
rating agencies

Under current market rules and the Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of 
Practice 2017 the responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the 
Council at all times ensuring that undue reliance is not placed upon the external 
service providers. 

The Council also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of 
treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their 
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular 
review. 

9. MEMBER & OFFICER TRAINING

The increased member consideration of treasury management matters and the need 
to ensure officers dealing with treasury management are trained and kept up to date 
requires a suitable training process for members and officers. This Council has 
addressed this important issue by:

 Reviewing the treasury management function and ensuring officers are 
suitably qualified

 Arranging external training for officers

 Arranging training for those members charged with governance of the 
treasury management function

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. That Council formally approves the Treasury Management Policy and 
Strategy for 2019-20 and recommendations therein.

2. That Council formally approves the Treasury Management Indicators, 
Prudential Indicators, the MRP Statement and recommendations therein.

Tudalen 403



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

Appendix A

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (TMPs)
                 

TMP1 RISK MANAGEMENT

General Statement

This Council regards a key objective of its treasury management activities to be 
the security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that robust 
due diligence procedures cover all external investment.

The Director of Corporate Services or those persons to which delegation has been 
made will design, implement and monitor all arrangements for the identification, 
management and control of treasury management risk, will report at least annually 
on the adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a matter of urgency, the 
circumstances of any actual or likely difficulty in achieving the organisation’s 
objectives in this respect, all in accordance with the procedures set out in TMP 6 
Reporting requirements and management information arrangements. In respect of 
each of the following risks, the arrangements which seek to ensure compliance 
with these objectives are set out below.

1.1 Credit and Counterparty Risk Management

Explanation

The risk of failure by a third party to meet its contractual obligations to the Council 
under an investment, borrowing, capital, project or partnership financing, 
particularly as a result of the third party’s diminished creditworthiness, and the 
resulting detrimental effect on the Council’s capital or current (revenue) resources. 

Council Action

This Council regards a key objective of its treasury management activities to be 
the security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that its 
counterparty lists and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards organisations with 
whom funds may be deposited, and will limit its investment activities to the 
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in TMP4 Approved instruments, 
methods and techniques and listed in the Annual Treasury Management Policy 
and Strategy Statement. It also recognises the need to have, and will therefore 
maintain, a formal counterparty policy in respect of those organisations from which 
it may borrow, or with whom it may enter into other financing arrangements.

A detailed list of counterparties to which the Council will lend is appended to the 
Annual Treasury Management Policy and Strategy Statement.

Tudalen 405



2

1.2 Liquidity Risk Management

Explanation

The risk that cash will not be available when it is needed, that ineffective 
management of liquidity creates additional budgeted costs, and that the 
organisation’s business/service objectives will therefore be compromised.

Council Action

The Council through its Treasury Management officers will ensure that at all times 
there will be a surplus of cash available which can be called upon at a moment’s 
notice.  Through its investments the Council holds cash on call account(s) which 
is available at any time.   By the use of an effective projected cash flow exercise 
the likelihood of cash being not readily available when required would be rare.
Robust daily, weekly, monthly and annual cash flow forecasting is in place. Call 
accounts and fixed term investments are utilised to their full potential.
This Council will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business 
case for doing so and will only do so for the current capital programme or to finance 
future debt maturities.

1.3 Interest Rate Risk Management

Explanation 

The risk that fluctuations in the levels of interest rates create an unexpected or 
unbudgeted burden on the organisation’s finances, against which the organisation 
has failed to protect itself adequately.

Council Action

This Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view 
to containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance 
with the amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended in 
accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information 
arrangements.

It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment 
instruments, methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of 
costs and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility 
to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the level 
or structure of interest rates. This should be the subject to the consideration and, 
if required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications. 

Tudalen 406



3

1.4 Exchange Rate Risk Management

Explanation

The risk that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates create an unexpected or 
unbudgeted burden on the organisation’s finances, against which the 
organisation has failed to protect itself adequately. The Council is awarded grant 
from specific programmes in Euro currency and consequently receives grant 
income in this currency.  Where the Council is a joint beneficiary and not a lead 
beneficiary, payments are received from the lead beneficiary in Euros into the 
Council’s Sterling bank account.
There is a negligible risk where the Council is a joint beneficiary.
Where the Council is a lead beneficiary for a grant and is receiving income in 
Euro currency on behalf of other beneficiaries, the income is received into and 
payments made in Euros from the Euro bank account.

           
Council Action

Currently the Council only invests in sterling products. Hence, there is no 
exchange rate risk with regard these investments. For grants where the Council 
is lead beneficiary, receiving income in Euro currency on behalf of other 
beneficiaries and reimbursing them, exchange risk is mitigated by using an Euro 
bank account.

1.5 Inflation Risk Management

Explanation

Inflation risk, also called purchasing power risk, is the chance that the cash flows 
from an investment won’t be worth as much in the future because of changes in 
purchasing power due to inflation.

Council Action

The Council will keep under review the sensitivity of its treasury assets and 
liabilities to inflation, and will seek to manage the risk accordingly in the context of 
the whole Council’s inflation exposures.

Tudalen 407



4

1.6 Refinancing Risk Management

Explanation

The risk that maturing borrowings, capital project or partnership financing cannot 
be refinanced on terms that reflect the provisions made by the organisation or 
those refinancings, both capital and current (revenue), and/or that the terms are 
inconsistent with prevailing market conditions at the time.

Council Action

This Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership 
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile 
of the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for 
renewal or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favourable to the 
Council as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions prevailing 
at the time. It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these 
transactions in such a manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid 
overreliance on any one source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of 
the above.

1.7 Legal and Regulatory Risk Management

Explanation

The risk that an organisation itself, or a third party with which it is dealing in its 
treasury management activities, fails to act in accordance with its legal powers or 
regulatory requirements, and that the organisation suffers losses accordingly.

Council Action

This Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with 
its statutory powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such 
compliance, if required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities. 
In framing its credit and counterparty policy under TMP 1 credit and counterparty 
risk management it will ensure that there is evidence of counterparties’ powers, 
authority and compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with the 
organisation, particularly with regard to duty of care and fees charged.

This Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact 
on its treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, 
will seek to minimize the risk of these impacting adversely on the Council.

Tudalen 408



5

1.8 Fraud, Error and Corruption, and Contingency Management 

Explanation

The risk that an organisation fails to identify the circumstances in which it may be 
exposed to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in 
its treasury management dealings, and fails to employ suitable systems and 
procedures and maintain effective contingency management arrangements to 
these ends.   It includes the area of risk commonly referred to as operational risk.

Council Action

This Council will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose 
it to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its 
treasury management dealings.   Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and 
procedures, and will maintain effective contingency management arrangements, 
to these ends.

1.9 Price Risk Management

Explanation

The risk that, through adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal sums 
the organisation invests, its stated treasury management policies and objectives 
are compromised, against which effects it has failed to protect itself adequately.

Council Action

This Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and 
objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of 
the principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect itself from the 
effects of such fluctuations.

TMP2 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

Explanation

Performance measurement is a process designed to calculate the effectiveness of 
a portfolio’s or manager’s investment returns or borrowing costs and the 
application of the resulting data for the purposes of comparison with the 
performance of other portfolios or managers, or with recognised industry 
standards or market indices.

Tudalen 409



6

Council Action

This Council is committed to the pursuit of value for money in its treasury 
management activities, and to the use of performance methodology in support of 
that aim, within the framework set out in its treasury management policy statement.

Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing 
analysis of the value it adds in support of the Council’s stated business or service 
objectives.   It will be the subject of regular examination of alternative methods of 
service delivery, of the availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy incentives, and 
of the scope of other potential improvements.

TMP3 DECISION MAKING AND ANALYSIS

Explanation

It is vital that the treasury management decisions of organisations in the public 
service should be subjected to prior scrutiny.  The treasury management strategy 
is approved annually by full council and supplemented by the provision of 
monitoring information and regular review by councillors in both executive and 
scrutiny functions.  In addition all records should be kept of the processes and the 
rationale behind those decisions.   In respect of each decision made the Council 
should:

  

3.1 ensure that its results are within the limits set in the Prudential Indicators.

3.2 be clear about the nature and extent of the risks to which the Council may 
become exposed.

3.3 be certain about the legality of the decision reached and the nature of the 
transaction, and that all authorities to proceed have been obtained.

3.4 be content that the documentation is adequate both to deliver the Council’s 
objectives and protect the Council’s interest, and to deliver good 
housekeeping.

3.5 ensure that third parties are judged satisfactorily in the context of the 
Council’s credit worthiness policies, and that limits have not been 
exceeded.

3.6 be content that the terms of any transactions have been fully checked 
against the market, and have been found to be competitive.

3.7 in respect of borrowing the Council should evaluate the economic and 
market factors that influence the manner and timing of any decision to fund.

Tudalen 410



7

3.8 consider the merits and demerits of alternative forms of funding, including 
funding from revenue, leasing and private partnerships.

3.9 consider the alternative interest rate bases available, the most appropriate 
periods to fund and repayment profiles to use and, if relevant, the 
opportunities for foreign currency funding.

3.10 consider the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the implications for the 
Council’s future plans and budgets.

3.11 in respect of investment decisions, the Council should consider the 
optimum period, in the light of cash flow availability and prevailing market 
conditions.

3.12 consider the alternative investment products and techniques available, 
especially the implications of any which may expose the Council to changes 
in the value of its capital.

Council Action

This Council will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions, and 
of the processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions both for the 
purposes of learning from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps 
were taken to ensure that all issues relevant to those decisions were taken into 
account at the time.

TMP4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES

Explanation

It is important that the Council is clear about the treasury management instruments, 
methods and techniques used as one of the main issues to be taken into account 
when reaching decisions in the need to protect public funds. This treasury 
management practice requires that the Council is equipped with the skills and 
experience to evaluate and control the risks and advantages associated with using 
the instruments available to it before including them in the approved list. Only 
instruments that the organisation has the skills and experience to evaluate should 
be included in their approved list, even if they are legally permitted to do so. This 
principle applies to investment, borrowing and other means of raising capital and 
project finance, and to the use of one off-market or financial derivative instruments 
such as interest rate swaps. The consideration of skills and experience is 
particularly critical where organisations request to be treated as professional 
clients under MIFID II. Designation under MIFID II should be endorsed by the 
treasury management strategy and regularly reviewed to ensure that designation 
remains appropriate.

Tudalen 411



8

Council Action

This Council will undertake its treasury management activities by employing only 
those instruments, methods and techniques detailed in the policy, and within the 
limits and parameters defined in Treasury Management Practice 1 Risk 
Management.

This Council has reviewed its classification with financial institutions under MIFID 
II and has set out in the schedule to this document those organisations with which 
it is registered as a professional client and those with which it has an application 
outstanding to register as a professional client.

TMP5 ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES, 
AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS

Explanation

It is considered vital that there should be a clear division of responsibilities, 
included in a written statement of the duties of each post engaged in Treasury 
Management. It is especially important that staff responsible for negotiating and 
closing deals are not responsible for recording them, or for maintaining the cash 
book. This is in order to create a framework for internal check, and reflects both 
the variety of activities in treasury management and the very often large sums 
involved.

Council Action

This Council considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and 
monitoring of its treasury management activities, for the reduction of the risk of 
fraud or error, and for the pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are 
structured and managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is at all times 
a clarity of treasury management responsibilities.

The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those 
charged with setting treasury management policies and those charged with 
implementing and controlling these policies, particularly with regard to the 
execution and transmission of funds, the recording and administering of treasury 
management decisions, and the audit and review of the treasury management 
function.

If and when this Council intends, as a result of lack of resources or other 
circumstances, to depart from these principles, the responsible officer will ensure 
that the reasons are properly reported in accordance with Treasury Management 
Practice 6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements, 
and the implications properly considered and evaluated.

Tudalen 412



9

The Director of Corporate Services will ensure that there are clear written 
statements of the responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury management, 
and the arrangements for absence cover. 

The Director of Corporate Services will ensure there is a proper documentation for 
all deals and transactions, and that procedures exist for the effective transmission 
of funds.

TMP6 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
ARRANGEMENTS

Explanation

It is recommended that the Council’s treasury management policy statement 
should specify formal reporting arrangements by the Director of Corporate 
Services to full Council, to include at a minimum annual reports both before, mid-
year and after the year-end.

Council Action

This Council will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the 
implementation of its treasury management policies, on the effects of decisions 
taken and transactions executed in pursuit of those policies, on the implications of 
changes, particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or 
other factors affecting its treasury management activities and on the performance 
of the treasury management function.

The following reporting process has been agreed by the Council:

6.1 Annual Reporting Requirements before the start of the year:

 Review of the Council’s approved clauses, treasury management policy 
statement and practices

 Strategy report on proposed treasury management activities for the year

 Proposed Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 

6.2 Quarter 1 and Quarter 3 Reporting Requirements during the year which will 
be presented to both Executive Board and Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee:

                                 
 Activities undertaken

 Variations (if any) from agreed policies/practices

 Performance report
Tudalen 413



10

 Performance against Treasury Management and Prudential  Indicators 

6.3 Mid Year Reporting Requirements during the year which will be presented 
to Council, Executive Board and Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee:

                                 
 Activities undertaken

 Variations (if any) from agreed policies/practices

 Performance report

 Performance against Treasury Management and Prudential  Indicators

6.3 Annual Reporting Requirements after the year end

 Transactions executed and their revenue (current) effects

 Report on risk implications of decisions taken and transactions 
executed

 Compliance report on agreed policies/practices, and on 
statutory/regulatory requirements

 Performance report

 Report on compliance with Revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice 2017 recommendations

 Performance against Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators

By undertaking the above it will ensure, as a minimum, that those with 
ultimate responsibility for the treasury management function appreciate fully 
the implications of treasury management policies and activities, and that 
those implementing policies and executing transactions have properly 
fulfilled their responsibilities with regard to delegation and reporting.

TMP7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

Explanation

It is recommended that the Council brings together for budgeting and management 
control purposes, all of the costs and revenues associated with the Council’s 
treasury management activities, regardless of how the Council has actually 
organised the treasury management function. In this context the Council’s treasury 
management budgets and accounts should clearly identify.

Tudalen 414



11

 Manpower numbers and related costs

 Premises and other administrative costs

 Interest and other investment income

 Debt and other financing costs (or charges for the use of assets)

 Bank and overdraft charges

 Brokerages, commissions and other transaction-related costs

 External advisers’ and consultants’ charges

It is normal practice for the external auditor to have access to all papers supporting 
and explaining the operation and activities of the treasury management function. The 
auditor will be expected to enquire as to whether the Revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice 2017 has been adopted, and whether its principles 
and recommendations have been implemented and adhered to. Any serious breach 
of the recommendations of the Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of 
Practice 2017 should be brought to the external auditor’s attention.

Council Action

The Director of Corporate Services will prepare, and this Council will approve and, if 
necessary, from time to time will amend, an annual budget for treasury management, 
which will bring together all of the costs involved in running the treasury management 
function, together with associated income. The matters to be included in the budget 
will at minimum be those required by statute or regulation, together with such 
information as will demonstrate compliance with TMP1 Risk management, TMP2 
Performance Measurement, and TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and 
techniques. The Director of Corporate Services will exercise effective controls over 
this budget, and will report upon and recommend any changes required in 
accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information 
arrangements.

The  calculation  and  compliance  of Treasury Management and Prudential  Indictors  
will  be  examined  by  the  Wales Audit Office.
This Council will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions made 
and transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting practices and 
standards, and with statutory and regulatory requirements in force for the time being.
This Council will ensure that its auditors, and those charged with regulatory review, 
have access to all information and papers supporting the activities of the treasury 
management function as are necessary for the proper fulfillment of their roles, and 
that such information and papers demonstrate compliance with external and internal 
policies and approved practices. 

Tudalen 415



12

TMP8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

Explanation

The preparation of cash flow projections on a regular and timely basis provides a 
sound framework for effective cash management. Procedures for their preparation 
and review/modification, the periods to be covered, sources of data etc. should be an 
integral part of the schedules to the Council’s approved treasury management 
practices.

Council Action

Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the 
hands of the Council will be under the control of the Director of Corporate Services 
and will be aggregated for cash flow and investment management purposes. Cash 
flow projections will be prepared on a regular and timely basis, and the Director of 
Corporate Services will ensure that these are adequate for the purposes of monitoring 
compliance with Treasury Management Practice 1 (2) liquidity risk management. 

TMP9 MONEY LAUNDERING

Explanation

Money Laundering has the objective of concealing the origin of money generated 
through criminal activity. Legislation has given a higher profile to the need to report 
suspicions of money laundering. Also, organisations such as Councils that undertake 
business under the Financial Services Act, or engage in certain specified activities, 
are required to set up procedures to comply with Money Laundering Regulations 
2007. These require Councils:

 To set up procedures for verifying the identity of clients

 To set up record-keeping procedures for evidence of identity and 
transactions

 To set up internal reporting procedures for suspicions, including the 
appointment of a money laundering reporting officer

 To train relevant employees in their legal obligations

 To train those employees in the procedures for recognising and 
reporting suspicions of money laundering

Tudalen 416



13

The Council should establish whether the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 apply 
to them. And it is for individual organisations to evaluate the prospect of laundered 
monies being handled by them, and to determine the appropriate safeguards to be 
put in place. It is the legal responsibility of every person engaged in treasury 
management to make themselves aware of their personal responsibilities, but the 
Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017 recommends that 
Councils bring them to their staff’s attention and consider the appointment of a 
member of staff to whom they can report any suspicions.

Council’s Action

This Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt to 
involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money.  Accordingly, it will 
maintain procedures for verifying and recording the identity of counterparties and 
reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staff involved in this are properly trained. 

TMP10 TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS

Explanation

All Councils should be aware of the growing complexity of treasury management. 
Modern treasury management demands appropriate skills, including a knowledge of 
money and capital market operations, an awareness of available sources of funds 
and investment opportunities, an ability to assess and control risk, and an 
appreciation of the implications of legal and regulatory requirements.

Every Council should provide the necessary training, having assessed the 
professional competence of both those involved in the treasury management 
function, and those with a policy, management or supervisory role.   If necessary, 
they should ensure that access exists to the necessary expertise and skills from 
external sources.   Arrangements to ensure the availability of suitable skills and 
resources should recognize the prospect that staff absences may, at times, demand 
that others step in who do not normally have involvement on a day-to-day basis with 
the treasury management function.

When feasible in the context of the size of a particular organisation and its treasury 
management function, career progression opportunities should be provided and 
succession issues should be properly addressed. Secondments of senior 
management to the treasury management function for appropriate periods may 
benefit the effectiveness of the function as a whole.

Council Action

This Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in the 
treasury management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and 

Tudalen 417



14

responsibilities allocated to them. It will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are 
both capable and experienced and will provide training for staff to enable them to 
acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills. The 
Director of Corporate Services will recommend and implement the necessary 
arrangements.

The Director of Corporate Services will ensure that council members tasked with 
treasury management responsibilities, including those responsible for scrutiny, have 
access to training relevant to their needs and those responsibilities.

Those charged with governance recognise their individual responsibility to ensure 
that they have the necessary skills to complete their role effectively.

TMP11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS

There are a number of service providers available to support the treasury 
management activities of public service organisations.

Perhaps the most active and long-standing of these have been the money-broking 
companies, whose role it is to act as intermediaries, making introductions between 
the prospective parties to transactions.

It is not the role of brokers to provide advice on the creditworthiness of those 
organisations to which public service organisations may lend. They may provide 
information already in the public domain, but may not interpret it. The use of brokers 
is a matter for local decision. But it is considered good practice, if their services are 
used, to ensure that business is spread between a reasonable number of them, and 
certainly no fewer than two. And it is not uncommon for their services to be the subject 
of a competitive tendering process every few years.

Direct dealing with principals is a not uncommon feature of treasury management in 
the public services which, if nothing else, can provide a useful check on brokers’ 
performance.

An issue that causes some debate is whether it is necessary or desirable for public 
service organisations to tape conversations with brokers and principals. This is a 
matter for local discretion, particularly in the context of the costs involved, but is 
generally to be recommended.

Most public service organisations require the services of clearing bankers, and a 
growing number make use of the services of a wider group of banks, particularly to 
meet their need for private finance and partnership funding. The principles of 
competition need to be recognised here, too. Certainly, it is highly desirable to subject 
clearing banking services to competition, perhaps as frequently as every three or four 
years.

There has also been a growing tendency for public service organisations to employ 
external advisers and consultants, often for the purposes of a general treasury 
management advisory service, but also for specific purposes, such as the securing 
and structuring of funding and for partnership arrangements. These, too, should be 

Tudalen 418



15

the subject of regular competitive tendering.

Further, many public service organisations employ the services of external 
investment managers to help manage their surplus cash and, where relevant, their 
pension fund, trust fund or endowment fund assets.

CIPFA advises all organisations using the services of external service providers to 
document comprehensively the arrangements made with them.

Council Action

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remain 
with the Council at all times. It recognises the potential value of employing external 
providers of treasury management services, in order to acquire access to specialist 
skills and resources. When it employs such service providers, it will ensure it does 
so for reasons which will have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and 
benefits. It will also ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by 
which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and 
subjected to regular review. And it will ensure, where feasible and necessary, that a 
spread of service providers is used, to avoid overreliance on one or a small number 
of companies. 

TMP12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017 recommends that 
public service organisations state their commitment to embracing the principles of 
corporate governance in their treasury management activities, notably openness and 
transparency.

It is CIPFA’s view that:

 adoption of the principles and policies promoted in the Revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice 2017  and in these guidance notes will in itself 
deliver the framework for demonstrating openness and transparency in an 
organisation’s treasury management function

 publication of and free access to information about an organisation’s treasury 
management transactions and other public documents connected with its 
treasury management activities will further assist in achieving this end

 establishing clear treasury management policies, the separation of roles in 
treasury management and the proper management of relationships both within 
and outside the organisation will establish the integrity of the function

 robust treasury management organisational structures, together with well-defined 
treasury management responsibilities and job specifications, will enhance 
accountability

Tudalen 419



16

 equality in treasury management dealings, absence of business favouritism and 
the creation of keen competition in treasury management will lay the groundwork 
for fairness.

The following paragraphs further emphasise the practices that CIPFA believes an 
organisation should employ to ensure the principles of corporate governance are 
successfully implemented.

Procedural responses

The policies, strategies of treasury management should link clearly to the 
organisation’s other key policies and strategies. In the management of risk, in 
particular, treasury risk management should be an integral part of its overall risk 
management processes, culminating in a well-defined, organisation-wide strategy for 
the control of risk and contingency planning.

The management and administration of treasury management should be robust, 
rigorous and disciplined. Over the years, some of the most significant examples of 
treasury mismanagement, in both the public services and the private sector, have 
resulted from procedural indiscipline. This has frequently been as a result of a failure 
to apply otherwise well-documented management and administration systems, or 
through failures in transmission, documentation or deal recording processes.

Reporting arrangements should be applied so as to ensure that those charged with 
responsibility for the treasury management policy have all the information necessary 
to enable them to fulfil openly their obligations; and that all stakeholders are fully 
appraised of and consulted on the organisation’s treasury management activities on 
a regular basis.

The procedures for monitoring treasury management activities through audit, scrutiny 
and inspection should be sound and rigorously applied, with an openness of access 
to information and well-defined arrangements for the review and implementation of 
recommendations for change.

The application and interpretation of performance data should be clear, concise and 
relevant to the organisation’s treasury management activities.

Stewardship responsibilities

The Director of Corporate Services should ensure that systems exist to deliver proper 
financial administration and control, and a framework for overseeing and reviewing 
the treasury management function.

As regards a control framework, an organisation’s formal policy documents should 
define clearly procedures for monitoring, control and internal check.

With regard to delegation it is vitally important that those involved in the 
implementation of treasury management policies and the execution of transactions 
are unambiguously empowered to undertake their tasks, and that reporting lines are 
well-defined.

Tudalen 420



17

An organisation’s adoption of and adherence to the Revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice 2017 should be widely broadcast, as should the 
principles of the Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017 and 
the method of its application in the organisation.

The organisation’s procedures for reviewing the value of the treasury management 
function, and the implementation of opportunities for improvement, should be both 
continuous and open to examination.

The governance of others

In respect of the organisation’s dealings with counterparties, external service 
providers and other interested parties, clear procedures should exist to enable the 
organisation, as far as is practicable, to monitor their adherence to the legal or 
regulatory regimes under which they operate.

Council Action

This Council is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout 
its businesses and services, and to establishing the principles and practices by which 
this can be achieved.  Accordingly, the treasury management function and its 
activities will be undertaken with openness and transparency, honesty, integrity and 
accountability. 
In respect of external service providers appropriate financial review procedures will 
be undertaken, including Profit and Loss, Balance Sheet and cash flow monitoring, 
as appropriate.
This Council has adopted and has implemented the key recommendations of the 
Revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 2017. This is considered 
vital to the achievement of proper corporate governance in treasury management, 
and the Director of Corporate Services will monitor and, if and when necessary, report 
upon the effectiveness of these arrangements. 
.  

Tudalen 421



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

Appendix B

SECURITY, LIQUIDITY AND YIELD BENCHMARKING

 Member reporting on the consideration and approval of security and liquidity 
benchmarks will continue. These benchmarks are targets and so may be 
breached from time to time.  Any breach will be reported, with supporting 
reasons in the Annual Treasury Management Report.

1. Security
In context of benchmarking, assessing security is a subjective area to assess.  
Security is currently evidenced by the application of minimum credit quality 
criteria to investment counterparties, primarily through the use of credit ratings 
supplied by the three main credit rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard 
and Poor’s). Whilst this approach embodies security considerations, 
benchmarking levels of risk is more problematic. One method to benchmark 
security risk is to assess the historic level of default against the minimum criteria 
used in the Council’s investment strategy.
The table below shows average defaults for differing periods of investment 
grade products for each Fitch/Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s long term rating 
category.

The Council’s minimum long term rating criteria is currently “AA-” for any 
investment greater than one year and “A” for any investment up to one year. 
The average expectation of default for a one, two or three year investment in a 
counterparty with a “AA-” long term rating would be approximately 0.05% of the 
total investment and the average expectation of default for a one year 
investment in a counterparty with a “A” long term rating would be 0.05% of the 
total investment.  This is only an average, any specific counterparty loss is likely 
to be higher, but these figures do act as a proxy benchmark for risk across the 
portfolio. 

Long term rating 1 year 2 years 3 years

AAA 0.00% 0.10% 0.18%

AA 
(includes AA- and AA+)

0.02% 0.04% 0.10%

A 0.05% 0.15% 0.28%

BBB 0.16% 0.44% 0.77%

BB 0.71% 2.00% 3.47%

B 2.90% 7.00% 10.67%

CCC 18.74% 26.47% 31.60%

Tudalen 423



2

The Council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the whole portfolio, when 
compared to these historic default tables, is:

 0.18% historic risk of default when compared to the whole 
portfolio.

In addition, the security benchmark for each individual year is:
1 year 2 years 3 years

Maximum 0.05% 0.10% 0.18%

These benchmarks are embodied in the criteria for selecting cash investment 
counterparties and these will be monitored and reported to Members in the 
Annual Treasury Management Report. As this data is collated, trends and 
analysis will be collected and reported.  Where a counterparty is not credit rated 
a proxy rating will be applied.  

2. Liquidity
This is defined as “having adequate, though not excessive cash resources, 
borrowing arrangements, overdrafts or standby facilities to enable it at all times 
to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the 
achievement of its business/service objectives” (Revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice). In respect of this area the Council seeks to 
maintain:

 Bank overdraft facility - £0.5m

 Liquid short term deposits of at least £10m available immediately on 
call

The availability of liquidity and the term risk in the portfolio can be benchmarked 
by the monitoring of the Weighted Average Life (WAL) of the portfolio – shorter 
WAL would generally embody less risk.  In this respect the proposed 
benchmark is to be used:

 WAL benchmark is expected to be 0.5 years, with a maximum of 
1 year.

3. Yield 
Benchmarks are currently widely used to assess investment performance. The 
local measure of the yield benchmark is:

 Investments – Return on Investments to outperform the average 
7 day LIBID rate

Security and liquidity benchmarks are intrinsic to the approved treasury 
strategy through the counterparty selection criteria and some of the prudential 
indicators.  Proposed benchmarks for the cash type investments are shown 
above and form the basis of reporting in this area. 

Tudalen 424



Appendix C
Schedule of Approved Counterparties for Lending 2019-2020

(as at 28th January 2019)
Standard 

Fitch Moody's and Poors Money Time 
Short Long Short Long Short Long Limit Limit
Term Term Term Term Term Term £'m years

Upper Limit F1 AA- P-1 Aa3 A-1 AA- 10 3

UK Banks  
HSBC Bank Plc F1+ AA- P-1 Aa3 A-1+ AA- 10 3

Middle Limit F1 A P-1 A2 A-1 A 7 1

UK Banks  
Banco Santander Central Hispano Group
- Santander UK Plc F1 A+ P-1 Aa3 A-1 A 7 1

Barclays Bank F1 A+ P-1 A2 A-1 A 7 1

Lloyds Banking Group
- Bank of Scotland Plc F1 A+ P-1 Aa3 A-1 A+ 7 1
- Lloyds Bank F1 A+ P-1 Aa3 A-1 A+ 7 1

UK Building Societies
Nationwide F1 A P-1 Aa3 A-1 A 7 1

UK Banks Part Nationalised
Royal Bank of Scotland Group
- National Westminster Bank Plc 7 1
- Royal Bank of Scotland Plc 7 1

Council's Banker 3 1 day

Other Institution Limits
Local Authorities 
Any One Local Authority (including police and fire authority) 5 1

Money Market Funds 
Any AAA Rated Money Market Fund CNAV 5 1

Money Market Funds 
Any AAA Rated Money Market Fund LVNAV 5 1

Debt Management Office 40

6 months (max
term specified

by DMO)

Tudalen 425



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix D

1. THE PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

The following indicators are based on the figures put forward within the 
Capital and Revenue Plans set out in this report.

1.1. Affordability

1.1.1. Estimates of ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 
long term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue 
stream.

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22 
Estimate

Non-HRA   5.11%   5.92% 6.33%
HRA (inclusive of 
settlement figure)

32.75% 33.60% 34.24%

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report. These figures are however subject to change 
as and when the final funding approvals come through from the Welsh 
Government. Updates will be provided if these figures require amendment.

The indicators show the proportion of income taken up by capital financing 
costs. Indicative Aggregate External Finance (AEF) for 2020/2021 is a 1% 
decrease on 2019/2020 and for 2021/22 a 1% estimated decrease on 
2020/2021. 

1.2. Prudence

1.2.1. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
This prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR). The CFR is the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not 
yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a 
measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need. The capital expenditure 
above, which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.  

The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:

£m 2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

Non-HRA 296 312 311
HRA 166 187 205
HRAS* 73 71 70
TOTAL 535 570 586

*Housing Revenue Account Subsidy Buyout of £79m in April 2015. Tudalen 427



1.2.2. The Gross Borrowing and Capital Financing Requirement indicator

The control mechanism to limit external debt.

Estimated gross borrowing for the four years starting with the last full year 
(2017/18) must not exceed the CFR in the medium term, but can in the short 
term due to cash flows.

Ensures borrowing is only for approved capital purposes.

The Director of Corporate Services reports that the authority complied with 
this requirement in 2017/18 and does not envisage difficulties for the future. 
This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the 
proposals in the budget report.

Details of Gross Borrowing:

£m 2017/18 
Actual

2018/19
Estimate

2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

Debt at 1st April 388 400 416 486 549
Expected Change 
in Debt

12 16 70 63 37

Gross debt at 31st 
March

400 416 486 549 586

CFR 484 487 535 570 586
Under / (Over) 
borrowing

84 71 49 21 0

1.2.3. External Debt

The Authorised Limit and the Operational Boundary: 

The Authorised Limit prudential indicator represents a control on the overall level 
of borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, 
and this limit needs to be set or revised by full Council. It reflects the level of 
external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is 
not sustainable in the longer term. This is the statutory limit determined under 
section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003. The Government retains an 
option to control either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific 
council, although no control has yet been exercised.

Tudalen 428



£m 2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

Borrowing 587.5 626.5 643.5
Other Long-
Term Liabilities 0.5 0.5 0.5

Total 588.0 627.0 644.0
  

The Operational Boundary for external debt is based on the same estimates 
as the authorised limit, but without the additional headroom for unusual and 
unexpected cash movements, and equates to the level of projected external 
debt. This is clearly subject to the timing of borrowing decisions.

£m 2019/20
Estimate

2020/21
Estimate

2021/22
Estimate

Borrowing 534.9 569.9 585.9
Other Long-
Term Liabilities 0.1 0.1 0.1

Total 535.0 570.0 586.0

  The Council is asked to approve both the Authorised Limit and the                 
Operational Boundary shown above.

1.2.4. Actual External Debt

The Council’s actual external debt at 31st March 2018 was £400m. The actual 
external debt is not directly comparable to the authorised limit and operational 
boundary because the actual external debt reflects the position at a point in 
time.

It is recommended that the above Prudential Indicators are adopted and 
that the Director of Corporate Services is given delegated authority by 
Council to change the balance between borrowing and other long-term 
liabilities.

Other long-term liabilities are other credit arrangements, which are, in 
the main, finance leases.

Tudalen 429



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix E

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP) STATEMENT

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital spend 
each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue provision – MRP), 
although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary 
revenue provision – VRP).

Welsh Government regulations were issued with effect from 1st April 2010 which require the 
full Council to approve a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement in advance each 
year. A variety of options were provided to councils to replace the existing Regulations, as 
long as there is a prudent provision.

Council have already approved the following approaches for calculating MRP:

Supported Borrowing and Capital Expenditure
Based on CFR 
The calculation is based on 4% of the opening Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) each 
year.
Supported borrowing and expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008, as at 31st March 2016 
- to be charged to revenue over 40 years (2.5% straight line basis).

Unsupported Borrowing 
Asset Life Method
The future borrowing value of unsupported borrowing is to be charged to revenue over 40 
years or by the estimated economic life of the asset if shorter, please see below.

Capital Expenditure on the Modernising Education Programme (MEP) and Local 
Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) 21st Century Schools is classed as Unsupported 
Borrowing. It is estimated that asset lives within these programmes are 30 years and this is 
the period that will be used to determine the MRP.

Asset lives within the Fleet Programme range from 1 to 10 years, these are the periods
that will be used to determine the MRP.

Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) Highways. It is estimated that asset lives 
within this programme are 20 years and this is the period that will be used to determine the 
MRP.

Housing Revenue Account
The calculation is based on 2% of the opening Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) each 
year.

Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement for 2019/2020:
For Supported and Unsupported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will continue to 
follow the approaches above.

Tudalen 431



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

Dydd Llun, 21 Ionawr 2019

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd E. Dole (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: 
C.A. Campbell, G. Davies, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, P. Hughes-Griffiths, 
D.M. Jenkins and L.M. Stephens.

Hefyd yn bresennol:
Y Cynghorwyr: D.M. Cundy and A.G. Morgan.

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
M. James, Prif Weithredwr
J. Morgan, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedau
C. Moore, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
Mrs R. Mullen, Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Phlant
W. Walters, Cyarfwyddwr Adfywio a Pholisi
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith
D. Hockenhull, Rheolwr y y Cyfryngau a Marchnata
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
E. Bryer, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Siambr, Neuadd y Sir - 10.00  - 10.25 y.b

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB.

Cafwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd J. Tremlett. 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.

Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol. 

3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y BWRDD 
GWEITHREDOL A GYNHALWYD AR Y 17EG RHAGFYR 2018.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol a gynhaliwyd ar 17 Rhagfyr 2018, gan eu bod yn gywir. 

4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBYDD GAN AELODAU.

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau â rhybudd wedi cael eu 
cyflwyno gan yr Aelodau. 

5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD.

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y 
cyhoedd. 

Tudalen 433

Eitem Rhif  10.1



6. GWASANAETHAU CYMDEITHASOL A DEDDF (CYMRU) LLES 2014 - POLISI 
A DIWYGIADAU GWEITHDREFN I GODI TÂL AM WASANAETHAU I 
OEDOLION.

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd fod yr eitem hon wedi ei thynnu oddi ar yr agenda. 

7. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW Y CYNGOR.

Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb refeniw a oedd yn 
rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am sefyllfa'r gyllideb fel yr oedd ar 30 Hydref 2018.

Yn gyffredinol, roedd yr adroddiad yn rhagweld y byddai gorwariant o £1,255k ar 
gyllideb refeniw net yr Awdurdod ac y byddai gorwariant o £2,760k gan yr 
adrannau.  Roedd y pwysau mwyaf sylweddol yn yr Adran Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Plant, ac mae angen i'r Adran roi sylw beirniadol i'r sefyllfa a 
ragwelir ar hyn o bryd. 

Mynegwyd pryderon ynghylch y ffaith nad yw'r Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol wedi cyfrannu'n 
llawn at y cytundebau teiran ar gyfer lleoliadau yn Uned Breswyl y Garreg Lwyd ac 
ystyriwyd y byddai angen atgoffa'r Bwrdd am ei gyfrifoldeb. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod yr adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb yn cael 
ei dderbyn. 
 

8. DIWEDDARU RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2018-19.

Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi'r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf am wariant y Rhaglen Gyfalaf yn erbyn cyllideb 2018/19, fel yr oedd 
ar 31 Hydref 2018.

Nodwyd y rhagwelwyd gwariant net o £52,244k o gymharu â chyllideb net 
weithredol o £43,878k gan roi £-1,634k o amrywiant. 

Roedd y gyllideb net wedi'i hailbroffilio gan £1.887 miliwn pellach o 2018/19 i'r 
blynyddoedd sydd i ddod er mwyn ystyried y wybodaeth a ddiweddarwyd yn y 
proffil gwariant a chafodd y llithriad yn y gyllideb o 2017/18 ei gynnwys hefyd. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb a oedd yn 
rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y rhaglen gyfalaf, fel y manylir yn Atodiad 
A a B, yn cael ei dderbyn. 
 

9. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN FATER BRYS 
YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972.

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw eitemau eraill o fusnes brys.

10. GORCHYMYN I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
fel y'i diwygiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) 

Tudalen 434



(Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007, orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod tra oedd yr 
eitem ganlynol yn cael ei hystyried, gan fod yr adroddiad yn cynnwys 
gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym Mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 
12A i'r Ddeddf.

11. CYMORTH ARIANNOL I YMDDIRIEDOLAETH ADFYWIO TREFTADAETH SIR 
GAR/ BLAS LLANELLY.

Yn sgil gweithredu'r prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD YN 
UNFRYDOL, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y cyfeiriwyd ati yng Nghofnod 10 uchod, 
ystyried y mater hwn yn breifat gan orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod, 
gan y byddai'r drafodaeth yn datgelu gwybodaeth eithriedig ynghylch 
materion ariannol neu faterion busnes unrhyw unigolyn penodol (gan 
gynnwys yr Awdurdod oedd yn meddu ar y wybodaeth honno).

[Nodyn – Nid oedd C Moore, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol, yn 
bresennol yn y cyfarfod ar gyfer yr eitem hon.]

Bu'r Bwrdd yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn manylu ar yr achos dros gymorth 
ariannol parhaus ar gyfer prosiect Ymddiriedolaeth Adfywio Treftadaeth Sir 
Gaerfyrddin/Plas Llanelly. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo'r argymhelliad o becyn 
cymorth ar gyfer Ymddiriedolaeth Adfywio Treftadaeth Sir Gaerfyrddin/Plas 
Llanelly o hyd at £60k y flwyddyn am y 2 flynedd nesaf yn amodol ar 
adolygiad o'r rhagolygon ariannol cyn blwyddyn 2. 

________________________ __________________
CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

Tudalen 435



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

Dydd Llun, 4 Chwefror 2019

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd E. Dole (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: 
C.A. Campbell, G. Davies, E. Dole, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, P. Hughes-
Griffiths, D.M. Jenkins, L.M. Stephens and J. Tremlett

Hefyd yn bresennol:
Y Cynghorwyr: D.M. Cundy and J.G. Prosser

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
M. James, Prif Weithredwr
J. Morgan, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedau
C. Moore, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
Mrs R. Mullen, Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Phlant
W. Walters, Cyarfwyddwr Adfywio a Pholisi
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith
J. Morgan, Pennaeth Cartrefi a Chymunedau Mwy Diogel
D. Hockenhull, Rheolwr y y Cyfryngau a Marchnata
L Morris, Senior Press Officer
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
L. Jenkins, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Siambr, Neuadd y Sir - 10.00  - 11.10 am

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

Ni chafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.

Y cynghorydd Rhif y Cofnod Math o Fuddiant
H.A.L. Evans 8 - Cyllideb y Cyfrif 

Refeniw Tai 2019/20 
tan 2021/22 a Phennu 
Rhenti Tai ar gyfer 
2019/20

Ei chwaer yw Prif 
Weithredwr cymdeithas 
tai leol

H.A.L. Evans 11 – Cartrefi Croeso 
Cyfyngedig – Gofyniad 
Ariannu

Ei chwaer yw Prif 
Weithredwr cymdeithas 
tai leol

Wendy Walters - 
Cyfarwyddwr Adfywio a 
Pholisi

11 – Cartrefi Croeso 
Cyfyngedig – Gofyniad 
Ariannu

Cyfarwyddwr Cartrefi 
Croeso

Jake Morgan - 
Cyfarwyddwr 
Cymunedau

11 – Cartrefi Croeso 
Cyfyngedig – Gofyniad 
Ariannu 

Cyfarwyddwr Cartrefi 
Croeso

Tudalen 437

Eitem Rhif  10.2



3. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y BWRDD 
GWEITHREDOL A GYNHALWYD AR Y 21AIN IONAWR 2019

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Ionawr 2019 yn gofnod cywir.

4. CWESTIYNAU Â RHYBYDD GAN AELODAU

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau â rhybudd wedi cael eu cyflwyno 
gan yr Aelodau.

5. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd.

6. STRATEGAETH Y GYLLIDEB REFENIW 2019/20 - 2021/22

Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn dwyn ynghyd y cynigion 
diweddaraf ynghylch Cyllideb Refeniw 2019/2020 ac yn darparu'r ffigurau 
mynegiannol ar gyfer blynyddoedd ariannol 2020/2021 a 2021/2022. Hefyd roedd 
yr adroddiad yn crynhoi'r sefyllfa ddiweddaraf o ran y gyllideb gan roi diweddariad 
ynghylch dilysu'r gyllideb, y gwasgfeydd o ran gwariant, setliad terfynol 
Llywodraeth Cymru, a'r ymatebion i'r ymgynghoriad ynghylch y gyllideb. 

Rhoddodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau amlinelliad i'r Bwrdd o 
nifer o ffactorau sy'n dylanwadu ar y gyllideb, gan gynnwys y setliad terfynol a 
gafwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar 19 Rhagfyr 2018 a oedd yn darparu cyllid 
ychwanegol o gymharu â'r setliad dros dro a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Hydref 2018. O 
ganlyniad i'r cyllid ychwanegol hwnnw, bu'n bosibl ailedrych ar rai o gynigion 
cychwynnol y gyllideb ac ystyried opsiynau pellach gan gynnwys rhoi ystyriaeth i'r 
cynnig diweddaraf o godiad cyflog a chefnogi gwasanaethau oedd yn cael eu 
harwain gan y galw ac a wynebai bwysau parhaus am ddarparu gwasanaethau, 
megis Gofal Cymdeithasol. Er bod y setliad terfynol ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin yn 
ffigur ychydig yn well na'r setliad dros dro, roedd yn parhau i fod yn gyllideb heriol 
iawn ac yn gyfystyr â lleihad mewn cyllid mewn termau go iawn o ystyried 
chwyddiant a symudiadau eraill mewn prisiau. Ymhellach, ar gyfer blwyddyn yn 
unig yr oedd Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gallu darparu ffigurau ar lefel Awdurdod, a 
oedd yn cyfyngu ar y gallu i ragweld yn y tymor canolig o fewn y Cynllun Ariannol 
Tymor Canolig. Yn benodol, roedd rhaid i'r Awdurdod fod yn ymwybodol o 
Adolygiad Cynhwysfawr o Wariant Llywodraeth San Steffan a oedd i'w gynnal yn 
2019.

Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol fod manylion llawn y setliad wedi'u 
cynnwys yn yr adroddiad ond mai'r pwyntiau mwyaf trawiadol oedd bod cynnydd o 
0.2% wedi bod yn y cyllid ar gyfer Llywodraeth Leol ar sail Cymru gyfan, gyda Sir 
Gaerfyrddin yn cael setliad arian gwastad ar sail tebyg am debyg o gymharu â 
2018-19. Tra bod y setliad terfynol yn darparu £1.557m ychwanegol i'r Awdurdod o 
gymharu â'r setliad dros dro, roedd hefyd yn dod â chyfrifoldebau ychwanegol gan 
gynnwys newidiadau yn y cynllun rhyddhad ardrethi a chyllid i dalu am 
gymhwyster ychwanegol am brydau ysgol am ddim.

Cynghorwyd y Bwrdd Gweithredol hefyd, tra bod mwyafrif y grantiau penodol 
wedi'u cynnal ar werth niwtral yn ariannol, fod yr awdurdod, fel oedd yn 

Tudalen 438



nodweddiadol ar yr adeg hon o'r flwyddyn, yn dal i aros am gadarnhad am rai 
grantiau arwyddocaol a fyddai'n cefnogi cynllun y gyllideb yn benodol, gyda golwg 
ar wastraff ac ar gyllid chweched dosbarth. Yr hyn nad oedd yn nodweddiadol, 
fodd bynnag, oedd lefel yr ansicrwydd ynghylch cyllido pensiynau athrawon. Er 
mai'r arwyddion anffurfiol oedd y byddai'r cyllid yn cael ei gyflawni'n llawn, yn yr un 
modd ag y bwriadwyd yn Lloegr, roedd yr ansicrwydd ynghylch talu yng Nghymru 
yn peri risg arwyddocaol gyda golwg ar gyllideb 2019/20.
 
Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau fod Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol wedi gwneud nifer o addasiadau i rai o'r ffigurau o 
fewn y strategaeth fel sy'n arferol wrth i fwy o wybodaeth a gwybodaeth gliriach 
fod ar gael, gyda'r dilysiad cyfan presennol yn ychwanegu rhyw £11.3m i'r gyllideb. 
Roedd un o'r addasiadau hynny yn ymwneud â Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion i 
ddiwallu'r costau cynyddol y byddai'r Cyngor yn eu hwynebu o ganlyniad i 
ddifodiant Allied Health Care a'r penderfyniad yn dilyn hynny i ddod â'r 
gwasanaeth yn fewnol. Er bod hynny wedi'i gwblhau gan amharu cyn lleied â 
phosibl ar y defnyddwyr gwasanaeth, byddai angen i gyllideb 2019/20 ddarparu ar 
gyfer cysoni telerau ac amodau'r gweithwyr, gan gynnwys graddfeydd cyflog. 

Fel oedd yn wir yn 2018/19, roedd y dilysiad mwyaf arwyddocaol ar gyfer cyllideb 
2019/20 yn ymwneud â'r cynnig o godiad cyflog a wnaed gan y corff cyd-drafod ar 
gyfer gweithwyr, a fyddai'n darparu codiad cyflog o 2% ynghyd â chyflwyno colofn 
gyflogau newydd o fis Ebrill 2019 a fyddai'n cysoni rhai o bwyntiau presennol y 
golofn gyflogau ac yn pontio rhai o'r bylchau digyswllt rhwng pwyntiau cyflog. Ar 
gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin, byddai'r staff a oedd ar y cyflogau isaf, a oedd eisoes yn 
derbyn cyflog byw y Living Wage Foundation, yn derbyn cynnydd o 4.9%. Fodd 
bynnag, nodwyd nad oedd y cynnig cyflog yn berthnasol i athrawon, a oedd yn 
destun trefniadau cyflog cenedlaethol ar wahân gyda chynnydd o hyd at 3.5% o 
gymharu â mis Medi 2018 a chodiad blynyddol o 2% yn y blynyddoedd i ddod.
 
Tynnodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau sylw'r Bwrdd hefyd at 
gynigion cyllideb y Cyngor, fel ym mis Tachwedd 2018, a oedd yn rhagdybio 
setliad niwtral yn ariannol ar gyfer ysgolion. Dywedodd y byddai'r cynigion 
presennol, o ganlyniad i gymorth ychwanegol gan Lywodraeth Cymru a 
dderbyniwyd fel rhan o'r setliad, nid yn unig yn ychwanegu gwerth £1.8m o gyllid 
grant i ysgolion ond hefyd £0.75m pellach o gyllid craidd, a fyddai'n golygu bod 
cyfanswm y cynnydd yn y gyllideb dros £2.57m.

Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau fod y swm o £528k ar 
gael i wneud rhai addasiadau hollbwysig i strategaeth y gyllideb, yng ngoleuni'r 
ffaith fod yr Awdurdod wedi elwa ar gael setliad mwy cadarnhaol na'r hyn a 
ragwelwyd yn wreiddiol ac ar ôl gwneud rhai newidiadau o ran dilysu. Yn unol â 
hynny, cynigiwyd gwneud y newidiadau canlynol i rai o gynigion yr adroddiad yn 
ymwneud â'r gyllideb ac arbedion effeithlonrwydd:- 

 Dileu'r lleihad yn y gyllideb o £32k ar gyfer graeanu yn ystod y gaeaf  
 Bod £186k o'r gyllideb Ysgubo Ffyrdd Gwledig yn cael ei ailsefydlu i liniaru 

yn erbyn effeithiau mwyaf llym y lleihad arfaethedig
 Gohirio'r toriadau arfaethedig i'r Gwasanaethau Cymorth Ieuenctid a 

Seicoleg Addysg am flwyddyn i gydnabod yr ymateb negyddol a gafwyd 
gan y cyhoedd a hefyd y pryderon a godwyd gan gynghorwyr yn ystod 
sesiynau seminar yr aelodau;

Tudalen 439



 Wrth gydnabod y pwysau a roddir ar y gwasanaeth meysydd parcio bod 
£160k ychwanegol yn cael ei ddarparu i ganiatáu mwy o hyblygrwydd yn y 
gwasanaeth ac i gyfyngu ar unrhyw gynnydd mewn taliadau parcio ledled 
Sir Gaerfyrddin;

 Bod yr Adran Cymunedau, dros y flwyddyn nesaf, yn ailedrych ar y cynnig i 
gau Canolfan Addysg Awyr Agored Pentywyn ac yn ceisio dod o hyd i 
newid yn y modd y caiff y gwasanaeth ei ddarparu, a fyddai'n caniatáu i'r 
cyfleuster barhau i weithredu a hynny gan gyflawni'r lleihad mewn cost a 
gynigir;

 Bod prisiau prydau ysgol yn cael eu rhewi ar gyfer 2019/20

Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol hefyd at y teimladau negyddol a gafwyd 
i'r lleihad yn y gyllideb ar gyfer gosod wyneb newydd ar briffyrdd a dywedodd fod y 
grant ychwanegol o £1.5m y flwyddyn am dair blynedd a sicrhawyd gan y Cyngor, 
[fel y manylir yn y rhaglen gyfalaf bum mlynedd] yn mwy na gwneud iawn am y 
lleihad arfaethedig yn y gyllideb refeniw.

Wrth grynhoi, argymhellodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol fod y cynnydd yn y 
Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer 2019/20 yn cael ei bennu yn 4.89%, i alluogi'r Cyngor i 
weithredu'r strategaeth ond gan ystyried y newidiadau uchod ar yr un pryd.

Cyfeiriwyd at gynnig effeithlonrwydd blwyddyn 2 i newid amlder cyfarfodydd y 
Cyngor o fod yn rhai misol i fod yn rhai chwarterol. Gan nad oedd y cynnig wedi 
cael cefnogaeth gan yr aelodau'n gyffredinol, awgrymwyd ei fod yn cael ei dynnu'n 
ôl a bod llwybrau eraill yn cael eu harchwilio er mwyn dod o hyd i ffyrdd amgen o 
weithio.

Cyfeiriwyd hefyd at y cynnig effeithlonrwydd ar gyfer Cludiant Ysgol Ôl-16 lle 
awgrymwyd bod yr arbedion effeithlonrwydd arfaethedig ar gyfer blynyddoedd 2 a 
3 yn cael eu tynnu'n ôl er mwyn gallu adolygu'r defnydd a wneir o'r gwasanaeth, 
yn enwedig gyda golwg ar seddi sbâr/segur honedig. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR:-

6.1 bod Strategaeth y Gyllideb am 2019/20 yn cael ei 
chymeradwyo yn amodol ar y newidiadau a'r cynigion y 
manylwyd arnynt uchod;

6.2 Bod y Dreth Gyngor Band D am 2019/20 i’w gosod ar 
£1,255.17 (cynnydd o 4.89% ar gyfer 2019-2020);

6.3 Bod y dyraniad o £528k o gyllid cylchol a oedd ar gael yn 
cael ei ddyrannu, fel y manylir uchod

6.4 bod y cynllun ariannol tymor canolig amodol yn cael ei 
gymeradwyo yn sylfaen i gynllunio ar gyfer y blynyddoedd 
sydd i ddod.

6.5 Bod y cynigion effeithlonrwydd i newid amlder cyfarfodydd y 
Cyngor o fod yn rhai misol i fod yn rhai chwarterol [blwyddyn 
2] a Chludiant Ysgol Ôl-16 [blynyddoedd 2 a 3] yn cael eu 
tynnu'n ôl 

7. RHAGLEN GYFALAF PUM MLYNEDD (CRONFA'R CYNGOR) - 2019/20 - 
2023/24

Tudalen 440



Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad a oedd yn dwyn ynghyd y cynigion 
diweddaraf am Raglen Gyfalaf Bum Mlynedd (Cronfa'r Cyngor) 2019/20 hyd at 
2023/2024. Roedd yr adroddiad yn cymryd i ystyriaeth yr ymgynghoriad a 
gynhaliwyd a'r goblygiadau refeniw oedd yn deillio o'r rhaglen gyfalaf.

Nododd y Bwrdd mai £104.708m oedd gwariant gros arfaethedig y rhaglen gyfalaf 
am 2019/20. Y bwriad oedd i'r Cyngor Sir gyllido £59.109m o'r rhaglen drwy 
ddefnyddio benthyciadau, derbyniadau cyfalaf, arian wrth gefn a'r grant cyfalaf 
cyffredinol a bod y £45.599m oedd yn weddill yn dod o ffynonellau allanol. 
Dywedwyd wrth y Bwrdd y rhagwelid y byddai'r rhaglen gyfalaf yn cael ei chyllido'n 
llawn dros y cyfnod o bum mlynedd o 2019/20 drwodd i 2023/24. 

Hysbysodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau y Bwrdd y byddai'r 
rhaglen dreigl bum mlynedd yn gwireddu buddsoddiad o bron £261m i gyd 
(amcangyfrifwyd y byddai cyllid y Cyngor Sir yn £133m a £128m o gyllid allanol). 
Fodd bynnag, yn yr un modd â'r setliad refeniw, nid oedd yr awdurdod wedi cael 
unrhyw ragamcanion oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru gyda golwg ar gyllid cyfalaf 
cyffredinol y tu hwnt i 2019/10. O ganlyniad, roedd y rhaglen yn seiliedig ar fod 
benthyca â chymorth, a grant cyffredinol, y blynyddoedd i ddod ar yr un lefel ag y 
byddent yn 2019/20. Fodd bynnag, roedd grant cyfalaf ychwanegol at ddibenion 
cyffredinol wedi'i ddarparu gan Lywodraeth Cymru dros gyfnod o dair blynedd o 
2018/19 i 2020/21 a oedd yn dod i ryw £6.6m, a oedd wedi'i gynnwys o fewn y 
rhaglen cyfalaf 5 mlynedd.

Nododd y Bwrdd Gweithredol fod nifer o gynlluniau ychwanegol newydd wedi'u 
cynnwys fel rhan o'r rhaglen, er enghraifft:

 Yr Adran Cymunedau - roedd yna gyllid newydd ar gyfer Canolfan 
Hamdden Dyffryn Aman ynghyd â pharhau i gefnogi tai'r sector preifat yn 
2023/24 ar gyfer Grant Cyfleusterau i'r Anabl

 Adran yr Amgylchedd - parhau i gefnogi gwelliannau priffyrdd, cynnal a 
chadw pontydd a chynlluniau diogelwch ffyrdd i mewn i 2023/24 a hefyd 
Llwybr Dyffryn Tywi yn 2019/20. Yn ogystal, o ganlyniad i gyllid 
ychwanegol gan Lywodraeth Cymru, gwnaed cynnydd o £1.5m 
ychwanegol y flwyddyn am dair blynedd i'r gwariant a glustnodwyd ar gyfer 
adnewyddu ffyrdd.

 Roedd y Rhaglen Moderneiddio Addysg wedi cael ei diwygio ar gyfer 
blynyddoedd 2019/20 i 2023/24, ac roedd cyllidebau wedi'u hail-broffilio a 
rhai cynlluniau newydd wedi'u cyflwyno gan gynnwys Ysgolion Cymraeg 
Cydweli, yr Hendy, Llandeilo a'r ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg a dwy ffrwd yn 
Rhydaman. Bu hyn yn bosibl o ganlyniad i gyhoeddiad Llywodraeth Cymru 
yn ddiweddar ei bod yn cymeradwyo rhaglen Band B y Cyngor a fyddai'n 
rhedeg tan 2024, a'r prif newid oedd cynyddu'r gyfradd ymyrryd o 50% i 
65% ar gyfer ysgolion ac o 50% i 75% ar gyfer ysgolion arbennig. Roedd y 
cynnydd hwnnw wedi rhoi cyfle i'r awdurdod ddarparu rhagor o ysgolion o 
fewn y rhaglen Band B gwerth £129.5m.

 Mae cyllidebau Adfywio a'r Prif Weithredwr bellach yn cynnwys cynlluniau'r 
Fargen Ddinesig, gan gynnwys y Pentref Llesiant a'r Egin. Roedd Canolfan 
Hamdden arfaethedig Llanelli a'r adolygiad o Ardal Llanelli hefyd wedi'u 
nodi fel cydran allweddol o fewn datblygiad arfaethedig y Pentref Llesiant. 
Roedd yna hefyd gefnogaeth barhaus ar gyfer Cronfa Prosiectau'r 
Strategaeth Drawsnewid o fewn yr adran Adfywio ar gyfer 2023/24 a oedd 
â'r potensial o gael cyllid allanol fel arian cyfatebol i gyllideb y Cyngor.

Tudalen 441



PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR

7.1 bod y cyllid a'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf Bum Mlynedd, fel y'u nodwyd yn 
Atodiad B yr adroddiad, gyda 2019/20 yn gyllideb bendant a 
chyllidebau 2020/21 i 2023/24 yn gyllidebau amhendant/dangosol 
yn cael eu cymeradwyo;

7.2 bod y rhaglen yn cael ei hadolygu, yn ôl yr arfer, oni lwyddir i 
gael y cyllid disgwyliedig gan gyrff allanol neu'r Cyngor Sir.

7.3 bod y Strategaeth Gyfalaf, fel y manylir arni yn Atodiad C, yn cael 
ei chymeradwyo.

8. CYFRIF CYLLIDEB REFENIW TAI 2019/20 - 2020/21 A LEFELAU RHENTI TAI 
2021/22 - REFENIW A CHYFALAF

(NODER: Roedd y Cynghorydd H.A.L. Evans wedi datgan buddiant yn yr eitem 
hon yn gynharach).

Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad a baratowyd gan Gyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol, ar y cyd â swyddogion o'r Adran Cymunedau a oedd 
yn dod ynghyd â'r cynigion diweddaraf ar gyfer Cyllidebau Refeniw a Chyfalaf y 
Cyfrif Refeniw Tai am 2019/20 i 2021/22. Nodwyd bod yr adroddiad wedi cael ei 
ystyried a'i gymeradwyo gan y Pwyllgor Craffu – Cymunedau yn ei gyfarfod ar 23 
Ionawr 2018, fel rhan o'r broses ymgynghori ynghylch y gyllideb.

Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau fod yr adroddiad wedi 
cael ei baratoi gan adlewyrchu'r cynigion diweddaraf a oedd yn rhan o Gynllun 
Busnes y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai, sef y prif gyfrwng cynllunio ariannol ar gyfer darparu 
Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a Mwy (STSG+) ar gyfer y dyfodol. Nodwyd bod y 
buddsoddiad arfaethedig yn y cynllun busnes presennol wedi cyflawni Safon Tai 
Sir Gaerfyrddin erbyn 2015 (i'r cartrefi hynny lle'r oedd tenantiaid wedi cytuno i 
gael y gwaith wedi'i wneud), wedi darparu'r buddsoddiad i gynnal Safon Tai Sir 
Gaerfyrddin a Mwy, ac wedi parhau i fuddsoddi yn Ymrwymiad i Dai Fforddiadwy'r 
Cyngor.

Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau fod y buddsoddiad 
cyfalaf o £231m yn y cynllun busnes presennol wedi cyflawni Safon Tai Sir 
Gaerfyrddin, a bod cyllideb bellach wedi'i datblygu i sicrhau bod y cyllid priodol yn 
cael ei ddyrannu er mwyn cynnal Safon Tai Sir Gaerfyrddin a Mwy yn achos yr holl 
eiddo wrth edrych tua'r dyfodol. Rhagwelid y byddai tua £45m yn cael ei wario yn 
cynnal a chadw'r stoc a'i huwchraddio dros y tair blynedd nesaf. Roedd y gyllideb 
hefyd yn darparu £44m o gyllid dros y tair blynedd nesaf i gefnogi Rhaglen Tai 
Fforddiadwy'r Cyngor, a fyddai'n hwyluso cynnydd yng nghyflenwad y tai 
fforddiadwy ar hyd a lled y Sir drwy wahanol atebion gan gynnwys y rhaglen 
adeiladu tai newydd a'r cynllun prynu'n ôl. Byddai'r Cyngor hefyd yn ymgymryd â'r 
rhaglen adeiladu tai newydd drwy gyfrwng ei raglen gyfalaf ei hun a thrwy'r Cwmni 
Tai newydd - Cartrefi Croeso.

O ran pennu Rhenti Tai, atgoffwyd y Bwrdd gan yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Adnoddau fod yr Awdurdod wedi mabwysiadu Polisi Cysoni Rhent Tai 
Cymdeithasol Llywodraeth Cymru o'r blaen, a olygai i bob pwrpas bod unrhyw 
gynnydd arfaethedig mewn rhent yn cael ei ragnodi gan ganllawiau Llywodraeth 
Cymru a bod hyn yn dosbarthu rhenti i denantiaid y sector cymdeithasol mewn 
modd tecach.

Tudalen 442



Daeth y polisi hwn i ben yn 2018/19 a chyflwynwyd polisi interim am flwyddyn ar 
gyfer 2019/20, gan ragweld y byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn cyflwyno polisi 
newydd i'w weithredu yn 2020/21. Roedd y polisi interim hwnnw'n caniatáu i 
awdurdodau lleol o fewn eu band rhent targed gynyddu rhent yn ôl CPI yn unig. 
Gan fod Sir Gaerfyrddin ar y pryd o fewn y band rhent targed o ychydig, 
argymhelliad yr adroddiad cyfredol oedd cynnydd o 2.4% ar draws pob eiddo.

Fodd bynnag, ar 30 Ionawr 2019, roedd Llywodraeth Cymru wedi hysbysu 
awdurdodau lleol o ddiwygiad i'r polisi interim a oedd yn rhoi hyblygrwydd i 
awdurdodau lleol â rhent cyfartalog o fewn y Band Rhent Targed gynyddu rhent 
‘hyd at £2 yr wythnos’, yn amodol ar sicrhau nad oedd y cynnydd cyfan mewn 
rhent ar gyfer eu hanghenion cyffredinol a'u stoc tai gwarchod yn fwy na 2.4% ac 
na fyddai unrhyw denant unigol yn derbyn cynnydd mewn rhent oedd yn fwy na'r 
codiad polisi y cytunwyd arno o 2.4% ynghyd â'r cynnydd o £2.00.

Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau fod y newid yn 
safbwynt Llywodraeth Cymru wedi rhoi cyfle i'r awdurdod gyflawni ei ymrwymiad 
blaenorol i denantiaid trwy weithredu'r polisi cysoni a sefydlu lefel decach o rent i'w 
holl denantiaid. O ganlyniad, cynigiwyd bod argymhelliad 1, o fewn yr adroddiad a 
gyflwynwyd i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol y diwrnod hwnnw, yn cael ei newid i:-

“1. Cynyddu'r rhent tai cyfartalog yn unol â Pholisi Rhenti Tai Cymdeithasol Interim 
Llywodraeth Cymru (diwygiwyd ar 30 Ionawr).

     
a. Bydd cynnydd o 1.92% yn digwydd i renti eiddo sydd ar y rhenti targed.
b. Caiff y rhenti hynny sy'n uwch na'r targed eu rhewi hyd nes eu bod yn unol 

â'r rhent targed.
c. Gwneir cynnydd o 1.92% i'r rhenti hynny sydd yn is na'r rhent targed a 

chânt eu cynyddu £1 yr wythnos ar y mwyaf.
Bydd hyn yn cynhyrchu cynnydd o 2.4% neu £2.05 mewn rhent tai cyfartalog a 
bydd yn darparu'r un gwerth casglu cyffredinol i'r Cyfrif Tai.”

Dywedodd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau, pe bai'r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol yn cymeradwyo'r argymhelliad diwygiedig, y byddai'n cael ei adrodd 
wrth y Pwyllgor Craffu - Cymunedau er mwyn ymgynghori yn ei gylch, gydag 
unrhyw ymateb yn hynny o beth yn cael ei adrodd yn uniongyrchol wrth y Cyngor 
ar 20 Chwefror.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR:-

8.1 bod y rhent tai cyfartalog yn cael ei gynyddu yn unol â Pholisi 
Rhenti Tai Cymdeithasol Llywodraeth Cymru (diwygiwyd 30 
Ionawr) h.y.:-

 Bod cynnydd o 1.92% yn cael ei wneud i renti eiddo sydd 
ar y targed

 Bydd y rhenti hynny sy'n uwch na'r targed yn cael eu 
rhewi hyd nes eu bod yn unol â'r targed

 Bod cynnydd o 1.92% yn cael ei wneud i'r rhenti hynny 
sydd yn is na'r rhent targed a'u bod yn cael eu cynyddu 
£1 yr wythnos ar y mwyaf

gan felly gynhyrchu cynnydd o 2.4% neu £2.05 mewn rhent tai 
cyfartalog a bydd yn darparu'r un gwerth casglu rhent 
cyffredinol i'r Cyfrif Tai.

Tudalen 443



8.2 Cadw rhent garejis yn £9.00 yr wythnos a sylfeini garejis yn 
£2.25 yr wythnos;

8.3 Rhoi'r polisi ynghylch taliadau am wasanaethau ar waith er 
mwyn sicrhau bod y tenantiaid a oedd yn cael gwasanaethau 
penodol yn talu am y gwasanaethau hynny;

8.4 Cynyddu'r taliadau am ddefnyddio gwaith trin carthffosiaeth y 
Cyngor, yn unol â'r cynnydd mewn rhenti;

8.5 Cymeradwyo Cyllideb y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai ar gyfer 2019/20 
(cyllidebau dangosol yw rhai 2020/21 a 2021/22), fel y nodwyd 
yn Atodiad B yr adroddiad.

8.6 Bod y Rhaglen Gyfalaf arfaethedig a'r cyllido perthnasol ar 
gyfer 2019/20, a'r gwariant mynegiannol a bennwyd ar gyfer y 
blynyddoedd i ddod o 2020/21 i 2021/22, fel y'u nodwyd yn 
Atodiad B yr adroddiad, yn cael eu cymeradwyo.

9. SAFON TAI SIR GAERFYRDDIN A MWY (STSG+) CYNLLUN BUSNES 2019–22

The Executive Board considered the Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus 
(CHS+) Business Plan 2019-2022 plan the purpose of which was to:

 explain the vision and detail of maintaining and improving the 
Carmarthenshire Homes Standard Plus over the next three years, and what 
it means for tenants;

 outline how we can deliver transformational change and investment, and 
set even more ambitious affordable homes targets for the future;

 confirm the financial profile, based on current assumptions, for the delivery 
of the CHS+ over the next three years; and

 produce a business plan for the annual application to Welsh Government 
for Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) for 2019/20, equating to £6.1m.

The Executive Board Member for Housing advised that if the report and its 
recommendations were to be adopted, it would result in some £45m being spent 
over the next three years to maintain tenant homes. It would also allow the 
submission of an application to the Welsh Government for a £6.1 million Major 
Repair Allowance for 2019/20. The Executive Board Member outlined a plan for 
2019 to include – 

- £1million for building work on existing estates
- £2 million to bring empty council houses back to use as soon as possible 

and to the CHS+ standard
- £1.5 million to improve communal areas in Shelter Schemes
- £0.25 million for improvements in relation to fire safety

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL THAT:-

9.1 the ambitious vision of the CHS+ and the financial and delivery 
programme over the next three years be confirmed; 

9.2 the submission of the plan to Welsh Government be confirmed.

10. POLISI RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS A STRATEGAETH  2019-2020

Atgoffwyd y Bwrdd Gweithredol fod y Cyngor, yn unol â gofynion Côd Ymarfer 
diwygiedig CIPFA ynghylch Rheoli'r Trysorlys, wedi cytuno i gynnal Polisi Rheoli'r 
Trysorlys a oedd yn manylu ar bolisïau ac amcanion gweithgareddau'r Awdurdod o 

Tudalen 444



ran Rheoli'r Trysorlys, a hefyd i gymeradwyo Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys yn 
flynyddol cyn dechrau'r flwyddyn ariannol yr oedd yn ymwneud â hi. Yn ogystal, 
dan ddarpariaethau Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2003, roedd yn ofynnol i'r Cyngor 
gymeradwyo Dangosyddion Rheoli'r Trysorlys ar gyfer y flwyddyn i ddod. 

Yn unol â'r gofynion uchod, rhoddodd y Bwrdd Gweithredol ystyriaeth i Bolisi a 
Strategaeth y Cyngor ynghylch Rheoli'r Trysorlys ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2019-
20 cyn eu rhoi gerbron y Cyngor yn ffurfiol ar gyfer eu mabwysiadu. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR:-

10.1 bod Polisi a Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys ar gyfer 2019-20 a'r 
argymhellion a nodwyd ynddynt yn cael eu cymeradwyo,

10.2 bod Dangosyddion Rheoli'r Trysorlys, y Dangosyddion 
Darbodaeth, y Datganiad ynghylch y Ddarpariaeth Isafswm 
Refeniw a'r argymhellion yn cael eu cymeradwyo.

11. CARTREFI CROESO CYFYNGEDIG GOFYNIAD CYLLIDO

(NODER:
1. Roedd y Cynghorydd H.A.L. Evans wedi datgan buddiant yn yr eitem hon 

yn gynharach;
2. Gan iddynt yn gynharach ddatgan buddiannau yn yr eitem hon, gadawodd 

Mrs W. Walters (Cyfarwyddwr Adfywio a Pholisi) a Mr J. Morgan 
(Cyfarwyddwr Cymunedau) y cyfarfod tra oedd y Bwrdd Gweithredol yn 
ystyried yr eitem.

Atgoffwyd y Bwrdd Gweithredol ei fod, yn ei gyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 4 Mehefin, 
wedi cytuno ar drefniadau ariannol ar gyfer Cartrefi Croeso Cyfyngedig er mwyn 
cynnal ei gostau o ran gweithredu a datblygu'r cynllun, ar y sail a nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad. Yn dilyn yr adroddiad hwnnw, bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried 
adroddiad a oedd yn cynnig sicrhau cyfleuster cyllido cyfunol priodol er mwyn 
caniatáu i Cartrefi Croeso Cyfyngedig ddechrau datblygu dau gynllun a bodloni'r 
trefniadau cyllido parhaus o ran costau gweithredu a chostau datblygu cynlluniau 
yn y dyfodol, yn ogystal â darparu ychydig wrth gefn i ddechrau cynlluniau yn y 
dyfodol sy'n cael eu nodi'n gynlluniau hyfyw.

Cyfeiriwyd at y trefniadau dirprwyo y dylid eu gwneud ar gyfer y Prif Weithredwr a 
Chyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol ac roedd cefnogaeth i'r farn y dylid 
newid paragraffau 5[d] a 5[f] yr adroddiad fel eu bod yn dweud y dylid dirprwyo 
gan ymgynghori â'r Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL ARGYMELL I'R CYNGOR BOD Y CYLLID 
CANLYNOL YN CAEL EI ROI I CARTREFI CROESO CYFYNGEDIG:-

11.1 Cyfleuster cyllido - uchafswm o £6m
11.2 Hyd y trefniant - 5 mlynedd. Roedd hyn yn seiliedig ar 

ddefnyddio'r benthyciad ar gyfer datblygiadau'r cynllun a'i ad-
dalu o fewn amserlenni'r cynllun busnes

11.3 Llog o 1.6% yn uwch na'r gyfradd a bennwyd gan y Bwrdd 
Benthyciadau Gwaith Cyhoeddus gan adlewyrchu'r diogelwch 
rhannol a fydd ar gael i'r Cyngor o'r tir/gwaith cyn ei werthu

11.4 Cyfleuster cyllido i'w weithredu fel trefniant gorddrafft - arian i'w 

Tudalen 445



ddefnyddio pan fo angen yn unig a bydd y balans yn gostwng 
wrth i arian ddod i law

11.5 Mae cymeradwyo rhyddhau cyllid (hyd at y terfyn) i'w ddirprwyo 
i'r Prif Weithredwr a Chyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol, gan ymgynghori â'r Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol 
dros Adnoddau, a bydd y cyfleuster i'w weinyddu fel a ganlyn:-

a) Rhyddhau'r cyllid adeiladu dim ond ar ôl i'r tendrau gael 
eu dychwelyd, ar ôl cadarnhau ac asesu bod y cynllun yn 
dal i fod yn un hyfyw, ac ar ôl rhoi'r trefniadau contractiol 
ar waith,

b) Rhoi Cytundeb Datblygu ar waith ar gyfer gwerthu'r tai 
cymdeithasol i'r Awdurdod;

c) Costau Gweithredu: trefniadau benthyciad o oddeutu 
£280k y flwyddyn hyd nes y bydd y cwmni'n hyfyw heb yr 
elfen honno o gymorth;

d) Costau Datblygu Prosiectau. Bydd yr uchafswm 
gwreiddiol a ddyrannwyd o £750k yn ddigon, ac at ddiben 
monitro a rheoli costau datblygu prosiectau bydd 
adroddiadau chwarterol manwl yn cael eu cyflwyno i'r Prif 
Weithredwr a Chyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol gan ymgynghori â'r Aelod o’r Bwrdd 
Gweithredol dros Adnoddau;

e) Adeiladu'r cynllun yn y dyfodol. Cymeradwyo cyllid mewn 
egwyddor [heb fod yn fwy nag uchafswm y cyfleuster] ar 
ôl cwblhau arfarniadau datblygu safle-benodol a 
rhyddhau cyllid adeiladu dim ond ar ôl i'r tendrau gael eu 
dychwelyd, ar ôl cadarnhau ac asesu bod y cynllun yn dal 
i fod yn un hyfyw, ac ar ôl rhoi'r trefniadau contractiol ar 
waith;

f) Bydd yr elfennau terfynol ynghylch y cytundeb 
benthyciad manwl yn cael eu dirprwyo i'r Prif Weithredwr 
a Chyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol gan 
ymgynghori â'r Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros 
Adnoddau.

11.6 Mae'r Cwmni i gyflwyno ei gynllun busnes 3 blynedd i'r 
rhanddeiliad erbyn 31 Mawrth yn flynyddol er mwyn monitro 
cynnydd a hyfywedd y trefniadau cyllido.

12. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN FATER BRYS 
YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972.

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw eitemau eraill o fater brys.

________________________ __________________
CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

Tudalen 446



AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA – PLEASE RECYCLE

Y Cyngor Sir
 Dyddiad: 20 Chwefror 2019

Penodi swydd Y Prif Weithredwr a Phennaeth y Gwasanaeth 
Taledig.

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
1. Bod y Cyngor Sir yn cymeradwyo’r Proffil Swydd a Manyleb y Person ar gyfer y swyddi 

Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant a Chyfarwyddwr Adfywio a pholisi.

2. Bod y Cyngor Sir yn cymeradwyo’r Hysbysebau Swyddi atodedig er mwyn sicrhau y 
gellir hysbysebu’r swydd hon yn gyhoeddus yn unol â gofynion Reoliadau Awdurdodau 
Lleol (Rheolau Sefydlog) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014. 

Rhesymau: 

 Er mwyn cydymffurfio â Chyfansoddiad y Cyngor, ac i gydymffurfio â diwygiadau i 
Reoliadau Awdurdodau Lleol (Rheolau Sefydlog) (Cymru) (Diwygio) 2014, fel y mae 
wedi’i nodi yn yr adroddiad cryno amgaeëdig.  

Ymgynghorwyd â’r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol:
Pwyllgor craffu a’r dyddiad: 

AMHERTHNASOL 
AMHERTHNASOL 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad: 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad:

NA 

OES

Aelodau’r Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: 
Y Cyng. Mair Stephens Y Cyng. Linda Evans
Y Cyng. David Jenkins Y Cyng. Jane Tremlett
Y Cyng. Hazel Evans Y Cyng. Emlyn Dole
Y Cyng. Glynog Davies               Y Cyng. Philip Hughes
Y Cyng. Peter Hughes-Griffiths
Y Cyng. Cefin Campbell
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Prif Weithredwr 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Paul Thomas

Swydd:

Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol ( 
Rheoli Pobl)

Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriadau 
Ebost:

01267 246123
PRThomas@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 447

Eitem Rhif  11



AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA – PLEASE RECYCLE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

County Council
Date: 20th February 2019

Recruitment to the post of Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service 

1. Background

Members will be aware that the Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service, Mr Mark 
James, has tendered his resignation effective from the 9th June 2019.

The post of Chief Executive is a Chief Officer post and any appointment to such a 
post where the salary is £100,000 or more, is governed by the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014.  This is reflected in the 
Authority’s Pay Policy for 2018/2019. The Regulations require that a “relevant body” 
ie the County Council:

(a)“draw up a statement specifying—(i)the duties of the officer concerned, and

(ii)any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be appointed;

(b)make arrangements for the post to be publicly advertised in such a way as is likely 
to bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to apply for it; and

(c)make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in paragraph (a) to be 
sent to any person on request.”

As this post attracts a salary of £100,000 or more, it must be publicly advertised.  
The only exception to this requirement being where the appointment is being made 
for a period of up to 12 months.

For Members information, in terms of an appointment to the post, the 
Appointments Panel (A) of 16 Councillors will be brought together as part of the 
recruitment and to make recommendations to County Council regarding suitable 
candidates. The final decision will be a matter for County Council.

2. Recommendations

In accordance with these Regulations, It is recommended that County Council 
endorse:

Tudalen 448



AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA – PLEASE RECYCLE

2.1  the enclosed Job Profile and Person Specification

2.2   the job advertisement to be used to advertise the post externally

2.3  that the post be remunerated in accordance with the recommendation of 
the Council’s Pay Policy Advisory Panel taking into account the 
recommendation from the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 
(IRPW).

3. Interim Arrangements ( if required)

Members are advised that the role of the Council’s Deputy Chief Executive includes 
the responsibility to undertake the full range of duties and responsibilities of the 
Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service in the absence of the Chief Executive. 
Therefore, should there be a requirement, the current Deputy Chief Executive, Mr. 
Jake Morgan, would cover these duties as Acting Chief Executive/Head of Paid 
Service during any interim period until a permanent appointment is made to this 
post, for which an honorarium payment would be made.  The Corporate 
Management Team would also assume additional responsibilities over this period 
within their existing roles and plan for any additional support that will be required 
during this time.

No, however the following documents are 
attached as appendices:
  Job Profile and Person Specification 
 Job Advertisement

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.

Signed:   Paul Thomas Assistant Chief Executive 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets 

YES YES YES NONE YES YES NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities – In accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution and Policy Framework.

Tudalen 449



AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA – PLEASE RECYCLE

2. Legal – As above, and also in accordance with the revisions to the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders)(Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014. The Council 
has a statutory duty to appoint a Head of Paid Service under Section 4 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989, this role is fulfilled for the Council by the
Chief Executive.
 
3.Finance.
 The proposed salary for the Chief Executive is within the current budgeted
salary. Any net costs of the recruitment process and interim arrangements will be 
met from departmental reserves.
4 Risk Management – Failure to make provision to discharge the functions contained 
within this departmental portfolio, efficiently and effectively would place the 
authority at risk.

5. Staffing Implications – In accordance with the Council’s Constitution and Policy 
Framework.

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below:

Signed: Paul Thomas, Assistant Chief Executive ( People Management & Performance) 

1.Executive Board
2. Pay Policy Statement Advisory Panel
2.Opposition Spokesperson Group
3.All political Groups
4.Corporate Management Team
5.Scrutiny Committee – N/A
6.Local Member(s) – N/A
7.Community / Town Council – N/A
8.Relevant Partners – N/A
9.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

1. Local Authorities (Standing Orders)(Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014.
2. Pay Policy Statement 2018/19

Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Tudalen 450



 

Proffil Swydd/Job Profile
Teitl y Swydd - Prif Weithredwr
Post Title – Chief Executive

Adran Y Prif Weithredwr
Department Chief Executive’s

Is-Adran/Adain Amherthnasol
Division/Section N/A

Gradd/Grade Prif Weithredwr/Chief 
Executive

Rhif y Swydd/Post Number EXC001/01

Paratowyd Gan/Prepared 
By

Paul Thomas

Dyddiad Paratoi/Date 
Prepared

10 Ionawr 2019 / 10th 
January 2019

Tudalen 451



2Tudalen 452



3

Prif Ddiben y Swydd
 Cyflawni blaenoriaethau partneriaeth a chorfforaethol allweddol y Cyngor fel y nodir yn y 

Strategaeth Gorfforaethol (2018-2023). 

 Gweithio mewn partneriaeth ag Aelodau Etholedig a rhoi arweinyddiaeth, cyngor a 
chyfeiriad strategol i'r Cyngor i gyflawni ei weledigaeth.

 Fel Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Taledig, arwain Tîm Rheoli Corfforaethol y Cyngor o ran 
cyflawni ei rwymedigaethau statudol a strategol.

 Darparu goblygiadau statudol Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Taledig fel y nodir gan 
ddeddfwriaeth.

 Fel prif ymgynghorydd polisi’r Cyngor, sicrhau y darperir gwasanaethau moesegol 
ardderchog a chost effeithiol yn unol â'r Strategaeth Gorfforaethol.

Bydd y Prif Weithredwr hefyd yn cyflawni'r rolau canlynol:

 Clerc i'r Rhaglawiaeth 

 Swyddog priodol ar gyfer y Gwasanaeth Crwner, gan gynnwys y darpariaethau perthnasol 
o dan Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972

 Swyddog Canlyniadau ar gyfer etholiadau Seneddol, y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol, y Cyngor 
Sir ac etholiadau eraill

Prif dasgau/cyfrifoldebau

Arwain a Goruchwylio / Penderfynu ynghylch Camau a'u Rhoi ar Waith 

1. Dangos arweinyddiaeth gyson ac ysbrydoledig sy'n cefnogi'r Arweinydd, y Bwrdd 
Gweithredol, y Cyngor a'i weithlu. Rhoi esiampl gref ar gyfer darparu diwylliant o 
atebolrwydd perfformiad ar bob lefel.

2. Arwain a chyfarwyddo Tîm Rheoli Corfforaethol y Cyngor er mwyn sicrhau y darperir 
gwasanaethau cost-effeithiol o ansawdd uchel ar sail anghenion dynodedig y gymuned.

3. Bod yn eiriolwr a darparu arweinyddiaeth amlwg wrth gyflawni Gwerthoedd Craidd y 
Cyngor fel y nodir yn y dull "Un Tîm". Meithrin a datblygu arweinwyr ar draws y sefydliad 
gan greu timau sy'n perfformio'n dda sy'n gwella gallu'r sefydliad.

Darbwyllo a Dylanwadu / Llunio Strategaethau a Chysyniadau

Tudalen 453



4

4. Dangos arweinyddiaeth mewn mentrau partneriaeth lleol a rhanbarthol mawr, gan 
fanteisio i'r eithaf ar y cyfleoedd cydweithio a'r buddion i'r Awdurdod, ei gymunedau a'i 
randdeiliaid.  

5. Fel y prif ymgynghorydd polisi i'r arweinwyr etholedig, gweithredu opsiynau blaen-
gynllunio ar gyfer cyflawni canlyniadau strategol o ran y Strategaeth Gorfforaethol. Rhoi 
cyngor ynghylch llunio canlyniadau cost-effeithiol ynghyd â dyrannu adnoddau priodol. 

6. Gweithredu prosesau rheoli perfformiad cryf a phriodol i fesur a yw canlyniadau'n cael eu 
cyflawni'n llwyddiannus yn erbyn y Strategaeth Gorfforaethol ac yn unol â'r Gwerthoedd 
Craidd. 

Dadansoddi / Addasu ac Ymateb i Newid

7. Trafod ar ran y Cyngor ar lefelau lleol, rhanbarthol, cenedlaethol a rhyngwladol gan 
gynnwys ymgymryd â rôl Prif Weithredwr arweiniol rhanbarthol lle bo angen.  Hyrwyddo 
a darparu partneriaethau strategol ledled y rhanbarth yn ogystal â bod yn hyblyg ac yn 
ymatebol i newid.

8. Darparu atebion busnes arloesol i heriau, gan fanteisio ar arbenigedd ac arferion gorau o 
fannau eraill fel sy'n briodol.

9. Dangos craffter gwleidyddol, economaidd a chymdeithasol wrth weithio gydag amrywiaeth 
gymhleth o randdeiliaid a phartneriaethau. Gallu pendant i sicrhau y cydymffurfir â 
fframweithiau deddfwriaethol perthnasol.  

Cyflwyno a Chyfathrebu 

10.Bod yn llysgennad ar gyfer y Cyngor drwy hyrwyddo a datblygu perthynas ragorol â'r 
cyfryngau, y cyhoedd a rhanddeiliaid drwy strategaeth gyfathrebu aml-sianel a 
chynhwysol.  

11.Cynrychioli'r Awdurdod ar achlysuron ffurfiol gan ymgymryd â'r dyletswyddau dinesig 
angenrheidiol, gan gynnwys cefnogi swydd Cadeiryddion y Cyngor.

12.Dangos ymrwymiad a sensitifrwydd i'r gwahaniaethau diwylliannol, demograffig ac 
ieithyddol yn y sir. Cefnogi'r gwaith o hyrwyddo'r iaith Gymraeg yn unol â pholisïau'r 
Cyngor a deddfwriaeth genedlaethol.

Rheoli Adnoddau Strategol / Craffter Masnachol 

13.Sicrhau bod gan y Cyngor reolaethau a systemau llywodraethu a rheoleiddio cadarn ar 
waith, sy'n fodern, yn hyblyg, ac yn gymesur i gyflawni canlyniadau'r Strategaeth 
Gorfforaethol. 

Tudalen 454



5

14.Dangos craffter ariannol a masnachol cadarn wrth sicrhau adnoddau ariannol a mentrau 
cynaliadwy sy'n darparu rhaglenni ar gyfer gwella bywydau yn y gymuned ac adfywio'r 
Sir. 

15.Arwain y gwaith o gyflwyno mentrau a rhaglenni allweddol yn effeithlon ac yn effeithiol a 
fydd yn cyflawni canlyniadau'r Cyngor yn yr holl wasanaethau. Sicrhau bod cynlluniau 
priodol o ran y gweithlu a'r strategaeth ar gyfer pobl ar waith i gyflawni'r rhain ynghyd ag 
adnoddau ariannol priodol.

16.Cydgysylltu'n strategol y broses pennu a dyrannu cyllideb gan sicrhau bod blaenoriaethau 
cytunedig y Cyngor yn cael eu monitro a'u cyflawni ar draws meysydd gwasanaeth yn 
unol â'r cyllidebau a ddyrannwyd iddynt.

Yn gyfrifol am staff/offer
Mae'r Prif Weithredwr yn gyfrifol yn gorfforaethol am y canlynol:

 Cyfarwyddwr yr Adran Cymunedau
 Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
 Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant
 Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd

Yn Adrannol:
 Cyfarwyddwr Adfywio a Pholisi
 Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Rheoli Pobl)
 Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith
 Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau TGCh

 Cyllideb Refeniw Gros: £560m
 Rhaglen Gyfalaf: £207m

 Oddeutu 8,000 o weithwyr.

Yn atebol i
Nodwch deitl swydd y Rheolwr Llinell

Meini Prawf Hanfodol

Cymwysterau/

Hyfforddiant 
Galwedigaethol
/

Aelodaeth 
Broffesiynol

Yn meddu ar radd neu gymhwyster cyfwerth mewn pwnc perthnasol neu 
brofiad cyfatebol.

Cymhwyster rheoli perthnasol neu ddatblygiad proffesiynol parhaus pendant.

Tudalen 455



6

Y Sgiliau sy'n 
Ymwneud â'r 
Swydd/

Galluoedd

Penderfynu ynghylch Camau a'u Rhoi ar Waith 

Gwneud penderfyniadau cyflym a chlir a allai olygu gwneud dewisiadau 
anodd neu gymryd risgiau ystyriol; Cymryd cyfrifoldeb dros gamau 
gweithredu, prosiectau a phobl; Bod yn flaengar ac yn hyderus a gweithio 
heb gyfarwyddyd; Ysgogi a chreu gweithgaredd.

Arwain a Goruchwylio

Rhoi arweiniad clir i eraill; Pennu safonau ymddygiad priodol; Dirprwyo 
gwaith yn briodol ac yn deg; Ysgogi a grymuso eraill; Rhoi cyfleoedd i staff 
ddatblygu a chael hyfforddiant personol; Recriwtio staff o'r radd flaenaf.

Glynu wrth Egwyddorion a Gwerthoedd

Cynnal safonau moesol a gwerthoedd; Dangos gonestrwydd; Hyrwyddo ac 
amddiffyn cyfleoedd cyfartal, adeiladu timoedd amrywiol; Hybu cyfrifoldeb 
trefniadol ac unigol tuag at y gymuned a'r amgylchedd.

Dadansoddi

Dadansoddi data rhifyddol, data geiriol a phob ffynhonnell arall o 
wybodaeth. Rhannu gwybodaeth yn gydrannau, patrymau a 
pherthnasoedd. Ymchwilio i gael rhagor o wybodaeth neu well dealltwriaeth 
o broblem. Dod i gasgliadau rhesymegol ar sail dadansoddiad a'r 
wybodaeth sydd ar gael. Cynnig atebion ymarferol i amrywiaeth o 
broblemau. Arddangos dealltwriaeth fod un mater yn gallu bod yn rhan o 
system lawer mwy.

Darbwyllo a Dylanwadu

Gwneud argraff bersonol gref ar eraill; Ennill dealltwriaeth glir ac 
ymrwymiad gan eraill drwy ddarbwyllo, argyhoeddi a chyd-drafod; Hybu 
syniadau ar ran eich hun neu ar ran eraill; Defnyddio prosesau gwleidyddol 
yn effeithiol i ddylanwadu ar eraill ac i'w darbwyllo.

Cyflwyno a Chyfathrebu 

Siarad yn glir ac yn rhugl; Mynegi barn, gwybodaeth a phwyntiau allweddol 
dadl yn glir; Gwneud cyflwyniadau a siarad yn gyhoeddus yn fedrus ac yn 
hyderus; Ymateb yn gyflym i anghenion cynulleidfa ac i'w hymatebion a'u 
hadborth; Cyfleu hygrededd.

Llunio Strategaethau a Chysyniadau

Gweithio'n strategol i wireddu amcanion y sefydliad;  Pennu a datblygu 
strategaethau; Clustnodi a threfnu'r adnoddau sydd eu hangen i gyflawni 
tasgau; Monitro perfformiad yn unol â dyddiadau cau a cherrig milltir.

Addasu ac Ymateb i Newid

Addasu i amgylchiadau newidiol; Derbyn syniadau newydd a mentrau ar 
gyfer newid; Addasu arddull ryngbersonol yn ôl yr hyn sy'n addas i wahanol 
bobl neu sefyllfaoedd; Dangos parch a sensitifrwydd tuag at wahaniaethau 
diwylliannol a chrefyddol; Ymdrin ag amwysedd gan wneud defnydd 
cadarnhaol o'r cyfleoedd y mae hynny'n ei gyflwyno.

Gwybodaeth Dealltwriaeth drylwyr o agenda'r Llywodraeth ar gyfer Llywodraeth Leol, 

Tudalen 456



7

yng Nghymru ac yn y Deyrnas Unedig.

Gwerthfawrogiad o anghenion yr Aelodau Etholedig a dyheadau'r gymuned, 
yn enwedig mewn perthynas â darparu gwasanaethau.

Profiad Profiad sylweddol a diweddar o reoli'n llwyddiannus ar lefel uwch gan 
ymdrin ag ystod amrywiol ac allweddol o wasanaethau uchel eu proffil yn y 
sector cyhoeddus neu breifat.

Profiad llwyddiannus o gyflawni mewn rôl uwch-reolwr gan ddangos y gallu 
i ddatblygu strategaeth gorfforaethol effeithiol mewn amgylchedd sy'n 
newid.

Profiad amlwg o gyflawniadau mewn perthynas ag arloesi a rheoli newid.

Rhinweddau 
Personol

Y gallu i roi arweinyddiaeth ysbrydoledig, i gefnogi ac ysgogi grŵp mawr ac 
amrywiol o bobl ar bob lefel er mwyn darparu gwasanaethau effeithiol sy'n 
canolbwyntio ar gwsmeriaid, i hyrwyddo cydweithio, arloesi a hyblygrwydd 
a meithrin ysbryd cyd-dynnu mewn amgylchedd sy'n newid yn gyflym.

Gweledigaeth, cadernid, ymrwymiad a blaengarwch amlwg.

Sgiliau rhagorol ac effeithiol o ran cyfathrebu ar lafar ac yn ysgrifenedig er 
mwyn bod yn hyrwyddwr credadwy ac argyhoeddiadol ar gyfer yr 
Awdurdod.

Rheoli materion sensitif a gwleidyddol yn hyderus gan weithio'n 
ddiplomataidd i gyflawni canlyniadau cadarnhaol ar gyfer defnyddwyr 
gwasanaeth.

Y gallu i ennyn ymddiriedaeth, didwylledd, a chydraddoldeb drwy 
ryngweithio â phobl o amrywiol gefndiroedd cymdeithasol, diwylliannol, 
economaidd, ac addysgol.

Arddangos sgiliau rhyngbersonol gwych sy'n eich galluogi i feithrin 
cysylltiadau cadarnhaol â rhanddeiliaid/partneriaid perthnasol (gan 
gynnwys Undebau Llafur).

Meddu ar feddylfryd strategol tuag at lunio gwasanaethau sy'n rhoi sylw i 
flaenoriaethau corfforaethol ac sy'n integreiddio â gweithgareddau 
cyflenwol ar draws y Cyngor ac yn gweddu iddynt.

Y gallu i ddadansoddi gwybodaeth ariannol gan ddefnyddio'r wybodaeth yn 
effeithiol i sicrhau rheolaeth ac atebolrwydd effeithlon o ran y gyllideb.

Meithrin a chynnal cysylltiadau gwaith cydweithredol fel aelod o'r Tîm 
Rheoli Corfforaethol gan gyfrannu at ddysgu ac at reoli newid meddylfryd 
ar lefel uwch a lefel strategol.

Y gallu i ddadansoddi materion cydraddoldeb i hybu polisïau ac arferion 
cydraddoldeb ac amrywiaeth.

Dymunol

Tudalen 457



8

Sgiliau Iaith/
Cyfathrebu 

Sgiliau Siarad Sgiliau Ysgrifennu

Cymraeg 4 4
Saesneg 4 4
Arall (nodwch)

GWIRIADAU'R GWASANAETH DATGELU A GWAHARDD

Gall gwiriadau DBS fod yn ofynnol ar gyfer rhai swyddi sy'n gweithio gyda phlant ac oedolion 
agored i niwed.  Mae'r canlynol yn ofynnol ar gyfer y swydd hon:                Dim yn perthnasol 

NID OES ANGEN GWIRIAD DBS

Adran A – y math o ddatgeliad

DATGELIAD SAFONOL

DATGELIAD MANWL

DATGELIAD MANWL GAN WIRIO'R RHESTR WAHARDD
Adran B – y math o weithlu

Y GWEITHLU PLANT

Y GWEITHLU OEDOLION

Y GWEITHLU PLANT AC OEDOLION

GWEITHLU ARALL

Y RHESWM

Cyfeiriwch at ganllawiau a/neu cysylltwch â'ch Ymgynghorydd Adnoddau Dynol cyn 
penderfynu a yw Gwiriad DBS yn ofynnol ar gyfer y swydd hon. Cofnodwch eich 
rhesymau yma.

UNRHYW WYBODAETH ARALL

Tudalen 458



9

Main Purpose of Job

 To deliver the Council’s key corporate and partnership priorities as set out in the 
Corporate Strategy (2018 – 2023).

 To work in partnership with Elected Members and provide strategic leadership, 
advice and direction to the Council to deliver its vision.

 As Head of Paid Service, to lead the Council’s Corporate Management Team in 
delivering its strategic and statutory obligations.

 To deliver the statutory obligations of the Head of Paid Service as defined by 
legislation.

 As the Council’s principal policy advisor, ensure delivery of cost effective 
excellent ethical based services in accordance with the Corporate Strategy.

The Chief Executive will also assume the role of:

 Clerk to the Lieutenancy 

 Proper officer for the Coroner Service, including relevant provisions under the 
Local Government Act 1972

 Returning Officer for Parliamentary, National Assembly, County Council and other 
elections

Key tasks/responsibilities

Leading & Supervising / Deciding & Initiating Action

1. To demonstrate consistent and inspirational leadership which supports the 
Leader, Executive Board, Council and its workforce. Provides a strong role model 
for delivery of a performance accountability culture at all levels.

2. To lead and direct the Council’s Corporate Management Team to ensure the 
provision of high quality, cost effective services based on identified community 
needs.

3. To be an advocate and provide visible leadership in the delivery of the Council’s 
Core Values as articulated in the “One Team” approach. To grow and develop 
leaders throughout the organisation building high performing teams which 
enhance organisational capability. 

Persuading & Influencing / Formulating Strategies & Concepts

4. To demonstrate leadership in in major local and regional partnership initiatives, 
maximising collaboration opportunities and benefits for the Authority, its 
communities and stakeholders.

Tudalen 459



10

5. As principal policy advisor to the elected leadership deliver forward planning 
options for the achievement of strategic outcomes against the Corporate 
Strategy. To advise on formulating cost effective outcomes with appropriate 
resource allocation. 

6. Implement appropriate and strong performance management processes to 
evaluate the successful delivery of outcomes against Corporate Strategy and in 
line with Core Values. 

Analysing / Adapting & Responding to Change

7. To negotiate on behalf of the Council at local, regional, national and international 
levels including taking a regional lead Chief Executive role where appropriate. To 
promote and deliver strategic partnering across the region whilst demonstrating 
flexibility and responsiveness to change.

8. To provide innovative business focused solutions to challenges, bringing in 
expertise and best practice from elsewhere as appropriate

9. To demonstrate political, economic and social acumen in working with a 
complex range of stakeholders and partnerships. Proven ability to deliver 
compliance with relevant legislative frameworks.

Presenting & Communicating 

10. To be an ambassador for the Council by promoting and developing excellent 
relationships with the media, public and stakeholders through a multi-channel 
and inclusive communication strategy.  

11. To represent the Authority on formal occasions undertaking the necessary civic 
duties including supporting the Chairs of Council’s office.

12. To demonstrate a commitment and sensitivity to the cultural, demographic and 
linguistic differences within the County. Support the promotion of the Welsh 
Language in accordance with Council policies and national legislation.

Strategic Resource Management /Commercial Acumen 

13. To ensure that the Council has robust governance, regulatory systems and 
controls in place, that are modern, flexible, and proportionate to deliver the 
Corporate Strategy outcomes.

14.Demonstrate sound financial and commercial acumen in securing financial 
resources and sustainable initiatives that deliver programmes for improved lives 
in the community and the regeneration of the County

15. To lead the efficient and effective deployment of key programmes and initiatives 
that will achieve the Council’s outcomes within all services. To ensure 

Tudalen 460



11

appropriate workforce plans and the people strategy are in place to deliver these 
together with appropriate financial resources.

16. To provide strategic coordination of the budget setting and allocation process 
ensuring that agreed Council priorities are monitored and delivered across 
service areas within their allocated budgets

Responsible for staff/equipment

The Chief Executive is corporately accountable for the:
 Director of Communities
 Director of Corporate Services
 Director of Education and Children
 Director of Environment

Departmentally:
 Director of Regeneration and Policy
 Assistant Chief Executive (People Management)
 Head of Administration and Law
 Head of ICT

 Gross Revenue Budge: £560m 
 Capital Programme:  £207m 
 Employees approximately: 8,000.
Reporting to

Insert Post title of Line Manager

Criteria Essential

Qualifications/

Vocational 
training/

Professional 
Memberships

Educated to degree level or equivalent in relevant subject or 
equivalent experience.

A relevant management qualification or demonstrable continuing 
professional development.

Job Related 
Skills/

Competencies

Deciding & Initiating Action
Makes prompt, clear decisions which may involve tough choices or 
considered risks; Takes responsibility for action, projects and people; 
Takes initiative, acts with confidence and works under own direction; 
Initiates and generates activity.

Leading & Supervising

Provides others with a clear direction; Sets appropriate standards of 
behaviour; Delegates work appropriately and fairly; Motivates and 

Tudalen 461



12

empowers others; Provides staff with development opportunities and 
coaching; Recruits staff of a high calibre.

Adhering to Principles & Values

Upholds ethics and values; Demonstrates integrity; Promotes and 
defends equal opportunities, builds diverse teams; Encourages 
organisational and individual responsibility towards the community 
and the environment

Analysing

Analyses numerical data, verbal data and all other sources of 
information. Breaks information into component parts, patterns and 
relationships. Probes for further information or greater understanding 
of a problem. Makes rational judgements from the available 
information and analysis. Produces workable solutions to a range of 
problems. Demonstrates an understanding of how one issue may be 
part of a much larger system

Persuading & Influencing

Makes a strong personal impression on others; Gains clear 
agreement and commitment from others by persuading, convincing 
and negotiating; Promotes ideas on behalf of self or others; Makes 
effective use of political processes to influence and persuade others

Presenting & Communicating 

Speaks clearly and fluently; Expresses opinions, information and key 
points of an argument clearly; makes presentations and undertakes 
public speaking with skill and confidence; Responds quickly to the 
needs of an audience and to their reactions and feedback; Projects 
creditability.

Formulating Strategies & Concepts

Works strategically to realise organisational goals; Sets and develops 
strategies; Identifies and organises resources needed to accomplish 
tasks: Monitors performance against deadlines and milestones.

Adapting & Responding to Change

Adapts to changing circumstances; Accepts new ideas and change 
initiatives; Adapts interpersonal style to suit different people or 
situations; Shows respect and sensitivity towards cultural and 
religious differences; Deals with ambiguity, making positive use of 
the opportunities it presents.

Knowledge A thorough understanding of the Government’s agenda for Local 
Government at both UK and Wales levels

Appreciation of the needs of Elected Members and the aspirations of 
the community, particularly in relation to the delivery of services.

Tudalen 462



13

Experience Significant and recent successful management experience at a senior 
level covering a diverse range of key, high profile Public or Private 
Sector Services.

A proven track record of achievement in a senior management role 
demonstrating the ability to develop an effective corporate strategy 
within a changing environment.

Demonstrable experience in terms of achievements in innovation and 
change management.

Personal 
qualities

The ability to provide inspirational leadership, to support and 
motivate a large and diverse group of people at all levels in order to 
provide effective customer focussed services, to promote 
collaboration, innovation and flexibility and engender a team spirit in 
a rapidly changing environment.

Demonstrable vision, tenacity, commitment and initiative.

Highly developed and effective written and oral communication skills 
in order to be a credible and convincing advocate for the Authority

To confidently manage sensitive and political issues with effective 
use of diplomacy to achieve positive outcomes for service users.

Have the ability to create an environment of trust, openness and 
equality by interacting with people of various social, cultural, 
economic and educational backgrounds.

Demonstrate excellent interpersonal skills that enable positive 
relationships with relevant stakeholders/partners (including Trade 
Unions).

Have a strategic mind set towards shaping services that address 
corporate priorities, integrate and align with complementary 
activities across the Council.

Ability to analyse financial information and effectively use the 
information to ensure efficient budget management and 
accountability.

Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships as a 
member of the Corporate Management Team contributing to the 
learning and management of cultural change at a senior and 
strategic level.

Ability to undertake equality analysis to promote equality and 
diversity policies and practices.

Desirable

Tudalen 463



14

Language/
Communication Skills

Spoken Level Written level

Welsh 4 4
English 4 4
Other (please State)

DISCLOSURE AND BARRING SERVICES (DBS) CHECKS

DBS Checks may be required for certain posts which work with children and vulnerable 
adults.  This post requires:                DBS check not currently required.

NO DBS CHECK REQUIRED
Section A – type of disclosure
STANDARD DISCLOSURE
ENHANCED DISCLOSURE
ENHANCED DISCLOSURE WITH BARRED LIST CHECK
Section B – workforce type
CHILD WORKFORCE
ADULT WORKFORCE
CHILD AND ADULT WORKFORCE
OTHER WORKFORCE

JUSTIFICATION

Please refer to guidance and/or your HR Advisor before deciding whether this post 
requires a DBS Check. Record your reasons here.

ANY OTHER INFORMATION

Tudalen 464



Prif Weithredwr
Cyngor Sir Gâr
£XXX,XXX

Carmarthenshire is a county with ambition – a county with 
contrast and opportunity; where countryside meets the coast; 
where culture and heritage is interwoven into its unique urban 
and rural communities. 

We want a Chief Executive who has the drive and passion to 
harness this incredible potential, re-shaping the county whilst putting 
people and businesses at the heart of everything we do. We want 
someone who is determined and dedicated to driving change and 
improvement, motivated by making a real difference - a strong leader 
who is confident, resilient and ready to make their mark.

In a privileged position to modernise services, we are looking for 
a Chief Executive with the energy and commitment to engage and 
inspire our residents, workforce, and local and regional partners.
We are committed to helping people live, work and access services 
in their language of choice, therefore the ability to communicate in 
Welsh is essential. We have a range of flexible options to help you 
reach the required standard for this post.

Are you the right person for this job? Contact us for an application 
pack. Visit www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales
Closing date: 15th March 2019

Chief Executive
Carmarthenshire County Council
£XXX,XXX

Mae Sir Gaerfyrddin yn sir uchelgeisiol – sir yn llawn cyferbyniadau 
a chyfleoedd; o’r bryniau i’r arfordir; lle mae diwylliant a 
threftadaeth yn rhan annatod o’i chymunedau trefol a gwledig 
unigryw. 

Rydym am Brif Weithredwr sydd â’r egni a’r angerdd i wireddu’r 
potensial anhygoel hwn, i ail-lunio’r sir gan roi pobl a busnesau wrth 
wraidd popeth yr ydym yn ei wneud.  Rydym am gael rhywun sy’n 
benderfynol ac yn ymroddedig i sbarduno newid a gwelliant, sy’n cael 
ei gymell drwy wneud gwahaniaeth go iawn - yn arweinydd cryf sy’n 
hyderus, yn wydn ac yn barod i wneud ei farc.

Bydd deiliad y swydd mewn sefyllfa freintiedig i foderneiddio 
gwasanaethau, ac rydym yn chwilio am Brif Weithredwr gydag egni 
ac ymrwymiad i ymgysylltu ac ysbrydoli ein trigolion, y gweithlu a 
phartneriaid lleol a rhanbarthol. Rydym wedi ymrwymo i helpu pobl i 
fyw, gweithio a manteisio ar wasanaethau yn eu dewis iaith, felly mae’r 
gallu i gyfathrebu yn Gymraeg yn hanfodol. Mae gennym ystod o 
opsiynau hyblyg i’ch helpu i gyrraedd y safon ofynnol ar gyfer y swydd.

Ai chi yw’r unigolyn iawn ar gyfer y swydd hon? Cysylltwch â ni i gael 
pecyn cais. Ewch i www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Dyddiad Cau: 15fed Mawrth 2019

T
udalen 465



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



CYNGOR SIR

20FED CHWEFROR 2019

AELODAETH PWYLLGORAU CRAFFU, PWYLLGORAU RHEOLEIDDIO A 
PHWYLLGORAU ERAILL Y CYNGOR A PHENODI AELODAU I 

WASANAETHU ARNYNT
ADOLYGIAD YN DILYN YMDDISWYDDIAD Y CYNGHORYDD R. EVANS O'R GRŴP  ANNIBYNNOL 

A HYSBYSIAD O'I DDYMUNIAD I YMUNO Â'R GRŴP LLAFUR 
Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen:

O ganlyniad i newidiadau i aelodaeth wleidyddol gyffredinol y Cyngor: 

1. Mabwysiadu'r newidiadau i nifer y seddi sy'n cael eu dal gan y Grŵp Annibynnol a 
Grŵp Llafur  fel y nodir yn Nhablau 1, 2 a 3 yr adroddiad, yn benodol y seddi a 
ddyrennir parthed Pwyllgor Craffu Gofal Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd , a'r Pwyllgor 
Archwilio 

2. Yn unol â Rheol Gweithdrefn Gorfforaethol 2 (2) (n) cymeradwyo'r newidiadau i 
aelodaeth y Pwyllgorau o ganlyniad i argymhelliad 1 uchod (fel y nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad).

3. Nodi nad oes dim newidiadau i nifer y seddi sy'n cael eu dal gan Grŵp Plaid Cymru a'r 
Aelod heb Gysylltiad Pleidiol. 

4. Yn unol â Rhan 6 o Fesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2011, nodi nad yw dyraniad y 5 
Cadeirydd Craffu yn newid.

Y Rhesymau: 
Adolygiad o'r trefniadau ar gyfer dyrannu seddi i grwpiau gwleidyddol, o dan adran 15 o 
Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol a Thai 1989. 

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol AMHERTHNASOL                                           
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES 
YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-   
Y Cynghorydd Emlyn Dole (Arweinydd)
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees Jones
Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Gaynor Morgan

Adran y Prif Weithredwr
Swyddi:  Pennaeth 
Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith

Rheolwr Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd

Rhifau ffôn: 
01267 224012 LRJ
01267 224026  GM
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
LRJones@sirgar.gov.uk
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 467

Eitem Rhif  12

mailto:LRJones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

COUNTY COUNCIL

20TH FEBRUARY 2019

COMPOSITION OF THE COUNCIL’S SCRUTINY, REGULATORY 
AND OTHER COMMITTEES AND THE APPOINTMENT OF 

MEMBERS TO SERVE UPON THEM
REVIEW FOLLOWING COUNCILLOR R. EVANS’  RESIGNATION FROM THE INDEPENDENT 

GROUP AND NOTIFICATION OF WISH TO JOIN THE LABOUR GROUP

In accordance with the Constitution, the Council is required to appoint members to serve 
on its committees and to allocate those seats so that they reflect the overall political 
composition of the Council.

The allocation of seats on the Council’s regulatory, scrutiny and other committees should 
therefore be made to reflect as closely as possible the political composition of the Council 
as a whole.

As a result of the decision by Councillor R. Evans to resign from the Independent Group 
and become a member of the Labour Group, the overall political composition of the 
Council has changed and this will need to be reflected in the allocation of seats. The 
Independent Group will lose one Scrutiny and one Regulatory seat and the Labour Group 
will gain one Scrutiny and one Regulatory seat.  

The allocation of seats to the Plaid Cymru Group and unaffiliated member are unchanged.

The attached report sets out the suggested revised Committee allocations together with 
changes in Committee membership put forward by the Independent and Labour Groups.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES 

Tudalen 468



IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads 
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report:

Signed:   Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law                     
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
Legal  

Committees are to be appointed in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989, the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) regulations 
1990, as amended, and the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011.

The Council is required to appoint members to serve on its committees and to allocate those 
seats so that they reflect the overall political composition of the Council.

The Council’s constitution sets out arrangement for appointment to  fill vacancies on Committees.

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below:

Signed:   Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law                     

1.Scrutiny Committee - Not applicable
2.Local Member(s) - Not applicable
3.Community / Town Council  - Not applicable
4.Relevant Partners - Not applicable
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - Not applicable
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

The Local Government Act 2000 

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2011

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/cont
ents

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/co
ntents 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
– Sections 15 and 16  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/pa
rt/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-
committees-etc 

The Local Government (Committees and 
Political Groups) Regulations 1990

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/1553/c
ontents/made 

Tudalen 469

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/1553/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/1553/contents/made


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
COUNCIL MEETING 20TH FEBRUARY 2019

REVIEW OF THE COMPOSITION OF THE COUNCIL’S COMMITTEES AND THE 
APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO SERVE UPON THEM

1. INTRODUCTION
The Chief Executive received notice from Councillor Rob Evans on the 30th January that he 
had resigned from the Independent Group on the 29th January 2019 and had joined the 
Labour Group with effect from that date. In accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 , the Local Government (Committees and Political 
Groups) regulations 1990, as amended, and the Local Government Wales (measure) 2011, 
the Council is required to appoint  members to serve on its committees and to allocate those 
seats so that they reflect the overall political composition of the Council, as far as possible. 

2. POLITICAL BALANCE AND COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES

2.1. Composition of Committees and Panels of the Council
The membership of the political groups as at 31st January 2019 is as follows :-

Political Group Number of Members %of Council 
Membership

Plaid Cymru 37 50

Labour 23 31.08 
(29.73)

Independent 13 17.57 
(18.92)

Unaffiliated 1 1.35

TOTAL 74 100%

Council at its meeting held on the 24th May 2017 decided that the total number of 
seats available on Committees is 168 and these seats must be distributed amongst 
the political groups and unaffiliated member on a politically balanced basis with the 
seats on committees also being allocated to reflect, as far as possible, the political 
balance of the Council as a whole.  
The Council’s democratic structure comprises:

Executive Board 10 members

5 X Scrutiny Committees 68 Members 
(Non Executive Board 
Members)

Tudalen 471



Regulatory and other 
Committees 

100 Members

Note:
 Only non Executive Members (64) may serve on the Scrutiny Committees.
 The members serving on the Standards Committee do not need to reflect the 

political balance of the Council as a whole but they have been included within the 
above figures.

 It is not a statutory requirement to ensure that the Audit Committee is politically 
balanced however the Authority has chosen to include the Audit Committee in its 
calculations Only one member of the Executive Board can serve on the Audit 
Committee and this must not be the Leader of the Council.

 Only one member of the Executive Board can serve on the Democratic Services 
Committee and this must not be the Leader of the Council.

TABLE 1

ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON 
REGULATORY, SCRUTINY AND 
OTHER COMMITTEES AND 
THE PENSION COMMITTEE

%

COUNCIL MEMBER-SHIP
168 

Plaid Cymru 50 84

Labour 31.08 52    50 

Independent 17.57 30    32 

Unaffiliated Member 1.35 2
TOTAL NO OF SEATS 100% 168

Note:
If the allocation of seats on committees is not made on a politically balanced basis 
then the decision by council to do this must be unanimous  “without any member of 
the authority or committee voting against them.” S17(b) of the Act.

Tudalen 472



2.2. Allocation of Seats

In order to reflect Cllr Evans’ resignation from the Independent Group the 
Independent Group’s representation on Committees will be reduced by 2 seats 
from 32 to 30, and the Labour Group allocation will rise from 50 to 52.   There is no 
change to the Plaid Cymru or Unaffiliated member allocation.  To accommodate 
this change in the political composition of the Council the Independent Group must 
relinquish one Scrutiny Committee and one regulatory/other seat to the Labour 
Group

It is suggested that the composition of Committees within the democratic decision 
making structure be amended as shown in Tables 2 and 3 below  with the Seats 
allocated, to reflect as far as possible, the political balance of the Council as a 
whole. Resultant membership changes put forward by the Independent and Labour  
Groups are included within this report.

TABLE 2a -  Scrutiny Committees (68 seats)

5 SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES

%

Political Group Number of Seats 
68

NEW  Allocation of seats 
on scrutiny Committees

Plaid Cymru 50 34 1 X 8 SEATS; 2 X 7 
SEATS  & 2 X 6 SEATS

Labour 30 21 (+1) 20 1 X 5 SEATS AND 4 X 4 
SEATS

Independent 19 12 (-1) 13 2 X 3 SEATS & 3 X 2 
SEATS

Unaffiliated Member      1% 1 (0.92) 1 SEAT

68

Following discussion, the Independent Group has agreed to relinquish one seat on the Social 
Care and Health Scrutiny Committee (seat previously held by Cllr Rob Evans) and the 
Labour Group has nominated Councillor Rob Evans to fill its  additional seat on this 
Committee.

It therefore suggested that the allocation of elected member seats on the Social Care and 
Health Scrutiny Committee should be amended as follows:-

Plaid Cymru (7)  Labour (5 ) Independent (2) Unaffiliated (0)

Tudalen 473



TABLE 2B

SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

TOTAL NO 
OF SEATS

PLAID CYMRU 
GROUP

LABOUR 
GROUP

IND GROUP UNAFF

Community 13 6 4 3 0
Education & Children 14

+ 5 (co-opted)
7 4 2 1

Environmental & 
Public Protection

14 8 4 2 0

Policy & Resources 13 6 4 3 0
Social Care & Health 14 7 5 2 0
Total 68 34  21 20 12 13 1

TABLE 3 - REGULATORY AND OTHER COMMITTEES (100 SEATS)

Following discussion, the Independent Group has agreed to relinquish one seat on the Audit 
Committee (currently held by Councillor Edward Thomas). It therefore suggested that the 
allocation of elected member seats on the Audit Committee should be amended as follows:-

Plaid Cymru (4) Labour (3) Independent (1) Unaffiliated (0) External Voting (1)

The Labour Group will announce at the meeting, the Councillor they wish to nominate to fill their 
additional seat on the Audit Committee. 

COMMITTEE/
PANEL

TOTAL 
NO OF 
SEATS

PLAID CYMRU 
GROUP

LABOUR 
GROUP

IND GROUP UNAFFIL-
IATED

Appeals 6*
 (-1)

3 2 1 0

Appointments 
Directors (Leader + 
6 EBM’s + 9 non 
executive members)

16 8 5 3 0

Appointments Heads 
of Service (4 EBM’s 
+ 6 non-executive 
members)

10* 
(+1)

5 3 2 0

Audit 8 4 3 1 0

Tudalen 474



Democratic Services 5 2 2 1 0

Housing Review 
Panel
+1 sub per group

8
(+1)

4 2 1 1

Dyfed Pension Fund 
Committee
+ 1 permanent sub

3 1 1 1 0

Licensing 14 *
(-1)

7 4 3 0

Members’ 
Appointments

7 * 4 2 1 0

Planning 20* 
(+1)

10 6 4 0

Standards (+ 4 
Independent & 1 
Community Rep)

3 2  1 0 0

TOTAL 100 50 3130 18 19 1

3. POLITICAL BALANCE AND APPOINTMENT OF PERSONS TO CHAIR OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
Part 6 of the Local Government Wales 2011 Measure deals with sets out the 
requirements for the appointment of Persons to Chair Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees.

The Measure states that in respect of Council’s with two or more political groups and 
multiple scrutiny committees the political groups represented in the executive can only 
appoint as many chairs as are proportionate to their combined share of the council’s 
overall membership, rounding down if this does not equal a whole number of chairs. 
It is for the executive groups together to decide upon the allocation of their entitlement 
to chairs between them. The rest of the Scrutiny Chairs are the “property” of those 
groups not represented in the Executive. If there is only one such group, that group is 
entitled to all the remaining Chairs.

There is no change to the allocation for the 5 Scrutiny Chairs:-

Plaid Cymru and Independent Executive 67.57% = 3.37 - rounded down to 3. 

Labour  31.08%  = 1.55 – rounded up to 2 

Tudalen 475



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

Cyngor Sir
20fed Chwefror 2019

PENODI AELODAU I WASANAETHU AR AWDURDOD TÂN AC ACHUB Y 
CANOLBARTH A GORLLEWIN CYMRU 

ADOLYGIAD YN DILYN YMDDISWYDDIAD Y CYNGHORYDD R. EVANS O'R GRŴP  ANNIBYNNOL 
A HYSBYSIAD O'I DDYMUNIAD I YMUNO Â'R GRŴP LLAFUR

ARGYMHELLIAD
O ganlyniad i newidiadau i gyfansoddiad gwleidyddol cyffredinol y Cyngor, 

1. bydd dyraniad y seddi i aelodau etholedig ar Awdurdod Tân ac Achub Canolbarth a 
Gorllewin Cymru yn newid fel a ganlyn

Plaid Cymru (2) Llafur (2) Heb gysylltiad pleidiol (0)

2. Nodi, yn unol ag argymhelliad 1 uchod, bod Grŵp Plaid Cymru wedi gadael y sedd a 
oedd gan y Cynghorydd Mansel Charles a bod y Grŵp Llafur wedi enwebu'r 
Cynghorydd Rob Evans fel ei gynrychiolydd ychwanegol.

Y RHESYMAU: 
Ymddiswyddodd y Cynghorydd R. Evans o'r Grŵp Annibynnol a dod yn aelod o'r Grŵp Llafur ar 29 
Ionawr 2019.  Mae'r Awdurdod wedi cynnal adolygiad o'r trefniadau ar gyfer dyrannu seddi  i grwpiau 
gwleidyddol, o dan adran 15 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol a Thai 1989. 

Mae adrannau 15 ac 16 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol a Thai 1989 yn nodi ei bod yn ofynnol i 
awdurdodau unedol benodi Cynghorwyr Sir yn ôl cydbwysedd gwleidyddol yr awdurdod unedol unigol
Ymgynghorwyd â'r Pwyllgor Craffu Perthnasol AMHERTHNASOL                                           
Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad NAC OES 
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES 
YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:    Y Cynghorydd 
Emlyn Dole (Arweinydd)
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees Jones
Awdur yr Adroddiad:
Gaynor Morgan

Adran y Prif Weithredwr
Swyddi:  Pennaeth 
Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith

Rheolwr Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd

Rhifau ffôn: 01267 224012 
LRJ
01267 224026  GM
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
LRJones@sirgar.gov.uk
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 477

Eitem Rhif  13

mailto:LRJones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk


ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
COUNCIL

20TH FEBRUARY 2019

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO SERVE ON THE MID AND WEST WALES 
FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 

REVIEW FOLLOWING COUNCILLOR  R. EVANS’ RESIGNATION FROM THE INDEPENDENT 
GROUP AND NOTIFICATION OF WISH TO JOIN THE LABOUR GROUP

The Chief Executive received notice from Councillor R.  Evans on the 30th January that he 
had resigned from the Independent Group on the 29th January 2019 and had joined the 
Labour Group with effect from that date.  Having reviewed the political balance of the 
authority, the Plaid Cymru Group will need to relinquish a seat on the Mid and West Wales 
Fire & Rescue Authority to the Labour Group. 

Following discussions with Group Leaders, the Plaid Cymru Group has relinquished the 
seat held by Councillor Mansel Charles  and the Labour Group have nominated Councillor 
Rob Evans to take this seat.

There are no changes required to any other outside bodies/Council advisory Panels.
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? NO

Tudalen 478



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads 
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report:

Signed:   Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law                     

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets  

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
Legal  

Appointments to the Mid and West Wales Fire Authority are set out in Section 15 and 16 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 which  requires unitary authorities to appoint County 
Councillors according to the political balance of the individual unitary authority.  

Tudalen 479



ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF …………12 - 18......... O RAN 4 O ATODLEN 
12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN 
LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH)(AMRYWIO)(CYMRU) 2007 GAN EI FOD YN 
YMWNEUD Â GWYBODAETH YNGHYLCH ......
(Dileer os nad yw'n berthnasol) 

EITEM RHIF     AR YR AGENDA

RHAG-GYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYFARFOD Y 
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR 

Y DYDDIAD 

Y PWNC 

Y Pwrpas: 
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU 
HANGEN:

Y RHESYMAU: 

Rhag-gyfarfod y BG:
Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol 
DO/NADDO/AMHERTHNASOL                                           (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Y pwyllgor craffu a'r dyddiad    (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL / CYNGOR / PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

I'w cynnwys yn y man hwn neu o dan 'Ymgynghori'

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / Amherthnasol   (Dileer fel bo'r angen)
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES / NAC OES / AMHERTHNASOL (Dileer fel bo'r angen)

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Swyddi: Rhifau ffôn:

Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below:

Signed:   Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law                     

1.Scrutiny Committee
Not applicable
2.Local Member(s) 
Not applicable
3.Community / Town Council 
Not applicable
4.Relevant Partners  
Not applicable
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  

Not applicable
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available 
for public inspection 

The Local Government Act 2000 
 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2011

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/
2011/4/contents 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
– Sections 15 and 16  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga
/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/politica
l-balance-on-committees-etc 

Environment Act 1995  - Schedule 7 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga
/1995/25/schedule/7 

Minutes of the meeting of the Council 
held on the 24th May 2017

Minutes of the meeting of the Council 
held on the 14th February 2018

http://democracy.carmarthenshire.g
ov.wales/documents/g675/Printed%
20minutes%2024th-May-
2017%2011.00%20County%20Cou
ncil.pdf?T=1

http://moderngov/documents/g1370/
Printed%20minutes%2014th-Feb-
2018%2010.00%20County%20Cou
ncil.pdf?T=1

 

Tudalen 480

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/4/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1995/25/schedule/7
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1995/25/schedule/7
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/g675/Printed%20minutes%2024th-May-2017%2011.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/g675/Printed%20minutes%2024th-May-2017%2011.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/g675/Printed%20minutes%2024th-May-2017%2011.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/g675/Printed%20minutes%2024th-May-2017%2011.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/g675/Printed%20minutes%2024th-May-2017%2011.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/g675/Printed%20minutes%2024th-May-2017%2011.00%20County%20Council.pdf?T=1

	Agenda
	4 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR YR 9FED IONAWR 2019
	8 ADEILADU RHAGOR O DAI - CYNYDDU EIN HUCHELGAIS
	9.1 STRATEGAETH Y GYLLIDEB REFENIW 2019/20 - 2021/22
	Adroddiad
	Tabl 1
	Atodiad A - adroddiad ar yr ymgynghoriad ar y gyllideb
	Atodiad B - Cynigion arbedion
	Atodiad C - asesiad o'r effaith ar gydraddoldeb
	Atodiad D - dyraniadau o bwysau cyllidebol

	9.2 RHAGLEN GYFALAF PUM MLYNEDD (CRONFA'R CYNGOR) - 2019/20 - 2023/24
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad C

	9.3 CYFRIF CYLLIDEB REFENIW TAI 2019/20 - 2020/21 A LEFELAU RHENTI TAI 2021/22 - REFENIW A CHYFALAF
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B

	9.4 SAFON TAI SIR GAERFYRDDIN A MWY (STSG) CYNLLUN BUSNES 2019–22
	Adroddiad
	Appendicies A-E
	Appendix F

	9.5 POLISI RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS A STRATEGAETH  2019-2020
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad C
	Atodiad D
	Atodiad E

	10.1 21AIN IONAWR 2019
	10.2 4YDD CHWEFROR 2019
	11 PENODI SWYDD Y PRIF WEITHREDWR A PHENNAETH Y GWASANAETH TALEDIG.
	Profil Swydd
	Hysbysiad Swydd

	12 AELODAETH PWYLLGORAU CRAFFU, PWYLLGORAU RHEOLEIDDIO A PHWYLLGORAU ERAILL Y CYNGOR A PHENODI AELODAU I WASANAETHU ARNYNT
	Adroddiad

	13 PENODI AELODAU I WASANAETHU AR AWDURDOD TÂN AC ACHUB Y CANOLBARTH A GORLLEWIN CYMRU

